
 

Post Office Box 11130, Reno, NV  89520-0027 – 1001 E. Ninth St., Reno, NV  89512 
Telephone:  775.328.2415 – Fax:  775.328.3752 

www.washoecounty.us/health/ 

 
 

Washoe County District Board of Health 
Meeting Notice and Agenda 

Members Thursday, August 23, 2018 
Kitty Jung, Chair 1:00 p.m. 
Dr. John Novak, Vice Chair  
Oscar Delgado  
Dr. George Hess Washoe County Administration Complex 
Kristopher Dahir Commission Chambers, Building A 
Michael D. Brown 1001 East Ninth Street 
Tom Young Reno, NV 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
An item listed with asterisk (*) next to it is an item for which no action will be taken. 
1:00 p.m. 
1. *Roll Call and Determination of Quorum 
2. *Pledge of Allegiance 
3. *Public Comment 

Any person is invited to speak on any item on or off the agenda during this period. Action 
may not be taken on any matter raised during this public comment period until the matter is 
specifically listed on an agenda as an action item. 

4. Approval of Agenda – (For possible action) 
August 23, 2018 

5. *Recognitions 
A. Retirements 

i. Jim Shaffer, 8/3/2018, Vector Control Coordinator - EHS 
B. Years of Service 

i. Kimberly Graham, 20 years, Hired 8/31/1998 - CCHS 
C. New Hires 

i. Kara Roseburrough, Office Support Specialist, 8/6/2018 - CCHS 
ii. Mercedes Soubiea, Public Health Investigator II, 8/20/2018 – EPHP 
iii. Allison Schleicher, Public Health Investigator II, 8/20/2018 – CCHS 
iv. Jacqueline Gonzalez, Advance Practice Registered Nurse, 8/20/2018 - CCHS 

D. Shining Star 
i. Kim Franchi - EHS 

6. Consent Items – (For possible action) 
Matters which the District Board of Health may consider in one motion.  Any exceptions to 
the Consent Agenda must be stated prior to approval. 
A. Approval of Draft Minutes – (For possible action) 

i. July 26, 2018 



 
August 23, 2018 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Agenda   Page 2 of 4 

 
B. Budget Amendments/Interlocal Agreements – (For possible action) 

i. Retroactive Approval of Notice of Grant Award #5U18FD006275-02 from the U.S. 
Food and Drug Administration for the period 7/1/18 through 6/30/19 in the total 
amount of $70,000 for the Advancing Conformance with the Voluntary National 
Retail Food Regulatory Program Standards program within Environmental Health 
Services, IO 11088 and authorize the District Health Officer to execute the subgrant 
award. 
Staff Representative:  Jennifer Pierce 

ii. Retroactive approval of Grant Agreement #A-00905418-1 from the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) for funding increase in the amount of 
$136,913 for the period 10/1/17 through 9/30/18 for the Air Quality Management, 
EPA Air Pollution Control Program, IO 10019. 
Staff Representative:  Jennifer Pierce 

iii. Accept monetary donation [$10.00] to Washoe County Health District’s Vital 
Statistics Program retroactive from July 25, 2018; express appreciation for the 
contribution. 
Staff Representative:  Jennifer Pierce 

iv. Retroactive approval of Notice of Subgrant Award from the Nevada Department of 
Health and Human Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health, for the period 
July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 in the total amount of $920,693 (with $92,069.30 
or 10% match) in support of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) 
Public Health Preparedness Program; and if approved authorize the District Health 
Officer to execute the Subgrant Award. 
Staff Representative:  Jennifer Pierce 

v. Retroactive approval of Notice of Subgrant Award from the Nevada Department of 
Health and Human Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health, for the period 
July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 in the total amount of $365,687 (with $33,244 or 
10% match) in support of the Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and Response 
(ASPR)  Public Health Preparedness Program.  Approval of authorization to travel 
and travel reimbursements for non-County employees that are Inter-Hospital 
Coordinating Council (IHCC) Coalition members (to be designated by IHCC 
leadership) in an amount not to exceed $10,695 to attend the Health Care Coalition 
Conferences (dates to be determined); and if approved authorize the District Health 
Officer to execute the Subgrant Award. 
Staff Representative:  Jennifer Pierce 

C. Recommendation for the Board to uphold an unappealed citation issued to Washoe 
County Community Services Department – Utility Services, Case No. 1202, Notice of 
Violation Citation No. 5670, with a $1,190.00 negotiated fine. - (For possible action) 
i. Washoe County Community Services Department, Utility Services, Case No. 1202, 

Notice of Violation Citation No. 5670 
Staff Representative:  Charlene Albee 

D. Acknowledge receipt of the Health Fund Financial Review for July, Fiscal Year 2018 – 
(For possible action) 
Staff Representative:  Anna Heenan 
 



 
August 23, 2018 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Agenda   Page 3 of 4 

7. Discussion and possible appointment of Consumer at Large to the REMSA Board of 
Directors as the District Board of Health Appointed Representative. - (For possible 
action) 
i. Scott Benton 
ii. Melanie Flores 
Staff Representative:  Christina Conti 

8. Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority 
Presented by:  Dean Dow 
A. Review and Acceptance of the REMSA Operations Report for July, 2018 – (For 

possible action) 
B. *Update of REMSA’s Public Relations during July 2018 

9. Presentation and possible acceptance of the annual progress report on the 2017-2020 
Strategic Plan. – (For possible action) 
Staff Representative:  Kevin Dick 

10. *Staff Reports and Program Updates 
A. Air Quality Management, Charlene Albee, Director 

Program Update, Divisional Update, Program Reports 

B. Community and Clinical Health Services, Steve Kutz, Director 
Divisional Update – National Immunization Awareness Month; Data & Metrics; Program 
Reports 

C. Environmental Health Services, Chad Westom, Director 
Environmental Health Services (EHS) Division and Program Updates – Training, 
Epidemiology, Community Development, Food, Special Events, Hotel/Motel, Land 
Development, Safe Drinking Water, Vector-Borne Disease, Waste Management and 
Inspections 

D. Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness, Dr. Randall Todd, Director 
Program Updates for Communicable Disease, Public Health Preparedness, and 
Emergency Medical Services 

E. Office of the District Health Officer, Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 
District Health Officer Report – Public Health Accreditation (PHAB), Quality 
Improvement, Strategic Plan, Workforce Development, Community Health Improvement 
Plan, Truckee Meadows Healthy Communities (TMHC), Washoe Behavioral Health 
Policy Board, Washoe County Substance Abuse Task Force, County Complex Master 
Plan, Advisory Council on the State Program for Wellness and the Prevention of Chronic 
Disease (CWCD), Other Events and Activities and Health District Media Contacts. 

11. *Board Comment 
Limited to announcements or issues for future agendas. 

12. *Public Comment 
Any person is invited to speak on any item on or off the agenda during this period. Action 
may not be taken on any matter raised during this public comment period until the matter is 
specifically listed on an agenda as an action item. 

13. Adjournment – (For possible action) 
 
 



 
August 23, 2018 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Agenda   Page 4 of 4 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Possible Changes to Agenda Order and Timing:  Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, combined with other items, 
withdrawn from the agenda,  moved to the agenda of another later meeting; moved to or from the Consent section, or they may 
be voted on in a block.  Items with a specific time designation will not be heard prior to the stated time, but may be heard later.  
Items listed in the Consent section of the agenda are voted on as a block and will not be read or considered separately unless 
withdrawn from the Consent agenda. 

Special Accommodations: The District Board of Health Meetings are accessible to the disabled.  Disabled members of the 
public who require special accommodations or assistance at the meeting are requested to notify Administrative Health Services in 
writing at the Washoe County Health District, PO Box 1130, Reno, NV 89520-0027, or by calling 775.328.2416, 24 hours prior 
to the meeting. 

Public Comment:  During the “Public Comment” items, anyone may speak pertaining to any matter either on or off the agenda, 
to include items to be heard on consent.  For the remainder of the agenda, public comment will only be heard during items that 
are not marked with an asterisk (*).  Any public comment for hearing items will be heard before action is taken on the item and 
must be about the specific item being considered by the Board.  In order to speak during any public comment, each speaker must 
fill out a “Request to Speak” form and/or submit comments for the record to the Recording Secretary.  Public comment and 
presentations for individual agenda items are limited as follows: fifteen minutes each for staff and applicant presentations, five 
minutes for a speaker representing a group, and three minutes for individual speakers unless extended by questions from the 
Board or by action of the Chair. 

Response to Public Comment: The Board of Health can deliberate or take action only if a matter has been listed on an agenda 
properly posted prior to the meeting.  During the public comment period, speakers may address matters listed or not listed on the 
published agenda.  The Open Meeting Law does not expressly prohibit responses to public comments by the Board of Health.  
However, responses from the Board members to unlisted public comment topics could become deliberation on a matter without 
notice to the public.  On the advice of legal counsel and to ensure the public has notice of all matters the Board of Health will 
consider, Board members may choose not to respond to public comments, except to correct factual inaccuracies, ask for Health 
District Staff action or to ask that a matter be listed on a future agenda.  The Board of Health may do this either during the public 
comment item or during the following item:  “Board Comments – Limited to Announcement or Issues for future Agendas.”  

Posting of Agenda; Location of Website:  

Pursuant to NRS 241.020, Notice of this meeting was posted at the following locations: 

Washoe County Health District, 1001 E. 9th St., Reno, NV 
Reno City Hall, 1 E. 1st St., Reno, NV 
Sparks City Hall, 431 Prater Way, Sparks, NV 
Washoe County Administration Building, 1001 E. 9th St, Reno, NV 
Downtown Reno Library, 301 S. Center St., Reno, NV 
Washoe County Health District Website www.washoecounty.us/health 
State of Nevada Website: https://notice.nv.gov 

How to Get Copies of Agenda and Support Materials: Supporting materials are available to the public at the Washoe County 
Health District located at 1001 E. 9th Street, in Reno, Nevada.  Ms. Laura Rogers, Administrative Secretary to the District Board 
of Health is the person designated by the Washoe County District Board of Health to respond to requests for supporting 
materials.  Ms. Rogers is located at the Washoe County Health District and may be reached by telephone at (775) 328-2415 or by 
email at lrogers@washoecounty.us.  Supporting materials are also available at the Washoe County Health District Website 
www.washoecounty.us/health  pursuant to the requirements of NRS 241.020. 

http://www.washoecounty.us/health
https://notice.nv.gov/
mailto:lrogers@washoecounty.us
http://www.washoecounty.us/health


Post Office Box 11130, Reno, NV  89520-0027 – 1001 E. Ninth St., Reno, NV  89512 
Telephone:  775.328.2415 – Fax:  775.328.3752 

www.washoecounty.us/health/ 

Washoe County District Board of Health 
Meeting Minutes 

Members Thursday, July 26, 2018 
Kitty Jung, Chair 1:00 p.m. 
Dr. John Novak, Vice Chair 
Oscar Delgado 
Dr. George Hess Washoe County Administration Complex 
Kristopher Dahir Commission Chambers, Building A 
Michael D. Brown 1001 East Ninth Street 
Tom Young Reno, NV 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

1. *Roll Call and Determination of Quorum
Vice Chair Novak called the meeting to order at 1:01 p.m.
The following members and staff were present:
Members present: Dr. John Novak, Vice Chair

Michael Brown 
Dr. George Hess 
Oscar Delgado  

Members absent: Kitty Jung, Chair 
Tom Young 
Kristopher Dahir 

Ms. Rogers verified a quorum was present. 
Staff present: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer, ODHO 

Leslie Admirand, Deputy District Attorney 
Daniel Inouye 
Steve Kutz 
Chad Westom 
Christina Conti 
Julie Hunter 

2. *Pledge of Allegiance
Dr. Hess led the pledge to the flag.

3. *Public Comment

As there was no one wishing to speak, Vice Chair Novak closed the public comment 
period. 

4. Approval of Agenda
July 26, 2018

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 6A



 
July 26, 2018 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 2 of 10 

Mr. Brown moved to approve the agenda for the July 26, 2018, District Board of Health 
regular meeting.  Mr. Delgado seconded the motion which was approved four in favor and 
none against. 

5. Recognitions 
A. Years of Service 

i. Molly Diaz, 15 years, Hired 7/28/2003 - AHS 
Mr. Dick congratulated Ms. Diaz on her fifteen years of service. 

ii. Will Lumpkin, 10 years, Hired 7/21/2008 - EHS 
Although Mr. Lumpkin was not in attendance to be recognized, Mr. Dick explained 

that he is member of the Vector Control Program and congratulated him on his ten years 
of service.  

B. New Hires 
i. Katherine Sullivan, Office Assistant II, 7/9/2018 - EHS 

Mr. Westom introduced Ms. Sullivan, informing that she is an asset to Environmental 
Health Services and is coming up to speed very quickly. 
ii. Kelly Parsons, Office Assistant II, 7/23/2018 – AQM 

Mr. Inouye introduced Ms. Parsons as Air Quality Management’s new Office 
Assistant II.  He informed that she is originally from California, but graduated from Reed 
High School after moving to the area and earned her Bachelor of Science in Business 
Management from UNR. 

Mr. Inouye stated that, of the nineteen employees in AQM, fourteen were UNR 
graduates and that number includes four employees with advanced degrees. 

Mr. Inouye stated that Ms. Parsons began her career with Washoe County in 2015 
with Human Services and Child Protective Services.  He expressed that AQM is very 
pleased to have Ms. Parsons on staff with them. 

C. Reassignments 
i. Jessica Cabrales, from CCHS Office Support Specialist to Office Support Specialist, 

7/9/2018, - AQM 
Mr. Dick informed that Ms. Cabrales had been reassigned within the Health District 

from CCHS to AQM as an Office Support Specialist and congratulated her on her new 
position. 

D. Resignations 
i. Jan Houk, 7/27/2018, Public Health Nurse II, 22 years, CCHS 

Mr. Dick stated that Ms. Houk had twenty-two years with the Health District and had 
resigned to work full time with the Washoe County School District as a School Nurse, 
but was pleased to inform that she would continue working with the Health District as an 
intermittent hourly employee. 

Ms. Houk was not able to be in attendance. 
ii. Ruth Soto-Castillo, 6/23/2018, Community Health Aide, 12 years, CCHS 

Mr. Dick informed that Ms. Soto-Castillo had worked twelve years with the Health 
District.  Ms. Soto-Castillo was not in attendance. 



 
July 26, 2018 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 3 of 10 

 
E. Shining Star 

i. Carmen Mendoza - EPHP 
Mr. Dick reminded the Board that the Shining Star Awards are to recognize 

exceptional customer service or performance in the Health District, and that nominations 
can come from either external customers or staff.  He wished to recognize Ms. Mendoza 
once again, informing that she had nine nominations at the time her recognition was 
placed on the agenda but that she has now received her tenth Shining Star Award. 

Mr. Dick explained that Ms. Mendoza is in the Vital Records Program, which 
historically because of restrictions on who can be issued the records, had dissatisfied 
customers due to interactions there.  Mr. Dick expressed he was very pleased with the 
performance of Ms. Mendoza and her staff who have received these Shining Star 
recognitions. 

6. Consent Items 
Matters which the District Board of Health may consider in one motion.  Any exceptions to 
the Consent Agenda must be stated prior to approval. 
A. Approval of Draft Minutes 

i. June 28, 2018 
B. Budget Amendments/Interlocal Agreements 

i. Retroactively approve a Subgrant Award from the Nevada Department of Health and 
Human Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health, for the period of August 
1, 2017 through July 31, 2018 [From $170,522 to $312,866] in support of the Centers 
for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) Epidemiology and Laboratory Capacity 
Program IO #10984 and authorize the District Health Officer to execute the Subgrant 
Award. 
Staff Representative:  Jennifer Pierce 

C. Approve an Interlocal Agreement between Washoe County Health District and 
University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine Integrated Clinical Services, Inc., and 
University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine MultiSpecialty Group Practice North, 
Inc., dba MEDSchool Associates North, to designate faculty member(s) to serve as 
Medical Consultant to the District for the Sexually Transmitted Disease Clinic retroactive 
to July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 unless extended by the mutual agreement of the 
Parties, with automatic renewal for two successive one-year periods for a total of three 
years for the terms in the agreement unless either party gives the other written notice of 
nonrenewal at least 60 days prior to June 30 of each year. 
Staff Representative:  Nancy Kerns Cummins 

D. Approve Amendment #1 to the Interlocal Agreement between the Washoe County Health 
District and Washoe County through its Department of Juvenile Services to provide for 
vaccine storage retroactive to July 1, 2018. 
Staff Representative:  Nancy Kerns Cummins 

E. Presentation, discussion, and possible approval of the donation of various pieces of 
obsolete monitoring equipment and associated supplies with a current market value 
estimated at $-0- that have exceeded the useful value for regulatory purposes but may still 
have value for educational, research and community organizations. 
Staff Representative:  Daniel Inouye 



 
July 26, 2018 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 4 of 10 

F. Recommendation to Uphold Citations Not Appealed to the Air Pollution Control Hearing 
Board. 
i. Olympia Gaming CRS Sparks – Case No. 1200, NOV No. 5665 
ii. Woodsprings Suites Reno East Legends – Case No. 1201, NOV No. 5668 
Staff Representative:  Daniel Inouye 

G. Acknowledge receipt of the Health Fund Financial Review for June, Fiscal Year 2018 
Staff Representative:  Anna Heenan 

Vice Chair Novak inquired regarding the amounts of the Air Quality 
Management fines on item 6F and requested they be reviewed for possible increase.  
He opined that the low penalty amount could encourage noncompliance as it would 
be more cost effective to pay the fine than comply. 

Mr. Dick informed that these fines were for violations that occurred just prior to 
the higher fines for these violations approved at the June District Board of Health 
Meeting. 

Dr. Hess moved to accept the Consent Agenda.  Mr. Delgado seconded the 
motion which was approved four in favor and none against. 

7. PUBLIC HEARING:  Presentation, discussion, and possible adoption of “The Washoe 
County Portion of the Nevada State Implementation Plan to Meet the Ozone 
Infrastructure SIP Requirements of Clean Air Act Section 110(a)(2)” and direct Staff to 
forward it to EPA via NDEP as an amendment to the Washoe County portion of the 
Nevada Ozone State Implementation Plan. 
Staff Representative:  Daniel Inouye 

Mr. Inouye stated that the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) establishes health-
based standards for six pollutants including Ozone.  He informed that the Clean Air Act 
requires State and Local Air Quality Management Agencies to demonstrate that they have the 
authority and resources to implement, maintain and enforce these air quality standards. 

Mr. Inouye explained that this Ozone Infrastructure Plan is a demonstration of these 
requirements.  If adopted, he stated that the Infrastructure Plan will be submitted through the 
Nevada Division of Environmental Protection (NDEP) to EPA, as a revision to the Washoe 
County portion of Nevada Ozone State Implementation Plan. 

Vice Chair Novak opened the Public Hearing.  There was no public comment. 
Dr. Hess moved the District Board of Health adopt “The Washoe County Portion of 

the Nevada State Implementation Plan to Meet the Ozone Infrastructure SIP 
Requirements of Clean Air Act Section 110(a)(2)”.  Mr. Brown seconded the motion 
which was approved four in favor and none against. 

8. Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority 
Presented by:  JW Hodge 
A. Review and Acceptance of the REMSA Operations Report for June, 2018 

Mr. Hodge stated he wished to acknowledge Mr. Kenny Kitts who was present, for his 
significant role in the preparation of the monthly REMSA Report, and informed that Mr. 
Kitts has been with REMSA for twenty-five years. 

Vice Chair Novak congratulated Mr. Kitts and thanked him for his hard work. 

There was no public comment. 



 
July 26, 2018 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 5 of 10 

Mr. Brown moved to accept the REMSA Operations Report for June 2018.  Mr. 
Delgado seconded the motion which was approved four in favor and none against. 
B. *Update of REMSA’s Public Relations during June 2018 

Mr. Hodge stated that with the very high temperatures in June and July that REMSA has 
reached out to the public through various media outlets to provide tips to stay healthy and 
safe. 

Mr. Hodge informed that new technology had been installed earlier in July to allow 
REMSA’s website to be translated into one hundred different languages. 

Mr. Hodge stated that a new pop-up feature on the career section of REMSA’s website 
allows applicants to complete a short form to contact Human Resources and apply for jobs.  
He informed that this new feature was implemented in response to Mr. Dahir’s question 
regarding REMSA’s methods of recruiting. 

During the week of July 30th, Mr. Hodge informed that the new internal employee survey 
would be launched.  He stated that it would be open for two weeks and REMSA would then 
inform employees of the results and next steps forward. 

9. Consideration and possible adoption of a policy for Environmental Health Services 
(EHS) and Air Quality Management fee relief or mitigation for entities affected by 
disasters and emergencies. – (Item was tabled for further discussion) 
Staff Representative:  Kevin Dick 

Mr. Dick explained that he had produced this staff report as a follow up to action taken 
following the flooding in Lemmon Valley in which the decision was made to not collect fees 
for some of the properties impacted by the flood.  He stated that he had been requested at that 
time to bring back a policy for the Board to consider regarding how the Health District 
should manage any fee relief or mitigation in the event of disasters or emergencies. 

Mr. Dick summarized his proposed policy, in which the Health District would not 
provide any relief or mitigation for fees unless the jurisdiction in which the property or 
business was located agreed to reimburse the Health District, or, in the event a third party 
was willing to reimburse the Health District for the fee. 

Mr. Dick informed that part of the consideration in this policy was that, while the 
Lemmon Valley flooding was certainly a disaster and hardship for those residents, it was 
fairly restricted as to the location and extent of the damage.  He stated that future events 
could involve an entire region which would exceed the Health District’s capability to 
effectively mitigate fees. 

Mr. Dick informed that the Health District is currently receiving funding support through 
a Washoe County General Fund transfer, and depending on where the properties were 
actually impacted, opined that this scope of mitigation would be above and beyond the 
Health District’s responsibilities. 

Dr. Hess inquired the cost of the fees in question, and opined that the larger fees could 
place an additional hardship on a home or business owner.  Mr. Dick informed that the fees 
range from several hundred to several thousand dollars. 

Mr. Delgado agreed with Dr. Hess, and stated that persons without proper insurance to 
pay for repairs and fees could be burdened to the point of losing their home.  He opined the 
policy to possibly be too strict. 

Vice Chair Novak referred to Mr. Dick’s comment that a large portion of the Health 
District budget is received from Washoe County, and inquired if possibly a policy should be 
considered between Washoe County and the Health District for mitigation of fees. 

Vice Chair Novak stated that he agrees in many ways with the policy as it is written due 



 
July 26, 2018 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 6 of 10 

to potential consequences for a wide spread emergency or disaster.  He informed that he 
would like to table this item for further discussion of a policy with the jurisdictions and 
investigation of a mechanism or process for appeals but expressed his concerns regarding the 
Board’s capacity to address a large number of individuals seeking to appeal the District’s 
charges for services.  He inquired if Mr. Dick was agreeable to this action. 

Mr. Dick stated that he was agreeable, and that he was open to suggestions from the 
Board Members. 

Vice Chair Novak moved to table this item for Consideration and possible adoption 
of a policy for Environmental Health Services (EHS) and Air Quality Management fee 
relief or mitigation for entities affected by disasters and emergencies for further 
investigation.  Dr. Hess seconded the motion which was approved four in favor and 
none against. 

Vice Chair Novak inquired of Ms. Admirand, since this item had been tabled, if the 
Board is required to hear public comment.  Ms. Admirand informed that when a 
motion is made it is an action item, and instructed Vice Chair Novak to ask the Clerk if 
there is any public comment at this time. 

As there was no one wishing to speak, Vice Chair Novak closed the public comment 
period. 

10. *Staff Reports and Program Updates 
A. Air Quality Management, Charlene Albee, Director 

Program Update, Divisional Update, Program Reports 
Mr. Inouye stated that the Board approved Air Quality Management’s commitment to 

the Wildland Fire Air Quality Response Program at the March DBOH Meeting.  He 
informed that Ms. Julie Hunter has been trained as an Air Resource Advisor (ARA) and 
that she had been deployed to wildfires in New Mexico and Colorado. 

Ms. Hunter introduced herself as a Senior Air Quality Specialist with the Washoe 
County Health District Air Quality Management Division.   

Ms. Hunter stated that she had been deployed to the Ute Fire in New Mexico and the 
416 Fire in Colorado.  She explained that an ARA is a part of the Wildland Fire Air 
Quality Response Program led by the USDA Department of Forest Service, and that the 
Program was developed to assess, communicate and address smoke risks from massive 
fire incidents. 

Ms. Hunter detailed the components to this Program and explained her duties as an 
ARA were to use the air quality monitoring and modeling equipment to analyze and 
predict smoke impacts and to communicate the impacts to Incident Command, local 
agencies and the public. 

Ms. Hunter explained the monitoring equipment they deploy measures the fine 
particulate matter that is the major component of wildfire smoke.  The equipment uses 
satellite service to populate air quality index data on maps as shown in her presentation, 
noting that these maps are available to the public. 

Ms. Hunter informed that ARAs are part of Incident Command and work in the 
Planning Section in collaboration with the Incident Meteorologist, Fire Behavior Analyst 
and others.  These groups work together, examining each group’s models to better 
determine smoke impacts, incorporating Ground and Air Operations reports  

Ms. Hunter explained that with the Modeling and Monitoring instruments, the ARAs 
provide the previous air quality index as well as the forecasted air quality index for the 



 
July 26, 2018 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 7 of 10 

impacted communities.  She spoke of the Outlook software displayed in her presentation 
and explained that it is specific to the ARA Program, that it is updated daily and 
populated with air quality monitoring data, and that health warnings and safety 
information are also displayed. 

Ms. Hunter detailed the avenues of communication for the data they collect, and 
informed that the success of an ARA depends on the coordination and cooperation of the 
whole Incident Command Team working with the Emergency Operations Center in the 
local communities to providing consistent messaging. 

Ms. Hunter stated the benefits she bring back to the Division as an ARA include her 
working knowledge of the Incident Command System and experience with the modeling 
and monitoring tools that are being used for local impacts.  She informed that AQM is 
looking into the Outlook products and has tried to incorporate some of that messaging 
into their messaging.  Ms. Hunter stated that consistent messaging is important 
throughout the nation on managing smoke impacts and that her experience supports and 
supplements planning for Exceptional Event Demonstrations, Mitigation Plans and 
AQM’s Smoke Management Program. 

Ms. Hunter informed that she would like to thank for the record Truckee Meadows 
Fire District, thanking Chief Moore who was present for sponsoring her as well as 
Captain Bunn, also present, who went out of their way to help her.  She thanked the Air 
Quality Management Division and Ms. Albee and Mr. Inouye specifically for their 
support, as well as the District Board of Health for approving and supporting her role as 
an Air Resource Advisor. 

Dr. Hess inquired what the air quality forecast for the next ten days would be.  Ms. 
Hunter informed that smoke impacts would be great, especially with the Carr Fire which 
increased from 4,500 to 20,000 acres overnight.  She informed that, with the fires in 
northwest California and southwest Oregon, there will be significant smoke in the area 
for the foreseeable future and that they have been consistently messaging to stay indoors, 
run the air conditioner and to avoid exercise or exertion outdoors. 

Mr. Brown stated that air quality control is a consistent effort and is not limited to the 
fire season.  He informed that Ms. Hunter is one of the leaders that have been working 
with land managers for the past several years and spoke of plans for more prescribed fires 
to reduce fuel loads in the desert and forest. 

Mr. Brown expressed he is very happy that Ms. Hunter does such a fine job in her 
role to the benefit of the community overall, and thanked her for the work she does. 

B. Community and Clinical Health Services, Steve Kutz, Director 
Divisional Update – Changes to CCHS Programs; Medicaid Enrollment Assistance; Data 
& Metrics; Program Reports 

Mr. Kutz commented that, in regards to the changes in the CCHS Programs, they 
have been doing what they can with the limited resources available to them and that this 
has been a difficult change to make in relation to the Maternal Child Health Program.  He 
stated that, while CCHS knows this program to be important, the changes were made to 
best serve the community and do what is best for the Division as a whole. 

As part of the Plan, Do, Check, Act process, Mr. Kutz informed that the changes 
CCHS is making will be evaluated, assessing impact to staff, programs and the 
community. 

Mr. Kutz stated that CCHS had their second outing to the Detention Facility at the 
Washoe County Sheriff’s Office and served approximately ten women at this visit, 
providing Long Acting Reversible Contraceptives.  He informed that the partnership is 



 
July 26, 2018 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 8 of 10 

going very well between CCHS and the Sheriff’s Office and that the women are 
appreciative and excited for this opportunity. 

C. Environmental Health Services, Chad Westom, Director 
Environmental Health Services (EHS) Division and Program Updates – Community 
Development, Food, Special Events, Land Development, Safe Drinking Water, Vector-
Borne Diseases, Waste Management, Inspections 

Mr. Westom informed that the EHS Team has been very successful in streamlining 
the Health plan review processes and the turn-around time is reduced to a week or less; 
the average completion time for the various plans are now posted on Health District 
website. 

Mr. Westom stated that Chair Jung requested EHS approach the Washoe County 
Board of County Commissioners regarding $180,000 in additional funding for mosquito 
abatement after the June DBOH Meeting where he reported on a proposed mosquito 
abatement program.  He informed that Mr. Dick had more information for the Board. 

As far as requesting additional funds for mosquito abatement, Mr. Dick wished to 
inform the Board that the Health District is pleased to have ended FY18 with a higher 
than anticipated fund balance as shown in the financial report from June 2018.  He 
explained that, because of this ending fund balance, his intention is to support the 
mosquito abatement needs with Health District funds versus going to the Board of 
County Commissioners for an additional fund transfer at this point. 

Along with this expenditure for mosquito abatement, Mr. Dick informed that the 
Health District will be identifying and proposing to the Board during the November 
Strategic Planning meeting other one-time investments in the District and for the 
community’s benefit to be funded by a portion of the ending balance. 

D. Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness, Dr. Randall Todd, Director 
Program Updates for Communicable Disease, Public Health Preparedness, and 
Emergency Medical Services 

Ms. Conti informed that she had no additional comments but would be happy to 
answer any questions in Dr. Todd’s absence. 

E. Office of the District Health Officer, Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 
District Health Officer Report – REMSA Franchise Agreement, Plan Reviews, Washoe 
Behavioral Health Policy Board, Public Health Accreditation, Community Health 
Improvement Plan, Truckee Meadows Healthy Communities, Quality Improvement,  
Workforce Development, Style Guide, New CCHS Fees, Other Events and Activities and 
Health District Media Contacts. 

Mr. Dick thanked the Board Members who participated in the meeting with City of 
Reno for funding of additional staffing through the Enterprise Fund and specifically 
thanked Mr. Delgado for his help in organizing the meeting as well as Vice Chair Novak 
and Mr. Brown’s efforts to continue to work toward this arrangement. 

Mr. Dick informed that the Health District continues to work with NDEP and TMWA 
on the interlocal agreement for alternative oversight of plan review.  He opined they are 
nearing an agreement. 

Mr. Dick announced that there will be an unveiling event to present the new 
Community Health Improvement Plan (CHIP) to the community held at the County 
Chambers on August 2nd from 9:30-11:30 a.m.  He informed that Carson City Health and 
Human Services CHIP was approved by their Board on July 19 and will join the Washoe 



 
July 26, 2018 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 9 of 10 

County Health District at this event, and opined there may be opportunities for 
collaboration between the two.  He stated that a number of community partners will be 
presenting at the event, as well. 

Mr. Dick informed that a Family Health Festival (FHF) had been held at the Miguel 
Ribero Park with the Truckee Meadows Healthy Communities (TMHC) and that a 
number of partners participated including Community Health Alliance.  The Festival was 
quite successful with approximately five hundred persons served.  Services available 
were immunizations, BMI assessment, blood pressure and skin cancer screening, Healthy 
Smiles and distribution of back-to-school materials and information.  He informed that 
there is another FHF being planned for October or November. 

Vice Chair Novak requested an updated on Accreditation.  Mr. Dick obliged by 
informing that the Health District is on track to submit all documents for review on 
October 1st.  He stated that over 200 of the required 213 documents have been collected 
and are under review; the balance is pending finalization of data to complete them.  He 
explained that there will be a site visit within six months after the October 1st document 
submission to PHAB. 

Mr. Dick informed that he had the opportunity to see Carol Moehrle who had been 
part of the Health District’s Fundamental Review Team in 2013-14 at the NACCHO 
Conference that he and Ms. Peters attended in July.  He stated it was enjoyable to speak 
with her about the progress the Health District has made and how useful the Fundamental 
Review had been in the process. 

Vice Chair Novak requested to have an update on the Health District’s status for 
Accreditation for his report at the upcoming NALBOH Board Meeting and Annual 
Conference in early August.  Mr. Dick stated he would be provided with a hard copy of 
this information to take with him and requested Ms. Rogers to set a date to meet with Ms. 
Peters, Vice Chair Novak and himself prior to the NALBOH events. 

11. *Board Comment 
Dr. Hess inquired if there was any other information available on the ambulance transport 

agreement between City of Reno Fire Department and MedXAirOne, LLC that had been 
pulled from the July 18th Reno City Council Agenda.  Dr. Hess expressed concern that this 
item could be brought back on a future agenda. 

Mr. Brown suggested that this item could be agendized for review on the September 
DBOH Meeting for concerned parties to be able to discuss with and educate the Board on 
their stances. 

Vice Chair Novak closed the Board comment period. 
12. *Public Comment 

Ms. Brandhorst expressed concerns for living conditions in low income housing. 

Vice Chair Novak closed the public comment period. 
13. Adjournment 

Vice Chair Novak adjourned the meeting at 1:52 p.m. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
Possible Changes to Agenda Order and Timing:  Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, combined with other items, 
withdrawn from the agenda,  moved to the agenda of another later meeting; moved to or from the Consent section, or they may 
be voted on in a block.  Items with a specific time designation will not be heard prior to the stated time, but may be heard later.  
Items listed in the Consent section of the agenda are voted on as a block and will not be read or considered separately unless 
withdrawn from the Consent agenda. 



 
July 26, 2018 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 10 of 10 

Special Accommodations: The District Board of Health Meetings are accessible to the disabled.  Disabled members of the 
public who require special accommodations or assistance at the meeting are requested to notify Administrative Health Services in 
writing at the Washoe County Health District, PO Box 1130, Reno, NV 89520-0027, or by calling 775.328.2416, 24 hours prior 
to the meeting. 

Public Comment:  During the “Public Comment” items, anyone may speak pertaining to any matter either on or off the agenda, 
to include items to be heard on consent.  For the remainder of the agenda, public comment will only be heard during items that 
are not marked with an asterisk (*).  Any public comment for hearing items will be heard before action is taken on the item and 
must be about the specific item being considered by the Board.  In order to speak during any public comment, each speaker must 
fill out a “Request to Speak” form and/or submit comments for the record to the Recording Secretary.  Public comment and 
presentations for individual agenda items are limited as follows: fifteen minutes each for staff and applicant presentations, five 
minutes for a speaker representing a group, and three minutes for individual speakers unless extended by questions from the 
Board or by action of the Chair. 

Response to Public Comment: The Board of Health can deliberate or take action only if a matter has been listed on an agenda 
properly posted prior to the meeting.  During the public comment period, speakers may address matters listed or not listed on the 
published agenda.  The Open Meeting Law does not expressly prohibit responses to public comments by the Board of Health.  
However, responses from the Board members to unlisted public comment topics could become deliberation on a matter without 
notice to the public.  On the advice of legal counsel and to ensure the public has notice of all matters the Board of Health will 
consider, Board members may choose not to respond to public comments, except to correct factual inaccuracies, ask for Health 
District Staff action or to ask that a matter be listed on a future agenda.  The Board of Health may do this either during the public 
comment item or during the following item:  “Board Comments – Limited to Announcement or Issues for future Agendas.” 

Posting of Agenda; Location of Website:  

Pursuant to NRS 241.020, Notice of this meeting was posted at the following locations: 
 

Washoe County Health District, 1001 E. 9th St., Reno, NV 
Reno City Hall, 1 E. 1st St., Reno, NV 
Sparks City Hall, 431 Prater Way, Sparks, NV 
Washoe County Administration Building, 1001 E. 9th St, Reno, NV 
Downtown Reno Library, 301 S. Center St., Reno, NV 
Washoe County Health District Website www.washoecounty.us/health 
State of Nevada Website: https://notice.nv.gov 

How to Get Copies of Agenda and Support Materials: Supporting materials are available to the public at the Washoe County 
Health District located at 1001 E. 9th Street, in Reno, Nevada.  Ms. Laura Rogers, Administrative Secretary to the District Board 
of Health is the person designated by the Washoe County District Board of Health to respond to requests for supporting 
materials.  Ms. Rogers is located at the Washoe County Health District and may be reached by telephone at (775) 328-2415 or by 
email at lrogers@washoecounty.us.  Supporting materials are also available at the Washoe County Health District Website 
www.washoecounty.us/health  pursuant to the requirements of NRS 241.020. 

http://www.washoecounty.us/health
https://notice.nv.gov/
mailto:lrogers@washoecounty.us
http://www.washoecounty.us/health


ADMINISTRATIVE HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
AHS Office: 775-328-2410   I   Fax: 775-328-3752   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date:  August 23, 2018 

TO:   District Board of Health 

FROM:  Jennifer Pierce, Fiscal Compliance Officer, Washoe County Health District 
775-328-2418, jpierce@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT:   Retroactive Approval of Notice of Grant Award #5U18FD006275-02 from the U.S. 
Food and Drug Administration for the period 7/1/18 through 6/30/19 in the total 
amount of $70,000 for the Advancing Conformance with the Voluntary National 
Retail Food Regulatory Program Standards program within Environmental Health 
Services, IO 11088 and authorize the District Health Officer to execute the subgrant 
award. 

SUMMARY 
The Washoe County District Board of Health must approve and execute Interlocal Agreements and 
amendments to the adopted budget.  The District Health Officer is authorized to execute agreements 
on the Board of Health’s behalf not to exceed a cumulative amount of $100,000 per contractor; over 
$100,000 would require the approval of the District Board of Health.   

The Environmental Health Services Division received a Notice of Grant Award from the U.S. 
Food and Drug Administration on June 29, 2018 in the amount of $70,000 for the period 
7/1/2018 through 6/30/2019 in support of the Advancing Conformance with the Voluntary 
National Retail Food Regulatory Program Standards program. This award is being presented for 
District Board of Health retroactive approval per the FDA procedure that does not require 
signature. A copy of the Notice of Grant Award is attached.  

District Health Strategic Priority supported by this item:  
2. Healthy Environment: Create a healthier environment that allows people to safely enjoy
everything Washoe County has to offer.

PREVIOUS ACTION 
There has been no previous action taken by the Board this fiscal year. 

BACKGROUND/GRANT AWARD SUMMARY 
Project/Program Name: FDA Voluntary Retail Food Regulatory Program Standards 
Scope of the Project:  This Award provides support for travel for the 2019 Conference 
for Food Protection, documentation translation services through the University of Nevada, Reno, 
an Intervention Strategy Media Campaign, postage, printing, and indirect expenditures.  

DHO__________ 
DA___________ 
Risk__________ 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 6Bi DD____AH_______ 

mailto:jpierce@washoecounty.us


Subject: FDA Voluntary Retail Food Regulatory Program Standards 
Date: August 23, 2018 
Page 2 of 3 
 
Benefit to Washoe County Residents: This Award supports the EHS Food Program efforts to 
achieve conformance with the FDA Voluntary National Retail Food Regulatory Program Standards.  
Implementing the standards benefits the community by reducing or eliminating the occurrence of 
illness and death from food produced in Washoe County food establishments. Reduction in the 
percentage of foodborne illness risk factors in food establishments has been identified as a goal in the 
Washoe County Health District Strategic Plan. 
 
On-Going Program Support: These funds support on-going FDA Retail Food Regulatory 
Program Standard expenditures. 
Award Amount:   Total award amount is $70,000   
Grant Period:    July 1, 2018 – June 30, 2019 
Funding Source:   U.S. Food and Drug Administration 
Pass Through Entity:  Not applicable 
CFDA Number:  93.103 
Grant ID Number: 5U18FD006275-02 
Match Amount and Type: No match required 
Sub-Awards and Contracts: No Sub-Awards are anticipated.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The Board of County Commissioners will be requested to approve the following: 

As this award was not anticipated in the FY19 budget, a budget amendment in the amount of $63,636 
is necessary to bring the Award into alignment with the direct program budget. No amendment is 
necessary for indirect revenue. 

Should the BCC approve these budget amendments, the FY19 budget will need to be amended as 
follows: 

   Amount of 
Account Number  Description Increase/(Decrease) 
2002-IO-11088 -431100 Federal Revenue $ 63,636.00    
  Total Revenue $ 63,636.00 
    

2002-IO-11088 -710400 Payments to Other Agencies $ 52,344.00 
 -710360 Postage $   1,656.00 
 -710502 Printing $      144.00 
 -710509 Seminars and Meetings $      200.00 
 -710546 Advertising $   3,340.00 
 -711210 Travel $   5,952.00 
  Total Expenditures $ 63,636.00 



Subject: FDA Voluntary Retail Food Regulatory Program Standards 
Date: August 23, 2018 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the Washoe County District Board of Health retroactively approve the Notice 
of Grant Award #5U18FD006275-02 from the U.S. Food and Drug Administration for the period 
7/1/2018 through 6/30/2019 in the total amount of $70,000 for the Advancing Conformance with the 
Voluntary National Retail Food Regulatory Program Standards program within Environmental Health 
Services, IO 11088 and authorize the District Health Officer to execute the subgrant award. 
. 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be: “Move to 
retroactively approve the Notice of Grant Award #5U18FD006275-02 from the U.S. Food and Drug 
Administration for the period 7/1/2018 through 6/30/2019 in the total amount of $70,000 for the 
Advancing Conformance with the Voluntary National Retail Food Regulatory Program Standards 
program within Environmental Health Services, IO 11088 and authorize the District Health Officer to 
execute the subgrant award. 
 



Page-1

FDA NGA R | Version: 20 - 03/18/2016 17:35:00 | Generated on: 06/21/2018 19:01:43

Notice of Grant Award
RESEARCH DEMONSTRATION COOPERATIVE 
AGREEMENTS

Issue Date:    06/21/2018

Department of Health and Human Services 

FOOD AND DRUG ADMINISTRATION

Grant Number:  5U18FD006275-02 
FAIN:   U18FD006275

Principal Investigator:  
Tony  Macaluso

Project Title: RFA-FD-17-007: Advancing Conformance with the Voluntary National Retail Food 
Regulatory Program Standards (VNRFRPS) (U18) 

Mr. Macaluso, Tony
Environmental Health Specialist Supervisor
1001 East Ninth Street
Reno, NV 895200027

Award e-mailed to: genfield@washoecounty.us

Budget Period:  07/01/2018 – 06/30/2019
Project Period:  09/01/2017 – 06/30/2020

Dear Business Official:

The Food and Drug Administration hereby awards a grant in the amount of $70,000 (see “Award 
Calculation” in Section I and “Terms and Conditions” in Section III) to COUNTY OF WASHOE in 
support of the above referenced project. This award is pursuant to the authority of PHS Act,Sec 
1706,42 USC 300u-5,as amended;Sec2(d),PL 98-551  and is subject to the requirements of this 
statute and regulation and of other referenced, incorporated or attached terms and conditions. 

Acceptance of this award including the “Terms and Conditions” is acknowledged by the grantee 
when funds are drawn down or otherwise obtained from the grant payment system.

If you have any questions about this award, please contact the Grants Management Specialist 
and the Project Officer listed in the terms and conditions.

Sincerely yours,

Kimberly  Pendleton
Grants Management Officer
Office of Acquisitions & Grants Services
Division of Acquisition Support and Grants
Grants & Assistance Team
FOOD AND DRUG ADMINISTRATION

See additional information below



Page-2

FDA NGA R | Version: 20 - 03/18/2016 17:35:00 | Generated on: 06/21/2018 19:01:43

SECTION I – AWARD DATA – 5U18FD006275-02 

Award Calculation (U.S. Dollars)
Travel Costs          $6,152
Consortium/Contractual Cost          $57,484

Federal Direct Costs $63,636
Federal F&A Costs $6,364
Approved Budget $70,000
Federal Share $70,000
TOTAL FEDERAL AWARD AMOUNT $70,000

AMOUNT OF THIS ACTION (FEDERAL SHARE) $70,000

SUMMARY TOTALS FOR ALL YEARS
YR THIS AWARD CUMULATIVE TOTALS

2 $70,000 $70,000
3 $70,000 $70,000

* Recommended future year total cost support, subject to the availability of funds and satisfactory 
progress of the project.

Fiscal Information:
CFDA Number: 93.103
EIN: 1886000138A1
Document Number: UFD006275A
PMS AccountType P(Subaccount)
Fiscal Year: 2018

IC CAN 2018 2019
FD 6990914 $70,000
FD 6990928 $70,000

* Recommended future year total cost support, subject to the availability of funds and satisfactory 
progress of the project.

FDA Administrative Data:
PCC: ORA12 / OC: 414P / Processed: FDAKPU 06/21/2018

SECTION II – PAYMENT/HOTLINE INFORMATION – 5U18FD006275-02  

Grant payments will be made available through the DHHS Payment Management System (PMS). 
PMS is administered by the Division of Payment Management, Program Support Center (PSC), 
DHHS, Office of the Deputy Assistant Secretary, Finance.  Requests for downloadable forms and 
inquiries regarding payment should be directed to: 

Regular Mailing Address:
Division of Payment Management
P.O. Box 6021
Rockville, MD 20852
Telephone: (301) 443-1660            

Included are the following Links & Instructions for drawing down funds, reporting expenditures, 
required forms, and the help desk info:



Page-3

FDA NGA R | Version: 20 - 03/18/2016 17:35:00 | Generated on: 06/21/2018 19:01:43

Homepage: http://www.dpm.psc.gov/Default.aspx

Grant Recipient Information:
http://www.dpm.psc.gov/grant_recipient/grant_recipient.aspx?explorer.event=true

Grant Recipient Forms:
http://www.dpm.psc.gov/grant_recipient/grantee_forms.aspx?explorer.event=true

PMS Help Desk: http://www.dpm.psc.gov/help/help.aspx?explorer.event=true

The ONE-DHHS Help Desk for PMS Support is now available Monday – Friday from 7 a.m. to 9
p.m. EST (except Federal Holidays). Phone (877) 614-5533; Email PMSSupport@psc.gov

SECTION III – TERMS AND CONDITIONS – 5U18FD006275-02  

This award is based on the application submitted to, and as approved by, FDA on the above-title 
project and is subject to the terms and conditions incorporated either directly or by reference in 
the following:

a. The grant program legislation and program regulation cited in this Notice of Grant 
Award.

b. The restrictions on the expenditure of federal funds in appropriations acts to the 
extent those restrictions are pertinent to the award.

c.  45 CFR Part 75.
d.  The HHS Grants Policy Statement, including addenda in effect as of the beginning 

date of the budget period.
e. Federal Award Performance Goals: As required by the periodic report in the RPPR or 

in the final progress report when applicable.
f. A required Federal Financial Report (FFR) SF-425 must be submitted annually. FDA 

now requires all annual financial expenditure reports to be submitted electronically 
using the Federal Financial Report (FFR) system located in the eRA Commons. 
Annual FFRs must be submitted for each budget period no later than 90 days after 
the end of the calendar quarter in which the budget period ended. The reporting 
period for an annual FFR will be that of the budget period for the particular grant; 
however, the actual submission date is based on the calendar quarter. Failure to 
submit timely reports may affect future funding

g. Closeout Requirements (when applicable): A Final Program Progress Activity Report, 
Final Federal Financial Report SF-425, Final Invention Statement HHS-568 (if 
applicable), Tangible Personal Property Report SF-428, and Statement of Disposition 
of Equipment (if applicable) must be submitted within 90 days after the expiration 
date of the project period.

h. This award notice, INCLUDING THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS CITED BELOW.

This award has been assigned the Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) U18FD006275. 
Recipients must document the assigned FAIN on each consortium/subaward issued under this 
award.

Treatment of Program Income:
Additional Costs

In accordance with the regulatory requirements provided at 45 CFR 75.113 and Appendix XII to 
45 CFR Part 75, recipients that have currently active Federal grants, cooperative agreements, 
and procurement contracts with cumulative total value greater than $10,000,000 must report and 
maintain information in the System for Award Management (SAM) about civil, criminal, and 
administrative proceedings in connection with the award or performance of a Federal award that 
reached final disposition within the most recent five-year period. The recipient must also make 



Page-4

FDA NGA R | Version: 20 - 03/18/2016 17:35:00 | Generated on: 06/21/2018 19:01:43

semiannual disclosures regarding such proceedings. Proceedings information will be made 
publicly available in the designated integrity and performance system (currently the Federal 
Awardee Performance and Integrity Information System (FAPIIS)). Full reporting requirements 
and procedures are found in Appendix XII to 45 CFR Part 75.
SECTION IV –  FD Special Terms and Condition – 5U18FD006275-02  

SPECIAL PROGRAMMATIC TERMS AND CONDITIONS:
 
Monitoring Activities
 
The ORA Project Officer and Technical Advisor will monitor award recipients periodically. The 
monitoring may be in the form of face-to-face meetings, telephone conversations, e-mails, or 
written correspondence between the project officer/grants management officer and the principal 
investigator. Periodic site visits with officials of the recipient organization will occur, including 
program assessments and audits. The results of these monitoring activities will be recorded in the 
official cooperative agreement file and will be made available to the grant recipient, upon request, 
consistent with applicable disclosure statutes and FDA disclosure regulations. Also, the grantee 
organization shall comply with all special terms and conditions of the cooperative agreement, 
including those which state that future funding of the project will depend on recommendations 
from the Project Officer and Technical Advisor.
 
The scope of the recommendation will confirm that:
 
(1) There has been acceptable progress on the project;
(2) there is continued compliance with all FDA regulatory requirements; and
(3) if necessary, there is an indication that corrective action has taken place.
 
When multiple years are involved, awardees will be required to submit the Research Performance 
Progress Report (RPPR) (//grants.nih.gov/grants/rppr/index.htm) annually and financial 
statements as required in the Notice of Award.
 
A final progress report, invention statement, and the expenditure data portion of the Federal 
Financial Report are required for closeout of an award, as described in the HHS Grants Policy 
Statement (http://www.hhs.gov/sites/default/files/grants/grants/policies-
regulations/hhsgps107.pdf)
 
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (Transparency Act), includes 
a requirement for awardees of Federal grants to report information about first-tier subawards and 
executive compensation under Federal assistance awards issued in FY2011 or later. All 
awardees of applicable FDA grants and cooperative agreements are required to report to the 
Federal Subaward Reporting System (FSRS) available at www.fsrs.gov>; 
(//grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/url_redirect.htm?id=11170) on all subawards over $25,000.
 
In accordance with the regulatory requirements provided at 45 CFR 75.113 and Appendix XII to 
45 CFR Part 75, recipients that have currently active Federal grants, cooperative agreements, 
and procurement contracts from all Federal awarding agencies with a cumulative total value 
greater than $10,000,000 for any period of time during the period of performance of a Federal 
award, must report and maintain the currency of information reported in the System for Award 
Management (SAM) about civil, criminal, and administrative proceedings in connection with the 
award or performance of a Federal award that reached final disposition within the most recent 
five-year period. The recipient must also make semiannual disclosures regarding such 
proceedings. Proceedings information will be made publicly available in the designated integrity 
and performance system (currently FAPIIS). This is a statutory requirement under section 872 of 
Public Law 110-417, as amended (41 U.S.C. 2313). As required by section 3010 of Public Law 
111-212, all information posted in the designated integrity and performance system on or after 
April 15, 2011, except past performance reviews required for Federal procurement contracts, will 
be publicly available. Full reporting requirements and procedures are found in Appendix XII to 45 
CFR Part 75 – Award Term and Conditions for Recipient Integrity and Performance Matters.
 
Reporting Requirements



Page-5

FDA NGA R | Version: 20 - 03/18/2016 17:35:00 | Generated on: 06/21/2018 19:01:43

 
Mid-year progress and End of Year reports are required as part of the grant.
The Mid-year ends December 31st and reporting is required within 30 days.
The End of Year report is due 60 days before the close of the budget period on June 30th. End of 
year reports are due on May 1st.
 
Mid-year progress and End of Year reports shall contain the elements below as applicable to their 
proposal and award, including but not limited to, the following:
 
1. Detailed progress report on the grantee meeting the project milestones identified in the 
proposal.
 
2. Status report on the hiring and training of food program personnel.
 
3. Certification of current appropriation funding levels for the retail food regulatory program.
 
4. A strategic plan that accurately reflects when specific objectives and tasks have been, or will 
be, completed and/or implemented and when new objectives and tasks are identified to advance 
conformance with the Retail Program Standards. The strategic plan should include significant 
milestones or action items, anticipated completion dates, responsible personnel, and other 
required resources.
 
5. A full description of achievements with conformance to the Retail Program Standards and what 
activities have been done to promote more effective control of foodborne illness risk factors.
 
6. A completed Program Self-Assessment and Verification Audit Form for each standard or an 
equivalent form or process documenting the current status of the jurisdictions. The Self-
Assessment and Verification Audit Form can be found in the Voluntary National Retail Food 
Program Standards.
 
The final program progress report shall provide full written documentation of the entire project and 
summaries of accomplishments and goals, as described in the grant application. The 
documentation shall be in a form and contain sufficient detail such that other agencies could 
reproduce the final project. The final program progress report should also detail the strategy to 
continue advancing conformance with the Retail Program Standards (current and future 
versions).
 
This award is subject to the Special Requirements of the RFA-FD-17-007entitled, "Advancing 
Conformance with the Voluntary National Retail Food Regulatory Program Standards 
(VNRFRPS)" is hereby incorporated by reference as special terms and conditions of this award. 
Copies of this announcement may be obtained from the Grants Management Contact referenced 
in the award.
 
This award is subject to the requirements of the HHS Grants Policy Statement (HHS GPS) that 
are applicable to you based on your recipient type and the purpose of this award. This includes 
any requirements in Parts I and II (available at 
http://www.hhs.gov/grantsnet/adminis/gpd/index.htm) of the HHS GPS that apply to an award.
 
Although consistent with the HHS GPS, any applicable statutory or regulatory requirements, 
including 45 CFR Part 75, directly apply to this award apart from any coverage in the HHS GPS 
that apply to an award.
 
Salary Cap: None of the funds in this award shall be used to pay the salary of an individual at a 
rate in excess of the current salary cap. Current salary cap level is $179,700.
 
 
 
STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS:
 
2.A. Cooperative Agreement Terms and Conditions of Award
 



Page-6

FDA NGA R | Version: 20 - 03/18/2016 17:35:00 | Generated on: 06/21/2018 19:01:43

The following special terms of award are in addition to, and not in lieu of, otherwise applicable 
U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) administrative guidelines, U.S. Department of 
Health and Human Services (HHS) grant administration regulations at 45 CFR Part 75, and other 
HHS, PHS, and FDA grant administration policies.
 
The administrative and funding instrument used for this program will be the cooperative 
agreement, an “assistance” mechanism (rather than an “acquisition” mechanism), in which 
substantial FDA programmatic involvement with the awardees is anticipated during the 
performance of the activities. Under the cooperative agreement, FDA's purpose is to support and 
stimulate the recipients’ activities by involvement in and otherwise working jointly with the award 
recipients in a partnership role; it is not to assume direction, prime responsibility, or a dominant 
role in the activities.  Consistent with this concept, the dominant role and prime responsibility 
resides with the awardees for the project as a whole, although specific tasks and activities may 
be shared among the awardees and FDA as defined below.
 
2.A.1. Principal Investigator Rights and Responsibilities
 
The PD(s)/PI(s) will have the primary responsibility for the scientific, technical, or programmatic 
aspects of the cooperative agreement and for day-to-day management of the project or program.  
The PD(s)/PI(s) will maintain general oversight for ensuring compliance with the financial and 
administrative aspects of the award, as well as ensuring that all staff have sufficient clearance 
and/or background checks to work on this project or program.  This individual will work closely 
with designated officials within the recipient organization to create and maintain necessary 
documentation, including both technical and administrative reports; prepare justifications; 
appropriately acknowledge Federal support in publications, announcements, news programs, and 
other media; and ensure compliance with other Federal and organizational requirements.
 
Awardees will retain custody of and have primary rights to the data and software developed under 
these awards, subject to Government rights of access consistent with current HHS, PHS, and 
FDA policies.
 
Additionally PD/PIs will:
 
1. Participate in site visits or attend meetings as requested by the FDA.  A portion of the budget 
should be reserved for such travel.
 
2. FDA may also request data be made available through speaking engagements and 
publications, presentations at scientific symposia and seminars, while making sure that 
confidentiality and privacy of the data is protected.
 
3. The awardees will provide FDA any data obtained from investigations if requested by FDA.
 
4. Any publication or oral presentation of regarding outcomes of this grant must undergo FDA 
Office of Research and Center review and approval process. This process can take 30-90 days.
 
 
2. A.2. FDA Responsibilities
 
An FDA Project Officer (PO) will have substantial programmatic involvement as described below. 
The PO is the official responsible for the programmatic, scientific, and/or technical aspects of 
assigned applications and grants. The PO’s responsibilities include, but are not limited to, post-
award monitoring of project/program performance, including review of progress reports and 
making site visits; and other activities complementary to those of the Grants Management Officer 
(GMO). The PO and the GMO work as a team in many of these activities.
 
Additionally, an agency program official will be responsible for the scientific and programmatic 
stewardship of the award and will be named in the award notice.
 
FDA will provide technical monitoring and/or direction of the work, including monitoring of data 
analysis, interpretation of analytical findings and their significance.
 



Page-7

FDA NGA R | Version: 20 - 03/18/2016 17:35:00 | Generated on: 06/21/2018 19:01:43

FDA will assist and approve (as deemed appropriate) the substance of publications, co-
authorship of publications and data release.
 
Funding Restrictions:
 
These awards may only be used for achieving and sustaining conformance with the Retail 
Program Standards within retail food regulatory programs. The FDA will provide up to three years 
of funding, contingent on continued availability of federal funds. Budgets are limited to $70,000 
(direct and indirect costs) of funding requested and must reflect the actual needs of the proposed 
activities. Allowable costs include:
 
1) Audio/visual materials such as videotapes, DVDs, public service announcements, etc.
 
2) Consultant services
 
3) Employee salaries, wages and fringe benefits
 
4) Rental, purchasing, calibration, and maintenance of supplies and equipment, including 
investigational, GPS interface, communication, and laboratory
 
5) Indirect costs
 
6) Recruitment costs for hiring new employees
 
7) Registration fees
 
8) Purchase or development of IT equipment, software, and support
 
9) Shipping and mailing of equipment and supplies
 
10) Travel
 
11) Speaker fees
 
12) Conducting standardizations
 
13) Training programs, including the development, delivery, and attendance
 
14) Subcontracting to third parties (other than local/county/tribal agencies) is allowed but limited 
to 25% of each year's award. No limit exists for subcontracting to local/county/tribal agencies.
 
 
Non-allowable costs:
 
1) Facilities, work, and training reimbursed under other cooperative agreements, grants, 
contracts, and other funding mechanisms shall remain distinct and separate from this cooperative 
agreement.
 
2) Vehicle purchases are not permitted.
 
3) Cooperative agreement funds may not be utilized for new building construction; however, 
remodeling of existing facilities is allowed, provided that remodeling costs do not exceed 10% of 
the grant award amount.
 
4) Cooperative agreement funds may not be utilized for uniforms or clothing.
 
 
Additional funding restrictions may be part of the Notice of Award.
 
Financial Reporting:
 



Page-8

FDA NGA R | Version: 20 - 03/18/2016 17:35:00 | Generated on: 06/21/2018 19:01:43

A. Cash Transaction Reports
 
The Federal Financial Report (FFR) has a dedicated section to report Federal cash receipts and 
disbursements. For recipients this information must be submitted quarterly directly to the 
Payment Management System (PMS) using the web-based tool. Quarterly reports are due 30 
days following the end of each calendar quarter. The reporting period for this report continues to 
be based on the calendar quarter. Questions concerning the requirements for this quarterly 
financial report should be directed to the PMS.
 
B. Financial Expenditure Reports
 
A required Federal Financial Report (FFR) must be submitted annually. FDA now requires all 
annual financial expenditure reports to be submitted electronically using the Federal Financial 
Report (FFR) system located in the eRA Commons. This includes all initial FFRs being prepared 
for submission and any revised FSR/FFRs being submitted or re-submitted to FDA. Paper 
expenditure/FFR reports will not accepted.
 
Annual FFRs must be submitted for each budget period no later than 90 days after the end of the 
calendar quarter in which the budget period ended. The reporting period for an annual FFR will 
be that of the budget period for the particular grant; however, the actual submission date is based 
on the calendar quarter. Failure to submit timely reports may affect future funding.
 
Performance Progress Reporting:
 
1.  Annual progress reports are required. The Annual Progress Report will be due as part of the 
Research Performance Progress Report (RPPR).
 
2.  Grants with Multiple Years: When multiple years are involved, awardees will be required to 
submit the Research Performance Progress Report (RPPR).
 
Information regarding submitting the RPPR is available at 
https://era.nih.gov/erahelp/commons/default.htm#cshid=1020
 
 
PROGRAM INCOME:
 
1. The grantee is required to report any Program Income generated during the Project Period of 
this grant. Except for royalty income generated from patents and inventions, the amount and 
disposition of Program Income must be identified on lines 10 (l), (m), (n), and (o) of the grantee’s 
Federal Financial Report (FFR) SF-425.
 
2. Examples of Program Income include (but are not limited to): fees for services performed 
during the grant or sub-grant period, proceeds from sale of tangible personal or real property, 
usage or rental fees, patent or copyright royalties, and proceeds from the sale of products and 
technology developed under the grant.
 
3. Any Program Income generated during the Project Period of this grant by the grantee or sub-
grantee is subject to the Addition Alternative for Program Income and, therefore, must only be 
used to further the goals of the project for which this grant was awarded.
 
PRIOR APPROVAL:
 
All requests that require prior approval must include the award number and bear the signature of 
an authorized official of the grantee business office as well as that of the PI/PD. Any requests 
involving funding issues must include a new proposed budget and a narrative justification of the 
requested changes. If a grantee questions whether prior approval is required for an activity or 
cost, they should contact the assigned Grants Management Specialist prior to expenditure of 
funds for clarification. Below are activities that require prior approval from FDA:

1. CHANGE IN SCOPE OR OBJECTIVES
2. CHANGE IN KEY PERSONNEL



Page-9

FDA NGA R | Version: 20 - 03/18/2016 17:35:00 | Generated on: 06/21/2018 19:01:43

3. CHANGE IN GRANTEE ORGANIZATION
4. DEVIATION FROM TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE AWARD
5. CARRYOVER OF UNOBLIGATED BALANCES
6. NO COST EXTENSIONS
7. SIGNIFICANT REBUDGETING

 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF FEDERAL SUPPORT:
 
When issuing statements, press releases, publications and other documents describing projects 
or programs funded in whole or in part with Federal money, all awardees receiving Federal funds, 
including and not limited to State and local governments and recipients of Federal research 
grants, shall clearly state:
 
*Funding for this statement, publication, press release, etc. was made possible, in part, by the 
Food and Drug Administration through grant U18FD006275. Views expressed in written materials 
or publications and by speakers and moderators do not necessarily reflect the official policies of 
the Department of Health and Human Services; nor does any mention of trade names, 
commercial practices, or organization imply endorsement by the United States Government.*
 
 
FDA/ORA CONTACT INFORMATION:
 
Grants Management Contact:
Gordana Zuber
Grants Management Specialist
Food and Drug Administration, MSC HFA-500
5630 Fishers Lane, Rockville, MD  20857
Phone: 301-348-1747
Email: gordana.zuber@fda.hhs.gov
 
 
Programmatic Contact:
Maribeth G. Niesen
Project Officer
Office of Regulatory Affairs (ORA), Office of Partnerships
Food and Drug Administration
Phone:  513-679-2704
Email:  maribeth.niesen@fda.hhs.gov
 
Technical Advisor:
Your Regional Retail Food Specialist
Office of Regulatory Affairs
Food and Drug Administration
 
 
FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THE ABOVE STATED TERMS AND CONDITIONS COULD 
RESULT IN THE SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION OF THIS COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT.
 
All formal correspondence/reports regarding the grant should be signed by an authorized 
institutional official and the Principal Investigator and should be sent to the attention of the grants 
management specialist, unless otherwise directed.
 
 
 

Direct inquiries regarding scientific programmatic issues to the official listed below.

Direct inquiries regarding fiscal and/or administrative matters to the grants management specialist 
listed below.



Page-10

FDA NGA R | Version: 20 - 03/18/2016 17:35:00 | Generated on: 06/21/2018 19:01:43

All formal correspondence/reports regarding the grant should be signed by an authorized 
institutional official and the Principal Investigator and should be sent to the attention of the grants 
management specialist, unless otherwise explicitly directed.

STAFF CONTACTS
Grants Management Specialist: Gordana  Zuber
Email: gordana.zuber@fda.hhs.gov  Phone: 301-348-1747 

Program Official: Maribeth Niesen
Email: Maribeth.Niesen@fda.hhs.gov  

SPREADSHEET SUMMARY
GRANT NUMBER: 5U18FD006275-02  

INSTITUTION: COUNTY OF WASHOE

Budget Year 2 Year 3
Travel Costs $6,152 $13,960
Other Costs  $20,304
Consortium/Contractual Cost $57,484 $29,372
TOTAL FEDERAL DC $63,636 $63,636
TOTAL FEDERAL F&A $6,364 $6,364
TOTAL COST $70,000 $70,000



ADMINISTRATIVE HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
AHS Office: 775-328-2410   I   Fax: 775-328-3752   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date:  August 23, 2018 

TO:   District Board of Health 

FROM:  Jennifer Pierce, Fiscal Compliance Officer, Washoe County Health District 
775-328-2418, jpierce@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT:  Retroactive approval of Grant Agreement #A-00905418-1 from the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) for funding increase in the amount of $136,913 
for the period 10/1/17 through 9/30/18 for the Air Quality Management, EPA Air Pollution 
Control Program, IO 10019.  

SUMMARY 
The Washoe County District Board of Health must approve and execute, Interlocal Agreements 
and amendments to the adopted budget. The District Health Officer is authorized to execute 
agreements on the Board of Health’s behalf not to exceed a cumulative amount of $100,000 per 
contractor; over $100,000 would require the approval of the District Board of Health. 

The Air Quality Management Division received a Grant Agreement from the EPA, which 
provides for grant funding for the on-going Air Pollution Control Program, IO 10019.  A copy of 
the Grant Agreement is attached for the period October 1, 2017 through September 30, 2018. 
The Agreement was received by WCHD on August 6, 2018. 

District Health Strategic Priority supported by this item: 
5. Financial Stability: Enable the Health District to make long-term commitments in areas that
will positively impact the community’s health by growing reliable sources of income.

PREVIOUS ACTION 
The Board retroactively approved Assistant Amendment #A-00905418-0 from the EPA for 
funding in the amount of $547,651 for the period 10/1/17 through 9/30/18 on April 26, 2018. 

BACKGROUND/GRANT AWARD SUMMARY 
Project/Program Name: Air Quality Management, EPA 105 Base Award 
Scope of the Project:  The base award provides funding for a portion of Air Quality 
Management Air Pollution Control Program expenditures including personnel, travel, and 
operating. Additional funding comes from fees, state dedicated funds, and general fund transfer. 
Benefit to Washoe County Residents: Implementation of clean air solutions that protect the 
quality of life for the citizens of Reno, Sparks and Washoe County. 

DHO__________ 
DA___________ 
Risk__________ 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 6Bii
DD____AH_______ 

mailto:jpierce@washoecounty.us


Subject: EPA Base Award 
Date: August 23, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 
 
On-Going Program Support: The Health District has received and anticipates receiving 
continuous funding to support the EPA 105 Base Program. This grant agreement provided partial 
funding in the amount of $547,651 and received additional funding of $136,913.  The total of the 
award is $684,564. 
Award Amount:   $136,913 
Grant Period:    October 1, 2017 – September 31, 2018  
Funding Source:  U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Pass Through Entity:  n/a 
CFDA Number:  66.001 
Grant ID Number: A – 00905418-0 
Match Amount and Type: $1,530,502. Funding for expenditures comes from fees, state 
dedicated funds and general fund transfer.  
Sub-Awards and Contracts: No Sub-Awards are anticipated  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Should the Board approve the Grant Agreement, there is no additional fiscal impact to the adopted 
FY18 budget or FY19 budget.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the District Board of Health retroactively approve Grant Agreement #A-
00905418-0 from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) for the additional funding in 
the amount of $136,913 for the period 10/1/17 through 9/30/18 for the Air Quality Management, 
EPA Air Pollution Control Program, IO 10019.  
 
POSSIBLE MOTION  
Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be: “Move to 
retroactively approve Grant Agreement #A-00905418-0 from the U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency (EPA) for the additional funding in the amount of $136,913 for the period 10/1/17 
through 9/30/18 for the Air Quality Management, EPA Air Pollution Control Program, IO 
10019.”  
 
 



A - 00905418 - 1     Page 1
  GRANT NUMBER (FAIN): 00905418
  MODIFICATION NUMBER: 1   DATE OF AWARD
  PROGRAM CODE: A   07/30/2018U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL

PROTECTION AGENCY   TYPE OF ACTION
  Augmentation: Increase

  MAILING DATE
  08/06/2018

Assistance Amendment   PAYMENT METHOD:
  Advance

  ACH#
  90104

RECIPIENT TYPE: 
County  

  Send Payment Request to:
  Las Vegas Finance Center email:          
  lvfc-grants@epa.gov

RECIPIENT:   PAYEE:
Washoe Cnty Dist Hlth Dept
P.O. Box 11130
Reno, NV 89520-0027
EIN:  88-6000138

  Washoe Cnty Dist Hlth Dept
  P.O. Box 11130
  Reno, NV 89520

PROJECT MANAGER   EPA PROJECT OFFICER   EPA GRANT SPECIALIST
Charlene Albee
P.O. Box 11130
Reno, NV  89520-0027
E-Mail:  calbee@washoecounty.us
Phone: 775-784-7211

  Roberto Gutierrez
  75 Hawthorne Street, AIR-8
  San Francisco, CA  94105
  E-Mail:  Gutierrez.Roberto@epa.gov
  Phone: 415-947-4276   

  Veronica Adams
  Grants Management Section, EMD-6-1
  E-Mail:  adams.veronica@epa.gov
  Phone: 415-972-3677

PROJECT TITLE AND EXPLANATION OF CHANGES
FY18 Air Pollution Control Program

This award provides funding to support statewide air quality compliance/management activities, which include strategic planning and evaluation, compliance 
assistance, developing state implementation plans, monitoring air emissions, rulemaking, and operating permits. These projects will result in significant, near- 
and long-term emissions reductions in Washoe County and improve air quality in Nevada, reducing the risks to human health and the environment.

This assistance agreement fully funds this grant by increasing the federal funding amount by $136,913. The final CAA 105 federal funding amount for FY18 is 
$684,564.  

 
BUDGET PERIOD   PROJECT PERIOD   TOTAL BUDGET PERIOD COST   TOTAL PROJECT PERIOD COST
10/01/2017  -  09/30/2018   10/01/2017  -  09/30/2018   $2,215,066.00   $2,215,066.00

NOTICE OF AWARD
Based on your Application dated 08/01/2017 including all modifications and amendments, the United States acting by and through the US Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA) hereby awards $136,913. EPA agrees to cost-share 30.90% of all approved budget period costs incurred, up to and not exceeding 
total federal funding of $684,564.  Recipient's signature is not required on this agreement.  The recipient demonstrates its commitment to carry out this award 
by either: 1) drawing down funds within 21 days after the EPA award or amendment mailing date; or 2) not filing a notice of disagreement with the award terms 
and conditions within 21 days after the EPA award or amendment mailing date.  If the recipient disagrees with the terms and conditions specified in this award, 
the authorized representative of the recipient must furnish a notice of disagreement to the EPA Award Official within 21 days after the EPA award or 
amendment mailing date. In case of disagreement, and until the disagreement is resolved, the recipient should not draw down on the funds provided by this 
award/amendment, and any costs incurred by the recipient are at its own risk.  This agreement is subject to applicable EPA regulatory and statutory provisions, 
all terms and conditions of this agreement and any attachments.

ISSUING OFFICE (GRANTS MANAGEMENT OFFICE) AWARD APPROVAL OFFICE
ORGANIZATION / ADDRESS   ORGANIZATION / ADDRESS
U.S. EPA, Region 9 -
Grants Management Section, EMD 6-1
75 Hawthorne Street
San Francisco, CA 94105

 U.S. EPA, Region 9
 Air Division, AIR-1
 75 Hawthorne Street
 San Francisco, CA  94105

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA BY THE U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
Digital signature applied by EPA Award Official  Carolyn Truong - Grants Management Officer   DATE

  07/30/2018

mailto:lvfc-grants@epa.gov
mailto:Gutierrez.Roberto@epa.gov
mailto:adams.veronica@epa.gov


EPA Funding Information A - 00905418 - 1     Page 2

FUNDS FORMER AWARD THIS ACTION AMENDED TOTAL
  EPA Amount This Action $ 547,651 $ 136,913 $ 684,564

  EPA In-Kind Amount $ 0 $  0 $  0

  Unexpended Prior Year Balance $ 0 $ 0 $ 0

  Other Federal Funds $ 0 $ 0 $ 0

  Recipient Contribution $ 1,530,502 $ 0 $ 1,530,502

  State Contribution $ 0 $ 0 $ 0

  Local Contribution $ 0 $ 0 $ 0

  Other Contribution $ 0 $ 0 $ 0

  Allowable Project Cost $ 2,078,153 $ 136,913 $ 2,215,066

Assistance Program (CFDA)   Statutory Authority   Regulatory Authority
66.001 - Air Pollution Control Program Support   Clean Air Act: Sec. 105   2 CFR 200

2 CFR 1500
40 CFR 33 and 40 CFR 35 Subpart A

Fiscal
Site Name Req No FY Approp. 

Code
Budget 

Organization
PRC Object 

Class
Site/Project Cost 

Organization
Obligation / 
Deobligation

- 1809M7S048 18 E1 09M4 000A04 4112 - - 136,913

136,913



(PageBreak)

A - 00905418 - 1     Page  3
Budget Summary Page

Table A - Object Class Category
(Non-construction)

Total Approved Allowable
Budget Period Cost

1. Personnel $1,290,913
2. Fringe Benefits $629,270
3. Travel $43,959
4. Equipment $0
5. Supplies $2,000
6. Contractual $300
7. Construction $0
8. Other $44,952
9. Total Direct Charges $2,011,394
10. Indirect Costs:  8.21%  Base  total direct costs $203,672
11. Total (Share:  Recipient  69.10 %  Federal  30.90 %.) $2,215,066
12. Total Approved Assistance Amount $684,564
13. Program Income $0
14. Total EPA Amount Awarded This Action $136,913
15. Total EPA Amount Awarded To Date $684,564



(PageBreak)

A - 00905418 - 1     Page  4

Administrative Conditions
The EPA general terms and conditions and the administrative term and condition G 
have been revised.  All other terms and conditions remain in full force and effect.

EPA General Terms and Conditions

The recipient agrees to comply with the current EPA general terms and conditions 
available at: 
https://www.epa.gov/grants/epa-general-terms-and-conditions-effective-october-2-2017-
or-later These terms and conditions are in addition to the assurances and certifications 
made as a part of the award and the terms, conditions, or restrictions cited throughout 
the award.     The EPA repository for the general terms and conditions by year can be 
found at 
https://www.epa.gov/grants/grant-terms-and-conditions

G. Cost-Share Requirement and Maintenance of Effort

The required minimum recipient cost share for this assistance agreement is 40% of 
total project costs, or Maintenance of Effort (MOE) level of $1,530,427 (final MOE for 
FY17) Federal Financial Report dated 12/20/17), whichever is greater.  EPA agrees to 
pay up to 60% of total eligible project costs, not to exceed the Total Approved 
Assistance Amount, provided that the recipient's MOE level is maintained.  The 
assistance agreement may reflect a percentage shown under the "Notice of Award" 
section which is based on estimated costs requested in the recipient's application.

Programmatic Conditions

The programmatic terms and conditions remain the same.

-- End of Document --



ADMINISTRATIVE HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
AHS Office: 775-328-2410   I   Fax: 775-328-3752   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date:  August 23, 2018 

TO: District Board of Health 
FROM: Jennifer Pierce, Fiscal Compliance Officer, Washoe County Health District 

(775) 328-2418, jpierce@washoecounty.us

SUBJECT: Accept monetary donation [$10.00] to Washoe County Health District’s Vital 
Statistics Program retroactive from July 25, 2018; express appreciation for the 
contribution. 

SUMMARY 
The Washoe County District Board of Health must approve donations and amendments to the 
adopted budget.  

District Health Strategic Priority supported by this item: 
2. Healthy Environment: Create a healthier environment that allows people to safely enjoy
everything Washoe County has to offer.

PREVIOUS ACTION 
There has been no previous action taken this fiscal year. 

BACKGROUND 
The Washoe County Health District’s Vital Statistics Program oversees the birth and death records in 
Washoe County. These funds would be used for operating supplies. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
Should the Board approve this donation, the budget amendment will occur in FY19 in the following 
revenue and expenditure accounts: 
170300-484000  Vital Statistics – Donations               $10.00 
170300-710300  Vital Statistics – Operating Supplies $10.00 

RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the Washoe County District Board of Health accept the monetary donation 
[$10.00] to Vitals Statistics Program to be used for operating supplies; express appreciation for the 
contribution. 

POSSIBLE MOTION 
Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be “Move to accept the 
monetary donation [$10.00] to Vitals Statistics Program to be used for operating supplies; express 
appreciation for the contribution. 

DHO__________ 
DA___________ 
Risk__________ 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 6Biii DD____AH_______ 

mailto:jpierce@washoecounty.us


ADMINISTRATIVE HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
AHS Office: 775-328-2410   I   Fax: 775-328-3752   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  August 23, 2018 

TO: District Board of Health 
FROM: Jennifer Pierce, Fiscal Compliance Officer 

775-328-2418, jpierce@washoecounty.us 
SUBJECT: Retroactive approval of Notice of Subgrant Award from the Nevada Department of 

Health and Human Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health, for the period 
July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 in the total amount of $920,693 (with $92,069.30 
or 10% match) in support of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) 
Public Health Preparedness Program; and if approved authorize the District Health 
Officer to execute the Subgrant Award. 

SUMMARY 
The Washoe County District Board of Health must approve and execute Interlocal Agreements. The 
District Health Officer is authorized to execute agreements on the Board of Health’s behalf not to 
exceed a cumulative amount of $100,000 per contractor; over $100,000 would require the approval of 
the District Board of Health.   

The Washoe County Health District received the Notice of Subgrant Award from the Division of 
Public and Behavioral Health for the period July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 in the total amount of 
$920,528 in support of the CDC Public Health Preparedness Grant Program, IO 10713. A copy of the 
Notice of Subgrant Award is attached.   

District Health Strategic Priority supported by this item:  
4. Impactful Partnerships: Extend our impact by leveraging partnerships to make meaningful
progress on health issues.
6. Organizational Capacity: Strengthen our workforce and increase operational capacity to support
a growing population.

This item supports the Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness (EPHP) Division’s mission to 
strengthen the capacity of public health infrastructure to detect, assess, and respond decisively to 
control the public health consequences of bioterrorism events or any public health emergency. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
The Board approved the Notice of Subgrant Award for the period July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018 
in the total amount of $660,331 on August 24, 2017.     

DHO__________ 
DA___________ 
Risk__________ 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 6Biv DD____AH_______ 

mailto:jpierce@washoecounty.us


Subject: Retroactive approval of Notice of Subgrant Award – CDC Public Health Preparedness Program 
Date: August 23, 2018 
Page 2 of 3 
 

BACKGROUND/GRANT AWARD SUMMARY 
Project/Program Name: CDC Public Health Preparedness Program  
Scope of the Project:  The Subgrant Award scope of work addresses the following 
capabilities: 

• Community Preparedness 
• Community Recovery 
• Emergency Operations Coordination 
• Emergency Public Information and Warning 
• Fatality Management 
• Information Sharing 
• Medical Countermeasure Dispensing 
• Medical Material Management and Distribution 
• Public Health Surveillance and Epidemiological Investigation 
• Responder Safety and Health 
• Volunteer Management 
• Program Administration 

Benefit to Washoe County Residents: This Award supports the Epidemiology and Public Health 
Preparedness (EPHP) Division’s mission to strengthen the capacity of public health infrastructure to 
detect, assess, and respond decisively to control the public health consequences of bioterrorism events 
or any public health emergency.  
On-Going Program Support: These funds support on-going activities in the Public Health 
Preparedness Program.  
Award Amount:   Total award is $920,693 ($836,994 direct/$83,699 indirect) 
Grant Period:    July 1, 2018 – June 30, 2019 
Funding Source:   Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) 
Pass Through Entity:  State of Nevada, Department of Health and Human Services 
 Division of Public & Behavioral Health 
CFDA Number:  93.069 
Grant ID Number: 6NU90TP921907-01-04 
Match Amount and Type: 10% match is required and is met through Shared Services 
expenditures 
Sub-Awards and Contracts: No Sub-Awards are anticipated.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
As the FY19 budget in Internal Order 10713 was adopted with a total of $913,681 in revenue 
(includes $83,062 of indirect) and $830,619 in expenditure authority, a budget amendment in the 
amount of $7,012 is necessary to bring the Notice of Subgrant Award into alignment with the direct 
program budget. Should the Board approve the budget amendments, the FY19 budget will be 
increased by $7,012 in the following accounts: 



Subject: Retroactive approval of Notice of Subgrant Award – CDC Public Health Preparedness Program 
Date: August 23, 2018 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 

Account Number  Description   Amount of Increase/Decrease 
2002-IO-10713    -431100 Federal Revenue  $6,375 
   Total Revenue   $6,375 
 
2002-IO-10713   -711210 Travel    $700 
2002-IO-10713   -710100 Professional Services  $5,675 
   Total Expenditures  $6,375 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the District Board of Health retroactively approve the Notice of Subgrant 
Award from the Nevada Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public and 
Behavioral Health, for the period July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 in the total amount of $920,693 
(with $92,069.30 or 10% match) in support of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) 
Public Health Preparedness Program; and if approved authorize the District Health Officer to execute 
the Subgrant Award. 
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be “Move to 
retroactively approve Notice of Subgrant Award from the Nevada Department of Health and Human 
Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health, for the period July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 
in the total amount of $920,693 (with $92,069.30 or 10% match) in support of the Centers for Disease 
Control and Prevention (CDC) Public Health Preparedness Program; and if approved authorize the 
District Health Officer to execute the Subgrant Award.” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                          Page 1 of 45                                                                       
Revised 7/18 

State of Nevada 
    Department of Health and Human Services 

    Division of Public & Behavioral 
Health 

  (hereinafter referred to as the Division) 

Agency Ref. #: 16593 
Budget 

Account: 3218 
Category: 22 

GL: 8516 
Job Number: 9306918S 

            NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 
Program Name: 
Public Health Preparedness Program (PHP) 
Bureau of Health Protection and Preparedness (BHPP) 

Subgrantee Name: 
Washoe County Health District (WCHD) 

Address: 
4150 Technology Way, Suite # 200 
Carson City, NV 89706-2009 

Address: 
1001 East Ninth Street / PO Box 11130 
Reno, Nevada 89520 

Project Period: 
July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 
Budget Period: 
July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 

Subrecipient’s:  
EIN: 88-6000138  

Vendor #: T40283400  
Dun & Bradstreet: 073786998  

  

Purpose of Award: Funds are intended to demonstrate achievement in the Public Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) domains 
according to the HPP and PHEP Cooperative Agreement. 

Region(s) to be served:   ☐ Statewide   ☒ Specific county or counties: Washoe 

1.     Personnel $603,867.00
2.     Travel $4,790.00
3.     Supplies $62,701.00
4.     Equipment $0.00

5.     Contractual/Consultant $127,031.00

6.     Other $38,605.00
TOTAL DIRECT COSTS $836,994.00
7.     INDIRECT COSTS $83,699.00
TOTAL FEDERAL FUNDS $920,693.00

8.    Match $92,069.30

TOTAL FEDERAL & NON-
FEDERAL CONTRIBUTION $1,012,762.30

Approved Budget Categories:

 
 

AWARD COMPUTATION: 
Total Obligated by This Action: 
Cumulative Prior Awards this Budget Period: 
Total Federal Funds Awarded to Date: 
 
Match Required  ☒ Y   ☐ N 
Amount Required This Action:  
Amount Required Prior Awards: 
Total Match Amount Required: 
Research and Development (R&D) ☐ Y   ☒ N 
 

 
$ 
$ 
$ 
 
 

$ 
$ 
$ 
 
 

 
   920,693.00 
              0.00 
   920,693.00 

 
 

    92,069.30 
             0.00 
    92,069.30 

    

Source of Funds: Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 
(CDC)  

% Funds: CFDA: FAIN: Federal Grant #: 
100% 93.069 NU90TP921907 6 NU90TP921907-01-04 

Federal Grant Award Date by Federal Agency:  August 8, 2018 
Terms and Conditions: 
In accepting these grant funds, it is understood that: 

1. This award is subject to the availability of appropriate funds. 
2. Expenditures must comply with any statutory guidelines, the DHHS Grant Instructions and Requirements, and the State 

Administrative Manual. 
3. Expenditures must be consistent with the narrative, goals and objectives, and budget as approved and documented. 
4. Subrecipient must comply with all applicable Federal regulations. 
5. Quarterly progress reports are due by the 30th of each month following the end of the quarter, unless specific exceptions are 

provided in writing by the grant administrator. 
6. Financial Status Reports and Requests for Funds must be submitted monthly, unless specific exceptions are provided in writing 

by the grant administrator. 
Incorporated Documents: 
Section A: Grant Conditions and Assurances;  
Section B: Description of Services, Scope of Work and Deliverables; 
Exhibit 1:              Detailed Work Plan; 
Section C: Budget and Financial Reporting Requirements; 
Exhibit 2:              Worksheet;  



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)  Page 2 of 45    Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18 

Section D: Request for Reimbursement; 
Section E: Audit Information Request;  
Section F: Current/Former State Employee Disclaimer; 
Section G:      DPBH Business Associate Addendum; and  
Section H:   Matching Funds Agreement  

THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Kevin Dick
District Health Officer, WCHD 

Signature (Blue Ink) Date 

Karen Beckley, MPA 
Bureau Chief, BHPP 
for Julie Kotchevar, PhD. 
Administrator, DPBH 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 3 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

 
SECTION A 

 
GRANT CONDITIONS AND ASSURANCES 

 
General Conditions 
 
1. Nothing contained in this Agreement is intended to, or shall be construed in any manner, as creating or establishing 

the relationship of employer/employee between the parties. The Grantee shall at all times remain an “independent 
contractor” with respect to the services to be performed under this Agreement. The Department of Health and Human 
Services (hereafter referred to as “The Department”) shall be exempt from payment of all Unemployment 
Compensation, FICA, retirement, life and/or medical insurance and Workers’ Compensation Insurance as the Grantee 
is an independent entity. 

2. The Grantee shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify the Department from any and all claims, actions, suits, 
charges and judgments whatsoever that arise out of the Grantee’s performance or nonperformance of the services or 
subject matter called for in this Agreement. 

3. The Department or Grantee may amend this Agreement at any time provided that such amendments make specific 
reference to this Agreement, and are executed in writing, and signed by a duly authorized representative of both 
organizations. Such amendments shall not invalidate this Agreement, nor relieve or release the Department or 
Grantee from its obligations under this Agreement. 

The Department may, in its discretion, amend this Agreement to conform with federal, state or local governmental 
guidelines, policies and available funding amounts, or for other reasons. If such amendments result in a change in the 
funding, the scope of services, or schedule of the activities to be undertaken as part of this Agreement, such 
modifications will be incorporated only by written amendment signed by both the Department and Grantee. 

4. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving written notice to the other party of such termination 
and specifying the effective date thereof at least 30 days before the effective date of such termination. Partial 
terminations of the Scope of Work in Attachment A may only be undertaken with the prior approval of the Department.  
In the event of any termination for convenience, all finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, surveys, reports, 
or other materials prepared by the Grantee under this Agreement shall, at the option of the Department, become the 
property of the Department, and the Grantee shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any 
satisfactory work completed on such documents or materials prior to the termination. 

The Department may also suspend or terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, if the Grantee materially fails to 
comply with any term of this Agreement, or with any of the rules, regulations or provisions referred to herein; and the 
Department may declare the Grantee ineligible for any further participation in the Department’s Grant Agreements, in 
addition to other remedies as provided by law. In the event there is probable cause to believe the Grantee is in 
noncompliance with any applicable rules or regulations, the Department may withhold funding as outlined in the 
current Grant Instructions and Requirements. 

Grant Assurances 
 
A signature on the cover page of this packet indicates that the applicant is capable of and agrees to meet the following 
requirements, and that all information contained in this proposal is true and correct. 
1. Adopt and maintain a system of internal controls which results in the fiscal integrity and stability of the organization, 

including the use of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). 
2. Compliance with state insurance requirements for general, professional, and automobile liability; workers’ 

compensation and employer’s liability; and, if advance funds are required, commercial crime insurance. 
3. These grant funds will not be used to supplant existing financial support for current programs. 
4. No portion of these grant funds will be subcontracted without prior written approval unless expressly identified in the 

grant agreement. 
5. Compliance with the requirements of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, and the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 

P.L. 93-112, as amended, and any relevant program-specific regulations, and shall not discriminate against any 
employee for employment because of race, national origin, creed, color, sex, religion, age, disability or handicap 
condition (including AIDS and AIDS-related conditions). 

 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 4 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

 
6. Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (P.L. 101-136), 42 U.S.C. 12101, as amended, and 

regulations adopted there under contained in 28 CFR 26.101-36.999 inclusive, and any relevant program-specific 
regulations. 

7. Compliance with Title 2 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) and any guidance in effect from the Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) related (but not limited to) audit requirements for grantees that expend $750,000 or 
more in Federal awards during the grantee’s fiscal year must have an annual audit prepared by an independent 
auditor in accordance with the terms and requirements of the appropriate circular. A COPY OF THE FINAL AUDIT 
REPORT MUST BE SENT TO: 

Nevada State Division of Public and Behavioral Health 
Attn: Contract Unit 
4150 Technology Way, Suite 300 
Carson City, NV 89706-2009 

This copy of the final audit must be sent to the Division within nine (9) months of the close of the Subrecipient’s fiscal 
year. To acknowledge this requirement, Section E of this notice of subaward must be completed. 

8. Certification that neither the Grantee nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, 
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency. 
This certification is made pursuant to regulations implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, 
28 C.F.R. pt. 67 § 67.510, as published as pt. VII of May 26, 1988, Federal Register (pp. 19150-19211).  

9. No funding associated with this grant will be used for lobbying. 
10. Disclosure of any existing or potential conflicts of interest relative to the performance of services resulting from this 

grant award. 
11. Provision of a work environment in which the use of tobacco products, alcohol, and illegal drugs will not be allowed. 
12. Compliance with Grant Instructions and Requirements from the Office of Community Partnerships and Grants.  

(Online: http://dhhs.nv.gov/uploadedFiles/dhhsnvgov/content/Programs/Grants/Forms/FY17%20GIRS.pdf ) 

• An organization receiving grant funds through the Division of Public and Behavioral Health of the Nevada Department 
of Health and Human Services shall not use grant funds for any activity related to the following: 

1. Any attempt to influence the outcome of any Federal, State or local election, referendum, initiative or similar 
procedure, through in-kind or cash contributions, endorsements, publicity or a similar activity. 

2. Establishing, administering, contributing to or paying the expenses of a political party, campaign, political action 
committee or other organization established for the purpose of influencing the outcome of an election, 
referendum, initiative or similar procedure. 

3. Any attempt to influence: 
(a) The introduction or formulation of Federal, State or local legislation; or 

(b) The enactment or modification of any pending Federal, State or local legislation, through communication with 
any member or employee of Congress, the Nevada Legislature or a local governmental entity responsible for 
enacting local legislation, including, without limitation, efforts to influence State or local officials to engage in a 
similar lobbying activity, or through communication with any governmental official or employee in connection 
with a decision to sign or veto enrolled legislation. 

4. Any attempt to influence the introduction, formulation, modification or enactment of a Federal, State or local rule, 
regulation, executive order or any other program, policy or position of the United States Government, the State of 
Nevada or a local governmental entity through communication with any officer or employee of the United States 
Government, the State of Nevada or a local governmental entity, including, without limitation, efforts to influence 
State or local officials to engage in a similar lobbying activity. 
 

5. Any attempt to influence: 
(a) The introduction or formulation of Federal, State or local legislation; 

(b) The enactment or modification of any pending Federal, State or local legislation; or 

(c) The introduction, formulation, modification or enactment of a Federal, State or local rule, regulation, executive 
order or any other program, policy or position of the United States Government, the State of Nevada or a local 
governmental entity, by preparing, distributing or using publicity or propaganda, or by urging members of 
the general public or any segment thereof to contribute to or participate in any mass demonstration, march, 
rally, fundraising drive, lobbying campaign or letter writing or telephone campaign. 

http://dhhs.nv.gov/uploadedFiles/dhhsnvgov/content/Programs/Grants/Forms/FY17%20GIRS.pdf


STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 5 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

 

6. Legislative liaison activities, including, without limitation, attendance at legislative sessions or committee hearings, 
gathering information regarding legislation and analyzing the effect of legislation, when such activities are carried 
on in support of or in knowing preparation for an effort to engage in an activity prohibited pursuant to subsections 
1 to 5, inclusive. 
 

7. Executive branch liaison activities, including, without limitation, attendance at hearings, gathering information 
regarding a rule, regulation, executive order or any other program, policy or position of the United States 
Government, the State of Nevada or a local governmental entity and analyzing the effect of the rule, regulation, 
executive order, program, policy or position, when such activities are carried on in support of or in knowing 
preparation for an effort to engage in an activity prohibited pursuant to subsections 1 to 5, inclusive. 

• An organization receiving grant funds through the Division of Public and Behavioral Health of the Nevada Department 
of Health and Human Services may, to the extent and in the manner authorized in its grant, use grant funds for any 
activity directly related to educating persons in a nonpartisan manner by providing factual information in a manner that 
is: 

1. Made in a speech, article, publication, or other material that is distributed and made available to the public, or 
through radio, television, cable television or other medium of mass communication; and 

2. Not specifically directed at: 

(a) Any member or employee of Congress, the Nevada Legislature or a local governmental entity responsible for 
enacting local legislation; 

(b) Any governmental official or employee who is or could be involved in a decision to sign or veto enrolled 
legislation; or 

(c) Any officer or employee of the United States Government, the State of Nevada or a local governmental entity 
who is involved in introducing, formulating, modifying or enacting a Federal, State or local rule, regulation, 
executive order or any other program, policy or position of the United States Government, the State of 
Nevada or a local governmental entity. 

 
This provision does not prohibit a grantee or an applicant for a grant from providing information that is directly related to 
the grant or the application for the grant to the granting agency. 
 
Compliance with this section is acknowledged by signing the subaward cover page of this packet. 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 6 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

SECTION B 
 

Description of Services, Scope of Work and Deliverables 
 
Washoe County Health District (WCHD), hereinafter referred to as Subgrantee, agrees to provide the following services and reports according to the identified 
timeframes: 
 

• The attached detailed Work Plan (Exhibit 1) is for Budget Period 1 Supplemental, July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 and is broken down by domain, goals, 
objectives, capabilities and activities. The Detailed Work Plan contains activity description, output documentation and estimated date of completion for each 
activity.  

 
• Achievements of domain objectives for this budget period are to be completed by June 30, 2019. Outcome of the funded domain will be measured by Nevada 

State Division of Public and Behavioral Health (Division). Each funded domain requires substantial achievement and demonstration of completion as specified in 
the Detailed Work Plan of the funded activities. if objectives are not met, Division may reduce the amount of this subgrant award and reallocate funding to other 
preparedness priorities within the state.  
 

• Submit written Progress Reports to the Division electronically on or before:  
 

o October 31, 2018 1st Quarter Progress Report   (For the period of 7/1/18 to 9/30/18) 
o January 31, 2018 2nd Quarter Progress Report  (For the period of 7/1/18 to 12/31/18) 
o April 30, 2019  3rd Quarter Progress Report  (For the period of 7/1/18 to 3/31/19) 
o July 31, 2019  4th Quarter Progress Report   (For the period of 7/1/18 to 6/30/19) 

 
• Submit written Quarterly Match Sharing Report to the Division electronically on or before: 

 
o October 31, 2018 1st Quarter Progress Report   (For the period of 7/1/18 to 9/30/18) 
o January 31, 2018 2nd Quarter Progress Report  (For the period of 10/1/18 to 12/31/18) 
o April 30, 2019  3rd Quarter Progress Report  (For the period of 1/1/19 to 3/31/19) 
o July 31, 2019  4th Quarter Progress Report   (For the period of 4/1/19 to 6/30/19) 

 
 
 
Additional information may be requested by the Division, as needed, due to evolving state and federal reporting requirements.  
 
 

 

 

 

 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 7 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

 
EXHIBIT 1 

Washoe County Health District 
CDC Public Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP)  

Detailed Work Plan  
July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 (BP1 Supplemental) 

 

DOMAIN 1: PHEP STRENGTHEN COMMUNITY RESILIENCE   
Planned Activity Type:      Build  Sustain  Scale Back  No Planned Activity 

Domain 1 Activity 1: Partner with Stakeholders by Developing and Maturing Health Care Coalitions   

No planned objectives  
Check ALL Functions that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply)  
CAPABILITY 1: Community Preparedness 

 Function #1: Determine risks to the health of the jurisdiction 
 Function #2: Build community partnerships to support health preparedness 
 Function #3: Engage with community organizations to foster public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health social networks 
     Function #4: Coordinate training or guidance to ensure community engagement in preparedness efforts 

CAPABILITY 2: Community Recovery 
 Function #1: Identify and monitor public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health system recovery needs 
 Function #2: Coordinate community public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health system recovery operations 
     Function #3: Implement corrective actions to mitigate damages from future incidents 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 1 Activity 5:  Activity Documentation Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

   
   
   
Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 1 Activity 1: 
 

Domain 1 Activity 2: Characterize Probable Risk of the Jurisdiction & the Health Care Coalition (HCC) 

Statewide Objective: By June 30, 2019 State PHP and LHAs will have an all-hazards resource assessment tool for their jurisdiction.  



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 8 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

Objective 1:  Participate in Washoe County All-Hazards Mitigation Planning efforts beginning in Q2 and ending in BP3.   
Objective 2:  Washoe County will update regional JRA based by June 30, 2019. 
Objective 3:  Work with Washoe County Emergency Management and the City of Reno and conduct education and outreach on preparedness during 
Preparedness month (September) and the Preparedness Expo by June 30, 2019.   
Objective 4: Develop and conduct a CASPER survey to gain household level baseline data to support local planning efforts by June 30, 2019.   
 
Check ALL Functions that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply)  
CAPABILITY 1: Community Preparedness 

 Function #1: Determine risks to the health of the jurisdiction 
 Function #2: Build community partnerships to support health preparedness 
 Function #3: Engage with community organizations to foster public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health social networks 
     Function #4: Coordinate training or guidance to ensure community engagement in preparedness efforts 

CAPABILITY 2: Community Recovery 
 Function #1: Identify and monitor public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health system recovery needs 
 Function #2: Coordinate community public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health system recovery operations 
     Function #3: Implement corrective actions to mitigate damages from future incidents 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 1 Activity 2:  Activity Documentation Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) Participate in Washoe County Emergency Management 2018 Hazard Mitigation 
Planning efforts starting in Q2. 

Sign-in sheets, minutes Q4 

2) Review and update JRA in conjunction with Washoe County Hazard Mitigation 
Planning 

Updated JRA Q4 

5) Planning meetings to develop CASPER focus and questions for exercise. Meeting agendas, sign-in sheets, completed survey 
form 

Q2 

6) Identification and development of CASPER geographic survey area and 
methodology.   

GIS maps, emails Q3 

7) Conduct CASPER ICS chart, personnel roster, strike team rosters, 
survey forms 

Q3 

8) Analyze CASPER developed data  Completed CASPER analysis  Q4 
Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 1 Activity 2: 
1) Updated JRA  
2)    Completed CASPER survey 
 
Domain 1 Activity 3: Characterize Populations at Risk 
Statewide Objectives: By June 30, 2019 Nevada PHP and LHAs will revise response plans to include access and functional needs based upon data 
for each jurisdiction.  



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 9 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

Objective 1: By June 30, 2018, Washoe County revise emergency response plans to include Access and Functional Needs considerations. 
Objective 2:  Engage with first responder community partners and finalize Community Reception Center plan by June 30, 2019.   
Objective 3: Provision of basic radiological CRC training to Health District staff and community partners.   
 
Check ALL Functions that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply)  
CAPABILTY 1: Community Preparedness 

 Function #1: Determine risks to the health of the jurisdiction 
 Function #2: Build community partnerships to support health preparedness. 
 Function #3: Engage with community organizations to foster public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health social networks 
     Function #4: Coordinate training or guidance to ensure community engagement in preparedness efforts 

CAPABILTY 2: Community Recovery 
 Function #1: Identify and monitor public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health system recovery needs 
 Function #2: Coordinate community public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health system recovery operations 
     Function #3: Implement corrective actions to mitigate damages from future incidents 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 1 Activity 3:  Activity Documentation Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) Coordinate “Stop-the-Bleeding” training for WCHD personnel, volunteers and 
other Community members 

 

Sign-in sheets and training materials Q3 
 

2) NNAFNW will review a selected WCHD Plan to assess if the AFN population 
needs are addressed and then make recommendations.  I.e. Isolation and 
Quarantine or Multi-Casualty Incident Plans 

Sign-in sheets, minutes of the meeting notes Q4 

3) Continue to provide community partner agencies (i.e. VOAD) relevant 
information to incorporate vulnerable populations’ response plans. 

Information provided to community volunteers Q4 

4) Develop Point of Dispensing Video in top 2 identified Washoe County Languages 
other than English 

Completed Video Q4 

5) Partner with CLEAR Team, Fire Services Triad and other community partners to 
review the CRC plan based on BP1 exercise. 

Meeting agendas, meeting notes, sign-in sheets  Q2 

6)  Identify primary CRC locations in Washoe County based upon discussions with 
SMEs.   

Meeting notes, sign-in sheets Q3 

7) Create planning documents for selected CRC sites. GIS Mapping, site surveys, file pathways Q4 

8) Integrate site plans and recommendations from partners and finalize plan Finalized CRC plan Q4 

9) Identify and provide CRC focused radiological training to selected Washoe 
County Health District staff and community stakeholders, as appropriate.  

Training materials, sign-in sheets, participant 
surveys 

Q3 

10) Test, if possible, environmental tracking for public health in a mass care setting 
developed during BP1. 

AAR/IP Q4 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 10 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 1 Activity 3: 
1) Increased awareness of “Stop the Bleed” techniques. 
2) Educational Materials 
3) Finalized CRC plan. 
4) Site plans for CRC operations.  
5) Baseline radiological training for selected WCHD staff and community stakeholders  
 

Domain 1 Activity 4: Engage Communities & Health Care Systems 
Objective 1:  By January 1, 2019 provide influenza vaccination educational material to the Washoe County School District for dissemination to students in 
Washoe County.  
Objective 2: By June 30, 2018, Washoe County revise emergency response plans to include Access and Functional Needs considerations. 
Objective 3: By June 30, 2018, Washoe County will work with tribal partners to establish a workgroup focused on collaborating on emergency preparedness 
information. 
Objective 4: Washoe County Health District will present public health response plans to the Local Emergency Preparedness Committee, by June 30, 2019 

Check ALL Functions that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply)  
CAPABILTY 1: Community Preparedness 

 Function #1: Determine risks to the health of the jurisdiction 
 Function #2: Build community partnerships to support health preparedness 
 Function #3: Engage with community organizations to foster public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health social networks 
     Function #4: Coordinate training or guidance to ensure community engagement in preparedness efforts 

CAPABILTY 2: Community Recovery 
 Function #1: Identify and monitor public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health system recovery needs 
 Function #2: Coordinate community public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health system recovery operations 
     Function #3: Implement corrective actions to mitigate damages from future incidents 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 1 Activity 4:  Activity Documentation Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) If requested, volunteers will participate in a Community based health festival 
event. 

Sign-in sheets Q4 

2) Conduct educational pushout on seasonal and pandemic influenza with focus 
on increasing vaccinations rates in Nevada based on NHSPI findings 

Educational push out material Q3 

3) Develop Nevada specific Pandemic Influenza and flu vaccination educational 
material for distribution to community stakeholders including the school district 

Completed materials, schedule/plan of distribution Q3 

4) Continue to expand the NNAFNW committee to include new non represented 
members representing the AFN population e.g. WCSD, Health providers. 

New previously non-represented members of  AFN 
population committee members 

Q4 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 11 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

5) Work to improve quarterly meeting attendance by 10% of the NNAFN 
committee membership. 

New committee attendees & membership Q4 

6) Continue to facilitate quarterly NNAFNW committee meetings. Committee  meeting notes  Q4 
7) Develop a bi-yearly tribal workgroup to review current exercises, training 

opportunities and emergency preparedness plans. 
Agendas, meeting notes Q4 

8) Partner with Washoe County Emergency Management and provided public 
preparedness outreach during Preparedness month (September) 

Event flyers, sign-in sheets for events Q1 

9) Partner with City of Reno on the Preparedness Expo and conduct outreach and 
education during event 

Event flyer, educational material, sign-in sheets Q4 

10) Conduct presentation LEPC on new public health response plans (CRC and 
Iso/Quarantine Plan) and request feedback. 

Meeting minutes Q3 

11) Update public health response plans based on LEPC recommendations Meeting minutes, list of recommendations Q4 
Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 1 Activity 4: 
1) Participation in health related community events 
2) Educational materials  
3) Increased NNAFNW participation 
4) Developed workgroup  
5) Community preparedness outreach activities occurring in September 2018 
6) Educational information pushout during June 2019 City of Reno Preparedness Expo  
 

Domain 1 Activity 5: Operationalize Response Plans   

No planned objectives  
Check ALL Functions that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply)  
CAPABILTY 1: Community Preparedness 

 Function #1: Determine risks to the health of the jurisdiction 
 Function #2: Build community partnerships to support health preparedness 
 Function #3: Engage with community organizations to foster public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health social networks 
     Function #4: Coordinate training or guidance to ensure community engagement in preparedness efforts 

CAPABILTY 2: Community Recovery 
 Function #1: Identify and monitor public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health system recovery needs 
 Function #2: Coordinate community public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health system recovery operations 
     Function #3: Implement corrective actions to mitigate damages from future incidents 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 1 Activity 5:  Activity Documentation Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

   



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 12 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 1 Activity 5: 
 

DOMAIN 2: PHEP STRENGTHEN INCIDENT MANAGEMENT   
Planned Activity Type:      Build  Sustain  Scale Back  No Planned Activity 

Domain 2 Activity 1: Coordinate Emergency Operations 
Objective 1: Washoe County Health District will integrate satellite phones into 2 communications drills by June 30, 2019. 
Objective 2:  Washoe County Health District will review and revise the current all-hazards public health preparedness and response plan by January 1, 2019. 
Objective 3:  Washoe County Health District will coordinate a multi-day tabletop exercise, designed to test incident management and emergency response. 
Check ALL Functions that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply)  
CAPABILTY 3: Emergency Operations Coordination 

 Function #1: Conduct preliminary assessment to determine need for public activation 
 Function #2: Activate public health emergency operations 
 Function #3: Develop incident response strategy 
     Function #4:  Manage and sustain the public health response 
     Function #5:  Demobilize and evaluate public health emergency operations 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 2 Activity 1:  Activity Documentation Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) WCHD will maintain its allocation of active Satellite Phones.  Satellite phone minutes purchased amount 
documented on activation and renewal invoice.  

Q1 

2) Jurisdiction will conduct communications with their allocated satellite phones 
at least Semi-annually in conjunction with its quarterly communications drills.  

Quarterly Communications drills AARs.  Q4 

3) Jurisdiction will develop operational documents for Department Emergency 
Operations Plan 

Operational Documents Q4 

4) Review of Department Emergency Operations Plan to ensure the Emergency 
Management Assistance Compact is clearly outlined to ensure the mutual aid 
agreements to support activities are activated and utilized when needed.   

If necessary, revised DEOP Q2 

5) Coordinate multi-agency, mutli-day tabletop exercise for region, testing 
emergency operations plans to strengthen incident management. 

Exercise documentation and AAR/IP Q4 

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 2 Activity 1: 
1) Current satellite phone subscription minutes.  
2) Completed Communications Drill AARs. 
3) Operational documents 
4) Revised DEOP, if required 
5) Exercise Plan 
6) AAR/IP 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 13 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

Domain 2 Activity 2: Standardize Incident Command Structures for Public Health 
Objective 1:  Washoe County Health District will coordinate emergency operations training with command staff and support function staff by June 30, 2019. 
Objective 2: Washoe County Health District will provide ICS training to staff and community partners by June 30, 2019.   

Check ALL Functions that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply)  
CAPABILTY 3: Emergency Operations Coordination 

 Function #1: Conduct preliminary assessment to determine need for public activation 
 Function #2: Activate public health emergency operations 
 Function #3: Develop incident response strategy 
     Function #4: Manage and sustain the public health response 
     Function #5: Demobilize and evaluate public health emergency operations 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 2 Activity 2:  Activity Documentation Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) Conduct POD Command Course Training for staff identified in MCM plans Sign-in Sheets, presentation material Q2 
2) Coordinate ICS 300 & 400 Training for WCHD personnel and other Emergency 

Preparedness Community Members. 
Sign-in Sheets, presentation material Q4 

3) Coordinate “Stop-the-Bleeding” training for WCHD personnel and other 
community members 

Sign-in Sheets, presentation material Q3 

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 2 Activity 2: 
1) Trained on FEMA’s ICS requirements 
2) Completed ICS/POD training for MCM staff 
3) Newly trained personnel 
Domain 2 Activity 3: Establish Incident Command Structures for Health Care Organizations & HCC 
No planned objectives  
Check ALL Functions that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply)  
CAPABILTY 3: Emergency Operations Coordination 

 Function #1: Conduct preliminary assessment to determine need for public activation 
 Function #2: Activate public health emergency operations 
 Function #3: Develop incident response strategy 
     Function #4: Manage and sustain the public health response 
     Function #5: Demobilize and evaluate public health emergency operations 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 2 Activity 3:  Activity Documentation Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

   

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 2 Activity 3: 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 14 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

Domain 2 Activity 4: Ensure HCC integration & Collaboration with ESF-8 
Statewide Objective: By June 30, 2019 State PHP and LHAs will have a template for a coordinating response plan with their jurisdictional 
healthcare coalition.  
No planned objectives  
Check ALL Functions that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply)  
CAPABILTY 3: Emergency Operations Coordination 

 Function #1: Conduct preliminary assessment to determine need for public activation 
 Function #2: Activate public health emergency operations 
 Function #3: Develop incident response strategy 
     Function #4: Manage and sustain the public health response 
     Function #5: Demobilize and evaluate public health emergency operations 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 2 Activity 4:  Activity Documentation Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

   
Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 2 Activity 4: 
 
Domain 2 Activity 5: Expedite Fiscal Preparedness Procedures 
Statewide Objective: By June 30, 2019 State PHP and LHAs will revise plans to reflect fiscal procedures tested in BP1 incorporating the fiscal 
procedures needed to execute the Public Health Crisis Response Cooperative Agreement.  
Objective 1:  During BP2, if requested, Washoe County will participate in the State PHP led activity for testing fiscal procedures.   
Check ALL Functions that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply)  
CAPABILTY 3: Emergency Operations Coordination 

 Function #1: Conduct preliminary assessment to determine need for public activation 
 Function #2: Activate public health emergency operations 
 Function #3: Develop incident response strategy 
     Function #4: Manage and sustain the public health response 
     Function #5: Demobilize and evaluate public health emergency operations 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 2 Activity 5:  Activity Documentation Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) WCHD will participate in any State-led activity specific to fiscal procedures.  Meeting notes Q4 
Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 2 Activity 5: 
1) Testing AAR/IP. 

  



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 15 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

DOMAIN 3: PHEP STRENGTHEN INFORMATION MANAGEMENT   
Planned Activity Type:      Build  Sustain  Scale Back  No Planned Activity 

Domain 3 Activity 1: Share Situational Awareness Across the Health Care & Public Health Systems 
Statewide Objective: By June 30, 2019 Nevada’s public health authorities will modify current response plans to reflect changes resulting from 
the Information Sharing Review Committee in BP1.  
Objective 1:  Washoe County Health District will review and revise information sharing plans by March 31, 2019.   
Objective 2:  Washoe County Health District will conduct quarterly communication drills and two call down drills by June 30, 2019. 
Check ALL Functions that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply) 
CAPABILTY 4: Emergency Public Information & Warning   

 Function #1: Activate the emergency public information system 
 Function #2: Determine the need for a joint public information system 
 Function #3: Establish and participate in information system operations 
     Function #4: Establish avenues for public interaction and information exchange 
     Function #5: Issue public information alerts, warnings and notifications 

CAPABILTY 6: Information Sharing 
 Function #1: Identify stakeholders to be incorporated into information flow 
 Function #2: Identify and develop rules and data elements for sharing 
     Function #3: Exchange information to determine a common operating picture 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 3 Activity 1:  Activity Documentation Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) Upon receipt of feedback from the Information Sharing Review Committee, 
WCHD will modify current response plans as appropriate.  

TBD Q4 

2) HF/FEMA radio instructions – step by step and exercise Written protocols Q4 
3) Conduct quarterly communications drills.  AAR/IP, Vesta reports Q4 
4) Conduct WCHD call-down drills per ORR guidance AAR/IP, Vesta reports, sign in sheets Q4 
Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 3 Activity 1: 
1) Updated communications plan 
2) Operational Documents for radios 
3) AAR-IPs for communication drills 
4) AAR-IPs for call down drills 
 
Domain 3 Activity 2: Share Emergency Information & Warnings Across Disciplines & Jurisdictions & HCCs & their Members  
Objective 1:  Washoe County will continue to work to ensure unified messaging throughout the County during an emergency activation. 
Check ALL Functions that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply) 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 16 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

CAPABILTY 4: Emergency Public Information & Warning   
 Function #1: Activate the emergency public information system 
 Function #2: Determine the need for a joint public information system 
 Function #3: Establish and participate in information system operations 
     Function #4: Establish avenues for public interaction and information exchange 
     Function #5: Issue public information alerts, warnings and notifications 

CAPABILTY 6: Information Sharing 
 Function #1: Identify stakeholders to be incorporated into information flow 
 Function #2: Identify and develop rules and data elements for sharing 
     Function #3: Exchange information to determine a common operating picture 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 3 Activity 2:  Activity Documentation Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) Participate in the quarterly meetings of the Washoe County Crisis 
Communicators Group  

Meeting notes Q4 

2) Participate in the Washoe County Strategic Planning and Communications Team 
meetings. 

FAQs and developed information Q4 

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 3 Activity 2: 
1) Unified messaging 
2) FAQs 
Domain 3 Activity 3: Conduct External Communication with the Public 

Objective 1:  Prior to and during the fall 2018 POD exercises provide public messaging in multiple modes to encourage the public to get their flu vaccinations. 
Check ALL Functions that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply) 
CAPABILTY 4: Emergency Public Information & Warning   

 Function #1: Activate the emergency public information system 
 Function #2: Determine the need for a joint public information system 
 Function #3: Establish and participate in information system operations 
     Function #4: Establish avenues for public interaction and information exchange 
     Function #5: Issue public information alerts, warnings and notifications 

CAPABILTY 6: Information Sharing 
 Function #1: Identify stakeholders to be incorporated into information flow 
 Function #2: Identify and develop rules and data elements for sharing 
     Function #3: Exchange information to determine a common operating picture 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 3 Activity 3:  Activity Documentation Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) In conjunction with planned fall Flu POD activities, develop public POD 
messaging in coordination with community stakeholders and HCC partners 

Media releases, meeting minutes, sign in sheets, 
messaging templates 

Q1 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 17 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

2) Integrate alternative communication modes (RAILS) for public information 
push-out linked to fall flu POD exercises. 

Media releases, emails, video clips Q2 

3) Conduct public messaging in top two Washoe County language groups other 
than English attached to fall flu POD 

Media releases, emails, video clips Q2 

4) Identify and ensure information sharing systems are in place to include 
appropriately trained public health information officers, procedures for media 
notification, message development, and plans describing how the public can 
contact the health department.   

PIC plan reviews Q4 

5) MRC Volunteers will be invited to participate in any WCHD drills and/or POD 
Exercises 

Sign-in Sheets Media releases, emails, video clips Q4 

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 3 Activity 3: 
1) Media messaging for fall flu PODs 
2) Multiple language media messaging.   
3) Assistance in POD activity 
4) Updated PIC plan as appropriate 

 
  



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 18 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

DOMAIN 4: PHEP STRENGTHEN COUNTERMEASURES & MITIGATION  
Planned Activity Type:      Build  Sustain  Scale Back  No Planned Activity 

Domain 4 Activity 1: Manage Access to & Administration of Pharmaceutical & Non-pharmaceutical Interventions 
Objective 1:  Use ORR planning guidance to develop readiness tracking spreadsheet and identify top two areas to create mitigation plan by June 30, 2019. 
Objective 2: Add media messaging templates to Isolation and Quarantine plan by June 30, 2019.   
 
Check ALL Functions that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply)  
CAPABILTY 8: Medical Countermeasure Dispensing 

 Function #1: Identify and initiate medical countermeasure dispensing strategies 
 Function #2: Receive medical countermeasures 
 Function #3: Activate dispensing modalities 
     Function #4: Dispense medical countermeasures to identified populations 
     Function #5: Report adverse events 

CAPABILTY 9: Medical Materiel Management & Distribution  
 Function #1: Direct and activate medical materiel management and distribution 
 Function #2: Acquire medical materiel 
     Function #3: Maintain updated inventory management and reporting system 
     Function #4: Establish and maintain security 
     Function #5: Distribute medical materiel 
     Function #6: Recover medical materiel and demobilize distribution operations 

CAPABILTY 11: Non-Pharmaceutical Interventions  
 Function #1: Engage partners and identify factors that impact non-pharmaceuticals interventions 
 Function #2: Determine non-pharmaceutical interventions 
     Function #3: Implement non-pharmaceutical interventions 
     Function #4: Monitor non-pharmaceutical interventions 

CAPABILTY 14: Responder Safety & Health   
 Function #1: Identify responder safety and health risks 
 Function #2: Identify safety and personal protective needs 
     Function #3: Coordinate with partners to facilitate risk-specific safety and health training 
     Function #4: Monitor responder safety and health actions 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 4 Activity 1:  Activity Documentation Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) Conduct operational review of ORR planning elements and identify areas for 
improvement within MCM response plans 

ORR element spreadsheet items, list of 
improvements  

Q4 

2) Create improvement plan on top two identified ORR gap areas.   List of ranked improvements Q4 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 19 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

3) Develop public messaging for isolation and quarantine plan Public messaging media release templates Q3 
4) Revise and update Isolation and Quarantine plan with public information 

messaging 
Plan revision Q4 

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 4 Activity 1: 
1) ORR tracking sheet 
2) Improvement plan for top 2 identified gaps 
3) Mitigation plan for ORR components 
4) Updated Isolation and Quarantine Plan   
Domain 4 Activity 2: Ensure Safety & Health of Responders 
Statewide Objectives: By June 30, 2019 Nevada public health authorities will complete jurisdictional plans for distributing pharmaceutical 
caches to first responders.  
Objective 1:  By June 30, 2019 train up to 90 Washoe County School District staff to implement ‘Stop the Bleed’ protocols in an active assailant event.  
Objective 2:  By June 20, 2019 in conjunction with the IHCC and community stakeholders-- identify, purchase and integrate supplies and pharmaceuticals into the 
pharmacy cache plan.  
Check ALL Functions that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply)  
CAPABILTY 8: Medical Countermeasure Dispensing 

 Function #1: Identify and initiate medical countermeasure dispensing strategies 
 Function #2: Receive medical countermeasures 
 Function #3: Activate dispensing modalities 
     Function #4: Dispense medical countermeasures to identified populations 
     Function #5: Report adverse events 

CAPABILTY 9: Medical Materiel Management & Distribution  
 Function #1: Direct and activate medical materiel management and distribution 
 Function #2: Acquire medical materiel 
     Function #3: Maintain updated inventory management and reporting system 
     Function #4: Establish and maintain security 
     Function #5: Distribute medical materiel 
     Function #6: Recover medical materiel and demobilize distribution operations 

CAPABILTY 11: Non-Pharmaceutical Interventions  
 Function #1: Engage partners and identify factors that impact non-pharmaceuticals interventions 
 Function #2: Determine non-pharmaceutical interventions 
     Function #3: Implement non-pharmaceutical interventions 
     Function #4: Monitor non-pharmaceutical interventions 

CAPABILTY 14: Responder Safety & Health   
 Function #1: Identify responder safety and health risks 
 Function #2: Identify safety and personal protective needs 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 20 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

     Function #3: Coordinate with partners to facilitate risk-specific safety and health training 
     Function #4: Monitor responder safety and health actions 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 4 Activity 2:  Activity Documentation Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) Work with Washoe County School District to develop a ‘Stop the Bleed’ 
initiative for staff as able. 

Meeting notes, sign-in sheets, agendas Q1 

2) Develop training schedule for ‘Stop the Bleed’ training classes Training schedule Q2 
3) Provide ‘Stop the Bleed’ training to school staff (up to 90 staff) Presentation material, sign-in sheets Q4 
4) Present pharmaceutical cache plan to IHCC Meeting minutes, sign-in sheet Q1 
5) Request IHCC to review how pharmacy cache plan supplies and pharmaceuticals 

are to be distributed in a Public Health Emergency.   
Meeting notes, sign-in sheets, updated Pharmacy 
Cache Plan 

Q2 

6) Request PMAC to review pharmacy cache plan formulary and make 
recommendations on content.  

List of recommendations Q2 

7) Purchase identified supplies and pharmaceuticals as able Purchasing documents Q4 
8) Update pharmacy cache plan with any formulary changes Updated Pharmacy Cache Plan Q4 
9) Review and update if necessary the Respiratory Protection Program Plan for 

WCHD 
Revisions in plan if made Q2 

10) Conduct fit testing, per Respiratory Protection Program plan, on selected PPEs 
for assigned WCHD staff 

Staff Fit Tested signature Q4 

11) Develop “just in time” training materials that could be provided to government 
employees on how they will be involved in an emergency activation request.  

Training materials Q4 

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 4 Activity 2: 
1) Trained Washoe County School staff in ‘Stop the Bleed’ protocols 
2) Expanded formulary on Pharmacy Cache plan 
3) Updated Pharmacy Cache Plan 
4) Revision in Plan 
5) Training materials for government employees 
Domain 4 Activity 3: Operationalize Response Plans  
Objective 1:  In coordination with community stakeholders, conduct private and public PODs during second quarter of budget period, measure throughputs and 
update POD Operations manual by June 30, 2019.   
Check ALL Functions that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply)  
CAPABILTY 8: Medical Countermeasure Dispensing 

 Function #1: Identify and initiate medical countermeasure dispensing strategies 
 Function #2: Receive medical countermeasures 
 Function #3: Activate dispensing modalities 
     Function #4: Dispense medical countermeasures to identified populations 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 21 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

     Function #5: Report adverse events 

CAPABILTY 9: Medical Materiel Management & Distribution  
 Function #1: Direct and activate medical materiel management and distribution 
 Function #2: Acquire medical materiel 
     Function #3: Maintain updated inventory management and reporting system 
     Function #4: Establish and maintain security 
     Function #5: Distribute medical materiel 
     Function #6: Recover medical materiel and demobilize distribution operations 

CAPABILTY 11: Non-Pharmaceutical Interventions  
 Function #1: Engage partners and identify factors that impact non-pharmaceuticals interventions 
 Function #2:  Determine non-pharmaceutical interventions 
     Function #3: Implement non-pharmaceutical interventions 
     Function #4:  Monitor non-pharmaceutical interventions 

CAPABILTY 14: Responder Safety & Health   
 Function #1: Identify responder safety and health risks 
 Function #2: Identify safety and personal protective needs 
     Function #3: Coordinate with partners to facilitate risk-specific safety and health training 
     Function #4: Monitor responder safety and health actions 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 4 Activity 3:  Activity Documentation Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) Develop planning schedule and exercise documents for Fall POD exercises  Planning document Q1 
2) Present POD planning and training schedule to IHCC IHCC minutes Q1 
3) Coordinate with WCSD to conduct public POD at school site if able Meeting agenda, meeting notes, sign-in sheet Q1 
4) Coordinate with community stakeholders to develop Washoe County POD 

planning considerations 
Meeting agenda, meeting notes, sign-in sheet Q1 

5) Provide POD training to community Private POD partners as requested.  Sign-in sheets, presentation documentation Q2 
6) Coordinate POD activities with State DPS Sign-in sheets Q2 
7) Conduct PODs  AAR/IP Q3 
8) Assess throughputs and update POD planning documents (POD Operations 

Manual, MCMDD plan) with new assumptions 
Throughput report and updated POD Operations 
manual 

Q4 

9) Identify radiological PPE and/or supplies and equipment for law enforcement 
(CBRNE) for support of Community Reception Center Operations 

Lists of appropriate PPE and/or supplies Q1 

10) Purchase PPE and/or supplies and equipment for law enforcement (CBRNE) Purchasing documents Q2 
11) Integrate radiological supplies and equipment into CRC planning documents Updated CRC plan Q4 
12) Donate identified radiological supplies and equipment to appropriate 

community partners.   
Approved District Board of Health agenda item Q4 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 22 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

13) Provide training on the CRC planning document to IHCC Sign-in sheet, IHCC minutes Q4 
Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 4 Activity 3: 
1) POD plan exercising for multiple private POD partners  
2) AAR-IP for public POD exercise 
3) Throughput documentation from private and public POD exercises 

  



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 23 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

DOMAIN 5: PHEP STRENGTHEN SURGE MANAGEMENT  
Planned Activity Type:      Build  Sustain  Scale Back  No Planned Activity 

Domain 5 Activity 1: Management of Public Health Surge - Address mass care needs 
Objective 1:  By March 31, 2019, Washoe County Health District, in partnership with community partners, will train and exercise the operational document 
created during BP 1 for medical support in mass care settings.   
Objective 1:  By June 30, 2019, Washoe County Health District, in partnership with community partners, will assist with creating response plans to address health 
needs in congregate locations.     
Check ALL Functions that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply)  
CAPABILTY 5: Fatality Management  

 Function #1: Determine role for public health in fatality management 
 Function #2: Activate public health fatality management operations 
 Function #3: Assist in the collection and dissemination of ante-mortem data 
     Function #4: Participate in survivor mental/behavioral health services 
     Function #5: Participate in fatality processing and storage operations 

CAPABILTY 7: Mass Care 
 Function #1: Determine public health role in mass care operations 
 Function #2:  Determine mass care needs of the impacted population 
     Function #3: Coordinate public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health services 
     Function #4: Monitor mass care population health 

CAPABILTY 10: Medical Surge  
 Function #1: Assess the nature and scope of the incident 
 Function #2: Support activation of medical surge 
     Function #3: Support jurisdictional medical surge operations 
     Function #4: Monitor non-pharmaceutical interventions 

CAPABILTY 15: Volunteer Management  
 Function #1: Coordinate volunteers 
     Function #2: Notify volunteers 
     Function #3: Organize, assemble, and dispatch volunteers 
     Function #4: Demobilize volunteers 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 5 Activity 1:  Activity Documentation Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) Work with community partner responsible for mass care shelters to train 
shelter volunteers on operational document for the activation of the MRC MOU  

Operational document Q3 

2) Exercise operational document for medical support in a mass care shelter with 
community partners 

AAR/IP Q4 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 24 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

3) Work with HPP partners on de-identified data obtained for baseline data for 
hospice and home health to improve emergency planning items.  

De-identified data analysis  Q2 

4) Work with community partner responsible for mass care shelters to create 
shelter activation plans specifically for medical surge, utilizing baseline data 
from home health and hospice. 

Meeting notes Q4 

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 5 Activity 1: 
1) Operational document for medical support at mass care shelter 
2) AAR/IP 
3) Baseline information  
 
Domain 5 Activity 2: Management of Public Health Surge - Address surge needs 

Objective 1:  By December 31, 2018, Washoe County Health District will finalize the regional Family Reunification Plan drafted during BP1.   

Check ALL Functions that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply)  
CAPABILTY 5: Fatality Management  

 Function #1: Determine role for public health in fatality management 
 Function #2: Activate public health fatality management operations 
 Function #3: Assist in the collection and dissemination of ante-mortem data 
     Function #4: Participate in survivor mental/behavioral health services 
     Function #5: Participate in fatality processing and storage operations 

CAPABILTY 7: Mass Care 
 Function #1: Determine public health role in mass care operations 
 Function #2:  Determine mass care needs of the impacted population 
     Function #3: Coordinate public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health services 
     Function #4:  Monitor mass care population health 

CAPABILTY 10: Medical Surge  
 Function #1: Assess the nature and scope of the incident 
 Function #2: Support activation of medical surge 
     Function #3: Support jurisdictional medical surge operations 
     Function #4: Monitor non-pharmaceutical interventions 

CAPABILTY 15: Volunteer Management  
 Function #1: Coordinate volunteers 
     Function #2: Notify volunteers 
     Function #3: Organize, assemble, and dispatch volunteers 
     Function #4: Demobilize volunteers 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 5 Activity 2:  Activity Documentation Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 25 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

1) Present community partners drafted Family Reunification Plan and request 
input 

Meeting notes Q1 

2) Update and finalize Family Reunification Plan Family Reunification Plan Q2 
3) Exercise Family Reunification Plan during regional table-top exercises Exercise documents Q4 
Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 5 Activity 2: 
1) Family Reunification Plan 
2) AAR/IP 
 
Domain 5 Activity 3: Management of Public Health Surge - Coordinate Volunteers 
Objective 1:  Develop regional Spontaneous Volunteer Surge plan in coordination with Washoe County Emergency Management by June 30, 2019. 
Objective 2:  During BP2, Washoe County Health District will seek opportunities to utilize MRC volunteers in exercises and/or drills. 
 
Check ALL Functions that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply)  
CAPABILTY 5: Fatality Management  

 Function #1: Determine role for public health in fatality management 
 Function #2: Activate public health fatality management operations 
 Function #3: Assist in the collection and dissemination of ante-mortem data 
     Function #4: Participate in survivor mental/behavioral health services 
     Function #5: Participate in fatality processing and storage operations 

CAPABILTY 7: Mass Care 
 Function #1: Determine public health role in mass care operations 
 Function #2: Determine mass care needs of the impacted population 
     Function #3: Coordinate public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health services 
     Function #4: Monitor mass care population health 

CAPABILTY 10: Medical Surge  
 Function #1: Assess the nature and scope of the incident 
 Function #2: Support activation of medical surge 
     Function #3: Support jurisdictional medical surge operations 
     Function #4: Monitor non-pharmaceutical interventions 

CAPABILTY 15: Volunteer Management  
 Function #1: Coordinate volunteers 
     Function #2: Notify volunteers 
     Function #3: Organize, assemble, and dispatch volunteers 
     Function #4: Demobilize volunteers 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 5 Activity 3:  Activity Documentation Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 26 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

1) In collaboration with Washoe County Emergency Management Homeland 
Security, develop project scope for the development of a regional Spontaneous 
Volunteer Surge plan, to include operational processes for spontaneous 
volunteer registration and dispatch, donation management and response and 
call center operations.  

Meeting agendas, meeting notes Q1 

2) Engage community stakeholders such as Catholic Charities, Salvation Army, and 
Crisis Call Center in planning process. 

Meeting agendas, meeting notes, sign-in sheets. Q2 

3) Present draft plan to community stakeholder groups (i.e. VOAD or emergency 
managers) for input and feedback. 

Meeting minutes Q3 

4) Finalize Spontaneous Volunteer Surge plan Plan  Q4 
5) Continue to recruit new MRC Volunteers and embrace opportunities on the 

availability of MRC Volunteers to help out in various situations. 
Increased MRC members Q4 

6) Develop “just in time” training materials that could be provided to government 
employees during an emergency activation request. 

Training materials Q2 

7) Exercise the personnel surge elements of the Volunteer Management Plan. AAR/IP Q4 
8) Continue to update www.servnv.org  with MRC volunteers’ information. Updated volunteer information Q4 
9) Identify opportunities that MRC volunteers can participate in emergency 

preparedness trainings and/or exercises. 
Training materials, sign-in sheets Q4 

10) Update Volunteer Managements Plan, as appropriate, from regional AAR/IPs. Revised Volunteer Management Plan Q4 
11) Continue to recruit new MRC Volunteers and embrace opportunities on the 

availability of MRC Volunteers to help out in various situations. 
Sign-in-sheets Q4 

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 5 Activity 3: 
1) Regional Spontaneous Volunteer Surge Plan 
2) Training materials 
3) AAR/IP 
4) Updated volunteer information 
5) Trainings and volunteering opportunities 
6) Revised Volunteer Management Plan 
Domain 5 Activity 4: Management of Public Health Surge – Prevent or Mitigate Injuries and Fatalities 
Objective 1:  By June 30, 2019, the Medical Examiner Coroner’s Office will update plans and provide training to ensure ability to respond during a mass fatality 
event.   
Objective 2:  By June 30, 2019, the Medical Examiner Coroner’s Office provide training to the region on Family Assistance Center operations and the software 
programs utilized during a mass fatality event.   
Check ALL Functions that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply)  
CAPABILTY 5: Fatality Management  

 Function #1: Determine role for public health in fatality management 

http://www.servnv.org/


STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 27 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

 Function #2: Activate public health fatality management operations 
 Function #3: Assist in the collection and dissemination of ante-mortem data 
     Function #4: Participate in survivor mental/behavioral health services 
     Function #5: Participate in fatality processing and storage operations 

CAPABILTY 7: Mass Care 
 Function #1: Determine public health role in mass care operations 
 Function #2: Determine mass care needs of the impacted population 
     Function #3: Coordinate public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health services 
     Function #4: Monitor mass care population health 

CAPABILTY 10: Medical Surge  
 Function #1: Assess the nature and scope of the incident 
 Function #2: Support activation of medical surge 
     Function #3: Support jurisdictional medical surge operations 
     Function #4: Monitor non-pharmaceutical interventions 

CAPABILTY 15: Volunteer Management  
 Function #1: Coordinate volunteers 
     Function #2: Notify volunteers 
     Function #3: Organize, assemble, and dispatch volunteers 
     Function #4: Demobilize volunteers 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 5 Activity 4:  Activity Documentation Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) Revise Family Assistance Center plan based on lessons learned from real-world 
events and exercises 

Updated FAC plan Q2 

2) Exercise portable morgue assembly and operations Planning documents Q4 
3) Train WCMECO staff and NNDVRT on portable morgue operations Training materials Q4 

4) Conduct regional training for Family Assistance Center operations Training materials Q3 

5) Conduct regional training for UVIS, to be utilized during a mass fatality Training materials Q3 

6) Exercise FAC plan during regional table-top exercises AAR/IP Q4 

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 5 Activity 4: 
1) FAC Plan 
2) FAC training materials 
3) UVIS training materials 
4) Portable Morgue training 
5) AAR/IP 
 

  



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 28 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

DOMAIN 6: PHEP STRENGTHEN BIOSURVEILLANCE  
Planned Activity Type:      Build  Sustain  Scale Back  No Planned Activity 

Domain 6 Activity 1: Conduct Epidemiological Surveillance & Investigation 
Objective 1:  Maintain disease surveillance mechanisms and communicate with reporting sources to ensure compliance. 
Check ALL Functions that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply)  
CAPABILTY 12: Public Health Laboratory Testing 

 Function #1: Manage laboratory activities 
 Function #2: Perform sample management 
 Function #3: Conduct testing and analysis for routine and surge capacity 
     Function #4: Support public health investigations 
     Function #5: Report results 

CAPABILTY 13: Public Health Surveillance & Epidemiological Investigation 
 Function #1: Conduct public health surveillance and detection 
 Function #2: Conduct public health and epidemiological investigations 
     Function #3: Recommend, monitor and analyze mitigation actions 
     Function #4: Improve public health surveillance and epidemiological investigation systems 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 6 Activity 1:  Activity Documentation Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) Monitor cases of reportable disease.   NEDSS Base System Q4 
2) Investigate individual cases and outbreaks. NEDSS Base System Q4 
3) Implement control measures. NEDSS Base System Q4 

4) Participate in the Northern Nevada Infection Control (NNIC) meetings. NNIC minutes Q4 

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 6 Activity 1: 
1) Data available for review in the NEDSS Base System. 
2) Published issues of the EpiNews. 
3) Outbreak investigation reports. 
4) Annual disease reports. 
5) Weekly influenza reports during flu season. 
Domain 6 Activity 2: Detect Emerging Threats /Injury 

Objective 1:  Monitor syndromic reporting systems to detect unusual cases and emerging disease. 

Check ALL Functions that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply)  
CAPABILTY 12: Public Health Laboratory Testing 

 Function #1: Manage laboratory activities 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 29 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

 Function #2: Perform sample management 
 Function #3: Conduct testing and analysis for routine and surge capacity 
     Function #4: Support public health investigations 
     Function #5: Report results 

CAPABILTY 13: Public Health Surveillance & Epidemiological Investigation 
 Function #1: Conduct public health surveillance and detection 
 Function #2: Conduct public health and epidemiological investigations 
     Function #3: Recommend, monitor and analyze mitigation actions 
     Function #4: Improve public health surveillance and epidemiological investigation systems 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 6 Activity 2:  Activity Documentation Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) Maintain syndromic reporting systems for influenza and schools.  Weekly influenza reports Q4 
2) Maintain antibiogram based on local data. Published antibiogram Q4 
Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 6 Activity 2: 
1) Data available for review to assist in investigation of unusual occurrence of illness. 
Domain 6 Activity 3: Conduct Laboratory Testing 

Objective 1:  Coordinate with Nevada State Public Health Laboratory for disease investigation. 

Check ALL Functions that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply)  
CAPABILTY 12: Public Health Laboratory Testing 

 Function #1: Manage laboratory activities 
 Function #2: Perform sample management 
 Function #3:  Conduct testing and analysis for routine and surge capacity 
     Function #4:  Support public health investigations 
     Function #5:  Report results 

CAPABILTY 13: Public Health Surveillance & Epidemiological Investigation 
 Function #1: Conduct public health surveillance and detection 
 Function #2:  Conduct public health and epidemiological investigations 
     Function #3:  Recommend, monitor and analyze mitigation actions 
     Function #4: Improve public health surveillance and epidemiological investigation systems 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 6 Activity 3:  Activity Documentation Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) Coordinate submission of specimens to the Nevada State Public Health 
Laboratory. 

Laboratory results entered into NEDSS Base System Q4 

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 6 Activity 3: 
1) Laboratory data relevant to active disease investigations available for review. 

 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 30 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

 
SECTION C 

 
Budget and Financial Reporting Requirements 

 
Identify the source of funding on all printed documents purchased or produced within the scope of this subaward, 
using a statement similar to: “This publication (journal, article, etc.) was supported by the Nevada State Division of 
Public and Behavioral Health through Grant Number 6 NU90TP921907-01-04 from the Centers for Disease 
Control and Prevention (CDC).  Its contents are solely the responsibility of the authors and do not necessarily 
represent the official views of the Division nor the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC).” 

 
Any activities performed under this subaward shall acknowledge the funding was provided through the Division by 
Grant Number 6 NU90TP921907-01-04 from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC).  

 
Subrecipient agrees to adhere to the following budget: 
 

Category  Total cost Detailed cost Details of expected expenses 

1.  Personnel $ 603,867  
      Annual Salary % of Time 
   $ 112,678 Dr. Randall Todd, Epi Center 

Director 
$173,351 x 65% = $112,678 

 $173,351  65% 

   $ 16,148 Christina Conti, Preparedness and 
EMS Program Manager 
$100,926 x 16% = 16,148 

 $100,926  16% 

   $ 90,021. 0 Stephen Shipman, Public Health 
Emergency Coordinator 
$90,021 x 100% = $90,021 

 $90,021  100% 

   $ 4,406 Andrea Esp, Public Health 
Emergency Coordinator 
$88,121 x 5% = 4,406 

 $88,121  5% 

   $ 18,154 Phil Ulibarri, Public Health 
Communication Manager 
$90,771 x 20% = $18,154 

 $90,771  20% 

   $ 75,057 David Gamble, Program Coordinator 
$75,057 x 100% = $75,057 

 $75,057  100% 

   $ 59,584 Dawn Spinola, Administrative 
Secretary 
$67,709 x 88% = $59,584 

 $67,709  88% 

   $ 5,009 Heather Kerwin, Biostatistician 
$40,068 x 25% = $5,009 (6 months) 

 $40,068  25% 

   $ 51,144 Overtime*  
*Please see note below regarding overtime expenses.  

   $ 169,410 Fringe (Excluding Overtime) @ 45.05%  
381,056.98 x 45.05% = 171,666.17 

2.  Travel $ 4,790   
   $ 700 

 
Attendance at meetings around the region, working on Scope of 
Work initiatives.  All WCHD PHP staff attend regional meetings 
and would be eligible for mileage reimbursement. Not to exceed 
$700 

 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 31 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

   $ 938 Meeting with Public Health Partners throughout the State.  One 
meeting in Las Vegas, other three in Northern Nevada.  Staff 
members affiliated with this travel are anticipated to be Public 
Health Emergency Response Coordinator and the Preparedness & 
EMS Manager 
1 day, 2 staff, 1 trip  

Airfare, Per Diem, Transportation 
$100 

Not to exceed $938 
   $ 3,152 Preparedness Summit Conference Atlanta, GA 

4 days, 2 staff, 1 trip  
Airfare, Hotel, Per Diem, Transportation 

Not to exceed $3,152 
3.  Supplies $ 62,701   
   $ 1,200 General office supplies for day to day operations  

$100/month x 12 months = $1,200 
   $ 1,080 General operating supplies for day to day operations 

$90/month x 12 months = $1,080 
   $ 200 MRC supplies for community outreach.  

$16.60/month x 12 months = $200 
   $ 10,920 Purchasing of minor furniture for office staff and/or replacement of 

office equipment (under $5,000ea), purchasing of portable morgue 
equipment (medical examiner's office) and/or equipment for POD 
to be utilized during an activation 
$910/month x 12 months = $10,920 

   $ 15,365 Purchasing of one laptop computer for Epidemiologist and six for 
Medical Examiner staff 
$2,195/each x 7 = $15,365 

   $ 33,936 Operational supplies for regional initiatives such as: radiological 
and/or pharmaceutical cache for Health District and/or first 
responders, radiological detection equipment, lead blankets for 
source protection, POD signage, PPE for Health District and/or first 
responders, preparedness activity supplies, POD and/or MMF 
operating supplies and/or stop the bleed trauma supplies. Some of 
the purchased supplies will be donated to regional partners.   
$2,828/month x 12 months = $33,936 

4.  Equipment $ 0   
   $   
5. Contractual 
    Consultant 

$ 127,031   

   $ 35,800  Training support for Public Health preparedness staff and partner 
organizations 
$11,933/each x 3 = $35,800 

   $ 25,000  Development of Training Videos  
$6,250/each x 4 = $25,000 

   $ 36,231 Exercise Support for regional multi-day exercise 
   $ 30,000  Regional plan facilitation and development 
6.  Other $ 38,605   
   $  2,265  3 satellite phones required for Emergency Operations Coordination 

$755 x 3 = $2,265 
   $  9,500  Online classes through the University of Michigan, School of Public 

Health, for epidemiologist and biostatistician  
$4,750 x 2 = $9,500 

   $  2,700 General day to day operational use of telephones, network and 
cellular phones 
$225/month x 12 months = $2,700 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 32 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

   $  450  Dues for Public Health Communications Manager for NPHIC 
(National Public Health Information Coalition) and PRSA (Public 
Relations Society of America) 
$225/each x 2 = $450 

   $  11,520 General printing including emergency response plans or materials 
relating to pandemic influenza educational campaign to 
community, to include WCSD families and employees 
$960/month x 12 months = $11,520 

   $  1,020  Copy charges and lease allocation by usage 
$83/month x 12 months = $1,020 

   $  9,900 Maintain and operate trailers, signs, truck 
$825/month x 12 months = $9,900 

   $  40 Postage for general mailings 
$2/month x 20 = $40 

   $  1,210  Registration for Preparedness Summit conference  
$605/each x 2 = $1,210 

7.  Indirect $ 83,699   
   $ 83,699.42 Indirect @ 10% 

$836,994.15 x 10% = $83,699.42 
      
Total Federal 
Funds 

$ 920,693    

      
8. Match $ 92,069.30    
   $ 92,069.30 A nonfederal contribution in the amount of 10% 

$920,069 x 10% = 492,069.30 
      
Total Federal 
and Non 
Federal 
Contribution 

$ 1,012,762.30  

 
 

• *Overtime expenses: overtime expenses will only be reimbursed after receiving correct documentation stating 
the following for each individual in which overtime expenses are requested: name and title of staff, number of 
hours worked on which date(s), hourly rate of pay being requested for reimbursement, and detailed justification of 
work accomplished. All overtime expenses requested must be submitted in a separate Request for 
Reimbursement (RFR) providing sole justification and request for overtime expenses only. 
 

• Division of Public and Behavioral Health policy allows no more than 10% flexibility of the total not to exceed 
amount of the subaward, within the approved Scope of Work/Budget. Subrecipient will obtain written permission 
to redistribute funds within categories. Funds may only be redistributed budget categories in the original award.  
Note: the redistribution cannot alter the total not to exceed amount of the subaward. Modifications in 
excess of 10% ($92,069.30) require a formal amendment.  All redistribution of funds must be submitted for 
written approval no later than May 1, 2019 at 5:00 PM PST.  

 
• Equipment purchased with these funds belongs to the federal program from which this funding was appropriated 

and shall be returned to the program upon termination of this agreement. 
 

• Travel expenses, per diem, and other related expenses must conform to the procedures and rates allowed for 
State officers and employees.  It is the Policy of the Board of Examiners to restrict Contractors/Subrecipients to 
the same rates and procedures allowed State Employees. The State of Nevada reimburses at rates comparable 
to the rates established by the US General Services Administration, with some exceptions (State Administrative 
Manual 0200.0 and 0320.0). 

 
• Subgrantee agrees to Match a nonfederal contribution in the amount of 10% ($1 for each $10 of federal funds 

provided in this subgrant). The Match for the budget period will be $92,069.30. This Match may be provided 
directly or through donations from public or private entities and may be in case or in kind, fairly evaluated, 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 33 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

including location, equipment or services. Amounts provided by the federal government or services assisted or 
subsidized to any significant extend by the federal government may not be included in determining the amount of 
such nonfederal contributions. Documentation of match, including methods and sources must be available upon 
request of the Division. Subgrantee will sign attached Match Certification (Section H).  

 
 
The Subrecipient agrees: 

 
To request reimbursement according to the schedule specified below for the actual expenses incurred related to the 
Scope of Work during the performance period. 

 
• Total reimbursement through this subaward will not exceed $920,693.00; 

 
• Requests for Reimbursement will be accompanied by supporting documentation, including a line item description 

of expenses incurred (Exhibit 2); 
 

• Provide complete travel detail including purpose of travel and attach copies of a travel claim summary (if 
available).  

 
• Costs associated with food or meals are NOT permitted unless included with per diem as a part of official travel. 

Meals cannot be claimed within 50 miles of the official workstation.  
 

• Attach invoice copies for all items listed in Contract/Consultant and Equipment. Also attach invoices for all 
Supplies and Other purchases that are over $500 per item. NOTE: Supplies are items that have a consumable life 
of less than 1 year and Equipment are items over $5,000 per item OR have a consumable life of over 1 year (i.e., 
laptops, iPads, printers, etc.).  

 
• Provide a copy of all plans developed and all After Action Reports (AAR) for exercises within 45 days of exercise 

completion.  
 
• Additional expenditure detail will be provided upon request from the Division. 

 
Additionally, the Subrecipient agrees to provide: 
 

• A complete financial reconciliation of all expenditures is required to be submitted to the Division within 45 days of 
the CLOSE OF THE BUDGET PERIOD. Any un-obligated funds remaining after the 45-day closing period must 
be returned to the Division at that time, or if not already requested, will be deducted from the final award. 

• Any work performed after the BUDGET PERIOD will not be reimbursed.  
• If a Request for Reimbursement (RFR) is received after the 45-day closing period, the Division may not 

be able to provide reimbursement. 
• If a credit is owed to the Division after the 45-day closing period, the funds must be returned to the 

Division within 30 days of identification. 
 
The Division agrees: 
 

• To provide technical assistance, upon request from the Subrecipient; 
• To provide prior approval of reports or documents to be developed; 
• To hold reimbursement under this subgrant until any delinquent forms, reports, and expenditure documentation 

are submitted to and accepted by the Division 
 
 
Both parties agree: 
 

• Based on the bi-annual narrative progress and financial reporting forms, as well as site visit findings, if it appears 
to the Nevada State Division of Public and Behavioral Health that activities will not be completed in time 
specifically designated in the Scope of Work, or project objectives have been met at a lesser cost than originally 
budgeted, the funding may be reallocated other preparedness priorities within the state. This includes but is not 
limited to:  



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 34 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

o Reallocating funds between the subgrantee’s categories, and 
o Reallocating funds to another subgrantee or funding recipient to address other identified PHP priorities, 

by removing it from this agreement through a subgrant amendment. 
 

• The Subrecipient will, in the performance of the Scope of Work specified in this subgrant, perform functions 
and/or activities that could involve confidential information; therefore, the Subrecipient is requested to fill out and 
sign Section F, which is specific to this subaward, and will be in effect for the term of this subaward. 

 
• All reports of expenditures and requests for reimbursement processed by the Division are SUBJECT TO AUDIT. 

 
• The Division reserves the right to hold reimbursement under this subaward until any delinquent forms, reports, 

and accurate expenditure documentation are submitted to and accepted by the Division. 
 

• This subaward agreement may be TERMINATED by either party prior to the date set forth on the Notice of Subaward, 
provided the termination shall not be effective until 30 days after a party has served written notice upon the other 
party.  This agreement may be terminated by mutual consent of both parties or unilaterally by either party without 
cause.  The parties expressly agree that this Agreement shall be terminated immediately if for any reason the 
Division, state, and/or federal funding ability to satisfy this Agreement is withdrawn, limited, or impaired. 

 
 
Financial Reporting Requirements 
 

• A Request for Reimbursement is due on a monthly basis, based on the terms of the subaward 
agreement, no later than the 15th of the month, following the reporting period. 

• Reimbursement is based on actual and paid expenditures incurred during the period being reported. 
• Payment will not be processed without all reporting being current and accurate. 
• Reimbursement may only be claimed for expenditures approved within the Notice of Subaward. 
 

Compliance with this section is acknowledged by signing the subaward cover page of this packet. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Personnel Title Amount

Travel 
(Name of Traveler) Travel Dates To

Mileage @
$0.545/mi

Lodging &
Per Diem

AirFare 
& Misc Purpose/ Description Amount

TOTAL

Amount

Amount

Amount

Amount

Amount

TOTAL

Contract / Consultant Description

Supplies 
(Items under $5,000 & consumed within 1 yr) Description

TOTAL

Washoe County Health District (WCHD)
Reimbursement Worksheet

July 2019

Description
HD#16593

TOTAL
Equipment

(Items over $5,000 or not consumed within 1 yr) Description (attach invoice copies for all items)

TOTAL
Other Description

TOTAL
Indirect Description

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
TOTAL

Page 35 of 45

Section C - Exhibit B



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 36 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

    

                                                          SECTION D 

                                                          Request for Reimbursement 

Approved Budget 
Category

A         
Approved 

Budget

B                   
Total Prior 
Requests

C              
Current 
Request

D                    
Year to Date 

Total

E               
Budget   

Balance

F              
Percent 

Expended

1. Personnel $603,867.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $603,867.00 0.0%

2. Travel $4,790.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,790.00 0.0%

3. Supplies $62,701.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $62,701.00 0.0%

4. Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -

5. Contractual/Consultant $127,031.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $127,031.00 0.0%

6. Other $38,605.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $38,605.00 0.0%

7. Indirect $83,699.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $83,699.00 0.0%

Total Federal Funds $920,693.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $920,693.00 0.0%

8. Match $92,069.30 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $92,069.30 0.0%
Total Federal & Non-
Federal Contribution $1,012,762.30 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,012,762.30 0.0%  
I, a duty authorized signatory for the applicant, certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that this report is true, complete and accurate; that the expenditures, 
disbursements and cash receipts are for the purposes and objectives set forth in the terms and conditions of the grant award; and that the amount of this request 
is not in excess of current needs or, cumulatively for the grant term, in excess of the total approved grant award.  I am aware that any false, fictitious or fraudulent 
information, or the omission of any material fact, may subject me to criminal, civil or administrative penalties for fraud, false statements, false claims, or otherwise.  
I verify that the cost allocation and backup documentation attached is correct. 
 
 
Authorized Signature (blue ink)                                                                         Title                                                                                                     Date    

FOR DIVISION USE ONLY  
 
Is program contact required?  ____ Yes   _____ No             Contact Person: _____________________________________ 
 
Reason for contact:                  _____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Fiscal review/approval date:    _____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Scope of Work review/approval date:  _______________________________________________________________________ 
 
ASO or Bureau Chief (as required):  ___________________________________________________             _______________ 

                                                                                                                                                                            Date 

HD #: 16593 
Budget Account: 3218 

GL: 8516 
Job Number TBD 

Category 22 
Draw #:  

Program Name: 
Public Health Preparedness Program (PHP) 
Bureau of Health Protection and Preparedness (BHPP) 

Subgrantee Name: 
Washoe County Health District (WCHD) 

Address: 
4150 Technology Way, Suite # 200 
Carson City, NV 89706-2009 

Address: 
1001 East Ninth Street / PO Box 11130 
Reno, Nevada 89520 

Subgrant Period: 
July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 

Subgrantee’s: 
                     EIN: 88-6000138 
            Vendor #: T40283400 

FINANCIAL REPORT AND REQUEST FOR FUNDS 
(must be accompanied by expenditure report/back-up)           

   Month(s)                                                                                   Calendar year 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 37 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

 
SECTION E 

 
Audit Information Request 

 
1. Non-Federal entities that expend $750,000.00 or more in total federal awards are required to have a single or 

program-specific audit conducted for that year, in accordance with 2 CFR § 200.501(a). Within nine (9) months of 
the close of your organization’s fiscal year, you must submit a copy of the final audit report to division. Electronic 
copies are preferred and can be sent to contractunit@health.nv.gov. Mail hard copies to the following address:  
 

Nevada State Division of Public and Behavioral Health 
Attn: Contract Unit 
4150 Technology Way, Suite 300 
Carson City, NV  89706-2009 

 
2. Did your organization expend $750,000 or more in all federal awards during your  

organization’s most recent fiscal year?          YES   NO 
 

3. When does your organization’s fiscal year end?          
 

4. What is the official name of your organization?          
 

5. How often is your organization audited?           
 

6. When was your last audit performed?           
 

7. What time-period did your last audit cover?          
 

8. Which accounting firm conducted your last audit?         
 

 
 
Compliance with this section is acknowledged by signing the subaward cover page of this packet. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:contractunit@health.nv.gov


STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 38 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

 
SECTION F 

 
Notification of Utilization of Current or Former State Employee 

 
 

For the purpose of State compliance with NRS 333.705, subrecipient represents and warrants that if subrecipient, or any 
employee of subrecipient who will be performing services under this subaward, is a current employee of the State or was 
employed by the State within the preceding 24 months, subrecipient has disclosed the identity of such persons, and the 
services that each such person will perform, to the issuing Agency. Subrecipient agrees they will not utilize any of its 
employees who are Current State Employees or Former State Employees to perform services under this subaward 
without first notifying the Agency and receiving from the Agency approval for the use of such persons. This prohibition 
applies equally to any subcontractors that may be used to perform the requirements of the subaward. The provisions of 
this section do not apply to the employment of a former employee of an agency of this State who is not receiving 
retirement benefits under the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) during the duration of the subaward. 
 
Are any current or former employees of the State of Nevada assigned to perform work on this subaward? 
 

YES  If “YES”, list the names of any current or former employees of the State and the services that each person will perform.  
 

NO Subrecipient agrees that if a current or former state employee is assigned to perform work on this subaward at any point after 
execution of this agreement, they must receive prior approval from the Division. 

  
 
Name                                                                                     Services 

 
   

   

   

   

   

 
Subrecipient agrees that any employees listed cannot perform work until approval has been given from the 
Division. 
 
Compliance with this section is acknowledged by signing the subaward cover page of this packet. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 39 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

 
SECTION G 

 
Business Associate Addendum 

 
BETWEEN 

 
Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral Health 

______________________________________________ 
Hereinafter referred to as the “Covered Entity” 

 
and 

 
Washoe County Health District  

______________________________________________ 
Hereinafter referred to as the “Business Associate” 

 
 
 PURPOSE. In order to comply with the requirements of HIPAA and the HITECH Act, this Addendum is hereby 
added and made part of the agreement between the Covered Entity and the Business Associate.  This Addendum 
establishes the obligations of the Business Associate and the Covered Entity as well as the permitted uses and disclosures 
by the Business Associate of protected health information it may possess by reason of the agreement. The Covered Entity 
and the Business Associate shall protect the privacy and provide for the security of protected health information disclosed 
to the Business Associate pursuant to the agreement and in compliance with the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191 (“HIPAA”), the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical 
Health Act, Public Law 111-5 (“the HITECH Act”), and regulation promulgated there under by the U.S. Department of Health 
and Human Services (the “HIPAA Regulations”) and other applicable laws.  
 
 WHEREAS, the Business Associate will provide certain services to the Covered Entity, and, pursuant to such 
arrangement, the Business Associate is considered a business associate of the Covered Entity as defined in HIPAA, the 
HITECH Act, the Privacy Rule and Security Rule; and 
 
    WHEREAS, Business Associate may have access to and/or receive from the Covered Entity certain protected 
health information, in fulfilling its responsibilities under such arrangement; and 
   
 WHEREAS, the HIPAA Regulations, the HITECH Act, the Privacy Rule and the Security Rule require the Covered 
Entity to enter into an agreement containing specific requirements of the Business Associate prior to the disclosure of 
protected health information, as set forth in, but not limited to, 45 CFR Parts 160 & 164 and Public Law 111-5. 
 
 THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual obligations below and the exchange of information pursuant to this 
Addendum, and to protect the interests of both Parties, the Parties agree to all provisions of this Addendum. 
  
I. DEFINITIONS.  The following terms shall have the meaning ascribed to them in this Section.  Other capitalized 

terms shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the context in which they first appear. 
 

1. Breach means the unauthorized acquisition, access, use, or disclosure of protected health information which 
compromises the security or privacy of the protected health information.  The full definition of breach can be 
found in 42 USC 17921 and 45 CFR 164.402.  

2. Business Associate shall mean the name of the organization or entity listed above and shall have the meaning 
given to the term under the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.  For full definition refer to 45 CFR 
160.103. 

3. CFR stands for the Code of Federal Regulations. 
4. Agreement shall refer to this Addendum and that particular agreement to which this Addendum is made a part. 
5. Covered Entity shall mean the name of the Division listed above and shall have the meaning given to such 

term under the Privacy Rule and the Security Rule, including, but not limited to 45 CFR 160.103.  
6. Designated Record Set means a group of records that includes protected health information and is maintained 

by or for a covered entity or the Business Associate that includes, but is not limited to, medical, billing, 
enrollment, payment, claims adjudication, and case or medical management records.  Refer to 45 CFR 164.501 
for the complete definition. 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 40 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

7. Disclosure means the release, transfer, provision of, access to, or divulging in any other manner of information 
outside the entity holding the information as defined in 45 CFR 160.103. 

8. Electronic Protected Health Information means individually identifiable health information transmitted by 
electronic media or maintained in electronic media as set forth under 45 CFR 160.103. 

9. Electronic Health Record means an electronic record of health-related information on an individual that is 
created, gathered, managed, and consulted by authorized health care clinicians and staff.  Refer to 42 USC 
17921. 

10. Health Care Operations shall have the meaning given to the term under the Privacy Rule at 45 CFR 164.501. 
11. Individual means the person who is the subject of protected health information and is defined in 45 CFR 

160.103. 
12. Individually Identifiable Health Information means health information, in any form or medium, including 

demographic information collected from an individual, that is created or received by a covered entity or a 
business associate of the covered entity and relates to the past, present, or future care of the individual.  
Individually identifiable health information is information that identifies the individual directly or there is a 
reasonable basis to believe the information can be used to identify the individual. Refer to 45 CFR 160.103.  

13. Parties shall mean the Business Associate and the Covered Entity. 
14. Privacy Rule shall mean the HIPAA Regulation that is codified at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, Subparts A, D 

and E. 
15. Protected Health Information means individually identifiable health information transmitted by electronic 

media, maintained in electronic media, or transmitted or maintained in any other form or medium.  Refer to 45 
CFR 160.103 for the complete definition. 

16. Required by Law means a mandate contained in law that compels an entity to make a use or disclosure of 
protected health information and that is enforceable in a court of law.  This includes but is not limited to: court 
orders and court-ordered warrants; subpoenas, or summons issued by a court; and statues or regulations that 
require the provision of information if payment is sought under a government program providing public benefits.  
For the complete definition refer to 45 CFR 164.103. 

17. Secretary shall mean the Secretary of the federal Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) or the 
Secretary’s designee.  

18. Security Rule shall mean the HIPAA regulation that is codified at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 Subparts A and 
C. 

19. Unsecured Protected Health Information means protected health information that is not rendered unusable, 
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals through the use of a technology or methodology 
specified by the Secretary in the guidance issued in Public Law 111-5.  Refer to 42 USC 17932 and 45 CFR 
164.402. 

20. USC stands for the United States Code. 
 
II. OBLIGATIONS OF THE BUSINESS ASSOCIATE.  
 

1. Access to Protected Health Information.  The Business Associate will provide, as directed by the Covered 
Entity, an individual or the Covered Entity access to inspect or obtain a copy of protected health information 
about the Individual that is maintained in a designated record set by the Business Associate or, its agents or 
subcontractors, in order to meet the requirements of the Privacy Rule, including, but not limited to 45 CFR 
164.524 and 164.504(e) (2) (ii) (E).  If the Business Associate maintains an electronic health record, the 
Business Associate or, its agents or subcontractors shall provide such information in electronic format to enable 
the Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under the HITECH Act, including, but not limited to 42 USC 17935.  

2. Access to Records.  The Business Associate shall make its internal practices, books and records relating to 
the use and disclosure of protected health information available to the Covered Entity and to the Secretary for 
purposes of determining Business Associate’s compliance with the Privacy and Security Rule in accordance 
with 45 CFR 164.504(e)(2)(ii)(H).   

3. Accounting of Disclosures. Promptly, upon request by the Covered Entity or individual for an accounting of 
disclosures, the Business Associate and its agents or subcontractors shall make available to the Covered Entity 
or the individual information required to provide an accounting of disclosures in accordance with 45 CFR 
164.528, and the HITECH Act, including, but not limited to 42 USC 17935. The accounting of disclosures, 
whether electronic or other media, must include the requirements as outlined under 45 CFR 164.528(b).  

4. Agents and Subcontractors. The Business Associate must ensure all agents and subcontractors to whom it 
provides protected health information agree in writing to the same restrictions and conditions that apply to the 
Business Associate with respect to all protected health information accessed, maintained, created, retained, 
modified, recorded, stored, destroyed, or otherwise held, transmitted, used or disclosed by the agent or 
subcontractor. The Business Associate must implement and maintain sanctions against agents and 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 41 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

subcontractors that violate such restrictions and conditions and shall mitigate the effects of any such violation 
as outlined under 45 CFR 164.530(f) and 164.530(e)(1).  

5. Amendment of Protected Health Information.  The Business Associate will make available protected health 
information for amendment and incorporate any amendments in the designated record set maintained by the 
Business Associate or, its agents or subcontractors, as directed by the Covered Entity or an individual, in order 
to meet the requirements of the Privacy Rule, including, but not limited to, 45 CFR 164.526.   

6. Audits, Investigations, and Enforcement.  The Business Associate must notify the Covered Entity 
immediately upon learning the Business Associate has become the subject of an audit, compliance review, or 
complaint investigation by the Office of Civil Rights or any other federal or state oversight agency.  The Business 
Associate shall provide the Covered Entity with a copy of any protected health information that the Business 
Associate provides to the Secretary or other federal or state oversight agency concurrently with providing such 
information to the Secretary or other federal or state oversight agency.  The Business Associate and individuals 
associated with the Business Associate are solely responsible for all civil and criminal penalties assessed as a 
result of an audit, breach, or violation of HIPAA or HITECH laws or regulations. Reference 42 USC 17937.  

7. Breach or Other Improper Access, Use or Disclosure Reporting.  The Business Associate must report to 
the Covered Entity, in writing, any access, use or disclosure of protected health information not permitted by 
the agreement, Addendum or the Privacy and Security Rules.  The Covered Entity must be notified immediately 
upon discovery or the first day such breach or suspected breach is known to the Business Associate or by 
exercising reasonable diligence would have been known by the Business Associate in accordance with 45 CFR 
164.410, 164.504(e)(2)(ii)(C) and 164.308(b) and 42 USC 17921.  The Business Associate must report any 
improper access, use or disclosure of protected health information by: The Business Associate or its agents or 
subcontractors.  In the event of a breach or suspected breach of protected health information, the report to the 
Covered Entity must be in writing and include the following: a brief description of the incident; the date of the 
incident; the date the incident was discovered by the Business Associate; a thorough description of the 
unsecured protected health information that was involved in the incident; the number of individuals whose 
protected health information was involved in the incident; and the steps the Business Associate is taking to 
investigate the incident and to protect against further incidents.  The Covered Entity will determine if a breach 
of unsecured protected health information has occurred and will notify the Business Associate of the 
determination. If a breach of unsecured protected health information is determined, the Business Associate 
must take prompt corrective action to cure any such deficiencies and mitigate any significant harm that may 
have occurred to individual(s) whose information was disclosed inappropriately. 

8. Breach Notification Requirements.  If the Covered Entity determines a breach of unsecured protected health 
information by the Business Associate has occurred, the Business Associate will be responsible for notifying 
the individuals whose unsecured protected health information was breached in accordance with 42 USC 17932 
and 45 CFR 164.404 through 164.406.  The Business Associate must provide evidence to the Covered Entity 
that appropriate notifications to individuals and/or media, when necessary, as specified in 45 CFR 164.404 and 
45 CFR 164.406 has occurred.  The Business Associate is responsible for all costs associated with notification 
to individuals, the media or others as well as costs associated with mitigating future breaches.  The Business 
Associate must notify the Secretary of all breaches in accordance with 45 CFR 164.408 and must provide the 
Covered Entity with a copy of all notifications made to the Secretary. 

9. Breach Pattern or Practice by Covered Entity.  Pursuant to 42 USC 17934, if the Business Associate knows 
of a pattern of activity or practice of the Covered Entity that constitutes a material breach or violation of the 
Covered Entity’s obligations under the Contract or Addendum, the Business Associate must immediately report 
the problem to the Secretary.   

10. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that the Business Associate or its agents or 
subcontractors have no ownership rights with respect to the protected health information it accesses, maintains, 
creates, retains, modifies, records, stores, destroys, or otherwise holds, transmits, uses or discloses. 

11. Litigation or Administrative Proceedings.  The Business Associate shall make itself, any subcontractors, 
employees, or agents assisting the Business Associate in the performance of its obligations under the 
agreement or Addendum, available to the Covered Entity, at no cost to the Covered Entity, to testify as 
witnesses, or otherwise, in the event litigation or administrative proceedings are commenced against the 
Covered Entity, its administrators or workforce members upon a claimed violation of HIPAA, the Privacy and 
Security Rule, the HITECH Act, or other laws relating to security and privacy. 

12. Minimum Necessary.  The Business Associate and its agents and subcontractors shall request, use and 
disclose only the minimum amount of protected health information necessary to accomplish the purpose of the 
request, use or disclosure in accordance with 42 USC 17935 and 45 CFR 164.514(d)(3).   

13. Policies and Procedures.  The Business Associate must adopt written privacy and security policies and 
procedures and documentation standards to meet the requirements of HIPAA and the HITECH Act as described 
in 45 CFR 164.316 and 42 USC 17931. 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 42 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

14. Privacy and Security Officer(s).  The Business Associate must appoint Privacy and Security Officer(s) whose 
responsibilities shall include: monitoring the Privacy and Security compliance of the Business Associate; 
development and implementation of the Business Associate’s HIPAA Privacy and Security policies and 
procedures; establishment of Privacy and Security training programs; and development and implementation of 
an incident risk assessment and response plan in the event the Business Associate sustains a  breach or 
suspected breach of protected health information.   

15. Safeguards.  The Business Associate must implement safeguards as necessary to protect the confidentiality, 
integrity, and availability of the protected health information the Business Associate accesses, maintains, 
creates, retains, modifies, records, stores, destroys, or otherwise holds, transmits, uses or discloses on behalf 
of the Covered Entity.  Safeguards must include administrative safeguards (e.g., risk analysis and designation 
of security official), physical safeguards (e.g., facility access controls and workstation security), and technical 
safeguards (e.g., access controls and audit controls) to the confidentiality, integrity and availability of the 
protected health information, in accordance with 45 CFR 164.308, 164.310, 164.312, 164.316 and 
164.504(e)(2)(ii)(B).  Sections 164.308, 164.310 and 164.312 of the CFR apply to the Business Associate of 
the Covered Entity in the same manner that such sections apply to the Covered Entity.  Technical safeguards 
must meet the standards set forth by the guidelines of the National Institute of Standards and Technology 
(NIST).  The Business Associate agrees to only use or disclose protected health information as provided for by 
the agreement and Addendum and to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is known to the 
Business Associate, of a use or disclosure, in violation of the requirements of this Addendum as outlined under 
45 CFR 164.530(e)(2)(f). 

16. Training.  The Business Associate must train all members of its workforce on the policies and procedures 
associated with safeguarding protected health information.  This includes, at a minimum, training that covers 
the technical, physical and administrative safeguards needed to prevent inappropriate uses or disclosures of 
protected health information; training to prevent any intentional or unintentional use or disclosure that is a 
violation of HIPAA regulations at 45 CFR 160 and 164 and Public Law 111-5; and training that emphasizes the 
criminal and civil penalties related to HIPAA breaches or inappropriate uses or disclosures of protected health 
information.  Workforce training of new employees must be completed within 30 days of the date of hire and all 
employees must be trained at least annually.  The Business Associate must maintain written records for a 
period of six years.  These records must document each employee that received training and the date the 
training was provided or received. 

17. Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.  The Business Associate must not use or further 
disclose protected health information other than as permitted or required by the agreement or as required by 
law.  The Business Associate must not use or further disclose protected health information in a manner that 
would violate the requirements of the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act. 
 

III. PERMITTED AND PROHIBITED USES AND DISCLOSURES BY THE BUSINESS ASSOCIATE.  The Business 
Associate agrees to these general use and disclosure provisions: 
 
1. Permitted Uses and Disclosures: 

a. Except as otherwise limited in this Addendum, the Business Associate may use or disclose protected health 
information to perform functions, activities, or services for, or on behalf of, the Covered Entity as specified 
in the agreement, provided that such use or disclosure would not violate the HIPAA Privacy and Security 
Rule or the HITECH Act, if done by the Covered Entity in accordance with 45 CFR 164.504(e) (2) (i) and 
42 USC 17935 and 17936. 

b. Except as otherwise limited by this Addendum, the Business Associate may use or disclose protected 
health information received by the Business Associate in its capacity as a Business Associate of the 
Covered Entity, as necessary, for the proper management and administration of the Business Associate, 
to carry out the legal responsibilities of the Business Associate, as required by law or for data aggregation 
purposes  in accordance with 45 CFR 164.504(e)(2)(A), 164.504(e)(4)(i)(A), and 164.504(e)(2)(i)(B). 

c. Except as otherwise limited in this Addendum, if the Business Associate discloses protected health 
information to a third party, the Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, 
reasonable written assurances from the third party that such protected health information will be held 
confidential pursuant to this Addendum and only disclosed as required by law or for the purposes for which 
it was disclosed to the third party.  The written agreement from the third party must include requirements to 
immediately notify the Business Associate of any breaches of confidentiality of protected health information 
to the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach.  Refer to 45 CFR 164.502 and 164.504 and 42 
USC 17934. 

d. The Business Associate may use or disclose protected health information to report violations of law to 
appropriate federal and state authorities, consistent with 45 CFR 164.502(j)(1).  



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 43 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

2. Prohibited Uses and Disclosures:  
 a. Except as otherwise limited in this Addendum, the Business Associate shall not disclose protected health 

information to a health plan for payment or health care operations purposes if the patient has required this 
special restriction and has paid out of pocket in full for the health care item or service to which the protected 
health information relates in accordance with 42 USC 17935. 

b. The Business Associate shall not directly or indirectly receive remuneration in exchange for any protected 
health information, as specified by 42 USC 17935, unless the Covered Entity obtained a valid authorization, 
in accordance with 45 CFR 164.508 that includes a specification that protected health information can be 
exchanged for remuneration. 

 
IV. OBLIGATIONS OF COVERED ENTITY 

 
1. The Covered Entity will inform the Business Associate of any limitations in the Covered Entity’s Notice of Privacy 

Practices in accordance with 45 CFR 164.520, to the extent that such limitation may affect the Business 
Associate’s use or disclosure of protected health information. 

2. The Covered Entity will inform the Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of, permission by an 
individual to use or disclose protected health information, to the extent that such changes may affect the 
Business Associate’s use or disclosure of protected health information. 

3. The Covered Entity will inform the Business Associate of any restriction to the use or disclosure of protected 
health information that the Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522 and 42 USC 
17935, to the extent that such restriction may affect the Business Associate’s use or disclosure of protected 
health information. 

4. Except in the event of lawful data aggregation or management and administrative activities, the Covered Entity 
shall not request the Business Associate to use or disclose protected health information in any manner that 
would not be permissible under the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act, if done by the 
Covered Entity. 

 
V. TERM AND TERMINATION 

 
1. Effect of Termination: 

a. Except as provided in paragraph (b) of this section, upon termination of this Addendum, for any reason, the 
Business Associate will return or destroy all protected health information received from the Covered Entity 
or created, maintained, or received by the Business Associate on behalf of the Covered Entity that the 
Business Associate still maintains in any form and the Business Associate will retain no copies of such 
information. 

b. If the Business Associate determines that returning or destroying the protected health information is not 
feasible, the Business Associate will provide to the Covered Entity notification of the conditions that make 
return or destruction infeasible.  Upon a mutual determination that return, or destruction of protected health 
information is infeasible, the Business Associate shall extend the protections of this Addendum to such 
protected health information and limit further uses and disclosures of such protected health information to 
those purposes that make return or destruction infeasible, for so long as the Business Associate maintains 
such protected health information. 

c. These termination provisions will apply to protected health information that is in the possession of 
subcontractors, agents, or employees of the Business Associate. 

2. Term.  The Term of this Addendum shall commence as of the effective date of this Addendum herein and shall 
extend beyond the termination of the contract and shall terminate when all the protected health information 
provided by the Covered Entity to the Business Associate, or accessed, maintained, created, retained, modified, 
recorded, stored, or otherwise held, transmitted, used or disclosed by the Business Associate on behalf of the 
Covered Entity, is destroyed or returned to the Covered Entity, or, if it not feasible to return or destroy the 
protected health information, protections are extended to such information, in accordance with the termination. 

3. Termination for Breach of Agreement.  The Business Associate agrees that the Covered Entity may 
immediately terminate the agreement if the Covered Entity determines that the Business Associate has violated 
a material part of this Addendum. 

 
VI. MISCELLANEOUS 

 
1. Amendment.  The parties agree to take such action as is necessary to amend this Addendum from time to 

time for the Covered Entity to comply with all the requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 44 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, Public Law No. 104-191 and the Health Information Technology for 
Economic and Clinical Health Act (HITECH) of 2009, Public Law No. 111-5. 

2. Clarification.  This Addendum references the requirements of HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the Privacy Rule and 
the Security Rule, as well as amendments and/or provisions that are currently in place and any that may be 
forthcoming. 

3. Indemnification.  Each party will indemnify and hold harmless the other party to this Addendum from and 
against all claims, losses, liabilities, costs and other expenses incurred as a result of, or arising directly or 
indirectly out of or in conjunction with: 
a. Any misrepresentation, breach of warranty or non-fulfillment of any undertaking on the part of the party 

under this Addendum; and 
b. Any claims, demands, awards, judgments, actions, and proceedings made by any person or organization 

arising out of or in any way connected with the party’s performance under this Addendum.      
4. Interpretation.  The provisions of the Addendum shall prevail over any provisions in the agreement that may 

conflict or appear inconsistent with any provision in this Addendum.  This Addendum and the agreement shall 
be interpreted as broadly as necessary to implement and comply with HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the Privacy 
Rule and the Security Rule.  The parties agree that any ambiguity in this Addendum shall be resolved to permit 
the Covered Entity and the Business Associate to comply with HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the Privacy Rule and 
the Security Rule. 

5. Regulatory Reference.  A reference in this Addendum to a section of the HITECH Act, HIPAA, the Privacy 
Rule and Security Rule means the sections as in effect or as amended.  

6. Survival.  The respective rights and obligations of Business Associate under Effect of Termination of this 
Addendum shall survive the termination of this Addendum. 

 
Compliance with this section is acknowledged by signing the subaward cover page of this packet. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 45 of 45                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16592 
Revised 7/18   
 

 
SECTION H 

 
Matching Funds Agreement 

 
This Matching Funds Agreement is entered into between the Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral Health 
(referred to as “Division”) and Washoe County Health District (referred to as “Subrecipient”). 
 

Program Name Public Health 
Preparedness Subrecipient Name Washoe County Health District 

(WCHD) 
Federal Grant 

Number 6 NU90TP921907-01-04 Subaward Number 16593 

Federal Amount $920,693.00 Contact Name  

Non-Federal 
(Match) Amount $92,069.30 Address 

1001 East Ninth Street / PO Box 
11130 
Reno, Nevada 89520 

Total Award $1,012,762.30  
Performance Period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 

 
Under the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Subrecipient agrees to complete the Project as 
described in the Description of Services, Scope of Work and Deliverables. Non-Federal (Match) funding will be 
required to be documented on the Monthly Financial Status and Request for Funds Request form and will be 
verified during subrecipient monitoring.   
 
This subaward is subject to the requirements (federal, state financial and program assurances) established by 
the federal government, the State of Nevada and the Division as well as any local code, ordinances and policy.  
This subaward is subject to the availability of funding.  Special Conditions:  This project is approved subject to 
the conditions and limitations set forth on the following pages(s):  Section A-Assurances and Certifications; 
Section B- Description of Services, Scope of Work and Deliverables; Section C- Budget and Financial 
Reporting Requirements; Section E- Audit Information Request; Section F- Current and Former State 
Employee Disclaimer; and Section G- Business Associate Addendum.  
 
Compliance with this section is acknowledged by signing the subaward cover page of this packet. 



ADMINISTRATIVE HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
AHS Office: 775-328-2410   I   Fax: 775-328-3752   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  August 23, 2018 

TO: District Board of Health 
FROM: Jennifer Pierce, Fiscal Compliance Officer 

775-328-2418, jpierce@washoecounty.us 
SUBJECT: Retroactive approval of Notice of Subgrant Award from the Nevada Department of 

Health and Human Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health, for the period 
July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 in the total amount of $365,687 (with $33,244 or 
10% match) in support of the Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and Response 
(ASPR)  Public Health Preparedness Program.  Approval of authorization to travel and 
travel reimbursements for non-County employees that are Inter-Hospital Coordinating 
Council (IHCC) Coalition members (to be designated by IHCC leadership) in an 
amount not to exceed $10,695 to attend the Health Care Coalition Conferences (dates 
to be determined); and if approved authorize the District Health Officer to execute the 
Subgrant Award. 

SUMMARY 
The Washoe County District Board of Health must approve and execute Interlocal Agreements. The 
District Health Officer is authorized to execute agreements on the Board of Health’s behalf not to 
exceed a cumulative amount of $100,000 per contractor; over $100,000 would require the approval of 
the District Board of Health.   

The Washoe County Health District received the Notice of Subgrant Award from the Division of 
Public and Behavioral Health for the period July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 in the total amount of 
$365,687 in support of the ASPR Public Health Preparedness Grant Program, IO 10708. A copy of 
the Notice of Subgrant Award is attached.   

District Health Strategic Priority supported by this item:  
4. Impactful Partnerships: Extend our impact by leveraging partnerships to make meaningful
progress on health issues.
6. Organizational Capacity: Strengthen our workforce and increase operational capacity to support
a growing population.

This item supports the Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness (EPHP) Division’s mission to 
strengthen the capacity of public health infrastructure to detect, assess, and respond decisively to 
control the public health consequences of bioterrorism events or any public health emergency. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 6Bv DD____AH_______ 
DHO__________ 
DA___________ 
Risk__________ 

mailto:jpierce@washoecounty.us


Subject: Retroactive approval of Notice of Subgrant Award – ASPR Public Health Preparedness Program 
Date: August 23, 2018 
Page 2 of 3 
 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
The Board approved the Notice of Subgrant Award for the period July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018 
in the total amount of $280,035 on August 24, 2017. 
 
BACKGROUND/GRANT AWARD SUMMARY 
Project/Program Name: ASPR Public Health Preparedness Program  
Scope of the Project:  The Subgrant Award scope of work addresses the following 
capabilities: 

• Foundation for Health Care and Medical Readiness 
• Health Care and Medical Response and Recovery Coordination 
• Continuity of Health Care Service Delivery 
• Medical Surge 
• Program Administration 

 
Benefit to Washoe County Residents: This Award supports the Epidemiology and Public Health 
Preparedness (EPHP) Division’s mission to strengthen the capacity of public health infrastructure to 
detect, assess, and respond decisively to control the public health consequences of bioterrorism events 
or any public health emergency. 
 
On-Going Program Support: These funds support on-going activities in the Public Health 
Preparedness Program. A portion of the funds will be used to support the transition of the IHCC 
into a mature coalition as outlined in the Funding Opportunity Announcement and the 
completion of a Hazard Vulnerability Assessment (HVA) and resource assessment.  
Award Amount:  Total award is $365,687 ($332,443 direct/$33,244 indirect, 

$36,568.70 10% match) 
Grant Period:    July 1, 2018 – June 30, 2019 
Funding Source:   Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and Response (ASPR) 
Pass Through Entity:  State of Nevada, Department of Health and Human Services 
 Division of Public & Behavioral Health 
CFDA Number:  93.889 
Grant ID Number: TBD 
Match Amount and Type: 10% match is required and is met through Shared Services 
expenditures 
Sub-Awards and Contracts: No Sub-Awards are anticipated.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
As the FY19 budget in Internal Order 10708 was adopted with a total of $365,108 in revenue 
(includes $33,192 of indirect) and $331,916 in expenditure authority, a budget amendment is 
necessary. 
 



Subject: Retroactive approval of Notice of Subgrant Award – ASPR Public Health Preparedness Program 
Date: August 23, 2018 
Page 3 of 3 

Account Number Description Amount of Increase/Decrease 
2002-IO-10708    -431100 Federal Revenue $527 

Total Revenue  $527 

2002-IO-10708   -710100 Professional Services $527 
Total Expenditures $527 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the District Board of Health retroactively approve Notice of Subgrant Award 
from the Nevada Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public and Behavioral 
Health, for the period July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 in the total amount of $365,687 (with 
$33,244 or 10% match) in support of the Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and Response (ASPR) 
Public Health Preparedness Program; Approval of authorization to travel and travel reimbursements 
for non-County employees that are Inter-Hospital Coordinating Council (IHCC) Coalition members 
(to be designated by IHCC leadership) in an amount not to exceed $10,695 to attend the Health Care 
Coalition Conferences (dates to be determined); and if approved authorize the District Health Officer 
to execute the Subgrant Award. 

POSSIBLE MOTION 
Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be “Move to 
retroactively approve Notice of Subgrant Award from Nevada Department of Health and Human 
Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health, for the period July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 
in the total amount of $365,687 (with $33,244 or 10% match) in support of the Assistant Secretary for 
Preparedness and Response (ASPR)  Public Health Preparedness Program; Approval of authorization 
to travel and travel reimbursements for non-County employees that are Inter-Hospital Coordinating 
Council (IHCC) Coalition members (to be designated by IHCC leadership) in an amount not to 
exceed $10,695 to attend the Health Care Coalition Conferences (dates to be determined); and if 
approved authorize the District Health Officer to execute the Subgrant Award.” 



 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                          Page 1 of 39                                                                       
Revised 7/18 

State of Nevada 
    Department of Health and Human Services 

    Division of Public & Behavioral 
Health 

  (hereinafter referred to as the Division) 

Agency Ref. #: 16577 
Budget Account: 3218 

Category: 23 
GL: 8516 

Job Number: 9388918S 
            NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Program Name: 
Public Health Preparedness Program (PHP) 
Bureau of Health Protection and Preparedness (BHPP) 

Subgrantee Name: 
Washoe County Health District (WCHD) 

Address: 
4150 Technology Way, Suite # 200 
Carson City, NV 89706-2009 

Address: 
1001 East Ninth Street / PO Box 11130 
Reno, Nevada 89520 

Project Period: 
July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 
Budget Period: 
July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 

Subrecipient’s:  
EIN: 88-6000138  

Vendor #: T40283400  
Dun & Bradstreet: 073786998  

  

Purpose of Award: Funds are intended to demonstrate achievement in the Hospital Preparedness Program (HPP) domains according to 
the HPP and PHEP Cooperative Agreement. 

Region(s) to be served:   ☐ Statewide   ☒ Specific county or counties: Washoe 

1.     Personnel $222,972.00
2.     Travel $13,859.00
3.     Supplies $9,078.00
4.     Equipment $0.00

5.     Contractual/Consultant $79,277.00

6.     Other $7,257.00
TOTAL DIRECT COSTS $332,443.00
7.     INDIRECT COSTS $33,244.00
TOTAL FEDERAL FUNDS $365,687.00
8.    Match $36,568.70

TOTAL FEDERAL & NON-
FEDERAL CONTRIBUTION $402,255.70

Approved Budget Categories:

 
 

AWARD COMPUTATION: 
Total Obligated by This Action: 
Cumulative Prior Awards this Budget Period: 
Total Federal Funds Awarded to Date: 
 
Match Required  ☒ Y   ☐ N 
Amount Required This Action:  
Amount Required Prior Awards: 
Total Match Amount Required: 
Research and Development (R&D) ☐ Y   ☒ N 
 

 
$ 
$ 
$ 
 
 

$ 
$ 
$ 
 
 

 
365,687.00 
            0.00 
365,687.00 

 
 

  36,568.70 
           0.00 
  36,568.70 

    

Source of Funds: Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and 
Response (ASPR)  

% Funds: CFDA: FAIN: Federal Grant #: 
100% 93.889 NU90TP921907 6 NU90TP921907-01-04 

Federal Grant Award Date by Federal Agency:  August 8, 2018 
Terms and Conditions: 
In accepting these grant funds, it is understood that: 

1. This award is subject to the availability of appropriate funds. 
2. Expenditures must comply with any statutory guidelines, the DHHS Grant Instructions and Requirements, and the State 

Administrative Manual. 
3. Expenditures must be consistent with the narrative, goals and objectives, and budget as approved and documented. 
4. Subrecipient must comply with all applicable Federal regulations. 
5. Quarterly progress reports are due by the 30th of each month following the end of the quarter, unless specific exceptions are 

provided in writing by the grant administrator. 
6. Financial Status Reports and Requests for Funds must be submitted monthly, unless specific exceptions are provided in writing 

by the grant administrator. 
Incorporated Documents: 
Section A: Grant Conditions and Assurances;  
Section B: Description of Services, Scope of Work and Deliverables; 
Exhibit 1:              Detailed Work Plan 
Section C: Budget and Financial Reporting Requirements; 
Exhibit 2:              Worksheet; 
Section D: Request for Reimbursement;  
Section E: Audit Information Request;  



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 2 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

Section F: Current/Former State Employee Disclaimer 
Section G:            DPBH Business Associate Addendum; and 
Section H:            Matching Funds Agreement 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

           

Kevin Dick 
District Health Officer 

Signature (Blue Ink) Date 

Karen Beckley, MPA 
Bureau Chief, BHPP 

  

for Julie Kotchevar, PhD. 
Administrator, DPBH 

  



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 3 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

 
SECTION A 

 
GRANT CONDITIONS AND ASSURANCES 

 
General Conditions 
 
1. Nothing contained in this Agreement is intended to, or shall be construed in any manner, as creating or establishing 

the relationship of employer/employee between the parties. The Grantee shall at all times remain an “independent 
contractor” with respect to the services to be performed under this Agreement. The Department of Health and Human 
Services (hereafter referred to as “The Department”) shall be exempt from payment of all Unemployment 
Compensation, FICA, retirement, life and/or medical insurance and Workers’ Compensation Insurance as the Grantee 
is an independent entity. 

2. The Grantee shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify the Department from any and all claims, actions, suits, 
charges and judgments whatsoever that arise out of the Grantee’s performance or nonperformance of the services or 
subject matter called for in this Agreement. 

3. The Department or Grantee may amend this Agreement at any time provided that such amendments make specific 
reference to this Agreement, and are executed in writing, and signed by a duly authorized representative of both 
organizations. Such amendments shall not invalidate this Agreement, nor relieve or release the Department or 
Grantee from its obligations under this Agreement. 

The Department may, in its discretion, amend this Agreement to conform with federal, state or local governmental 
guidelines, policies and available funding amounts, or for other reasons. If such amendments result in a change in the 
funding, the scope of services, or schedule of the activities to be undertaken as part of this Agreement, such 
modifications will be incorporated only by written amendment signed by both the Department and Grantee. 

4. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving written notice to the other party of such termination 
and specifying the effective date thereof at least 30 days before the effective date of such termination. Partial 
terminations of the Scope of Work in Attachment A may only be undertaken with the prior approval of the Department.  
In the event of any termination for convenience, all finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, surveys, reports, 
or other materials prepared by the Grantee under this Agreement shall, at the option of the Department, become the 
property of the Department, and the Grantee shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any 
satisfactory work completed on such documents or materials prior to the termination. 

The Department may also suspend or terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, if the Grantee materially fails to 
comply with any term of this Agreement, or with any of the rules, regulations or provisions referred to herein; and the 
Department may declare the Grantee ineligible for any further participation in the Department’s Grant Agreements, in 
addition to other remedies as provided by law. In the event there is probable cause to believe the Grantee is in 
noncompliance with any applicable rules or regulations, the Department may withhold funding as outlined in the 
current Grant Instructions and Requirements. 

Grant Assurances 
 
A signature on the cover page of this packet indicates that the applicant is capable of and agrees to meet the following 
requirements, and that all information contained in this proposal is true and correct. 
1. Adopt and maintain a system of internal controls which results in the fiscal integrity and stability of the organization, 

including the use of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). 
2. Compliance with state insurance requirements for general, professional, and automobile liability; workers’ 

compensation and employer’s liability; and, if advance funds are required, commercial crime insurance. 
3. These grant funds will not be used to supplant existing financial support for current programs. 
4. No portion of these grant funds will be subcontracted without prior written approval unless expressly identified in the 

grant agreement. 
5. Compliance with the requirements of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, and the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 

P.L. 93-112, as amended, and any relevant program-specific regulations, and shall not discriminate against any 
employee for employment because of race, national origin, creed, color, sex, religion, age, disability or handicap 
condition (including AIDS and AIDS-related conditions). 

 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 4 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

 
6. Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (P.L. 101-136), 42 U.S.C. 12101, as amended, and 

regulations adopted there under contained in 28 CFR 26.101-36.999 inclusive, and any relevant program-specific 
regulations. 

7. Compliance with Title 2 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) and any guidance in effect from the Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) related (but not limited to) audit requirements for grantees that expend $750,000 or 
more in Federal awards during the grantee’s fiscal year must have an annual audit prepared by an independent 
auditor in accordance with the terms and requirements of the appropriate circular. A COPY OF THE FINAL AUDIT 
REPORT MUST BE SENT TO: 

Nevada State Division of Public and Behavioral Health 
Attn: Contract Unit 
4150 Technology Way, Suite 300 
Carson City, NV 89706-2009 

This copy of the final audit must be sent to the Division within nine (9) months of the close of the Subrecipient’s fiscal 
year. To acknowledge this requirement, Section E of this notice of subaward must be completed. 

8. Certification that neither the Grantee nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, 
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency. 
This certification is made pursuant to regulations implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, 
28 C.F.R. pt. 67 § 67.510, as published as pt. VII of May 26, 1988, Federal Register (pp. 19150-19211).  

9. No funding associated with this grant will be used for lobbying. 
10. Disclosure of any existing or potential conflicts of interest relative to the performance of services resulting from this 

grant award. 
11. Provision of a work environment in which the use of tobacco products, alcohol, and illegal drugs will not be allowed. 
12. Compliance with Grant Instructions and Requirements from the Office of Community Partnerships and Grants.  

(Online: http://dhhs.nv.gov/uploadedFiles/dhhsnvgov/content/Programs/Grants/Forms/FY17%20GIRS.pdf ) 

• An organization receiving grant funds through the Division of Public and Behavioral Health of the Nevada Department 
of Health and Human Services shall not use grant funds for any activity related to the following: 

1. Any attempt to influence the outcome of any Federal, State or local election, referendum, initiative or similar 
procedure, through in-kind or cash contributions, endorsements, publicity or a similar activity. 

2. Establishing, administering, contributing to or paying the expenses of a political party, campaign, political action 
committee or other organization established for the purpose of influencing the outcome of an election, 
referendum, initiative or similar procedure. 

3. Any attempt to influence: 
(a) The introduction or formulation of Federal, State or local legislation; or 

(b) The enactment or modification of any pending Federal, State or local legislation, through communication with 
any member or employee of Congress, the Nevada Legislature or a local governmental entity responsible for 
enacting local legislation, including, without limitation, efforts to influence State or local officials to engage in a 
similar lobbying activity, or through communication with any governmental official or employee in connection 
with a decision to sign or veto enrolled legislation. 

4. Any attempt to influence the introduction, formulation, modification or enactment of a Federal, State or local rule, 
regulation, executive order or any other program, policy or position of the United States Government, the State of 
Nevada or a local governmental entity through communication with any officer or employee of the United States 
Government, the State of Nevada or a local governmental entity, including, without limitation, efforts to influence 
State or local officials to engage in a similar lobbying activity. 
 

5. Any attempt to influence: 
(a) The introduction or formulation of Federal, State or local legislation; 

(b) The enactment or modification of any pending Federal, State or local legislation; or 

(c) The introduction, formulation, modification or enactment of a Federal, State or local rule, regulation, executive 
order or any other program, policy or position of the United States Government, the State of Nevada or a local 
governmental entity, by preparing, distributing or using publicity or propaganda, or by urging members of 
the general public or any segment thereof to contribute to or participate in any mass demonstration, march, 
rally, fundraising drive, lobbying campaign or letter writing or telephone campaign. 

http://dhhs.nv.gov/uploadedFiles/dhhsnvgov/content/Programs/Grants/Forms/FY17%20GIRS.pdf


STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 5 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

 

6. Legislative liaison activities, including, without limitation, attendance at legislative sessions or committee hearings, 
gathering information regarding legislation and analyzing the effect of legislation, when such activities are carried 
on in support of or in knowing preparation for an effort to engage in an activity prohibited pursuant to subsections 
1 to 5, inclusive. 
 

7. Executive branch liaison activities, including, without limitation, attendance at hearings, gathering information 
regarding a rule, regulation, executive order or any other program, policy or position of the United States 
Government, the State of Nevada or a local governmental entity and analyzing the effect of the rule, regulation, 
executive order, program, policy or position, when such activities are carried on in support of or in knowing 
preparation for an effort to engage in an activity prohibited pursuant to subsections 1 to 5, inclusive. 

• An organization receiving grant funds through the Division of Public and Behavioral Health of the Nevada Department 
of Health and Human Services may, to the extent and in the manner authorized in its grant, use grant funds for any 
activity directly related to educating persons in a nonpartisan manner by providing factual information in a manner that 
is: 

1. Made in a speech, article, publication, or other material that is distributed and made available to the public, or 
through radio, television, cable television or other medium of mass communication; and 

2. Not specifically directed at: 

(a) Any member or employee of Congress, the Nevada Legislature or a local governmental entity responsible for 
enacting local legislation; 

(b) Any governmental official or employee who is or could be involved in a decision to sign or veto enrolled 
legislation; or 

(c) Any officer or employee of the United States Government, the State of Nevada or a local governmental entity 
who is involved in introducing, formulating, modifying or enacting a Federal, State or local rule, regulation, 
executive order or any other program, policy or position of the United States Government, the State of 
Nevada or a local governmental entity. 

 
This provision does not prohibit a grantee or an applicant for a grant from providing information that is directly related to 
the grant or the application for the grant to the granting agency. 
 
Compliance with this section is acknowledged by signing the subaward cover page of this packet. 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 6 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

SECTION B 
 

Description of Services, Scope of Work and Deliverables 
 
Washoe County Health District (WCHD), hereinafter referred to as Subgrantee, agrees to provide the following services and reports according to the identified 
timeframes: 
 

• The attached detailed Work Plan (Exhibit 1) is for Budget Period 1 Supplemental, July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 and is broken down by domain, goals, 
objectives, capabilities and activities. The Detailed Work Plan contains activity description, output documentation and estimated date of completion for each 
activity.  

 
• Achievements of domain objectives for this budget period are to be completed by June 30, 2019. Outcome of the funded domain will be measured by Nevada 

State Division of Public and Behavioral Health (Division). Each funded domain requires substantial achievement and demonstration of completion as specified in 
the Detailed Work Plan of the funded activities. if objectives are not met, Division may reduce the amount of this subgrant award and reallocate funding to other 
preparedness priorities within the state.  
 

• Submit written Progress Reports to the Division electronically on or before:  
 

o October 31, 2018 1st Quarter Progress Report   (For the period of 7/1/18 to 9/30/18) 
o January 31, 2018 2nd Quarter Progress Report  (For the period of 7/1/18 to 12/31/18) 
o April 30, 2019  3rd Quarter Progress Report  (For the period of 7/1/18 to 3/31/19) 
o July 31, 2019  4th Quarter Progress Report   (For the period of 7/1/18 to 6/30/19) 

 
• Submit written Quarterly Match Sharing Report to the Division electronically on or before: 

 
o October 31, 2018 1st Quarter Progress Report   (For the period of 7/1/18 to 9/30/18) 
o January 31, 2018 2nd Quarter Progress Report  (For the period of 10/1/18 to 12/31/18) 
o April 30, 2019  3rd Quarter Progress Report  (For the period of 1/1/19 to 3/31/19) 
o July 31, 2019  4th Quarter Progress Report   (For the period of 4/1/19 to 6/30/19) 

 
 
 
 
Additional information may be requested by the Division, as needed, due to evolving state and federal reporting requirements.  
 
 

 

 

 

 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 7 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

 
Exhibit 1 to Section B 

HD 16577 

Washoe County Health District (WCHD) 
ASPR Hospital Preparedness Program (HPP) 

Detailed Work Plan  
July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 (BP1 Supplemental) 

DOMAIN 1: HPP STRENGTHEN COMMUNITY RESILIENCE 
Planned Activity Type:       Build  Sustain  Scale Back  No Planned Activity 

Domain 1 Activity 1: Partner with Stakeholders by Developing & Maturing Health Care Coalitions (HCC) 
Objective 1:  Throughout the budget period, the Inter-Hospital Coordinating Council (IHCC), in collaboration with WCHD, will maintain the requirements of a 
mature coalition as outlined in the FOA. 
Check ALL Objectives that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply) 
CAPABILTY 1: Foundation for Health Care & Medical Readiness   

 Objective 1: Establish a Health Care Coalition 
 Objective 2: Identify Risk and Needs 
     Objective 3: Develop an HCC Preparedness Work plan   
     Objective 4: Train and Prepare the Health Care and Medical Workforce 
     Objective 5: Ensure Preparedness is Sustainable 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 1 Activity 1 Activity Documentation  Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) Review and revise, if necessary, IHCC bylaws.   Agenda, meeting minutes Q2 
2) Maintain core membership as outlined in the bylaws. Attendance log and meeting minutes Q4 
3) Update point-of-contact (POC) forms quarterly  

a. Hospitals, home health, hospice, dialysis, skilled nursing, memory care, 
homes for individual residential facilities (new), adult day care (new) 

POC forms Q4 

4) Review and revise the IHCC Preparedness Planning Guidelines. 
a. Review guidelines 
b. Update with annual HVA information 
c. Update with annual coalition resource and gap analysis information  

Agendas, meeting minutes Q3 

5) Track IHCC’s 2018 and 2019 goals, objectives and activities. Tracking sheet Q4 
6) Coordinate IHCC’s 2018 and 2019 goals, objectives and activities. Meeting minutes, tracking sheet Q4 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 8 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

7) Develop IHCC annual evaluation for members. Annual evaluation  Q3 
8) Coalition members to complete the coalition resource and gap analysis, 

adopted and modified from ASPR TRACIE Healthcare Coalition Resource and 
Gap Analysis Tool during BP1. 

Agenda, meeting minutes, Coalition resource and 
gap analysis 

Q2 

9) Maintain a collaborative partnership with a variety of stakeholders to ensure 
the community has: 

a. Medical equipment and supplies, 
b. Real-time information, 
c. Communication systems, and  
d. Trained and educated health care personnel to respond to an 

emergency. 

Agenda, meeting minutes Q4 

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 1 Activity 1: 
1) Bylaws (if necessary) 
2) IHCC Preparedness Plan - updated 
3) Coalition resource and gap analysis 
4) POC forms 
Domain 1 Activity 2: Characterize Probable Risk of the Jurisdiction & the HCC 
Statewide Objective: By June 30, 2019 Healthcare Coalitions throughout Nevada will have established systems for tracking resources with state 
and local partners.  
Objective 1:  By June 30, 2019, the IHCC, with leadership from WCHD, will complete a Hazard Vulnerability Assessment (HVA) and resource assessment. 
Check ALL Objectives that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply) 
CAPABILTY 1: Foundation for Health Care & Medical Readiness   

 Objective 1: Establish a Health Care Coalition 
 Objective 2: Identify Risk and Needs 
 Objective 3: Develop an HCC Preparedness Work plan   
     Objective 4: Train and Prepare the Health Care and Medical Workforce 
     Objective 5: Ensure Preparedness is Sustainable 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 1 Activity 2 Activity Documentation  Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) Complete annual IHCC HVA. HVA Q2 
2) Develop identified mechanism from BP1 to track and share resource 

information and share with coalition members. 
Meeting minutes Q4 

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 1 Activity 2: 
1)  IHCC HVA 
2)  Mechanism for track and share resource information 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 9 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

Domain 1 Activity 3: Characterize Populations at Risk 
Statewide Objective: By June 30, 2019 each of Nevada’s four Healthcare Coalitions will have systems in place for healthcare delivery to Access 
and Functional Needs populations during disasters.  
Objective 1:  Every six months, starting July 2018, WCHD will identify for IHCC existing data sources and de-identified data from emPOWER and use for all-
inclusive planning.  
Check ALL Objectives that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply) 
CAPABILTY 1: Foundation for Health Care & Medical Readiness   

 Objective 1: Establish a Health Care Coalition 
 Objective 2: Identify Risk and Needs 
 Objective 3: Develop an HCC Preparedness Work plan   
     Objective 4: Train and Prepare the Health Care and Medical Workforce 
     Objective 5: Ensure Preparedness is Sustainable 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 1 Activity 3 Activity Documentation  Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) Continue to include risk planning for the whole community in coalition 
planning. 
• Example: Utilization of the Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease 

Registry Social Vulnerability Index. 

Meeting minutes Q4 

2) Obtain de-identified data from emPOWER (once every 6 months). 
• Obtain in September for the revision of the IHCC Preparedness Planning 

Guidelines 
• Obtain in January for the grant planning purposes 

De-identified data Q3 

3) Identify existing IT tools that can help identify children, seniors, pregnant 
women, people with disabilities, and other unique needs. 

Meeting minutes Q3 

4) Continue to work with home health agencies to educate and prepare their 
cliental to remain in their residences during certain emergencies. 

Meeting minutes Q4 

5) Continue to work with homes for individual residential facilities to educate and 
prepare their cliental how to prepare for emergencies. 

Meeting minutes Q4 

6) Continue to work with Adult Day Care agencies to educate and prepare their 
cliental on how to prepare for emergencies. 

Meeting minutes Q4 

7) As requested, work with organizations that work with at risk populations to 
prepare for emergencies. 
• Examples: exercise with ambulatory surgical centers or federally qualified 

health centers. 

Meeting minutes Q4 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 10 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

8) In partnership with home health and hospice, coordinate with community 
partner responsible for mass care (ESF-6), as identified in BP1, to identify how 
home health and hospice workers integrate into shelter operations.  

Meeting minutes Q4 

9) Continue to identify health care delivery support agencies for AFN populations 
(pre- and –post-event) that can prevent stress on hospitals during an 
emergency. 

Agency information Q4 

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 1 Activity 3:   
1) Two de-identified data sets 
2) Update health care delivery support agency list 
3) Developed educational materials 

 
 

Domain 1 Activity 4: Engage Communities & Health Care Systems 
Objective 1:  Throughout BP1 Supplement, WCHD, on behalf of IHCC, will continue to engage the community and health care partners. 
Check ALL Objectives that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply) 
CAPABILTY 1: Foundation for Health Care & Medical Readiness   

 Objective 1: Establish a Health Care Coalition 
 Objective 2: Identify Risk and Needs 
 Objective 3: Develop an HCC Preparedness Work plan   
     Objective 4: Train and Prepare the Health Care and Medical Workforce 
     Objective 5:  Ensure Preparedness is Sustainable 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 1 Activity 4 Activity Documentation  Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) Local health department continued participation in the coalition. Documented meeting attendance Q4 
2) Continue to review and discuss the coalitions means to increase sustainability  Meeting minutes Q4 
3) Revise, as appropriate, marketing materials to continue to share the benefits of 

IHCC activities to members and additional stakeholders to promote IHCC 
preparedness efforts. 

Meeting minutes Q4 

4) Continue to reach out and engage champions among IHCC members and other 
response organizations to promote IHCC preparedness efforts to health care 
executives, clinicians, community leaders, and others as deemed appropriate.  

a. Examples of organizations to reach out to include: Nevada Chapter of 
American Academy of Pediatrics; Nevada System of Higher Education, 
Washoe County Medical Society, Nevada Nurses Association, Northern 
Nevada Emergency Physicians. 

Meeting minutes, emails Q4 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 11 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

5) Continue to engage with clinicians from Northern Nevada Infection Control 
Workgroup. 

Meeting minutes, emails Q4 

6) Offer IHCC members technical assistance in meeting the CMS Emergency 
Preparedness Rule: Medicare and Medicaid Participating Providers and 
Suppliers.  

Meeting minutes, calendar appointments Q4 

7) Continue to promote health care executives’ engagement in debriefs related to 
exercises, planned events, and real incidents.  

Meeting minutes Q4 

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 1 Activity 4:   
1)  Meeting attendance  

 
  



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 12 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

DOMAIN 2: HPP STRENGTHEN INCIDENT MANAGEMENT   
Planned Activity Type:       Build  Sustain  Scale Back  No Planned Activity 

Domain 2 Activity 1: Coordinate Emergency Operations  
Statewide Objective: Nevada’s four Healthcare Coalitions will strengthen incident management capabilities by integrating HCC preparedness 
plans completed in BP1 into jurisdictional all-hazard response plans by June 30, 2019. 
Objective 1:  By October 2018, IHCC, in collaboration with WCHD, will identify a plan to share EEIs with its members.   
Check ALL Objectives that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply) 
CAPABILTY 1 Foundation for Health Care & Medical Readiness   

  Objective 4:  Train and Prepare the Health Care and Medical Workforce 
CAPABILTY 2 Health Care and Medical Response Coordination 

   Objective 1:  Develop Coordinated Response Plans 
   Objective 3: Coordinate Response Strategy, Resources and Communications 

CAPABILTY 3 Continuity of Health Care Service Delivery 
   Objective 2: Plan for Continuity of Operations 
   Objective 7: Coordinate Health Care System Recovery 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 2 Activity 1 Activity Documentation  Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) IHCC will be prepared to engage, if necessary, when one or more health care 
organizations have lost capacity or ability to provide patient care or when a 
disruption to a health care organization requires evacuation.  

Meeting minutes Q4 

2) Develop a draft plan to share EEIs by the end of BP2. Meeting minutes Q2 
Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 2 Activity 1: 
1)  IHCC Response Plan 
Domain 2 Activity 3: Establish Incident Command Structures for Health Care Organizations & HCC 
Objective 1:  Throughout BP1 Supplement, IHCC will promote NIMS training opportunities and guidance as appropriate.  
Check ALL Objectives that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply) 
CAPABILTY 1: Foundation for Health Care & Medical Readiness   

  Objective 4:  Train and Prepare the Health Care and Medical Workforce 
CAPABILTY 2: Health Care and Medical Response Coordination 

   Objective 1:  Develop Coordinated Response Plans 
   Objective 3: Coordinate Response Strategy, Resources and Communications 

CAPABILTY 3: Continuity of Health Care Service Delivery 
   Objective 2: Plan for Continuity of Operations 
   Objective 7: Coordinate Health Care System Recovery 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 13 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 2 Activity 3 Activity Documentation  Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) Ensure IHCC leadership receives NIMS training based on evaluation of existing 
NIMS education. 

Training information Q4 

2) Continue to promote NIMS training opportunities. Agendas, training information Q4 
3) Assist IHCC members, as requested, with incorporating NIMS components into 

their emergency operations plans. 
Request for assistance Q4 

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 2 Activity 3: 
1)  Identified and promoted trainings  
Domain 2 Activity 4:  Ensure HCC Integration & Collaboration with ESF-8  
Statewide Objective: By June 30, 2019 Nevada’s four Healthcare Coalitions will integrate with their jurisdictional ESF-8 in coordinating all-
hazards response plans. 
Objective 1:  By December 2018, IHCC, in collaboration with WCHD, will approve and adopt a response and continuity of operations plan.  
Check ALL Objectives that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply) 
CAPABILTY 1: Foundation for Health Care & Medical Readiness   

  Objective 4:  Train and Prepare the Health Care and Medical Workforce 
CAPABILTY 2: Health Care and Medical Response Coordination 

   Objective 1:  Develop Coordinated Response Plans 
   Objective 3: Coordinate Response Strategy, Resources and Communications 

CAPABILTY 3: Continuity of Health Care Service Delivery 
   Objective 2: Plan for Continuity of Operations 
   Objective 7: Coordinate Health Care System Recovery 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 2 Activity 4 Activity Documentation  Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) Develop a response plan that includes the following components:  
• Individual IHCC member organization and IHCC contact information, 
• Locations that may be used for multiagency coordination, 
• Process for multiagency coordination if location is virtual, 
• A brief summary of each individual member’s resources and 

responsibilities, 
• Integration with appropriate ESF-8 lead agency, 
• Emergency activation thresholds and processes, 
• Alert and notification procedures, 
• EEIs agreed to be shared, including information format, 

Meeting minutes Q2 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 14 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

• Communication and IT platforms and redundancies for information 
sharing, 

• Support and mutual aid agreements, 
• Evacuation and relocation processes, and 
• Activation and notification processes for initiation and implementing 

medical surge response coordination. 
2) IHCC will participate in local pre-emergency recovery planning activities, as 

requested.  
Meeting minutes Q4 

3) IHCC will develop a draft Continuity of Operations Plan that includes that 
following components: 

a. Activation and response functions, 
b. Multiple points of contact for each HCC member, 
c. Orders of succession and delegations of authority for leadership 

continuity, 
d. Immediate actions and assessments to be performed in case of 

disruptions, 
e. Safety assessment and resource inventory to determine whether or not 

the coalition can continue to operate, 
f. Redundant, replacement, or supplemental resources, including 

communication systems, and  
g. Strategies and priorities for addressing disruptions to mission critical 

systems that include but not limited to electricity, water, and medical 
gases. 

Meeting minutes Q4 

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 2 Activity 4:  
1)  Response plan 
2)  Continuity of Operations draft plan  

 
 

  



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 15 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

 DOMAIN 3: HPP STRENGTHEN INFORMATION MANAGEMENT   
Planned Activity Type:       Build  Sustain  Scale Back  No Planned Activity 

Domain 3 Activity 1:  Share Situational Awareness Across the Health Care & Public Health Systems 
Statewide Objective: By June 30, 2019 Nevada’s four Healthcare Coalitions will have incorporated communication systems with established 
situational awareness protocols into coalition response plans.   
Objective 1:  Throughout BP1 Supplement, IHCC, in collaboration with WCHD, will increase situational awareness through its ability to access and share 
pertinent emergency information.  
Check ALL Objectives that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply) 
CAPABILTY 2: Health Care & Medical Response Coordination   

  Objective 2:  Develop Information sharing processes and platforms 
  Objective 3:  Coordinate Response Strategy, Resources and Communications  

Planned activity(s) for Domain 3 Activity 1 Activity Documentation  Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) IHCC will continue to provide training, as requested, and promote the coalition 
EEI collection form to provide situational awareness during emergencies.  

Meeting minutes Q4 

2) IHCC members will sign the coalition’s MOU, an annual requirement, which 
states they will participate in situational awareness activities.  

Meeting minutes Q3 

3) IHCC will continue to ensure that the coalition is able to access and collect 
timely, relevant, and actionable information about their members during 
emergencies. 

EEI Collection Form Q4 

4) As appropriate, IHCC will continue to share pertinent emergency information 
with IHCC members, the ESF-8 lead agency and other stakeholders.  

Meeting Minutes Q4 

5) Participate in weekly Washoe County Amateur Radio Emergency Services 
Hospital Net. 

Net Control Log Q4 

6) Conduct two redundant communication drills.  Exercise documents Q4 
7) Keep VESTA updated for redundant communications. Calendar appointments Q4 
Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 3 Activity 1: 
1) EEI Collection Form 
2) Exercise Documents 
Domain 3 Activity 2: Share Emergency Information & Warnings Across Disciplines & Jurisdictions & HCCs & their Members  
Objective 1:  Throughout BP1 Supplement, the IHCC and WCHD Medical Unit Leader will have the ability to effectively coordinate information during 
emergencies.    
Check ALL Objectives that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply) 
CAPABILTY 2: Health Care & Medical Response Coordination   

  Objective 2:  Develop Information sharing processes and platforms 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 16 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

  Objective 3:  Coordinate Response Strategy, Resources and Communications 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 3 Activity 2 Activity Documentation  Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) IHCC will continue to assist those members without the capability to alert and 
notify staff, patients and visitors during an emergency, if requested.  

Request for assistance Q4 

2) Ensure multiple IHCC members, as deemed appropriate, understand and have 
access to the coalition’s information sharing systems/platforms. 

User information to platforms Q4 

3) Incorporate IHCC Communication Plan into the Response Plan.  Response Plan  Q4 
Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 3 Activity 2: 
1) Response Plan  
Domain 3 Activity 3: Conduct External Communication with the Public 
Statewide Objective: By June 30, 2019 Nevada’s four Healthcare Coalitions will be incorporated into jurisdictional Joint Information Center (JIC) 
activities.  
Objective 1:  Throughout BP1 Supplement, IHCC will collaborate with the jurisdictional JIC and WCHD to increase the ability to disseminate information to 
the community using one voice.   
Check ALL Objectives that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply) 
CAPABILTY 2: Health Care & Medical Response Coordination   

  Objective 2:  Develop Information sharing processes and platforms 
  Objective 3:  Coordinate Response Strategy, Resources and Communications 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 3 Activity 3 Activity Documentation  Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) Continue to collaborate with JIC, as appropriate, to determine type of 
information that will be disseminated to the public ensure information is 
accurate and consistent.  

Meeting minutes Q4 

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 3 Activity 3: 
1) Updated EEI 

 
  



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 17 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

DOMAIN 4: HPP STRENGTHEN COUNTERMEASURES & MITIGATION   
Planned Activity Type:      Build  Sustain  Scale Back  No Planned Activity 

Domain 4 Activity 1:  Manage Access to and Administration of Pharmaceutical & Non-pharmaceutical Interventions 
Objective 1:  Throughout BP1 Supplement, IHCC, in collaboration with WCHD, will continue the Supply Chain Subcommittee. 
Check ALL Objectives that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply) 
CAPABILTY 1: Foundation for Health Care Readiness & Medical Readiness   

  Objective 2:  Identify Risk and Needs 
CAPABILTY 3: Continuity of Health Care Service Delivery 

   Objective 3: Maintain Access to Non-Personnel Resources during an Event 
   Objective 5: Protect Responders’ Safety and Health 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 4 Activity 1 Activity Documentation  Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) Promote IHCC involvement in PODS (joint activity with PHEP) Meeting minutes Q2 
2) IHCC will continue the Supply Chain Subcommittee.  Meeting minutes Q4 
3) Continue to review strategies for acquisition, storage, rotation with day-to-day 

supplies in regards to purchasing pharmaceuticals and identify strategies for 
other medical material. 

Meeting minutes Q4 

4) IHCC will complete the resource and gap analysis to continue assessing the 
integrity assessment to evaluate equipment and supply needs that will be in 
demand during an emergency. The results from the analysis will be given to the 
Supply Chain Subcommittee to further support efforts.  

Resource and gap analysis Q3 

5) Review and revise if necessary the inventory tracking policy.  Meeting minutes Q4 
6) Review and revise if necessary the policy for activity stockpiles purchased by 

IHCC develop during BP1. 
Meeting minutes Q4 

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 4 Activity 1: 
1)  Resource and gap analysis 
Domain 4 Activity 2: Ensure Safety & Health of Responders 
Objective 1:  By February 28, 2019, IHCC will identify the top three equipment, trainings, and resources necessary to protect responders, employees, and 
their families from hazards during response and recovery operations.  
Check ALL Objectives that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply) 
CAPABILTY 1: Foundation for Health Care Readiness & Medical Readiness   

  Objective 2:  Identify Risk and Needs 
CAPABILTY 3: Continuity of Health Care Service Delivery 

   Objective 3: Maintain Access to Non-Personnel Resources during an Event 
   Objective 5: Protect Responders’ Safety and Health 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 18 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

Planned activity(s) for Domain 4 Activity 2 Activity Documentation  Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) IHCC will review previously identified equipment, trainings and resources 
necessary to protect responders, employees and their families from hazards 
during response and recovery operations.  

Meeting minutes Q3 

2) Through the resource and gap analysis, identify the top three equipment, 
trainings and resources needs for IHCC members. 

Meeting minutes Q3 

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 4 Activity 2: 
1)  List of equipment, training, and resources 

 
  



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 19 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

 
 

DOMAIN 5: HPP STRENGTHEN SURGE MANAGEMENT     
Planned Activity Type:      Build  Sustain  Scale Back  No Planned Activity 

Domain 5 Activity 1:  Address Mass Care Needs 
Objective 1:  Throughout BP1 Supplement, IHCC will be available to assist, as appropriate or requested by WCHD, in addressing health issues by those in 
congregate locations.  
Check ALL Objectives that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply) 
CAPABILTY 3: Continuity of Health Care Service Delivery 

   Objective 6:  Plan for Health Care Evacuation and Relocation  
CAPABILTY 4: Medical Surge 

   Objective 1: Plan for Medical Surge 
   Objective 2: Respond to a Medical Surge  

Planned activity(s) for Domain 5 Activity 1 Activity Documentation  Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) Serve as subject matter experts to PHEP awardees, as requested, on the health 
care needs of those impacted by an incident at a congregate location.  

Meeting minutes Q4 

2) As identified or requested, coordinate with community partner responsible for 
mass care (ESF-6), as identified in BP1, to integrate the inclusion of medical care 
into shelter operations. 

Meeting minutes Q4 

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 5 Activity 1: 
1)  Input for PHEP  
Domain 5 Activity 2: Prevent / Mitigate, Injuries & Fatalities 
Objective 1:  Throughout BP1 Supplement, IHCC will be available to increase coordination with WCHD PHEP partners to ensure the proper tracking, 
transportation, handling, and storage of human remains.  
Objective 2: Throughout BP1 Supplement, IHCC will be available to increase coordination with WCHD PHEP partners to ensure access to mental and 
behavioral health services for responders and families impacted by an incident.  
Check ALL Objectives that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply) 
CAPABILTY 3: Continuity of Health Care Service Delivery 

   Objective 6:  Plan for Health Care Evacuation and Relocation  
CAPABILTY 4: Medical Surge 

   Objective 1: Plan for Medical Surge 
   Objective 2: Respond to a Medical Surge  

Planned activity(s) for Domain 5 Activity 2 Activity Documentation  Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 20 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

1) IHCC will be available as subject matter experts for PHEP partners for planning 
relating to preventing or mitigating injuries and fatalities. 

Meeting minutes Q4 

2) IHCC will be available, as requested, to serve as a planning resource and subject 
matter expert to PHEP awardees and public agencies as they develop mass 
shelters. 

Meeting minutes Q4 

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 5 Activity 2: 
1)  Input for PHEP   
Domain 5 Activity 3: Specialty Surge including: pediatrics, chemical/ radiation, burn/ trauma, behavioral health, & highly infectious diseases 
Objective 1:  Throughout BP1 Supplement, IHCC, in collaboration with WCHD, will continue to incorporate pediatrics, chemical or radiation, burn and 
trauma, behavioral health, and infectious disease into response plans. 
Check ALL Objectives that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply) 
CAPABILTY 3: Continuity of Health Care Service Delivery 

   Objective 6:  Plan for Health Care Evacuation and Relocation  
CAPABILTY 4: Medical Surge 

   Objective 1: Plan for Medical Surge 
   Objective 2: Respond to a Medical Surge  

Planned activity(s) for Domain 5 Activity 3 Activity Documentation  Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) As identified in BP1, IHCC will collaborate to enhance burn response capability 
within the region.  

Meeting minutes Q4 

2) IHCC will include CRC plans in their response plan. Response Plan  Q4 
Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 5 Activity 3: 
1)  Response Plan  
Domain 5 Activity 4: Management of Public Health Surge - Address mass care needs 
Objective 1:  Throughout BP1 IHCC will serve as a planning resource and subject matter expert, to WCHD or community partners, during the revision of mass 
shelter plans and medical care at shelter sites. 
Check ALL Objectives that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply) 
CAPABILTY 3: Continuity of Health Care Service Delivery 

   Objective 6:  Plan for Health Care Evacuation and Relocation  
CAPABILTY 4: Medical Surge 

   Objective 1: Plan for Medical Surge 
   Objective 2: Respond to a Medical Surge  

Planned activity(s) for Domain 5 Activity 4 Activity Documentation  Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 21 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

1) Continue to serve as a planning resource and subject matter expert, as 
appropriate, during the revision of mass shelter plans and medical care at 
shelter sites. 

Meeting minutes Q4 

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 5 Activity 4: 
1)   Input for PHEP   

 
Domain 5 Activity 5: Management of Public Health Surge - Address surge needs 
Objective 1:  Throughout the budget period, IHCC will serve as planning resources and subject matter experts during family reunification to WCHD PHEP 
partners. 
Check ALL Objectives that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply) 
CAPABILTY 3: Continuity of Health Care Service Delivery 

   Objective 6:  Plan for Health Care Evacuation and Relocation  
CAPABILTY 4: Medical Surge 

   Objective 1: Plan for Medical Surge 
   Objective 2: Respond to a Medical Surge  

Planned activity(s) for Domain 5 Activity 5 Activity Documentation  Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) Continue to serve as a subject matter expert, as requested, for family 
reunification planning efforts. 

Meeting minutes Q4 

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 5 Activity 5: 
1)  Preparedness Plan 
Domain 5 Activity 6:  Management of Public Health Surge - Coordinate Volunteers 
Objective 1: Throughout Budget period, IHCC, in collaboration with WCHD, will promote the management of volunteers in the hospitals and other health 
care settings. 
Check ALL Objectives that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply) 
CAPABILTY 3: Continuity of Health Care Service Delivery 

   Objective 6:  Plan for Health Care Evacuation and Relocation  
CAPABILTY 4: Medical Surge 

   Objective 1: Plan for Medical Surge 
   Objective 2: Respond to a Medical Surge  

Planned activity(s) for Domain 5 Activity 6 Activity Documentation  Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) Promote the management of volunteers in the hospitals and other health care 
settings through IHCC meetings.  

Meeting minutes Q4 

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 5 Activity 6: 
1)  Continued promotion of volunteers as documented in IHCC meeting minutes 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 22 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

Domain 5 Activity 7:  Management of Medical Surge - Conduct health care facility evacuation planning & execute evacuations 
Statewide Objective: By June 30, 2019 Nevada’s four healthcare coalitions will complete an annual surge test with each core member of the 
HCC.  
Objective 1:  By June 2018, IHCC will have participated in a medical surge exercise. 
Check ALL Objectives that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply) 
CAPABILTY 3: Continuity of Health Care Service Delivery 

   Objective 6:  Plan for Health Care Evacuation and Relocation  
CAPABILTY 4: Medical Surge 

   Objective 1: Plan for Medical Surge 
   Objective 2: Respond to a Medical Surge  

Planned activity(s) for Domain 5 Activity 7 Activity Documentation  Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) Conduct an exercise using the “Coalition Surge Test”. Exercise Materials Q4 
2) IHCC will participate in the update of the Mutual Aid Evacuation Annex (MAEA). Meeting minutes Q4 
Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 5 Activity 7: 
1) AAR/IP 
2) Updated MAEA 
Domain 5 Activity 8: Management of Medical Surge - Address emergency department & inpatient surge 
Statewide Objective: By June 30, 2019 will complete a Crisis Standards of Care (CSC) workshop in coordination with each Healthcare Coalition.  
Objective 1:  By March 31, 2018, IHCC will have participated in a medical surge exercise. 
Check ALL Objectives that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply) 
CAPABILTY 3: Continuity of Health Care Service Delivery 

   Objective 6:  Plan for Health Care Evacuation and Relocation  
CAPABILTY 4: Medical Surge 

   Objective 1: Plan for Medical Surge 
   Objective 2: Respond to a Medical Surge  

Planned activity(s) for Domain 5 Activity 8 Activity Documentation  Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) Plan and respond together to address emergency department and inpatient 
surge (MCIP). 

a. Example: exercise the Alpha Plan or TEEX Pediatrics tabletop 

Exercise documents  Q3 

2) IHCC will participate in the State PHP sponsored, and facilitated, Crisis 
Standards of Care (CSC) exercise. 

Exercise documents Q4 

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 5 Activity 8: 
1)  AAR/IP 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 23 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

Domain 5 Activity 9: Management of Medical Surge - Develop Alternate Care Systems 
Statewide Objective: By June 30, 2019 Nevada’s four Healthcare Coalitions will coordinate with their local public health jurisdiction to 
incorporate support of alternate care sites into HCC response plans.  
Objective 1:  Throughout the budget period, IHCC will participate in the planning for alternate care systems.  
Check ALL Objectives that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply) 
CAPABILTY 3: Continuity of Health Care Service Delivery 

   Objective 6:  Plan for Health Care Evacuation and Relocation  
CAPABILTY 4: Medical Surge 

   Objective 1: Plan for Medical Surge 
   Objective 2: Respond to a Medical Surge  

Planned activity(s) for Domain 5 Activity 9 Activity Documentation  Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) Based on the information identified in BP1, IHCC will identify a means to 
support alternate care sites within the region. 

a. Items to be considered when developing a means to provide support 
include: 

i. Establishment of telemedicine or virtual medicine capabilities 
ii. Establishments of assessment and screening for early 

treatment 
iii. Provision of medical care at shelters 
iv. Assisting with the selection and operation of alternate care 

sites 
v. Key considerations from the 2017-2022 Health Care 

Preparedness and Response Capabilities (pg. 50) 

Response Plan Q4 

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 5 Activity 9: 
1)  Response Plan 
Domain 5 Activity 10:  Management of Medical Surge - Address specialty surge 
Statewide Objectives: By June 30, 2019 Nevada’s four Healthcare Coalitions will incorporate planning for trauma and large burn injuries and 
incidents into their HCC Response Plans.  
Objective 1:  By June 2019, IHCC member hospitals will have participated in a medical surge exercise.  
Check ALL Objectives that are used to guide your Planned Activities. (Select all that apply) 
CAPABILTY 3: Continuity of Health Care Service Delivery 

   Objective 6:  Plan for Health Care Evacuation and Relocation  
CAPABILTY 4: Medical Surge 

   Objective 1: Plan for Medical Surge 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 24 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

   Objective 2: Respond to a Medical Surge  

Planned activity(s) for Domain 5 Activity 10 Activity Documentation  Completion Quarter 
(Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4) 

1) Evaluate if IHCC member hospitals are able to receive, stabilize, and manage 
pediatric patients.    

a. Example: TEEX pediatrics tabletop exercise 

Exercise documents Q4 

2) As identified in BP1 as a need within the region’s MCI Plan, expand the burn 
response.  

Response Plan Q4 

3) Based on the identified items to be revised in BP1, expand on the Ebola 
concepts off operations plan (CONOPs) to enhance preparedness and response 
for all infectious disease emergencies that stress the health care delivery 
system. 

Revised Ebola CONOPs Q4 

4) Continue to include HAI coordinators and quality improvement professionals at 
the health care facility and jurisdictional levels in coalition activities. 

Meeting minutes Q4 

5) Develop visitor policies for infectious disease emergencies  Visitor policies Q4 
6) As requested, IHCC will participate in the revision, if any, of the Regional 

Disaster Behavioral Health Annex.    
Meeting minutes Q4 

Output(s) for planned activities in Domain 5 Activity 10: 
1) AAR/IP 
2) Response Plan 
3) Revised Ebola CONOPs   
4) Visitor Policies  

 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 25 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

 
SECTION C 

 
Budget and Financial Reporting Requirements 

 
Identify the source of funding on all printed documents purchased or produced within the scope of this subaward, 
using a statement similar to: “This publication (journal, article, etc.) was supported by the Nevada State Division of 
Public and Behavioral Health through Grant Number 6 NU90TP921907-01-04 from the Assistant Secretary for 
Preparedness and Response (ASPR).  Its contents are solely the responsibility of the authors and do not 
necessarily represent the official views of the Division nor the Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and 
Response (ASPR).” 

 
Any activities performed under this subaward shall acknowledge the funding was provided through the Division by 
Grant Number 6 NU90TP921907-01-04 from the Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and Response (ASPR).  

 
Subrecipient agrees to adhere to the following budget: 
 

Category  Total cost Detailed cost Details of expected expenses 

1.  Personnel $ 222,972  
      Annual Salary % of 

Time 
   $ $26,003  Randall Todd, Epi Center Director 

$173,351 x 15% = $26,003 $ 173,351.57 15% 

   $ $16,148.16  Christina Conti, Preparedness and 
EMS Program Manager 
$100,926 x 16% = $16,148 

$ 100,926.00 
16% 

   $ $83,715  Andrea Esp, Public Health 
Emergency Response Coordinator 
$88,121 x 95% = $83,715 

$ 88,121.43 
95% 

   $ $29,721.00  Jackie Lawson, Office Support 
Specialist 
$59,442 x 50% = $29,721.00 

$ 59,442.00 
50% 

   $ 67,385 Fringe @ 43.31% 
$155,587 x 43.31% = $67,385 

2.  Travel $ 13,859   
   $ 500 

 
Regional travel for meetings. Public Health Emergency Response 
Coordinator and/or Office Support Specialist 
2 staff 
Not to exceed $500 

   $ 2,195 Information Exchange at UMC on management of burn patients and 
pediatric trauma, Las Vegas, NV 
1 day, 5 staff, 1 trip 

To include Airfare, Per Diem, Transportation 
Not to exceed $2,195 

   $ 469 Coalition Partners Meeting (1 in Las Vegas, NV, 3 in Northern NV) 
1 day, 1 staff, 1 trip 

To include Airfare, Per Diem, Transportation 
No to exceed $469 

   $ 3,414 Coalition Summit Conference, New Orleans, LA 
3 days, 3 staff, 1 trip 

To include Airfare, Hotel, Per Diem, Transportation 
Not to exceed $3,414 

 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 26 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

   $ 3,876 NAACHO Preparedness Summit Conference, Atlanta, GA 
3 days, 3 staff, 1 trip 

To include Airfare, Hotel, Per Diem, Transportation 
Not to exceed $3,876 

   $ 3,405 Joint Commission Emergency Preparedness Conference, Lake 
Bueno Vista, FL 
3 days, 3 staff, 1 trip 

To include Airfare, Hotel, Per Diem, Transportation 
Not to exceed $3,405 

3.  Supplies $ 9,078   
   $ 400 General office supplies for staff 

$33.33/month x 12 months = $400 
   $ 200 General operating supplies for staff 

$16.65/month x 12 months = $200 
   $ 8,478 Supplies for Coalition Members such as bleed control kits, flash 

drives, MCI or MAEA tags, MCI or MAEA supplies, or MCI alpha 
plan supplies  
$706.50/month x 12 months = $8,478   

4.  Equipment $ 0   
5. Contractual 
    Consultant 

$ 79,277   

   $ 68,400 Contractual support to provide training for healthcare coalition 
members 
$34,200 x 2 = $68,400 

   $ 5,000 Contractual support for exercise development 
   $ 350 Webinar support for coalition trainings, meetings and/or 

emergency response plan initiatives 
   $ 5,527 Contractual support for emergency plan development 
6.  Other $ 7,257   
   $ 1,815 Preparedness Conference registrations 

3 staff x $605 = $1,815 
   $ 1,785 National Healthcare Coalition conference registration 

3 staff x $595 = $1,785 
   $ 2,217 Joint Commission Emergency Preparedness conference 

registration  
3 staff x $739 = $2,217 

   $ 900 Copy Machines: copies and lease allocation based on usage 
$75/month x 12 months = $900 

   $ 150 Minor Furniture and Equipment - As needed to replace printer, 
fax, office chair, etc. 
$12.50/month x 12 months = $150 

   $ 360 Phone for staff (2 land line plus long distance) 
$30/month x 12 months = $360 

   $ 30 Postage for coalition business 
$2.50/month x 12 months = $30 

7.  Indirect $ 33,244   
   $ 33,244 Indirect @ 10% 

$332,443.10 x 10% = $33,244.31 

Total Federal 
Funds 

$ 365,687  

8. Match $ 36,568.70  
 $     36,568.70 A non-federal contribution in the amount of 10% of award  

$365,687 x 10% = $36,568.70 

Total Federal & 
Non-Federal 
Contribution 

$ 402,255.70  



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 27 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

 
 

• Division of Public and Behavioral Health policy allows no more than 10% flexibility of the total not to exceed 
amount of the subaward, within the approved Scope of Work/Budget. Subrecipient will obtain written permission 
to redistribute funds within categories. Funds may only be redistributed budget categories in the original award.  
Note: the redistribution cannot alter the total not to exceed amount of the subaward. Modifications in 
excess of 10% ($36,568.70) require a formal amendment.  All redistribution of funds must be submitted for 
written approval no later than May 1, 2019 at 5:00 PM PST.  

 
• Equipment purchased with these funds belongs to the federal program from which this funding was appropriated 

and shall be returned to the program upon termination of this agreement. 
 

• Travel expenses, per diem, and other related expenses must conform to the procedures and rates allowed for 
State officers and employees.  It is the Policy of the Board of Examiners to restrict Contractors/Subrecipients to 
the same rates and procedures allowed State Employees. The State of Nevada reimburses at rates comparable 
to the rates established by the US General Services Administration, with some exceptions (State Administrative 
Manual 0200.0 and 0320.0). 

 
• Subgrantee agrees to Match a nonfederal contribution in the amount of 10% ($1 for each $10 of federal funds 

provided in this subgrant). The Match for the budget period will be $36,568.70. This Match may be provided 
directly or through donations from public or private entities and may be in case or in kind, fairly evaluated, 
including location, equipment or services. Amounts provided by the federal government or services assisted or 
subsidized to any significant extend by the federal government may not be included in determining the amount of 
such nonfederal contributions. Documentation of match, including methods and sources must be available upon 
request of the Division. Subgrantee will sign attached Match Certification (Section H).  

 
 
The Subrecipient agrees: 

 
To request reimbursement according to the schedule specified below for the actual expenses incurred related to the 
Scope of Work during the performance period. 

 
• Total reimbursement through this subaward will not exceed $365,687.00; 

 
• Requests for Reimbursement will be accompanied by supporting documentation, including a line item description 

of expenses incurred (Exhibit 2); 
 

• Provide complete travel detail including purpose of travel and attach copies of a travel claim summary (if 
available).  

 
• Costs associated with food or meals are NOT permitted unless included with per diem as a part of official travel. 

Meals cannot be claimed within 50 miles of the official workstation.  
 

• Attach invoice copies for all items listed in Contract/Consultant and Equipment. Also attach invoices for all 
Supplies and Other purchases that are over $500 per item. NOTE: Supplies are items that have a consumable life 
of less than 1 year and Equipment are items over $5,000 per item OR have a consumable life of over 1 year (i.e., 
laptops, iPads, printers, etc.).  

 
• Provide a copy of all plans developed and all After Action Reports (AAR) for exercises within 45 days of exercise 

completion.  
 
• Additional expenditure detail will be provided upon request from the Division. 

 
Additionally, the Subrecipient agrees to provide: 
 

• A complete financial reconciliation of all expenditures is required to be submitted to the Division within 45 days of 
the CLOSE OF THE BUDGET PERIOD. Any un-obligated funds remaining after the 45-day closing period must 
be returned to the Division at that time, or if not already requested, will be deducted from the final award. 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 28 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

• Any work performed after the BUDGET PERIOD will not be reimbursed.  
• If a Request for Reimbursement (RFR) is received after the 45-day closing period, the Division may not 

be able to provide reimbursement. 
• If a credit is owed to the Division after the 45-day closing period, the funds must be returned to the 

Division within 30 days of identification. 
 
The Division agrees: 
 

• To provide technical assistance, upon request from the Subrecipient; 
• To provide prior approval of reports or documents to be developed; 
• To hold reimbursement under this subgrant until any delinquent forms, reports, and expenditure documentation 

are submitted to and accepted by the Division 
 
 
Both parties agree: 
 

• Based on the bi-annual narrative progress and financial reporting forms, as well as site visit findings, if it appears 
to the Nevada State Division of Public and Behavioral Health that activities will not be completed in time 
specifically designated in the Scope of Work, or project objectives have been met at a lesser cost than originally 
budgeted, the funding may be reallocated other preparedness priorities within the state. This includes but is not 
limited to:  

o Reallocating funds between the subgrantee’s categories, and 
o Reallocating funds to another subgrantee or funding recipient to address other identified PHP priorities, 

by removing it from this agreement through a subgrant amendment. 
 

• The Subrecipient will, in the performance of the Scope of Work specified in this subgrant, perform functions 
and/or activities that could involve confidential information; therefore, the Subrecipient is requested to fill out and 
sign Section F, which is specific to this subaward, and will be in effect for the term of this subaward. 

 
• All reports of expenditures and requests for reimbursement processed by the Division are SUBJECT TO AUDIT. 

 
• The Division reserves the right to hold reimbursement under this subaward until any delinquent forms, reports, 

and accurate expenditure documentation are submitted to and accepted by the Division. 
 

• This subaward agreement may be TERMINATED by either party prior to the date set forth on the Notice of Subaward, 
provided the termination shall not be effective until 30 days after a party has served written notice upon the other 
party.  This agreement may be terminated by mutual consent of both parties or unilaterally by either party without 
cause.  The parties expressly agree that this Agreement shall be terminated immediately if for any reason the 
Division, state, and/or federal funding ability to satisfy this Agreement is withdrawn, limited, or impaired. 

 
 
Financial Reporting Requirements 
 

• A Request for Reimbursement is due on a monthly basis, based on the terms of the subaward 
agreement, no later than the 15th of the month, following the reporting period. 

• Reimbursement is based on actual and paid expenditures incurred during the period being reported. 
• Payment will not be processed without all reporting being current and accurate. 
• Reimbursement may only be claimed for expenditures approved within the Notice of Subaward. 
 

Compliance with this section is acknowledged by signing the subaward cover page of this packet. 

 

 

 

 



Personnel Title Amount

Travel 
(Name of Traveler) Travel Dates To

Mileage @
$0.545/mi

Lodging &
Per Diem

Airfare 
& Misc. Purpose/ Description Amount

TOTAL

Amount

Amount

Amount

Amount

Amount

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
TOTAL

TOTAL
Indirect Description

Other Description
TOTAL

TOTAL
Equipment

(Items over $5,000 or not consumed within 1 yr.) Description (attach invoice copies for all items)

Washoe County Health District
Reimbursement Worksheet

July 2019

Description
HD#16577

TOTAL

Contract / Consultant Description

Supplies 
(Items under $5,000 & consumed within 1 yr.) Description

TOTAL

Exhibit 2 to Section C

Page 29 of 39



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 30 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

                                                            

                                                       SECTION D 

                                          Request for Reimbursement 

Approved Budget 
Category

A         
Approved 

Budget

B                   
Total Prior 
Requests

C              
Current 
Request

D                    
Year to Date 

Total

E               
Budget   

Balance

F              
Percent 

Expended

1. Personnel $222,972.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $222,972.00 0.0%

2. Travel $13,859.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,859.00 0.0%

3. Supplies $9,078.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,078.00 0.0%

4. Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -

5. Contractual/Consultant $79,277.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $79,277.00 0.0%

6. Other $7,257.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,257.00 0.0%

7. Indirect $33,244.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $33,244.00 0.0%

Total Federal Funds $365,687.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $365,687.00 0.0%
8. Match $36,568.70 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $36,568.70 0.0%
Total Federal & Non-
Federal Contribution $402,255.70 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $402,255.70 0.0%  
I, a duty authorized signatory for the applicant, certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that this report is true, complete and accurate; that the expenditures, 
disbursements and cash receipts are for the purposes and objectives set forth in the terms and conditions of the grant award; and that the amount of this request 
is not in excess of current needs or, cumulatively for the grant term, in excess of the total approved grant award.  I am aware that any false, fictitious or fraudulent 
information, or the omission of any material fact, may subject me to criminal, civil or administrative penalties for fraud, false statements, false claims, or otherwise.  
I verify that the cost allocation and backup documentation attached is correct. 
 
 
Authorized Signature (blue ink)                                                                         Title                                                                                                     Date    

FOR DIVISION USE ONLY  
 
Is program contact required?  ____ Yes   _____ No             Contact Person: _____________________________________ 
 
Reason for contact:                  _____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Fiscal review/approval date:    _____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Scope of Work review/approval date:  _______________________________________________________________________ 
 
ASO or Bureau Chief (as required):  ___________________________________________________             _______________ 

                                                                                                                                                                            Date 
 

HD #: 16577 
Budget Account: 3218 

GL: 8516 
Job Number 9388918S 

Category 23 
Draw #:  

Program Name: 
Public Health Preparedness Program (PHP) 
Bureau of Health Protection and Preparedness (BHPP) 

Subgrantee Name: 
Washoe County Health District (WCHD) 

Address: 
4150 Technology Way, Suite # 200 
Carson City, NV 89706-2009 

Address: 
1001 East Ninth Street / PO Box 11130 
Reno, Nevada 89520 

Subgrant Period: 
July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 

Subgrantee’s: 
                     EIN: 88-6000138 
            Vendor #:  T40283400 

FINANCIAL REPORT AND REQUEST FOR FUNDS 
(must be accompanied by expenditure report/back-up)           

   Month(s)                                                                                   Calendar year 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 31 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

 
 

SECTION E 
 

Audit Information Request 
 

1. Non-Federal entities that expend $750,000.00 or more in total federal awards are required to have a single or 
program-specific audit conducted for that year, in accordance with 2 CFR § 200.501(a). Within nine (9) months of 
the close of your organization’s fiscal year, you must submit a copy of the final audit report to division. Electronic 
copies are preferred and can be sent to contractunit@health.nv.gov. Mail hard copies to the following address:  
 

Nevada State Division of Public and Behavioral Health 
Attn: Contract Unit 
4150 Technology Way, Suite 300 
Carson City, NV  89706-2009 

 
2. Did your organization expend $750,000 or more in all federal awards during your  

organization’s most recent fiscal year?          YES   NO 
 

3. When does your organization’s fiscal year end?          
 

4. What is the official name of your organization?          
 

5. How often is your organization audited?           
 

6. When was your last audit performed?           
 

7. What time-period did your last audit cover?          
 

8. Which accounting firm conducted your last audit?         
 

 
 
Compliance with this section is acknowledged by signing the subaward cover page of this packet. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:contractunit@health.nv.gov


STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 32 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

 
 

SECTION F 
 

Notification of Utilization of Current or Former State Employee 
 
 

For the purpose of State compliance with NRS 333.705, subrecipient represents and warrants that if subrecipient, or any 
employee of subrecipient who will be performing services under this subaward, is a current employee of the State or was 
employed by the State within the preceding 24 months, subrecipient has disclosed the identity of such persons, and the 
services that each such person will perform, to the issuing Agency. Subrecipient agrees they will not utilize any of its 
employees who are Current State Employees or Former State Employees to perform services under this subaward 
without first notifying the Agency and receiving from the Agency approval for the use of such persons. This prohibition 
applies equally to any subcontractors that may be used to perform the requirements of the subaward. The provisions of 
this section do not apply to the employment of a former employee of an agency of this State who is not receiving 
retirement benefits under the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) during the duration of the subaward. 
 
Are any current or former employees of the State of Nevada assigned to perform work on this subaward? 
 

YES  If “YES”, list the names of any current or former employees of the State and the services that each person will perform.  
 

NO Subrecipient agrees that if a current or former state employee is assigned to perform work on this subaward at any point after 
execution of this agreement, they must receive prior approval from the Division. 

  
 
Name                                                                                     Services 

 
   

   

   

   

   

 
Subrecipient agrees that any employees listed cannot perform work until approval has been given from the 
Division. 
 
Compliance with this section is acknowledged by signing the subaward cover page of this packet. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 33 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

 
SECTION G 

 
Business Associate Addendum 

 
BETWEEN 

 
Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral Health 

______________________________________________ 
Hereinafter referred to as the “Covered Entity” 

 
and 

 
Washoe County Health District  

______________________________________________ 
Hereinafter referred to as the “Business Associate” 

 
 
 PURPOSE. In order to comply with the requirements of HIPAA and the HITECH Act, this Addendum is hereby 
added and made part of the agreement between the Covered Entity and the Business Associate.  This Addendum 
establishes the obligations of the Business Associate and the Covered Entity as well as the permitted uses and disclosures 
by the Business Associate of protected health information it may possess by reason of the agreement. The Covered Entity 
and the Business Associate shall protect the privacy and provide for the security of protected health information disclosed 
to the Business Associate pursuant to the agreement and in compliance with the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191 (“HIPAA”), the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical 
Health Act, Public Law 111-5 (“the HITECH Act”), and regulation promulgated there under by the U.S. Department of Health 
and Human Services (the “HIPAA Regulations”) and other applicable laws.  
 
 WHEREAS, the Business Associate will provide certain services to the Covered Entity, and, pursuant to such 
arrangement, the Business Associate is considered a business associate of the Covered Entity as defined in HIPAA, the 
HITECH Act, the Privacy Rule and Security Rule; and 
 
    WHEREAS, Business Associate may have access to and/or receive from the Covered Entity certain protected 
health information, in fulfilling its responsibilities under such arrangement; and 
   
 WHEREAS, the HIPAA Regulations, the HITECH Act, the Privacy Rule and the Security Rule require the Covered 
Entity to enter into an agreement containing specific requirements of the Business Associate prior to the disclosure of 
protected health information, as set forth in, but not limited to, 45 CFR Parts 160 & 164 and Public Law 111-5. 
 
 THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual obligations below and the exchange of information pursuant to this 
Addendum, and to protect the interests of both Parties, the Parties agree to all provisions of this Addendum. 
  
I. DEFINITIONS.  The following terms shall have the meaning ascribed to them in this Section.  Other capitalized 

terms shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the context in which they first appear. 
 

1. Breach means the unauthorized acquisition, access, use, or disclosure of protected health information which 
compromises the security or privacy of the protected health information.  The full definition of breach can be 
found in 42 USC 17921 and 45 CFR 164.402.  

2. Business Associate shall mean the name of the organization or entity listed above and shall have the meaning 
given to the term under the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.  For full definition refer to 45 CFR 
160.103. 

3. CFR stands for the Code of Federal Regulations. 
4. Agreement shall refer to this Addendum and that particular agreement to which this Addendum is made a part. 
5. Covered Entity shall mean the name of the Division listed above and shall have the meaning given to such 

term under the Privacy Rule and the Security Rule, including, but not limited to 45 CFR 160.103.  
6. Designated Record Set means a group of records that includes protected health information and is maintained 

by or for a covered entity or the Business Associate that includes, but is not limited to, medical, billing, 
enrollment, payment, claims adjudication, and case or medical management records.  Refer to 45 CFR 164.501 
for the complete definition. 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 34 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

7. Disclosure means the release, transfer, provision of, access to, or divulging in any other manner of information 
outside the entity holding the information as defined in 45 CFR 160.103. 

8. Electronic Protected Health Information means individually identifiable health information transmitted by 
electronic media or maintained in electronic media as set forth under 45 CFR 160.103. 

9. Electronic Health Record means an electronic record of health-related information on an individual that is 
created, gathered, managed, and consulted by authorized health care clinicians and staff.  Refer to 42 USC 
17921. 

10. Health Care Operations shall have the meaning given to the term under the Privacy Rule at 45 CFR 164.501. 
11. Individual means the person who is the subject of protected health information and is defined in 45 CFR 

160.103. 
12. Individually Identifiable Health Information means health information, in any form or medium, including 

demographic information collected from an individual, that is created or received by a covered entity or a 
business associate of the covered entity and relates to the past, present, or future care of the individual.  
Individually identifiable health information is information that identifies the individual directly or there is a 
reasonable basis to believe the information can be used to identify the individual. Refer to 45 CFR 160.103.  

13. Parties shall mean the Business Associate and the Covered Entity. 
14. Privacy Rule shall mean the HIPAA Regulation that is codified at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, Subparts A, D 

and E. 
15. Protected Health Information means individually identifiable health information transmitted by electronic 

media, maintained in electronic media, or transmitted or maintained in any other form or medium.  Refer to 45 
CFR 160.103 for the complete definition. 

16. Required by Law means a mandate contained in law that compels an entity to make a use or disclosure of 
protected health information and that is enforceable in a court of law.  This includes but is not limited to: court 
orders and court-ordered warrants; subpoenas, or summons issued by a court; and statues or regulations that 
require the provision of information if payment is sought under a government program providing public benefits.  
For the complete definition refer to 45 CFR 164.103. 

17. Secretary shall mean the Secretary of the federal Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) or the 
Secretary’s designee.  

18. Security Rule shall mean the HIPAA regulation that is codified at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 Subparts A and 
C. 

19. Unsecured Protected Health Information means protected health information that is not rendered unusable, 
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals through the use of a technology or methodology 
specified by the Secretary in the guidance issued in Public Law 111-5.  Refer to 42 USC 17932 and 45 CFR 
164.402. 

20. USC stands for the United States Code. 
 
II. OBLIGATIONS OF THE BUSINESS ASSOCIATE.  
 

1. Access to Protected Health Information.  The Business Associate will provide, as directed by the Covered 
Entity, an individual or the Covered Entity access to inspect or obtain a copy of protected health information 
about the Individual that is maintained in a designated record set by the Business Associate or, its agents or 
subcontractors, in order to meet the requirements of the Privacy Rule, including, but not limited to 45 CFR 
164.524 and 164.504(e) (2) (ii) (E).  If the Business Associate maintains an electronic health record, the 
Business Associate or, its agents or subcontractors shall provide such information in electronic format to enable 
the Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under the HITECH Act, including, but not limited to 42 USC 17935.  

2. Access to Records.  The Business Associate shall make its internal practices, books and records relating to 
the use and disclosure of protected health information available to the Covered Entity and to the Secretary for 
purposes of determining Business Associate’s compliance with the Privacy and Security Rule in accordance 
with 45 CFR 164.504(e)(2)(ii)(H).   

3. Accounting of Disclosures. Promptly, upon request by the Covered Entity or individual for an accounting of 
disclosures, the Business Associate and its agents or subcontractors shall make available to the Covered Entity 
or the individual information required to provide an accounting of disclosures in accordance with 45 CFR 
164.528, and the HITECH Act, including, but not limited to 42 USC 17935. The accounting of disclosures, 
whether electronic or other media, must include the requirements as outlined under 45 CFR 164.528(b).  

4. Agents and Subcontractors. The Business Associate must ensure all agents and subcontractors to whom it 
provides protected health information agree in writing to the same restrictions and conditions that apply to the 
Business Associate with respect to all protected health information accessed, maintained, created, retained, 
modified, recorded, stored, destroyed, or otherwise held, transmitted, used or disclosed by the agent or 
subcontractor. The Business Associate must implement and maintain sanctions against agents and 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 35 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

subcontractors that violate such restrictions and conditions and shall mitigate the effects of any such violation 
as outlined under 45 CFR 164.530(f) and 164.530(e)(1).  

5. Amendment of Protected Health Information.  The Business Associate will make available protected health 
information for amendment and incorporate any amendments in the designated record set maintained by the 
Business Associate or, its agents or subcontractors, as directed by the Covered Entity or an individual, in order 
to meet the requirements of the Privacy Rule, including, but not limited to, 45 CFR 164.526.   

6. Audits, Investigations, and Enforcement.  The Business Associate must notify the Covered Entity 
immediately upon learning the Business Associate has become the subject of an audit, compliance review, or 
complaint investigation by the Office of Civil Rights or any other federal or state oversight agency.  The Business 
Associate shall provide the Covered Entity with a copy of any protected health information that the Business 
Associate provides to the Secretary or other federal or state oversight agency concurrently with providing such 
information to the Secretary or other federal or state oversight agency.  The Business Associate and individuals 
associated with the Business Associate are solely responsible for all civil and criminal penalties assessed as a 
result of an audit, breach, or violation of HIPAA or HITECH laws or regulations. Reference 42 USC 17937.  

7. Breach or Other Improper Access, Use or Disclosure Reporting.  The Business Associate must report to 
the Covered Entity, in writing, any access, use or disclosure of protected health information not permitted by 
the agreement, Addendum or the Privacy and Security Rules.  The Covered Entity must be notified immediately 
upon discovery or the first day such breach or suspected breach is known to the Business Associate or by 
exercising reasonable diligence would have been known by the Business Associate in accordance with 45 CFR 
164.410, 164.504(e)(2)(ii)(C) and 164.308(b) and 42 USC 17921.  The Business Associate must report any 
improper access, use or disclosure of protected health information by: The Business Associate or its agents or 
subcontractors.  In the event of a breach or suspected breach of protected health information, the report to the 
Covered Entity must be in writing and include the following: a brief description of the incident; the date of the 
incident; the date the incident was discovered by the Business Associate; a thorough description of the 
unsecured protected health information that was involved in the incident; the number of individuals whose 
protected health information was involved in the incident; and the steps the Business Associate is taking to 
investigate the incident and to protect against further incidents.  The Covered Entity will determine if a breach 
of unsecured protected health information has occurred and will notify the Business Associate of the 
determination. If a breach of unsecured protected health information is determined, the Business Associate 
must take prompt corrective action to cure any such deficiencies and mitigate any significant harm that may 
have occurred to individual(s) whose information was disclosed inappropriately. 

8. Breach Notification Requirements.  If the Covered Entity determines a breach of unsecured protected health 
information by the Business Associate has occurred, the Business Associate will be responsible for notifying 
the individuals whose unsecured protected health information was breached in accordance with 42 USC 17932 
and 45 CFR 164.404 through 164.406.  The Business Associate must provide evidence to the Covered Entity 
that appropriate notifications to individuals and/or media, when necessary, as specified in 45 CFR 164.404 and 
45 CFR 164.406 has occurred.  The Business Associate is responsible for all costs associated with notification 
to individuals, the media or others as well as costs associated with mitigating future breaches.  The Business 
Associate must notify the Secretary of all breaches in accordance with 45 CFR 164.408 and must provide the 
Covered Entity with a copy of all notifications made to the Secretary. 

9. Breach Pattern or Practice by Covered Entity.  Pursuant to 42 USC 17934, if the Business Associate knows 
of a pattern of activity or practice of the Covered Entity that constitutes a material breach or violation of the 
Covered Entity’s obligations under the Contract or Addendum, the Business Associate must immediately report 
the problem to the Secretary.   

10. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that the Business Associate or its agents or 
subcontractors have no ownership rights with respect to the protected health information it accesses, maintains, 
creates, retains, modifies, records, stores, destroys, or otherwise holds, transmits, uses or discloses. 

11. Litigation or Administrative Proceedings.  The Business Associate shall make itself, any subcontractors, 
employees, or agents assisting the Business Associate in the performance of its obligations under the 
agreement or Addendum, available to the Covered Entity, at no cost to the Covered Entity, to testify as 
witnesses, or otherwise, in the event litigation or administrative proceedings are commenced against the 
Covered Entity, its administrators or workforce members upon a claimed violation of HIPAA, the Privacy and 
Security Rule, the HITECH Act, or other laws relating to security and privacy. 

12. Minimum Necessary.  The Business Associate and its agents and subcontractors shall request, use and 
disclose only the minimum amount of protected health information necessary to accomplish the purpose of the 
request, use or disclosure in accordance with 42 USC 17935 and 45 CFR 164.514(d)(3).   

13. Policies and Procedures.  The Business Associate must adopt written privacy and security policies and 
procedures and documentation standards to meet the requirements of HIPAA and the HITECH Act as described 
in 45 CFR 164.316 and 42 USC 17931. 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 36 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

14. Privacy and Security Officer(s).  The Business Associate must appoint Privacy and Security Officer(s) whose 
responsibilities shall include: monitoring the Privacy and Security compliance of the Business Associate; 
development and implementation of the Business Associate’s HIPAA Privacy and Security policies and 
procedures; establishment of Privacy and Security training programs; and development and implementation of 
an incident risk assessment and response plan in the event the Business Associate sustains a  breach or 
suspected breach of protected health information.   

15. Safeguards.  The Business Associate must implement safeguards as necessary to protect the confidentiality, 
integrity, and availability of the protected health information the Business Associate accesses, maintains, 
creates, retains, modifies, records, stores, destroys, or otherwise holds, transmits, uses or discloses on behalf 
of the Covered Entity.  Safeguards must include administrative safeguards (e.g., risk analysis and designation 
of security official), physical safeguards (e.g., facility access controls and workstation security), and technical 
safeguards (e.g., access controls and audit controls) to the confidentiality, integrity and availability of the 
protected health information, in accordance with 45 CFR 164.308, 164.310, 164.312, 164.316 and 
164.504(e)(2)(ii)(B).  Sections 164.308, 164.310 and 164.312 of the CFR apply to the Business Associate of 
the Covered Entity in the same manner that such sections apply to the Covered Entity.  Technical safeguards 
must meet the standards set forth by the guidelines of the National Institute of Standards and Technology 
(NIST).  The Business Associate agrees to only use or disclose protected health information as provided for by 
the agreement and Addendum and to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is known to the 
Business Associate, of a use or disclosure, in violation of the requirements of this Addendum as outlined under 
45 CFR 164.530(e)(2)(f). 

16. Training.  The Business Associate must train all members of its workforce on the policies and procedures 
associated with safeguarding protected health information.  This includes, at a minimum, training that covers 
the technical, physical and administrative safeguards needed to prevent inappropriate uses or disclosures of 
protected health information; training to prevent any intentional or unintentional use or disclosure that is a 
violation of HIPAA regulations at 45 CFR 160 and 164 and Public Law 111-5; and training that emphasizes the 
criminal and civil penalties related to HIPAA breaches or inappropriate uses or disclosures of protected health 
information.  Workforce training of new employees must be completed within 30 days of the date of hire and all 
employees must be trained at least annually.  The Business Associate must maintain written records for a 
period of six years.  These records must document each employee that received training and the date the 
training was provided or received. 

17. Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.  The Business Associate must not use or further 
disclose protected health information other than as permitted or required by the agreement or as required by 
law.  The Business Associate must not use or further disclose protected health information in a manner that 
would violate the requirements of the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act. 
 

III. PERMITTED AND PROHIBITED USES AND DISCLOSURES BY THE BUSINESS ASSOCIATE.  The Business 
Associate agrees to these general use and disclosure provisions: 
 
1. Permitted Uses and Disclosures: 

a. Except as otherwise limited in this Addendum, the Business Associate may use or disclose protected health 
information to perform functions, activities, or services for, or on behalf of, the Covered Entity as specified 
in the agreement, provided that such use or disclosure would not violate the HIPAA Privacy and Security 
Rule or the HITECH Act, if done by the Covered Entity in accordance with 45 CFR 164.504(e) (2) (i) and 
42 USC 17935 and 17936. 

b. Except as otherwise limited by this Addendum, the Business Associate may use or disclose protected 
health information received by the Business Associate in its capacity as a Business Associate of the 
Covered Entity, as necessary, for the proper management and administration of the Business Associate, 
to carry out the legal responsibilities of the Business Associate, as required by law or for data aggregation 
purposes  in accordance with 45 CFR 164.504(e)(2)(A), 164.504(e)(4)(i)(A), and 164.504(e)(2)(i)(B). 

c. Except as otherwise limited in this Addendum, if the Business Associate discloses protected health 
information to a third party, the Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, 
reasonable written assurances from the third party that such protected health information will be held 
confidential pursuant to this Addendum and only disclosed as required by law or for the purposes for which 
it was disclosed to the third party.  The written agreement from the third party must include requirements to 
immediately notify the Business Associate of any breaches of confidentiality of protected health information 
to the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach.  Refer to 45 CFR 164.502 and 164.504 and 42 
USC 17934. 

d. The Business Associate may use or disclose protected health information to report violations of law to 
appropriate federal and state authorities, consistent with 45 CFR 164.502(j)(1).  



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 37 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

2. Prohibited Uses and Disclosures:  
 a. Except as otherwise limited in this Addendum, the Business Associate shall not disclose protected health 

information to a health plan for payment or health care operations purposes if the patient has required this 
special restriction and has paid out of pocket in full for the health care item or service to which the protected 
health information relates in accordance with 42 USC 17935. 

b. The Business Associate shall not directly or indirectly receive remuneration in exchange for any protected 
health information, as specified by 42 USC 17935, unless the Covered Entity obtained a valid authorization, 
in accordance with 45 CFR 164.508 that includes a specification that protected health information can be 
exchanged for remuneration. 

 
IV. OBLIGATIONS OF COVERED ENTITY 

 
1. The Covered Entity will inform the Business Associate of any limitations in the Covered Entity’s Notice of Privacy 

Practices in accordance with 45 CFR 164.520, to the extent that such limitation may affect the Business 
Associate’s use or disclosure of protected health information. 

2. The Covered Entity will inform the Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of, permission by an 
individual to use or disclose protected health information, to the extent that such changes may affect the 
Business Associate’s use or disclosure of protected health information. 

3. The Covered Entity will inform the Business Associate of any restriction to the use or disclosure of protected 
health information that the Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522 and 42 USC 
17935, to the extent that such restriction may affect the Business Associate’s use or disclosure of protected 
health information. 

4. Except in the event of lawful data aggregation or management and administrative activities, the Covered Entity 
shall not request the Business Associate to use or disclose protected health information in any manner that 
would not be permissible under the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act, if done by the 
Covered Entity. 

 
V. TERM AND TERMINATION 

 
1. Effect of Termination: 

a. Except as provided in paragraph (b) of this section, upon termination of this Addendum, for any reason, the 
Business Associate will return or destroy all protected health information received from the Covered Entity 
or created, maintained, or received by the Business Associate on behalf of the Covered Entity that the 
Business Associate still maintains in any form and the Business Associate will retain no copies of such 
information. 

b. If the Business Associate determines that returning or destroying the protected health information is not 
feasible, the Business Associate will provide to the Covered Entity notification of the conditions that make 
return or destruction infeasible.  Upon a mutual determination that return, or destruction of protected health 
information is infeasible, the Business Associate shall extend the protections of this Addendum to such 
protected health information and limit further uses and disclosures of such protected health information to 
those purposes that make return or destruction infeasible, for so long as the Business Associate maintains 
such protected health information. 

c. These termination provisions will apply to protected health information that is in the possession of 
subcontractors, agents, or employees of the Business Associate. 

2. Term.  The Term of this Addendum shall commence as of the effective date of this Addendum herein and shall 
extend beyond the termination of the contract and shall terminate when all the protected health information 
provided by the Covered Entity to the Business Associate, or accessed, maintained, created, retained, modified, 
recorded, stored, or otherwise held, transmitted, used or disclosed by the Business Associate on behalf of the 
Covered Entity, is destroyed or returned to the Covered Entity, or, if it not feasible to return or destroy the 
protected health information, protections are extended to such information, in accordance with the termination. 

3. Termination for Breach of Agreement.  The Business Associate agrees that the Covered Entity may 
immediately terminate the agreement if the Covered Entity determines that the Business Associate has violated 
a material part of this Addendum. 

 
VI. MISCELLANEOUS 

 
1. Amendment.  The parties agree to take such action as is necessary to amend this Addendum from time to 

time for the Covered Entity to comply with all the requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 38 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, Public Law No. 104-191 and the Health Information Technology for 
Economic and Clinical Health Act (HITECH) of 2009, Public Law No. 111-5. 

2. Clarification.  This Addendum references the requirements of HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the Privacy Rule and 
the Security Rule, as well as amendments and/or provisions that are currently in place and any that may be 
forthcoming. 

3. Indemnification.  Each party will indemnify and hold harmless the other party to this Addendum from and 
against all claims, losses, liabilities, costs and other expenses incurred as a result of, or arising directly or 
indirectly out of or in conjunction with: 
a. Any misrepresentation, breach of warranty or non-fulfillment of any undertaking on the part of the party 

under this Addendum; and 
b. Any claims, demands, awards, judgments, actions, and proceedings made by any person or organization 

arising out of or in any way connected with the party’s performance under this Addendum.      
4. Interpretation.  The provisions of the Addendum shall prevail over any provisions in the agreement that may 

conflict or appear inconsistent with any provision in this Addendum.  This Addendum and the agreement shall 
be interpreted as broadly as necessary to implement and comply with HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the Privacy 
Rule and the Security Rule.  The parties agree that any ambiguity in this Addendum shall be resolved to permit 
the Covered Entity and the Business Associate to comply with HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the Privacy Rule and 
the Security Rule. 

5. Regulatory Reference.  A reference in this Addendum to a section of the HITECH Act, HIPAA, the Privacy 
Rule and Security Rule means the sections as in effect or as amended.  

6. Survival.  The respective rights and obligations of Business Associate under Effect of Termination of this 
Addendum shall survive the termination of this Addendum. 

 
Compliance with this section is acknowledged by signing the subaward cover page of this packet. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBAWARD 

Subaward Packet (BAA)                        Page 39 of 39                                                                         Agency Ref.#: HD 16577 
Revised 7/18   
 

 
SECTION H 

 
Matching Funds Agreement 

 
This Matching Funds Agreement is entered into between the Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral Health 
(referred to as “Division”) and Washoe County Health District (referred to as “Subrecipient”). 
 

Program Name Public Health 
Preparedness Subrecipient Name Washoe County Health District 

(WCHD) 
Federal Grant 

Number 6 NU90TP921907-01-04 Subaward Number 16577 

Federal Award $365,687.00 Contact Name  

Non-Federal 
(Match) Amount $36,568.70 Address 

1001 East Ninth Street / PO Box 
11130 
Reno, Nevada 89520 

Total Federal and 
Non Federal 
Contribution 

$402,255.70 
 

Performance Period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 
 
Under the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Subrecipient agrees to complete the Project as 
described in the Description of Services, Scope of Work and Deliverables. Non-Federal (Match) funding will be 
required to be documented on the Monthly Financial Status and Request for Funds Request form and will be 
verified during subrecipient monitoring.   
 
This subaward is subject to the requirements (federal, state financial and program assurances) established by 
the federal government, the State of Nevada and the Division as well as any local code, ordinances and policy.  
This subaward is subject to the availability of funding.  Special Conditions:  This project is approved subject to 
the conditions and limitations set forth on the following pages(s):  Section A-Assurances and Certifications; 
Section B- Description of Services, Scope of Work and Deliverables; Section C- Budget and Financial 
Reporting Requirements; Section E- Audit Information Request; Section F- Current and Former State 
Employee Disclaimer; and Section G- Business Associate Addendum.  
 
Compliance with this section is acknowledged by signing the subaward cover page of this packet. 



AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
AQM Office: 775-784-7200   I   Fax: 775-784-7225   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date: August 23, 2018 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Charlene Albee, Director, Air Quality Management Division 
(775) 784-7211, calbee@washoecounty.us

SUBJECT: Recommendation for the Board to uphold an unappealed citation issued to Washoe 
County Community Services Department – Utility Services, Case No. 1202, Notice of 
Violation Citation No. 5670, with a $1,190.00 negotiated fine. 

SUMMARY 
Washoe County Air Quality Management Division staff recommends Notice of Violation Citation 
No. 5670 be upheld and a fine of $1,190.00 be levied against Washoe County Community Services 
Department – Utility Services for generating visible fugitive dust emissions for a period accumulating 
more than 5 minutes in any hour and for failing to apply for and obtain a Dust Control Permit prior to 
the commencement of a dust generating activity.  Generating visible fugitive dust emissions for a 
period accumulating more than 5 minutes in any hour and failing to apply for and obtain a Dust 
Control Permit prior to the commencement of a dust generating activity are minor violations of the 
District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality Management, specifically Sections 
040.030 C.1. and 040.030 C.3, respectively. 

District Health Strategic Priority supported by this item:  Healthy Environment – Create a 
healthier environment that allows people to safely enjoy everything Washoe County has to offer. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 

No previous actions. 

BACKGROUND 

On July 10, 2018, Air Quality Specialist (AQS) Suzanne Dugger was on routine patrol in Spanish 
Springs north of the intersection of Eagle Canyon Drive and Pyramid Way. While conducting an 
inspection at an adjacent construction site, AQS Dugger observed a large plume of dust originating 
south of the North Spanish Springs Flood Control Basin. At approximately 1100 hours, AQS Dugger 
arrived on site and met with Dave Hughes with Washoe County Community Services Department 
(CSD) – Utility Services to discuss the fugitive dust issue. During the conversation, AQS Dugger 
determined that a Dust Control Permit was not obtained prior to commencement of the maintenance 
of the flood control system and explained that the dust generated from the maintenance activity had 
exceeded the visible emissions standard defined in the District Board of Health Regulations 
Governing Air Quality Management. AQS Dugger documented the visible fugitive dust with a video 
and the lack of a Dust Control Permit on a Construction Site Inspection Form.      

DD____CA_______ 
DHO__________ 
DA___________ 
Risk__________ 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 6C

mailto:calbee@washoecounty.us


Subject: DBOH/Washoe County Community Services Department - Utilities/Case 1202 
Date: August 23, 2018 
Page 2 of 3 

During the course of the dust control evaluation, AQS Dugger issued Notice of Violation Citation 
(NOV) No. 5670 to Washoe County CSD for violations of Section 040.030, specifically generating 
visible fugitive dust emissions for a period accumulating more than 5 minutes in any hour and for 
failing to apply for and obtain a Dust Control Permit prior to the commencement of the dust 
generating activity.  Mr. Hughes did not sign the Notice of Violation at the time the violations were 
observed.  

On July 25, 2018, Branch Chief Michael Wolf conducted a negotiated settlement meeting attended by 
AQS Suzanne Dugger, Senior AQS Joshua Restori, Dwayne Smith, Director of Engineering and 
Capital Projects for Washoe County CSD, John Hulett, Senior Licensed Engineer for Washoe County 
CSD, and David Hughes, Safety/Training/EOC Coordinator – CSD Roads Maintenance.  Branch 
Chief Wolf explained to Mr. Smith, Mr. Hulett and Mr. Hughes that Washoe County CSD was issued 
NOV No. 5670 per Sections 040.030 C.1. for generating visible fugitive dust emissions for a period 
accumulating more than 5 minutes in any hour and 040.030 C.3. for failing to apply for and obtain a 
Dust Control Permit prior to the commencement of the dust generating activity. During the negotiated 
settlement, Mr. Smith acknowledged the violations by Washoe County CSD and signed NOV No. 
5670. Branch Chief Wolf explained how the fines were assessed and the enforcement process to 
resolve NOV No. 5670. Mr. Smith stated that he understood the enforcement procedures and agreed 
to settle the violation through a negotiated settlement. A Memorandum of Understanding was signed 
by all parties on July 25, 2018.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

There are no fiscal impacts resulting from the Board upholding the issuance of the Notice of Violation 
Citation and associated fine.  All fine money collected is forwarded to the Washoe County School 
District to be used for environmentally focused projects for the benefit of the students. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the District Board of Health uphold Notice of Violation Citation No. 5670, Case 
No. 1202, and levy a fine in the amount of $1,190.00 as a negotiated settlement for minor violations. 

ALTERNATIVE 

An alternative to upholding the Staff recommendation as presented would include: 

1. The Board may determine no violation of the regulations has occurred and dismiss Notice of
Violation Citation No. 5670.

Or

2. The Board may determine to uphold Notice of Violation Citation No. 5670 and levy any fine
in the range of $0 to $1,000 per day per violation.



Subject: DBOH/Washoe County Community Services Department - Utilities/Case 1202 
Date: August 23, 2018 
Page 3 of 3 

POSSIBLE MOTION(s) 

Should the Board agree with Staff’s recommendation or the alternatives, a possible motion would be: 

1. “Move to uphold Notice of Violation Citation No. 5670, Case No. 1202, as recommended
by Staff.”

Or

2. “Move to uphold Notice of Violation Citation No. 5670, Case No. 1202, and levy a fine
in the amount of (range of $0 to $1,000) per day for each violation, with the matter being
continued to the next meeting to allow for Washoe County Community Services
Department - Utilities to be properly noticed.”

















ADMINISTRATIVE HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
AHS Office: 775-328-2410   I   Fax: 775-328-3752   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DD__NA_______ 
DHO__________ 
DA__NA_______ 
Risk_NA_______ 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: August 23, 2018 

TO: District Board of Health  
 

FROM: Anna Heenan, Administrative Health Services Officer 
328-2417, aheenan@washoecounty.us

 

SUBJECT: Acknowledge receipt of the Health Fund Financial Review for July, Fiscal Year 2019 

SUMMARY 
Update for Fiscal Year 2018 (FY18): 
Total FY18 revenues reported as of June 30, 2018 were $23,526,097 and expenditures were $21,885,075 
reflecting a surplus of $1,641,023. With the year-end processing of grant reimbursements, as of August 
8, 2018, the FY18 revenues are at $24,062,295 and the expenditures are at $21,905,797 for a surplus of 
$2,156,497. The fund balance is projected to be $6,337,394 or 28.9% of total expenditures for FY18. 

Fiscal Year 2019 (FY19): 
FY19 opened the year with a cash balance of $5,534,826 and by the end of July the cash decreased by 
$72,462 for a July 31st balance of $5,462,364. Total revenues were $544,339 or 2.4% of budget and a 
decrease of $729,227 over FY18. The decline in revenue is due to the July transfer from the County 
General Fund being deferred until September to assist the County General Fund with cash flow issues 
until the property tax revenue is posted to the General Fund account. The expenditures totaled 
$1,724,948 or 7.4% of budget down $475,546 or 21.6% compared to FY18 due to a $587,017 purchase 
of chemical supplies purchased for Mosquito abatement in FY18 not required in FY19. 
District Health Strategic Priority supported by this item: Financial Stability: Enable the Health District to make long-term 
commitments in areas that will positively impact the community’s health by growing reliable sources of income. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
Fiscal Year 2019 Budget was adopted May 22, 2018. 

BACKGROUND 
Review of Cash 
The available cash at the end of July, FY19, was 
$5,462,364 which is enough to cover approximately 
2.5 months of expenditures. The encumbrances and 
other liability portion of the cash balance totals $1.2 
million; the cash restricted as to use is approximately 
$1.0 million (e.g. Air Quality and the Solid Waste Management
programs restricted cash); leaving a balance of 
approximately $3.3 million.  

Note: January FY15 negative cash is due to no County General Fund 
support transferred to the Health Fund.

$19,512,566 
$20,469,870 

$22,370,420 
$23,526,097 $24,062,295 $22,907,060 

$19,399,859 $19,770,532 
$21,157,367 $21,885,075 

$21,905,797 $23,426,116 

 $15,000,000
 $17,000,000
 $19,000,000
 $21,000,000
 $23,000,000
 $25,000,000

Actual FY15 Acutal FY16 Actual FY17 Actual FY18
June 30th

Actual FY18 (after
year end processing)

Budget FY19

Revenues and Expenditures

Revenues
Expenditures

 $(900,000)

 $100,000

 $1,100,000

 $2,100,000

 $3,100,000

 $4,100,000

 $5,100,000

 $6,100,000

Beg Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Trend of Available Cash at Month End

FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 6D

mailto:aheenan@washoecounty.us


Date: DBOH meeting August 23, 2018 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2019, July Financial Review 
Page 2 of 4 

Review of Revenues (including transfers from General Fund) and Expenditures by category 

The total revenues year to date were 
$544,339 down $729,227 or 57.3% 
compared to July FY18.  The revenue 
categories up over last fiscal year were 
licenses and permits of $324,625 up 
$57,799 or 21.7% and charges for services 
of $263,325 up $52,106 or 24.7%. 
Miscellaneous revenues of $539 were 
down $508 or 48.5%. The major funding 
source that did not receive funding in July 
due to timing issues were state and federal 
grant reimbursements and tire and 
pollution control revenues. The monthly 
County General Fund transfer of $793,071 
will be deferred until September to assist 
the County General fund with cash flow 
issues due to the timing of the property tax 
collections for the County. 

The total year to date expenditures of 
$1,724,948 decreased by $475,545 or 
21.6% compared to year-end FY18. 
Salaries and benefits expenditures for 
the fiscal year were $1,457,540 up 
$47,134 or 3.3% over the prior year and 
7.8% of budget.  The total services and 
supplies of $263,179 down $522,681 or 
66.5% compared to FY18 and 5.6% of 
budget. The main reason for the decline 
is a reduction in chemical supplies not 
required in July due to sufficient 
inventory. The major expenditures 
included in the services and supplies 
were: the professional services which 
totaled $15,688 up $12,899 over the 
prior year; chemical supplies of $0 were 
down $587,017 or 100%; the biologicals 
of $67,161 were up $66,880; and, 
County overhead charges of $101,507 
were down $25,212 or 19.9%. There has 
been $4,229 in capital expenditures. 

 

 $(100,000)

 $-

 $100,000

 $200,000

 $300,000

 $400,000

 $500,000

 $600,000

Revenues
FY19 July Year to Date

 $-
 $3,000,000
 $6,000,000
 $9,000,000

 $12,000,000
 $15,000,000
 $18,000,000
 $21,000,000
 $24,000,000

 FY 16
Actual

 FY 17
Actual

 FY 18
Actual

 FY19
Budget

 FY19 July
Year to

Date

Revenues 
(including General Fund support)

GF Operating Support Grants Charges for Services
Licenses and Permits Tires & Pollution Control Miscellaneous

 $-
 $200,000
 $400,000
 $600,000
 $800,000

 $1,000,000
 $1,200,000
 $1,400,000
 $1,600,000

Expenditures
FY19 July Year to Date

 $-
 $3,000,000
 $6,000,000
 $9,000,000

 $12,000,000
 $15,000,000
 $18,000,000
 $21,000,000
 $24,000,000

 FY 16
Actual

 FY 17
Actual

 FY 18
Actual

 FY19
Budget

 FY19 July
Year to

Date

Expenditures

Salaries & Wages Benefits County Overhead
Misc. Services & Supplies Professional Services Chemical Supplies
Biologicals Capital



Date: DBOH meeting August 23, 2018 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2019, July Financial Review 
Page 3 of 4 

Review of Revenues and Expenditures by Division 
ODHO has spent $79,515 up $11,468 or 16.9% over FY18 mainly due to the installation of staff badge 
reader access into the main conference rooms for safety and security of the employees and public during 
lockdown situations.  
AHS has spent $93,381 down $1,641 or 1.7% compared to FY18 mainly due to a decline in utilities and 
County overhead charges. 
AQM revenues were $159,418 up $28,316 or 21.6% with the largest year over year increase in the Air 
Quality dust plans. The Division spent $247,802 up $32,725 or 15.2% over FY18 due to an employee 
retirement payout for the accrued vacation time and a vacant position in FY18 that filled in FY19. 
CCHS revenues were $47,619 down $3,922 over FY18 and spent $621,066 or $60,396 more than FY18 
due to an employee retirement payout for the accrued vacation and sick leave and biologicals for the 
Immunization and Family Planning programs.  
EHS revenues were $291,154 up $35,427 over FY18 mainly in food service permits. EHS spent 
$474,460 a decline of $587,053 over last year due to an inventory of chemical supplies for the Vector 
program allowing for no expenditures in July FY19. In July FY18, $587,017 was spent on chemicals. 
EPHP revenues were $46,147 up $5,428 over last year and spent $208,724 up $8,558 over FY18 with 
the majority of that increase for the grant-funded contract with The Center for the Application of 
Substance Abuse Technologies for on-line continuing education training for first responders.  

2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017

Actual Year 
End           

(unaudited)
 July             

Year to Date 
 Adjusted 

Budget 
 July             

Year to Date 
 Percent of 

Budget 

 FY19 
Increase 

over FY18 
Revenues (all sources of funds)

ODHO - 15,000         51,228         3,365           1,404           - - - -100.0%
AHS 151              - - - - - - - -
AQM 2,427,471     2,520,452     2,979,720     3,543,340     131,102       3,086,133     159,418       5.2% 21.6%
CCHS 3,520,945     3,506,968     3,872,898     4,179,750     51,542         4,033,292     47,619         1.2% -7.6%
EHS 2,008,299     2,209,259     3,436,951     4,428,294     255,728       4,126,593     291,154       7.1% 13.9%
EPHP 1,555,508     2,141,334     2,027,242     1,855,854     40,720         2,144,187     46,147         2.2% 13.3%
GF support 10,000,192   10,076,856   10,002,381   10,051,691   793,071       9,516,856     - 0.0% -100.0%
Total Revenues 19,512,566$ 20,469,870$ 22,370,420$ 24,062,295$ 1,273,566$   22,907,060$ 544,339$     2.4% -57.3%

Expenditures (all uses of funds)

ODHO 481,886       594,672       904,268       826,325       68,047         1,433,591     79,515         5.5% 16.9%
AHS 1,096,568     996,021       1,119,366     1,016,660     95,022         1,156,532     93,381         8.1% -1.7%
AQM 2,587,196     2,670,636     2,856,957     2,936,261     215,077       3,433,087     247,802       7.2% 15.2%
CCHS 6,967,501     6,880,583     7,294,144     7,538,728     560,670       7,712,347     621,066       8.1% 10.8%
EHS 5,954,567     5,939,960     6,366,220     7,030,470     1,061,514    6,797,222     474,460       7.0% -55.3%
EPHP 2,312,142     2,688,659     2,616,411     2,557,352     200,166       2,893,337     208,724       7.2% 4.3%
Total Expenditures 19,399,859$ 19,770,532$ 21,157,367$ 21,905,797$ 2,200,494$   23,426,116$ 1,724,948$   7.4% -21.6%

Revenues (sources of funds) less Expenditures (uses of funds):
ODHO (481,886)      (579,672)      (853,040)      (822,960)      (66,643)        (1,433,591)    (79,515)        
AHS (1,096,417)    (996,021)      (1,119,366)    (1,016,660)    (95,022)        (1,156,532)    (93,381)        
AQM (159,725)      (150,184)      122,763       607,078       (83,974)        (346,954)      (88,384)        
CCHS (3,446,556)    (3,373,615)    (3,421,246)    (3,358,978)    (509,128)      (3,679,055)    (573,447)      
EHS (3,946,268)    (3,730,701)    (2,929,269)    (2,602,176)    (805,786)      (2,670,629)    (183,306)      
EPHP (756,634)      (547,325)      (589,169)      (701,498)      (159,446)      (749,150)      (162,577)      
GF Operating 10,000,192   10,076,856   10,002,381   10,051,691   793,071       9,516,856     - 
Surplus (deficit) 112,707$      699,338$      1,213,053$   2,156,497$   (926,928)$    (519,056)$    (1,180,609)$ 

Fund Balance (FB) 2,268,506$   2,967,844$   4,180,897$   6,337,394$   5,818,339$   
FB as a % of Expenditures 11.7% 15.0% 19.8% 28.9% 24.8%
Note: ODHO=Office of the District Health Officer, AHS=Administrative Health Services, AQM=Air Quality Management,  CCHS=Community and Clinical Health Services, 
EHS=Environmental Health Services, EPHP=Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness, GF=County General Fund

Fiscal Year 2018/2019

Washoe County Health District
Summary of Revenues and Expenditures

Fiscal Year 2014/2015 through July Year to Date Fiscal Year 2018/2019 (FY19)
Fiscal Year 2017/2018Actual Fiscal Year



Date: DBOH meeting August 23, 2018 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2019, July Financial Review 
Page 4 of 4 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
No fiscal impact associated with the acknowledgement of this staff report. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the District Board of Health acknowledge receipt of the Health Fund Financial 
Review for July, Fiscal Year 2019. 
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
 
Move to acknowledge receipt of the Health Fund Financial Review for July, Fiscal Year 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment: 
Health District Fund financial system summary report 













EPIDEMIOLOGY AND PUBLIC HEALTH PREPAREDNESS 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
EPHP Office: 775-326-6055   I   Fax: 775-325-8130   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  August 23, 2018 

TO: District Board of Health 
FROM: Christina Conti, Preparedness and EMS Oversight Program Manager 

775-326-6042, cconti@washoecounty.us 
SUBJECT: Discussion and possible appointment of Consumer at Large to the REMSA Board of 

Directors as the District Board of Health Appointed Representative. 

SUMMARY 
The REMSA Board of Directors is comprised of seven positions, three of which are appointed by the 
District Board of Health (DBOH).  There is currently one vacant position to be appointed by DBOH.  
The position is the Consumer at Large representative, previously held by Mr. Jim Begbie, who served 
as Chairman of the REMSA Board.  

District Health Strategic Priority supported by this item:  
2. Healthy Environment:  Create a healthier environment that allows people to safely enjoy
everything Washoe County has to offer.

PREVIOUS ACTION 
In 1986, upon the creation of the Franchise agreement for ambulance services in Washoe County, the 
REMSA Board of Directors was created to include the three representatives appointed by the DBOH. 
Since 1986, the DBOH has appointed representatives to the REMSA Board of Directors as positions 
have become vacant.  

BACKGROUND 
The Washoe County Health District received notice from Mr. Jim Begbie that would be retiring from 
the REMSA Board, effective July 1, 2018.  EMS staff utilized the Washoe County citizen volunteer 
page to recruit for the position.  The outreach yielded two candidates.  EMS staff interviewed both 
candidates and required each to tour the REMSA facilities as part of the interview process.  A 
summary of the candidates is listed in alphabetical order below.   
Candidate #1 Benton, Scott 
Mr. Benton is currently employed as a case manager with the Reno Men’s Shelter Program. 
Previously, Mr. Benton worked in the medical field for approximately fourteen years.   During those 
years, he has worked in the capacity as a medical assistant, officer manager and practice manager with 
both large and small private organizations.  Mr. Benton currently serves on three Washoe County 
School District committees and was recently appointed to the City of Sparks Civil Service 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7

DHO__________ 
DDA ______CC____ 
Risk __________ 

mailto:cconti@washoecounty.us


 

Commission.  Mr. Benton has a working knowledge of the EMS system, to include the two dispatch 
centers and the prearrival instructions that are utilized during emergency medical calls.  Mr. Benton’s 
interest in joining the Board is to give back to the community by being one voice that can make a 
difference for many in the Washoe County community that has influenced his life on a daily basis. 
Candidate #2: Flores, Melanie 
Ms. Flores currently works as an Assistant Field Education Coordinator at the University of Nevada, 
Reno.  Previously, Ms. Flores worked at both the Health District and the Nevada Division of Public 
and Behavioral Health over the course of 6 years in positions that strove to engage community 
stakeholders in programs and projects.  In addition to her work in public services, Ms. Flores has 
worked at Northern Nevada Hopes as a client’s services manager.  Ms. Flores has limited knowledge 
of the EMS system; however, she was very familiar with REMSA being a community based provider 
that provides ambulance transport within the region, as well as an awareness of the Nurse Healthline 
and the community paramedicine program. Ms. Flores is interested in joining the REMSA Board to 
give back to the community at the decision making level.  Ms. Flores has a Master’s Degree in Social 
Work and believes this is complementary to the field, providing a unique perspective for the Board.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no additional fiscal impact to the FY19 budget should the Board approve the appointment to 
the REMSA Board of Directors. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Each of the two candidates for the Consumer at Large position brings individual strengths that would 
be of benefit to the REMSA Board and both are capable and qualified for the position and would 
complement the Board in different ways. 
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
Should the Board be prepared to appoint a representative, a possible motion would be: Move to 
approve (insert name) to the REMSA Board of Directors as the Consumer at Large District Board of 
Health Appointed Representative. 



Scott Ben ton 
 

Case Manager 
A fair, firm and consistent Manager with over 13 years' professional experience. A highly dependable, reliable, and 
dedicated individual who is always willing to jump in and help accomplish the mission. Possess the leadership and 

communication skills to problem solve, navigate technology and utilize a computer with confidence. 
• Problem Solver • Detail Orientated • Team Player

• Dependable • Supervisory Experience • Delegated Tasks

• Organized • Ensure Compliance • Trustworthy

• Loyal • Dedicated • Punctual & Reliable

EXPERIENCE 

Office and Human Resource Management 
• Establish relationships with Client to promote positive environment and personal growth within the program
• Referred patients/clients to resources
• Analyze needs of Clients based on intake and ongoing relationships
• Analyzed data to inform operational decisions or activities
• Prepared Individual Service Plans
• Assisted Client with goal setting
• Developed and maintained computerized management systems
• Prepared and maintained statistical data
• Administered and reviewed assessments on each Client
• Represent organization at personnel-related hearings and investigations
• Addressed employee relation issues
• Supervised, delegated and evaluated work activities of staff to ensure systematic workflow
• Conducted recruited, hired, training, and disciplined staff
• Developed and implemented policies and procedures
• Established objectives for business needs and growth
• Expanded and implemented programs based on service changes
• Consulted with business and community groups

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 

Case Manager, Reno Men's Shelter Program, Reno, NV 

Medical Assistant, SpineNevada, Reno, NV 

Office Manager, Renewed Health & Wellness, Reno, NV 

Office Manager, Child Neurology, Reno, NV 

Practice Manager, Tahoe Forest Women's Center, Truckee, CA 

Lead Medical Assistant, Sierra Family Health Center, Sparks, NV 

EDUCATION 

11/2017 -present 

08/2016 -05/2017 

11/2014 -02/2016 

09/2013 -05/2014 

01/2012 -09/2013 

04/2004 -05/2010 

University of Nevada, Las Vegas, Las Vegas, Nevada, Bachelor of Science, Psychology 

INTERESTS/INVOLVEMENT 

Washoe County School District, Safe and Health School Commission, Commissioner 
Washoe County School District, Council on Family Resources, Council Member 
Washoe County School District, School Naming Committee, Committee Member 
City of Sparks, Civil Service Commission, Commissioner 
United States All-Star Federation, Regional Advisory Board, Board Member 
Reno Sparks Cinderella (50lc3), Board of Directors, Executive Director 
American Heart Association, Heart Walk, Committee Co-Chair 
Five Star Athletics, All Abilities (Special Needs) Team, Team Coach/Advisor 











Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority 
 
 

            A non-profit community service using no tax dollars 

450 Edison Way • Reno, NV 89502-4117 • 775.858.5700 • fax 775.858.5726 

REMSA 

FRANCHISE COMPLIANCE 
REPORT  

July 2018 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8A



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             1 

REMSA Accounts Receivable Summary 
Fiscal 2018 

Month #Patients Total Billed Average 
Bill YTD Average 

Average 
Collected 

35% 

July   3986 $4,530,081.40  $1,136.50  $1,136.50  $409.14  
August 4101 $4,669,433.60  $1,138.61  $1,137.57  $409.52  
September 4059 $4,631,774.80  $1,141.11  $1,138.75  $409.95  
October 3812 $4,346,731.00  $1,140.28  $1,139.12  $410.08  
November 4026 $4,580,696.00  $1,137.78  $1,138.85  $409.98  
December 4428 $5,139,837.20  $1,160.76  $1,142.82  $411.42  
January 4239 $4,948,942.20  $1,167.48  $1,146.47  $412.73  
February 3844 $4,582,675.00  $1,192.16  $1,151.87  $414.67  
March 4157 $4,953,807.00  $1,191.68  $1,156.39  $404.74  
April 3718 $4,419,460.40  $1,188.67  $1,159.36  $405.78  
May 4059 $4,818,179.20  $1,187.04  $1,161.89  $406.66  
June 4055 $4,788,528.00  $1,180.89  $1,163.48  $407.22  

Totals 48484 $56,410,146  $1,163.48      
Prior Allowed Average Bill:  $1,161.23         
Current Allowed Average Bill:  $1,196.07 

  
1/1/18 3% 

increase     
 
Fiscal Year 2018-2019 

COMPLIANCE 
Month Priority 1 System - Wide Avg. Response Time Priority 1 Zone A Priority 1 Zones B, C, D 
Jul-18 5 Minutes 48 Seconds 91% 97% 

 
Year to Date: July 2018 thru July 2019 

Priority 1 System - Wide Avg. Response Time Priority 1 Zone A Priority 1 Zones B,C,D 

   5 Minutes   48 Seconds 91% 97% 
 
Year to Date: July 2018 through July 2019 

AVERAGE RESPONSE TIMES BY ENTITY 
Month/Year Priority Reno Sparks Washoe County 

Jul-18 P-1 5:14 6:02 7:45 
P-2 5:22 6:16 8:23 

 
 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             2 

Year to Date: July 2018 through July 2019 
Priority  Reno Sparks Washoe County 

P-1  5:14 6:02 7:45 
P2  5:22 6:16 8:23 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             3 

REMSA OCU INCIDENT DETAIL REPORT 
PERIOD: 07/01/2018 THRU 07/31/2018 

CORRECTIONS REQUESTED 

Zone Clock Start Clock Stop Unit Response 
Time Original 

Response Time 
Correct 

Zone A 7/2/2018 13:48 7/2/2018 13:52 1C40 0:04:15 0:04:15 

Zone A 7/3/2018 6:38 7/3/2018 6:41 1C41 0:03:15 0:03:15 

Zone A 7/3/2018 20:17 7/3/2018 20:19 1W35 0:02:20 0:02:20 

Zone A 7/4/2018 0:30 7/4/2018 0:33 1C42 0:02:41 0:02:41 

Zone A 7/7/2018 1:41 7/7/2018 1:41 1C02 -00:00:06 0:00:09 

Zone A 7/7/2018 2:23 7/7/2018 2:24 1C11 -00:00:14 0:01:28 

Zone A 7/7/2018 15:20 7/7/2018 15:22 1C25 0:02:49 0:02:49 

Zone A 7/9/2018 3:37 7/9/2018 3:42 1C29 0:05:17 0:05:17 

Zone A 7/11/2018 9:38 7/11/2018 9:42 1C43 0:03:47 0:03:47 

Zone A 7/11/2018 19:58 7/11/2018 20:04 1C39 -00:01:36 0:05:16 

Zone A 7/12/2018 8:39 7/12/2018 8:45 1C09 0:07:33 0:06:27 

Zone A 7/12/2018 13:29 7/12/2018 13:33 1C09 0:04:29 0:04:01 

Zone A 7/14/2018 14:37 7/14/2018 14:42 1C35 0:04:45 0:04:45 

Zone A 7/15/2018 17:25 7/15/2018 17:25 1C30 0:00:00 0:00:20 

Zone D 7/22/2018 15:24 7/22/2018 15:49 1C20 0:24:54 0:24:54 

Zone A 7/22/2018 22:12 7/22/2018 22:14 1C35 -00:00:16 0:01:28 

Zone A 7/27/2018 12:57 7/27/2018 12:59 1C01 0:02:16 0:02:16 

Zone A 7/27/2018 15:17 7/27/2018 15:20 1C02 0:03:01 0:02:42 

Zone A 7/27/2018 15:55 7/27/2018 15:57 1C02 0:02:47 0:02:13 

Zone A 7/29/2018 1:40 7/29/2018 1:41 1C02 -00:00:40 0:00:54 

Zone A 7/29/2018 2:21 7/29/2018 2:23 1C02 0:02:02 0:02:02 

Zone A 7/30/2018 11:11 7/30/2018 11:20 1C30 -00:10:45 0:09:16 

 
 

 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             4 

 
UPGRADE REQUESTED 

Response Area Zone Clock Start Clock Stop Unit Threshold Response Time.  
No Upgrades 

 
EXEMPTIONS REQUESTED 

Incident Date Approval  Exemption Reason Zone Response Time Overage 
No Exemptions 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             5 

GROUND AMBULANCE OPERATIONS REPORT 
JULY 2018 

 
1. Overall Statics 

a) Total number of system responses: 6647 
b) Total number of responses in which no transports resulted: 2563 
c) Total number of System Transports (including transports to out of county): 4084 

2. Call Classification 
a) Cardiopulmonary Arrests: 1.5%   
b) Medical: 57.6% 
c) Obstetrics (OB): 0.8% 
d) Psychiatric/Behavioral: 9.0% 
e) Transfers: 11.8% 
f) Trauma – MVA: 7.5% 
g) Trauma – Non MVA: 6.8% 
h) Unknown:  5.1% 

3. Medical Director’s Report 
a) The Clinical Director or designee reviewed:  

• 100% of cardiopulmonary arrests 

• 100% of pediatric patients (transport and non-transport) 

• 100% of advanced airways (excluding cardio pulmonary arrests) 

• 100% of STEMI alerts or STEMI rhythms 

• 100% of deliveries and neonatal resuscitation  

• 100% Advanced Airway Success rates for nasal/oral intubation and 
King Airway placement for adult and pediatric patients.  

Total number of ALS Calls: 2051 
Total number of above calls receiving QA Reviews:  371 
Percentage of charts reviewed from the above transports: 18% 

 
 
 
 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             6 

REMSA EDUCATION 
JULY 2018 MONTHLY COURSE AND STUDENT REPORT 

Discipline Total  
Classes 

Total  
Students 

REMSA  
Classes 

REMSA  
Students 

Site 
Classes 

Site  
Students 

ACLS 5 45 4 40 1 5 
ACLS EP 0 0 0 0 0 0 

ACLS EP I 0 0 0 0 0 0 
ACLS I 0 0 0 0 0 0 
ACLS P 0 0 1 4 0 0 
ACLS R 9 29 4 23 5 27 
ACLS S 4 6 0 0 4 6 
AEMT 0 0 0 0     
BLS 49 254 10 88 39 166 

BLS I 0 0 0 0 0 0 
BLS R 34 150 21 102 13 48 
BLS S 11 26 0 0 11 26 
B-CON 0 0 0 0 0 0 

CE 0 0 0 0 0 0 
EMAPCT 0 0 0 0 0 0 

EMPACT I 0 0 0 0 0 0 
EMR 0 0 0 0     

EMR R 0 0 0 0     
EMS I 0 0 0 0     
EMT 0 0 0 0     

EMT R 0 0 0 0     
FF CPR 1 3 1 3 0 0 

FF CPR FA 1 21 1 21 0 0 
FF FA 0 0 0 0 0 0 

HS BBP 1 8 1 8 0 0 
HS CPR 17 89 7 44 10 45 
HS CPR 

FA 
45 294 5 41 40 253 

HS CPR 
FA S 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

HS CPR 
PFA 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

HS PFA S 0 0 0 0 0 0 
HS CPR S 0 0 0 0 1 2 

HS FA 7 21 3 5 4 16 
HS FA S 0 0 0 0 0 0 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             7 

HS K-12 
CPR AED 

21 147 0 0 21 147 

HS K-12 
CPR, AED, 

FA 

8 37 0 0 8 37 

HS PFA 0 0 0 0 0 0 
HS Primeros 

Auxilios, 
RCP y DEA 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

HS Spanish 
RCP y DEA 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

ITLS 0 0 0 0 0 0 
ITLS A 0 0 0 0 0 0 
ITLS I 0 0 0 0 0 0 
ITLS P 0 0 0 0 0 0 
ITLS R 0 0 0 0 0 0 
ITLS S 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Kid Care 1 16 1 16 0 0 
PALS 3 18 2 13 1 5 

PALS I 0 0 0 0 0 0 
PALS R 7 15 2 9 5 6 
PALS S 0 0 0 0 0 0 
PHTLS 2 6 2 6 0 0 

PHTLS R 0 0 1 0 0 0 
PM 2 27 2 27     

PM R 0 0 0 0     
Classes w/ 

CPR 
  CPR 

Students 
  REMSA 

CPR 
Classes 

  REMSA 
CPR 

Students 
188   1037   46   315 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             8 

COMMUNITY OUTREACH JULY 2018 
Point of Impact 
07/14/18 Child car seat checkpoint hosted by Menath Insurance; 9 

cars and 14 seats inspected. 
10 volunteers; 2 
staff 

7/2018 Eight office installation appointments; 8 cars and 9 seats 
inspected. 

  

Cribs for Kids/Community  
07/10/18 C4K attended Safe Kids Washoe County Meeting 

  
06/02/18 C4K attended Maternal Child Health Coalition Meeting   

  
07/25/18 Attended Truckee Meadows Family Health Festival About 100+ 

Participants 
stopped by booth 

07/28/18 Attended Child Passenger Safety Tech update @ REMSA 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             9 

 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             10 

 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             11 

 
 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             12 

 
 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             13 

 
 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             14 

REMSA GROUND AMBULANCE JULY 2018 CUSTOMER REPORT 

# Date of 
Service 

What Did We 
Do Well? 

What Can We 
Do To Serve 
You Better 

Description / 
Comments Assigned  Results after 

follow up  

1 05/22/2018 

"they listen to 
me about being 
a hard stick- 
they didn't try 
to stab me a 
bunch- and 
they listen to 
me- they made 
sure I got 
around instead 
of being 
pushed 
around" 

        

2 05/22/2018 

"pretty much 
everything" 

"just be taken 
seriously- I was 
really panicking 
and I just didn't 
feel the 
concern- they 
asked me a lot 
of questions and 
I was having a 
hard time 
breathing- they 
had to take the 
treatment off of 
me so I could 
answer the 
questions" 

  7.9.18 
Ticket # 
5914 

7/12/18, I 
called the 
pt., while I 
was talking 
to her she 
hung up. No 
further 

3 05/22/2018 

"well they were 
really nice and 
they gave me 
all the attention 
I needed and 
got here when I 
needed." 

        

4 05/22/2018 
"they took care 
of me" 

  "they really 
tried their 
best with my 
pain" 

    

5 05/22/2018 

"they were very 
professional, 
courteous, and 
helpful. they 
took really 

        



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             15 

good care of 
me." 

6 05/22/2018 

"they just took 
really good 
care of me. and 
got me to the 
hospital 
quickly" 

        

7 05/23/2018 

"the 
thoughtfulness- 
and how they 
took my 
problem 
seriously" 

"I don't live in 
reno- so there 
probably won’t 
be a next time" 

      

8 05/23/2018 

"they were 
professional, 
got to my 
house fast- and 
were very 
professional" 

  "oh yes! they 
were very 
nice" 

    

9 05/23/2018 
"everything." "I do not know 

of anything that 
could be done" 

"a definite 5"     

10 05/23/2018 
"They were all 
very kind and 
compassionate 
to me." 

        

11 05/23/2018 

"My mother 
passed away 
but spoke very 
highly of the 
experience with 
REMSA." 

        

12 05/23/2018 

"I was able to 
ask questions 
and they 
answered 
them." 

"Train medics 
for IV." 

      

13 05/23/2018 

"They have 
done a 
wonderful job 
with me. I 
appreciate their 
service!" 

        



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             16 

14 05/23/2018 

"They were 
really quick and 
did everything 
they needed to 
get me to the 
hospital. I am a 
retired RN and 
I was 
impressed!" 

"they were 
great!" 

      

15 05/24/2018 
"They took 
really good 
care of my 
mother." 

        

16 05/24/2018 

"they always 
come on time, 
but I don't 
really have a 
reply" 

        

17 05/24/2018 

"they were 
really great and 
helpful. I was in 
a really bad car 
accident with 
my dog and 
staff- so I was 
really freaking 
out, and they 
did a really 
good job." 

        

18 05/24/2018 "I really can't 
explain" 

        

19 05/24/2018 

"the treatment, 
the way the 
explained 
things. not only 
did they inform 
me, they also 
informed my 
wife and two of 
my kids. overall 
it was a good 
experience. 
they did a really 
good job." 

        



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             17 

20 05/24/2018 

"they were 
professional, 
caring, and 
knew what they 
were doing- 
also kept my 
wife informed" 

        

21 05/24/2018 

"they got me 
where I was 
supposed to 
go, so that was 
good- I was 
just being 
moved from 
one place to 
another" 

  "two guys 
and they got 
me over to 
the hospital 
very nicely" 

    

22 05/24/2018 
"just their 
concern and 
care- they did 
excellent" 

  "I'm very 
thankful for 
the service I 
received" 

    

23 05/25/2018 

"they knew 
what they were 
doing, and got 
here fast- they 
just took really 
good care of 
me" 

        

24 05/26/2018 
  "better 

communication 
between medics 
and ER" 

  8.6.18 
Ticket 
#6007 

See follow 
up below 

25 05/26/2018 

"They were 
really terrific 
and I couldn't 
ask for any 
better" 

        

26 05/26/2018 

"I broke my hip 
and I was in a 
lot of pain, the 
medics did 
great!" 

        

27 05/25/2018 "I appreciate 
REMSA!!" 

        

28 05/27/2018 

"they were just 
good, really 
good. being 
nice and they 
care about me 
all the time" 

        



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             18 

29 05/25/2018 

"They were all 
really nice and 
treated her very 
well. everything 
was great- 
thank you for 
getting back 
with us." 

        

30 05/27/2018 

"they arrived in 
a timely 
manner and 
answered all 
my questions. 
They got me to 
the hospital - 
everything was 
ready when I 
got there" 

        

31 05/27/2018 

"they medic 
was very nice 
to my 
daughter- 
made sure she 
was 
comfortable" 

        

33 05/27/2018 

"I'm sure they 
did whatever 
they had to do. 
they are always 
so great." 

        

34 05/27/2018 

"just how 
quickly they got 
here- it only 
took them 
about 2 or 3 
minutes" 

        

35 05/27/2018 

"everything! it 
was very 
professional. 
you guys are 
really good. 
they actually 
talk to you like 
a person- they 
don't talk down 
to you- they 
talk to you like 
a human being" 

"not a thing!"       



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             19 

36 05/28/2018 

"they were kind 
to explain to 
me what they 
were doing 
when they were 
putting the IV 
in-" 

"I don't think 
there is 
anything- like I 
said you guys 
are number 
one" 

"they were 
really good 
about that- 
they let me 
know 
everything 
they were 
doing as they 
did it" 

    

37 05/28/2018 
"oxygen, you 
guys scored 
100!" 

"I can’t think of 
a thing" 

      

38 05/28/2018 
"They have 
always been 
kind and 
courteous!" 

        

39 05/29/2018 

"The services 
was great." 

"REMSA and 
Renown hospital 
have an 
agreement. Bills 
should be sent 
to the VA not 
the patient. I 
feel it's 
insensitive to bill 
someone when 
the bills should 
be going to the 
VA. This has 
happened on 
many 
occasions." 

  8.6.18           
Ticket # 
6008 

See follow 
up below 

40 05/29/2018 

"They were 
kind and 
courteous, they 
were with me 
every step of 
the way!" 

        

41 05/29/2018 

"Responsive, 
very fast and 
kind." 

"don't put IV 
near bone. Let 
ER do it. God 
bless the 
REMSA people, 
without them I 
don't think I 
would be here." 

      



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             20 

42 05/29/2018 
  "I keep getting 

bills, they need 
to send them to 
the VA" 

"Send bill to 
VA!" 

8.6.18 
Ticket 
#6009 

See follow 
up below 

43 05/30/2018 
  "Everything was 

exactly the way I 
wanted." 

      

44 05/30/2018 

"just getting me 
into the 
ambulance- the 
medic in the 
back watched 
out for me as 
the one in the 
front drove" 

"nothing I 
guess" 

"didn't have 
treatment 
because I 
was just be 
transferred 
from one 
hospital to 
another. so 
they really 
didn't know 
why I was 
being taken 
or what was 
going on" 

    

45 05/30/2018 

"umm just 
about 
everything- 
from when they 
walked in the 
door until we 
got to the 
hospital. one 
time I called to 
tell them how 
well they are to 
me. It was a 
girl and a guy- 
they were just 
excellent - they 
sat down and 
talked to me." 

  "They always 
just treat me 
so well. I 
have never 
had a bad 
experience 
with them. 
most of the 
medics I've 
met are nicer 
than the 
doctors. just 
so 
informative." 

    



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             21 

46 05/30/2018 

"the whole 
service- from 
them getting 
here to getting 
me to the 
ambulance. I've 
even watched 
them before 
and they 
always do 
good." 

  "I've been a 
lot- they 
always treat 
me well- I 
even know 
some of the 
boys" "it was 
all really 
great to be 
honest" 

    

47 05/31/2018 

"Well I'm still in 
the hospital, 
but I give them 
5 all the way 
down. they 
were excellent" 

        

48 05/31/2018 

"overall start to 
finish they were 
pretty good- 
didn't waste 
time and got 
me where I 
needed to be" 

"you just don't 
really know until 
it happens- but 
overall I think 
they were good" 

"they asked 
a lot of 
questions 
which is 
more helpful 
and 
comforting- 
they also just 
to let you talk 
which is also 
good." 

    

49 05/31/2018 

"they ask 
questions and 
listen to my 
answers- they 
seem 
concerned 
about me as a 
person not just 
concerned 
about the 
problem- I 
would also add 
very kind, 
knowledgeable 
and 
professional" 

"I don't think 
there anything 
you could have 
done better 
everything was 
very good" 

"they were 
very good to 
me" 

    



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             22 

50 06/01/2018 

  "Have smaller 
IV needled. 
They are like 
pitchforks!" 

  8.6.18               
Ticket # 
6010 

Message left 
at listed 
telephone 
number 
8/6/18 at 
1530.Second 
message left 
today, 8/8/18 
at listed 
telephone 
number. 

51 06/01/2018 
"They did a 
fantastic job. 
Thank you so 
much REMSA" 

        

52 06/01/2018 

"They talked 
with me and 
kept me calm 
while I was 
having a heart 
attack. They 
deserve a 
reward for how 
the treated me. 
God was 
watching over 
all of us." 

        

53 06/01/2018 
"they were 
professional, 
and kind." 

  "oh yes they 
were very 
good to me" 

    

54 06/01/2018 

"just about 
everything. the 
medics were 
very helpful 
and knew what 
they were 
doing." 

  "haven't 
seen a bill" 

    

55 06/02/2018 

"everything was 
great and went 
well- they get 
all 5's" 

        



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             23 

56 06/02/2018 

"the medics 
treated me 
well. and 
helped me get 
where I needed 
to be." 

  "oh yes, they 
were very 
good" 

    

57 06/02/2018 
"got here fast 
and the 
professionalism 
of the medics" 

  "everything 
was good" 

    

58 06/03/2018 

"they just took 
really good 
care of me. 
everything the 
medics did was 
fine." 

        

59 06/03/2018 

"I have never 
had a problem 
with them. they 
are always very 
kind and 
professional" 

  "Oh they're 
always really 
good to me" 

    

60 06/03/2018 

"The medics 
had trouble 
starting an IV 
so I asked 
them to try in a 
location other 
than the typical 
spot and they 
were 
successful." 

        

61 06/03/2018 "They did their 
job well." 

        

62 06/03/2018 

"The pt. feels 
that her 
answers to the 
questions are 
enough 
information for 
her to provide 
at this time." 

        

63 06/03/2018 

"Pt stated that 
the medics did 
the best they 
could for her 
pain and got 

        



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             24 

her quickly to 
the hospital." 

64 06/03/2018 

"they started 
me on a 
breathing 
treatment- and 
gave men 
meds that 
saved my life-" 

"nothing better 
you did really 
good" 

      

65 06/04/2018 

"lifting me and 
transporting me 
out of the 
house with a lot 
of care- I am 
very grateful" 

"nothing"       

66 06/04/2018 

"well they got 
here fast- and 
got me out of 
here fast- I 
thought I was 
having a heat 
attack- they 
always take 
good care of 
me and get 
here right 
away." 

"if there was a 
better way for 
them to put the 
needles in. they 
stuck me way 
too many times- 
after I didn't 
want to be stuck 
anymore-" 

"they were 
fantastic" 

8.6.18                                 
Ticket 
#6011 

PT had 2 iv 
attempts with 
the 2nd 
being 
successful. 
Message left 
with patient 
8/8/18 at 
1740. 

67 06/04/2018 

"I think you 
guys are great! 
you've been 
here for me 
and are great. 
thank you" 

        

68 06/04/2018 

"well they just 
provided the 
service in a 
professional 
manner-and 
they were very 
careful" 

"I can’t think of 
anything" 

      

69 06/04/2018 "the overall 
care" 

"billing"       

70 06/04/2018 "it was all done 
well" 

"nothing"       



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             25 

71 06/05/2018 

"I thought the 
medic was nice 
and that he 
cared about me 
and took care 
of me well." 

"I can’t think of 
anything right 
now" 

      

72 06/05/2018 
  "air rides for a 

softer riding 
ambulance!" 

      

73 06/05/2018 

  "Put patient on 
gurney rather 
than on bench. 
All their 
equipment was 
on gurney. I was 
bobbing up and 
down like a 
cork." 

  8.6.18 
Ticket 
#6012 

See follow 
up below 

74 06/05/2018 
"They were all 
really good to 
me!" 

"Cocktails!"       

76 06/06/2018 
"They were 
great." 

"Use air rides 
the ride is 
rough." 

      

77 06/06/2018 

"They were 
very good with 
me except that 
the medic 
thought I was 
lying. Thank 
you for your 
services" 

"Some medics 
can be 
judgmental and 
some can be 
more mature." 

  8.6.18 
Ticket 
#6013 

I called PT 
and spoke to 
his son, who 
advised me 
his father is 
on vacation 
in California 
but will be 
back next 
week. I will 
attempt 
contact when 
he returns. 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             26 

78 06/06/2018 

"The medics 
were wrapped 
up in 
themselves and 
the computer to 
focus on me as 
a patient. I am 
a retired nurse 
and felt that the 
medics need to 
wise up to 
patient care." 

"I would 
encourage the 
medics to 
mature and take 
these 
experiences as 
learning 
experiences and 
treat people like 
human beings." 

"Medics 
need to 
mature a lot. 
They made 
jokes among 
themselves. 
Reassurance 
and eye 
contact 
would have 
been nice. I 
felt like I was 
a thing. My 
condition 
was not a 
joke to me 
but serious." 

8.6.18 
Ticket # 
6014 

See follow 
up below 

79 06/06/2018 

"everything" "have smaller 
needles for IV I 
was in a lot of 
pain but they 
couldn't get it in" 

      

80 06/06/2018     "very good-"     

81 06/06/2018 

"everything- 
they got here 
on time- very 
professional, 
but very caring- 
they made me 
feel like I was 
in good care." 

"I can’t really 
say. they 
treated me very 
well. they joked 
with me, helped 
me not worry as 
much and just 
took very good 
care of me" 

"they were 
very good" 

    

82 06/07/2018 

  "seemed to me 
everything was 
fine, they got 
me there - and 
when I did get 
there I wasn't 
hurt anymore" 

      



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             27 

83 06/07/2018 

"the driver and 
the other medic 
were great. 
they rolled me 
out real quick. 
they were 
excellent I 
wrote everyone 
a letter. the 
medics, the 
hospital, and 
the hotel.  I am 
just so thankful 
for everything 
that was done. 
and everyone 
who helped 
me." 

  "they were 
just great- I 
was bleeding 
so bad- they 
calmed me 
down. and let 
me know I 
was going to 
be alright" 

    

84 06/07/2018 

"my son was 
out of town and 
I was getting 
really weak. so, 
I thought I 
should go to 
the ER- I had 
not money for 
the a taxi so I 
called the 
ambulance- 
and they got 
me then the 
doctors gave 
me 5 pills" 

        

85 06/07/2018 

"well they took 
care of the 
problem that 
was happening 
at the time" 

        

86 06/07/2018 

"they treated 
me well and 
were very kind" 

        

87 06/07/2018 
"everything" "I don't know it 

was all good" 
      



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             28 

88 07/01/2018 
"everything, 
they were 
great" 

        

89 07/01/2018 

"they got me 
out of my 
house quick 
and to the 
hospital fast as 
well" 

"My wife wishes 
that more would 
have been done 
while I was 
ambulance. She 
wishes that a 
sugar drip would 
have been 
started before I 
got to the 
hospital. but the 
overall outcome 
was fine. I woke 
up and that's all 
that matters" 

      

90 07/01/2018 

"well they 
picked me up in 
the parking lot. 
they put me in 
the ambulance- 
they had to 
make sure my 
vitals were 
okay" 

"I don't think 
there could be 
anything, they 
did very well" 

      

91 07/01/2018 
"they tested out 
my heart to see 
what was going 
on" 

        

92 07/01/2018 

"they did a 
good job. they 
were friendly 
but 
professional. 
they two that 
worked on me 
were very good 
and kept me at 
ease" 

"my wife thinks 
that they could 
have gotten 
here a little 
quicker. quicker 
would have 
been better. but 
overall 
everything was 
fine" 

  8.6.18 
Ticket # 
6015 

See follow 
up below 

94 07/01/2018 

"well they were 
caring and 
professional- 
they told what 
they were 
going to do to 
get me off the 
floor- and it 

"they have 
always treated 
me right- and 
they are just 
good- very 
good!" 

      



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             29 

went very well" 

95 07/01/2018 

"they listened 
and understood 
my problem. 
they were able 
to treat me very 
well. I was 
having a hard 
time breathing 
and when I got 
out there they 
helped with 
that." 

"explaining that 
VA was full- I 
didn't 
understand why 
I was taken to a 
different hospital 
until I was there. 
just a little 
confusion" 

      

96 07/02/2018 

"you guys 
arrived you 
checked me 
out- thought I 
had a blood 
clot in the lugs- 
they very 
concerned 
about that- 
checked me 
out then sent 
me off to the 
hospital" 

"would have 
liked a phone 
call about my bill 
being paid. your 
kind of lax about 
that." 

  8.6.18 
Ticket 
#6017 

See follow 
up below 

98 07/02/2018 "it was most 
satisfactory" 

        

99 07/02/2018 
"everything was 
excellent." 

"just keep up 
the good work" 

      

101 07/02/2018 

"I can tell you 
that I am 
satisfied with 
everything. 
everything went 
well" 

        

102 07/03/2018 
"the care and 
the short time 
getting here" 

"nothing really"       



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             30 

103 07/03/2018 

"the overall 
care- they 
came in and 
were 
concerned from 
the start- they 
were very 
professional 
but very kind" 

"I'm not sure- 
they were here 
fast and 
everything went 
so smoothly I 
felt very 
comfortable with 
all of them" 

"they were 
just fantastic. 
each and 
every one of 
them" 

    

104 07/03/2018 
"everything" "I don't see any 

changes- you 
guys are already 
excellent" 

      

105 07/03/2018 "they were 
terrific!" 

        

106 07/03/2018 "everything" 

"nothing, you 
guys did 
everything that I 
thought you 
could do for me. 
thank you!" 

"they were all 
very good"     

107 07/03/2018 
"they put me in 
and drove me- 
and got there-" 

  

"they were 
just 
transporting 
me from one 
hospital to 
another. so 
there wasn't 
really 
anything 
being done 
to me" 

    

108 07/03/2018 

"the hooked up 
an IV- checked 
my sugar, 
checked my 
blood pressure- 
checked 
everything and 
got me ready 
for transport- 
just very 
professional" 

"I cant think of 
anything better- 
they did their job 
and what was 
expected from 
them" 

      



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             31 

109 07/04/2018 "They saved 
my life." 

"My dollar for 
the bus to get 
home came up 
missing. No one 
was able to help 
me home. I 
would like to see 
something 
change so that 
ppl who need to 
reply on public 
transportation to 
have a ride or 
some kind 
availability to get 
ppl home from 
the hospital." 

      

110 07/04/2018 

"I was very 
tickled by the 
service. I was 
having a heart 
attack." 

        

111 07/04/2018 
"outstanding 
service! Thank 
you!" 

        

112 07/05/2018 
"response was 
quick, they did 
a fantastic job!" 

        

113 07/06/2018 

"overall I was 
very impressed 
with everyone. 
They made me 
feel important 
and cared for 
me very well." 

        

114 07/07/2018 
"REMSA 
always takes 
really good 
care of me." 

        

115 07/07/2018   

"I can't image 
what, they are 
wonderful to me 
and treated me 
wonderfully!" 

      



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             32 

116 06/15/2018   "Nothing, they 
did their job."       

117 06/22/2018 
"They were 
very loving and 
cared for me. 
Thank you!" 

"Like I said, they 
took really good 
care of me. I 
was too sick to 
move." 

      

118 06/22/2018   

"Communication 
needs to be 
better. Ppl need 
to be trained 
with IV's. Use a 
butterfly with 
me." 

  
8.6.18 
Ticket # 
6018 

See follow 
up below 

119 06/22/2018 

"The medics 
were courteous 
and 
professional. 
They also had 
good teamwork 
during the 
transport." 

"Pt stated that in 
his opinion there 
was nothing to 
improve upon 
because the 
service was 
excellent." 

      

120 06/23/2018 

"The medics 
were more 
coordinated at 
the checking 
than the 
hospital staff." 

"Better pain 
management"   

8.6.18 
Ticket # 
6019 

See follow 
up below 

121 06/22/2018 

"Pt stated that 
the medics got 
him situated 
and 
immediately 
began to 
assess and 
care for him." 

        

122 06/23/2018 "They saved 
my life." 

"I wouldn't know 
what it would 
be. I am grateful 
for what they did 
do!" 

      



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             33 

123 06/24/2018 

"Everything 
went very well. 
They were 
really good and 
kept me calm 
and did such a 
good job." 

        

# Follow up  

24 

I spoke with the patient who sustained a head laceration after falling in the kitchen. I asked if 
the patient could elaborate on her comment about the crew having better communication with 
the ER, she said the medics told her she would be getting a blood test after arriving at the ER, 
which did not happen. I asked if there was anything else, she said no. This patient was treated 
with an IV, 12 lead ECG, blood glucose check, and vital signs. I asked if she was happy with 
the overall treatment, she stated she was. I will contact the crew to obtain their recollection of 
the event from May 26, 2018. 

39 

Called the patient - We are required to send the bill to the patient as a courtesy. PT had called 
the VA and spent 10 minutes over there having it explained to him - to which he responded it is 
not him but the older guys that get a bill like this and think they have to pay it. He understands 
why he gets the bill and that he is not responsible to pay it unless they VA denies travel 
benefits. 

42 
Pt complaint rec'd through EMS Survey - Called the patient - We are required to send the bill 
to the patient as a courtesy. He understands why he gets the bill and that he is not responsible 
to pay it unless they VA denies travel benefit. 

73 

This patient was taken aback when the crew asked her to walk to the ambulance from her 
house, step up into the ambulance, then had her sit on the bench seat, which was 
uncomfortable for her. She further stated the crew did not speak to her during transport, nor 
did they initiate any treatment. This appears in fact to be true based on the patient's PCR. The 
patient stated this was the first time she was compelled to complain about REMSA as she has 
been transported on other occasions. I will obtain occurrence reports from the crew and 
update the complaint. 

78 
I spoke with this patient, a very nice lady who felt the crew were not compassionate enough 
with her and didn't take her complaint seriously. She stated her son was a firefighter and was 
always caring and compassionate toward patients and he set a standard for her. I apologized 
for her experience and assured her I would speak with the crew. 

92 
This incident located in Cold Springs, Zone B 15:59 P1 Response standard. Unit assigned 
from the Red Rock post with a total response time of 10:07. Response time was within the 
standard for this response area.  

93 

This is the same patient from Ticket 6014 #79. While speaking with her about that complaint, I 
asked her about her comments on this report. I asked her if she could expand on her 
comment, but she was unable to and reiterated that the crew "could have done better". I 
thanked her for her time and encouraged her to contact me personally should she have 
concerns in the future. 

96 
pt. had an EMS Survey and requested a call regarding his bill. I called the patient and he said 
he had great service but could not recall what question he may have had. We discussed his 
Silver Saver Membership and this picked up his Sr Care Plus Copayment. He could not recall 
what question he had. I told him to call us should he recall what his question was. 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             34 

118 

This patient said she was overall satisfied with her care, but states she told the attendant not 
to start an IV in her hand because her veins would roll. Our crew member explained there were 
no other obvious veins, the patient states she told our crew member to go ahead but both 
attempts were unsuccessful. I apologized for her discomfort, and explained that certain 
patients are difficult to obtain venous access on. She said she understood, and that she is a 
former phlebotomist. She was quite pleasant and assured me she was satisfied with the care 
she received. 

120 
I spoke with this patient who immediately stated he was very happy with his care, and that he 
"gave the crew 5 stars" in every area, apparently referring to a previous satisfaction survey. He 
did state he could have used another ice pack for his mouth for pain but he was otherwise very 
complimentary of our service.  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018      35 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8B



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             36 
 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             37 
 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             38 

 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             39 
 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             40 
 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             41 
 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             42 

 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             43 

 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             44 
 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             45 

 
 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             46 
 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             47 

 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             48 

 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             49 
 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             50 
 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             51 
 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             52 
 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             53 

 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             54 
 



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             55 

 
REMSA 2017- 2018 PENALTY FUND RECONCILATION  

AS OF JULY 31, 2018 
REMSA 2017-18 PENALTY FUND RECONCILIATION AS JUNE 30, 2018 

 
     2017-18 Penalty Fund dollars accrued by month 

 
 

Month Amount 
  

 
July 2017 $6,510.60 

  
 

August 2017 6,275.80 
  

 
September 2017 9,269.04 

  
 

October 2017 7,060.72 
  

 
November 2017 6,271.88 

  
 

December 2017 8,733.88 
  

 
January 2018 7,279.84 

  
 

February 2018 8,018.44 
  

 
March 2018 8,407.16 

  
 

April 2018 5,633.04 
  

 
May 2018 8,711.08 

  
 

June 2018 9,434.36 
  Total accrued as of 6/30/2018 $91,605.84  
  

     2017-18 Penalty Fund dollars encumbered by month 
 

 
Program Amount Description Submitted 

 
Child Safety $5,965.00  

500 First Aid Kits for children's league 
sports January-18 

 

PulsePoint Respond CPR/AED 
Phone Application 10,000.00 

PulsePoint Respond Implementation 
Services April-18 

 

PulsePoint Respond CPR/AED 
Phone Application 2,824.69 

CTO Poweredge R330 server for PulsePoint 
system May-18 

 

PulsePoint Respond CPR/AED 
Phone Application 13,000.00 

PulsePoint Respond annual license, 
maintenance and support May-18 

 
Community AEDs 9,894.00 

8 AEDs to be donated to Washoe County 
Library Jun-18 

 

Bleeding Control Awareness 
Classes for County Employees 6,670.00 

Bleeding Control Classes taught for the 
year  Jun-18 

 

To Washoe County for 
Community AED Expenditures 1,500.00 

Requested per approval letter  for current 
fiscal year costs. Jun-18 

 
Child Safety 11,487.38 190 Child Car Seats Jun-18 

 

Bleeding Control Awareness 
Classes 30,264.77 

Supplies for class instruction and inventory 
(600) of Bleeding Control Kits for students  Jun-18 

 

Excess over balance previously 
approved for expenditure  (5,605.84)     

Total encumbered as of 6/30/2018 $86,000.00  
  

Penalty Fund Balance at 6/30/2018 $5,605.84  
  

     2017-18 Penalty Funds accrued exceeded the $86,000 approved for expenditure.  REMSA requests permission to 
apply the remaining balance of $5,605.84 towards supplies for Bleeding Control Kits.   

 

      
       



 

REMSA Franchise Compliance July 2018                                                                             56 

 
REMSA INQUIRIES 

 
JULY 2018 

 
No inquiries for July 2018 



OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
ODHO Phone: 775-328-2416   I   Fax: 775-328-3752   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  August 23, 2018 

TO: District Board of Health 
FROM: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 

(775) 328-2416, kdick@washoecounty.us

SUBJECT: Presentation and possible acceptance of the annual progress report on the 2017-
2020 Strategic Plan.  

SUMMARY 
In FY 2018, Washoe County Health District staff made significant progress in implementing the 
strategic plan.  Overall, out of 171 initiatives 158 were achieved or finished the year on target.   

This Item addresses all Health District Strategic Priorities. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
On April 14, 2016, the DBOH conducted a Strategic Planning Meeting to discuss and provide input 
for the development of a 2016-2018 Strategic Plan.  On June 23, 2016 the DBOH approved the 2016-
2018 Strategic Plan which was developed from the input and direction provided during the April 14, 
2016 DBOH meeting. 
On August 24, 2017 the DBOH accepted a semi-annual progress report on the 2016-2018 Strategic 
Plan. 
On November 2, 2017, the DBOH held a retreat to discuss preparation of a refreshed and updated 
2017-2020 Strategic Plan.   Based on DBOH input the plan was updated and the DBOH accepted the 
2017-2020 Strategic Plan at the December 14, 2017 DBOH meeting. 
On February 22, 2018, a semi-annual progress report was presented and accepted by the DBOH. 

BACKGROUND 
The 2017-2020 Strategic Plan includes Strategic Priorities, District Goals under these Priorities, and 
Community Outcomes for each of these District Goals.  An Action Plan of specific initiatives or 
actions, which will be taken to achieve these outcomes, has been developed by Health District Staff in 
order to guide implementation and assess progress in implementing the plan. 
Progress was tracked and reported in online system and summarized in the annual report. 

DHO__________ 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9



Subject: Progress Report on 2017-2020 Strategic Plan 
Date: February 22, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 

FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no additional fiscal impact to the FY17 budget should the Board accept the FY 2017-2020 
Strategic Plan Progress Report. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the District Board of Health accept the progress report on the Strategic Plan 
implementation and removal of the following items from the Strategic Plan:   

Recommended for removal: 1.3.1.2 “Explore with partnering agencies to provide onsite 
community health workers to assist and educate clients on how to access resources” 
Rational for removal: Item has been explored and funding for such a staff position would need 
to be identified for this position as no state funds are available to support community health 
workers contrary to our original assumptions. 

Recommended for revision: 2.1.5 “Increase the number of activities to prepare and respond to 
potential impacts due to drought, climate change, and natural disasters in Washoe County” 
Rational for revision: Suggested change to broaden activities to other types of disasters or 
emergencies.   

Recommended for revision: 2.2.5 “Decrease the number of inappropriate 911 calls” 
Rational for revision: Suggested change to “Conduct outreach campaigns to increase awareness 
of the appropriate use of 911” to allow for better measurement of success. 

Recommended for removal: 4.1.2 “Increase the percentage of Washoe County students who 
graduate high school in Washoe County” 
Rational for removal: High school graduation rates have improved and this was not identified 
as a top area of need and not incorporated into the 2018-2020 Community Health Improvement 
Plan.   

Recommended for removal: 4.3.1 and 4.3.2 “Reduce the percentage of food insecure 
children/people in Washoe County” 
Rational for removal: Food insecurity rates continue to fall and this was not identified as a top 
area of need and not incorporated into the 2018-2020 Community Health Improvement Plan.   

POSSIBLE MOTION 
Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be “Move to accept 
the annual report of Strategic Plan implementation and removal or revision of the listed items.” 



1 

FY18 Strategic Plan Progress 

The Health District has made significant progress in FY18 in implementing the Strategic Plan 
initiatives to achieve goals established under the six strategic priorities.  The information 
presented below describes the progress achieved in fiscal year 2017-2018 (July 1, 2017 to June 
30, 2018). 

1 - Healthy Lives: Improve the health of our community by empowering individuals to live 
healthier lives. 

1.1 Reduce the negative health and economic impacts of obesity and chronic disease. 
This goal was achieved and 100% of the outcomes were on target for FY18. 

The Chronic Disease Prevention Program (CDPP) continues to support school based wellness 
initiatives such as the Wolf Pack Coaches Challenge and WCSD Student Wellness Committee.  
In school year 2017/2018, 67 classrooms signed up for the Wolfpack Coaches Challenge and 57 
classrooms completed it, an increase from the 11 classrooms that participated in the prior year. 
Additional accomplishments for FY18 included implementation of the WOW! (We Order Well!) 
menu labeling campaign which resulted in 814,169 total impressions between radio, cable TV 
and Facebook ads.  An additional Health Educator was hired to support additional chronic 
disease prevention initiatives and has been making great progress.  In an effort to secure further 
funding for Chronic Disease Prevention, several larger funding proposals have been submitted 
and are awaiting a funding determination. 

1.2 Promote preventive health services that are proven to improve health outcomes in 
the community. The goal of 40% completion for this fiscal year was surpassed and 60% of 
the items were completed.   

Clinical and Community Health Services had a very successful year for media campaigns with 
over 8 million media impression across multiple campaigns and media outlets.  The sexual health 
programs had over 3 million points of engagement via a print media campaign, a smoke free 
campaign had 3.8 million points of engagement from TV radio and print media, and the W.O.W. 
(We Order Well) program campaign had over 800,000 points of engagement.  The WIC 
(Women, Infants and Children) program hosted an on-site farmers market, improving access to 
fresh fruits and vegetables to Washoe County Health Department clients and local residents who 
have limited access to food. 

Health indicators in several areas have improved locally; teen birth rates have continued a 
decreasing trend and are currently at 21.9 per 1,000 births, lower than the goal of 25.6 per 1,000 
births.  Family planning clinic staff has continued to promote Long Acting Reversible 



2 

Contraceptives which can be effective in reducing teenage pregnancy rates.  Our Immunization 
Programs rate of up-to-date 19-35 month olds for recommended immunizations closed out the 
year at 77.7%, near the 2020 goal of 80%. 

1.3 Improve access to health care so people of all means receive the health services they 
need.  This goal met the annual target for completing 20% of the progress towards a 5 year 
goal. 

CCHS has also continued to work with the Food Bank of Northern Nevada (FBNN), Northern 
Nevada HOPES and Community Health Alliance (CHA) to enroll clients in an Affordable Care 
Act plan, Medicaid and Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP), and is still working 
with the Division of Public and Behavioral Health (DPBH) to get a full time Medicaid enroller at 
the Health District.  Our South Reno WIC clinic has an enrollment assistant from HOPES as 
well.  As not all clients in our area can make it to our clinic location, CCHS has provided 
extensive services to the community at off-site events. For FY18, CCHS participated in 247 
offsite clinic events to provide services like vaccinations and STD screenings to some of our 
most vulnerable and at risk populations. 

Recommended for removal: 1.3.1.2 “Explore with partnering agencies to provide onsite 
community health workers to assist and educate clients on how to access resources” 

Rational for removal: Item has been explored and funding for such a staff position would need 
to be identified for this position as no state funds are available to support community health 
workers contrary to our original assumptions. 

2 - Healthy Environment: Create a healthier environment that allows people to safely enjoy 
everything Washoe County has to offer. 

2.1 Protect people from negative environmental impacts.  This goal is complete and 
with 100% of its initiatives implemented in FY18. 

Air Quality Management Division continues to successfully work to protect people from 
negative environmental impacts through effective ambient air monitoring and planning activities 
along with permitting and inspection of over 1,200 facilities located in Washoe County.  In 
FY18, 99% of all days were considered to be healthy.  Through the Ozone Advance initiatives, 
Washoe County was be designated as meeting attainment for the ozone standard, a substantial 
achievement in support of public health and economic growth in our area. 

The Waste Characterization Study was completed in FY18 and a final report has been posted on 
the website.  Results of the study will be used to establish a baseline for recycling rates and to 
develop strategies for increasing recycling rates in Washoe County. 

2.2 Keep people safe where they live, work, and play.   Progress was made on this goal 
and 80% of its initiatives for FY18. 



3 

EHS staff has continued to make substantial progress in implementing risk based inspection 
program standards.  Of the 12 inspection programs, two have fully implemented risk based 
standards, one of which is the largest EHS inspection program (Food Safety). EHS staff have 
developed and implemented Quality Assurance/Quality Control procedures for inspection staff to 
reduce fluctuations in pass rate and improve compliance with food safety regulations.  

In an effort to decrease the number of inappropriate 911 calls, a marketing campaign was 
conducted in late spring/early summer of 2018.  The 9-1-1 “Think Before You Dial” campaign 
had over 4 million impressions from outdoor and TV media outlets, plus Spanish and English 
Facebook ads the resulted in over 2,500 clicks directing people to the campaign landing page 
with further information on appropriate use if 911. 

3 - Local Culture of Health: Lead a transformation in our community’s awareness, 
understanding, and appreciation of health resulting in direct action. 

3.1 Raise awareness of the Washoe County Health District and the services it offers 
within our community. Progress was made on this goal and its initiatives for FY18. 

The Health District posted, conducted, and broadcast a total of 2,266 media interviews, press 
releases, social media postings, and emergency radio messages in FY18.  Significant media 
engagement has occurred around the influenza and meningitis outbreaks this fall and winter in 
addition to the measles outbreak this spring.  Across several ad campaigns over seven million 
impressions were made. 

3.2 Work with others to establish policies that positively impact public health.  This 
goal was accomplished in FY18. 

Progress continues to occur in moving policies forward in several areas including smoke free 
parks.  In FY18, the Health District worked with 1) City of Sparks and 2) Sun Valley General 
Improvement District to establish smoke free parks ordinances. In late June of 2018, the 2018-
2020 Community Health Improvement Plan was approved by the District Board of Health and 
implementation of the plan has begun.  Health District staff continues to work closely with 
Truckee Meadows Healthy Communities (TMHC), and while no policy changes have resulted 
from TMHC to date, an initiative to develop a community wide strategy on affordable housing is 
nearing completion; two phases of the three phase project are complete. 

Progress has also been made in establishing a Government Affairs position in the Health District, 
the approved FY 19 budget includes funding for the position.  

3.3 Inform the community of important health trends by capturing and communicating 
health data.  Progress was made on this goal and corresponding initiatives for FY18. 

Significant progress was seen in FY18 for the publication of reports communicating critical 
health information to the community and a total of seven reports were published in FY18.  This 



4 

included the 2017 annual report of progress made in the 2016-2018 Community Health 
Improvement Plan, 2018-2020 Community Health Needs Assessment and corresponding 
Community Health Improvement Plan, in addition to the Nevada Air Quality Trends Report, 
2016 Antibiogram, Communicable Disease Annual Summary, and the Chronic Disease Report 
Card.   

In addition to the successes highlighted above of the various media campaigns, 2,062 press 
releases, social media postings and emergency radio station announcements were made. The 
Health District’s website continues to be heavily utilized with over 328,000 unique page views in 
FY 2018. 

3.4 Raise awareness of the benefits of a healthy community to build a local culture of 
health.  This goal is complete with 100% of its initiatives implemented in FY18. 

In addition to the reports published and released to the community, several events were held to 
further promote the importance of improving health.  Several well attended events were 
conducted including a County Health Rankings event. The Health District worked with TMHC 
/TMRPA to support the Enterprise Affordable Housing Strategy and Air Quality promoted 
Ozone Advance and planning to protect air quality and community health. The Chronic Disease 
Prevention Program worked with Reno Housing Authority to develop a healthy living mural for 
the community which was very well received. 

4 - Impactful Partnerships: Extend our impact by leveraging partnerships to make 
meaningful progress on health issues. 

4.1 Lend support and accountability to improve K-12 educational outcomes. This goal 
is complete with 100% of its initiatives implemented in FY18. 

The Washoe County School District was provided with various tools to help in preventing and 
controlling GI outbreaks, including a toolkit which was fully distributed and is now being 
reviewed for any needed updates.  The average duration for an outbreak for the 2017-2018 
school year was 21 days, well below the goal of 40 days and reduction from the previous year’s 
median number of 25 days. 

4.2 Support and promote behavioral health.  This goal is complete with 100% of its 
initiatives implemented in FY18. 

The 2017 Youth Risk Behavior Survey data showed reductions in the percentage of student self-
reported suicide attempts, alcohol use and drug use.   Slight increases were seen in the number of 
bullying incidences reported, which may be due to improved avenues for reporting. In the 2018-
2020 CHIP youth suicide prevention was included as a specific objective and work is underway 
to support the full implementation of the Signs of Suicide Program in all 7th grade classrooms. 



5 

4.3 Improve nutrition by supporting efforts to increase food security and access.  This 
goal is complete with 100% of its initiatives implemented in FY18. 

Previous commitments to work with other community partners to improve food security as 
included in the 2016-2018 CHIP were largely completed in FY 17 and reported on in the 2017 
CHIP Annual Report. From this work the Prescription Pantry program was created which allows 
for healthcare providers to give patients in need a “prescription” that can be redeemed for 
healthy foods at a local food pantry.  

Recommended for removal: 4.3.1 and 4.3.2 “Reduce the percentage of food insecure 
children/people in Washoe County” 

Rational for removal: Food insecurity rates continue to fall and this was not identified as a top 
area of need and not incorporated into the 2018-2020 Community Health Improvement Plan.     

4.4 Enhance the Regional Emergency Medical Services System. This goal is complete 
with 100% of its initiatives implemented in FY18. 

Work continues on the identified goals and objectives of the five-year EMS Strategic Plan 
approved on October of 2016.  The EMS Advisory Board receives quarterly updates on the 
progress of the planning initiatives.  Partner agencies have been successful with including both 
fire and REMSA prehospital data in system uploads, however, further testing of system 
expansion is needed to complete implementation.   

4.5 Engage the Community in Public Health Improvement. This goal was achieved and 
100% of the outcomes were on target for FY18. 

In March of 2018, in partnership with the Nevada Public Health Association and eight other 
community partners, the Health District conducted an event to share the Robert Wood Johnson 
County Health rankings with the community.  The event was well attended by members of the 
community and was also covered by the local media. 

With support of 38 partner agencies across the community, 2018-2020 CHIP was completed in 
June of 2018.  Three CHIP focus areas were chosen with the help of the TMHC Steering 
Committee, taking into consideration the highest priority needs of the community and the current 
capacity of the community to engage in such work.  The CHIP was developed with extensive 
community engagement and serves as a means to align efforts across the multiple sectors. 

Health District staff continues to actively participate in the TMHC steering committee meetings 
to further engage the broader community in health initiatives.  The District Health Officer also 
serves as a TMHC board member, providing leadership and direction toward collaborative work.  

5 - Financial Stability: Enable the WCHD to make long-term commitments in areas that 
will positively impact the community’s health by growing reliable sources of income. 



6 

5.1 Updating the Health District’s financial model to align with the needs of the 
community.  This goal was achieved and 100% of the outcomes were on target for FY18. 

Staff continue work to identify ways of increasing state funding support for Washoe County 
Health District which is currently at 1% of total WCHD funding. Discussions continue with the 
County regarding the need to adjust the County General Fund support to include the cost of 
negotiated cost of living adjustments and benefits for employees.  Efforts have also been put 
forth to engage the Nevada Department of Health and Human Services to pursue increased 
funding from the state to county health authorities. 

5.2 Ensuring resources are spent where they can have the most impact by identifying 
opportunities for cost savings.  This goal is complete with 100% of its initiatives 
implemented in FY18. 

Budget per capita increased from FY17 budgeted funding of $50.66 to $52.24 per capita in 
FY18, a 4.6% increase largely due to increases in fees and an increase in the volume of activities 
generating fees.   

 6 - Organizational Capacity: Strengthen our workforce and increase operational capacity 
to support a growing population. 

6.1 Create a positive and productive work environment.  This goal is complete with 
100% of its initiatives implemented in FY18. 

Many security and facility enhancements were put into place in FY18 including two surveillance 
cameras, further expansion of badge readers to secure workspaces and 20 panic buttons installed.  
Our facilities were improved through various small projects and new furniture was purchased for 
an administrative conference room and the auditorium conference rooms, both of which are used 
frequently for both internal and public meetings.  The percent of annual performance reviews 
completed on time reached 90.2% across the health district, which is above the 85% annual goal. 
The Quality Improvement team meets regularly and four quality improvement projects were 
completed in FY18. 

6.2 Focus on continuing to build staff expertise.  This goal is complete with 100% of its 
initiatives implemented in FY18. 

The Workforce Development Plan was completed and information on training opportunities 
tailored to the needs identified in the plan is distributed to staff monthly.  The Health District 
organized and partnered with Washoe County HR, to deliver part one of a two part training 
series focused on learning organizations and managing change based on identified needs.  Part 
two of the training will occur in FY 19.   

6.3 Achieve Public Health Accreditation.  Progress was made on this goal and its 100% 
of the initiatives for FY18. 



7 

The Accreditation team completed an incredible amount of work on FY18, gathering all but a 
few documents needed for Accreditation.  At the end of FY18, 45% of required documents had 
been finalized, formatted and uploaded into the online submission platform.  The Health District 
is on track for compete document submittal October 1, 2018. 

In total, 158 out of 171 items were achieved.  Items that were not achieved include decreasing 
the reports of bullying in schools, EMS and Air Quality projects that awaiting completion steps 
or approval from partners or outside agencies and a gap in timing between the development and 
transition to the current Community Health Improvement Plan from the previous plan. The 
following items were not on target or achieved at the end of FY18: 

2.1.1.3 Expand air monitoring network to West Reno. 
2.1.2.1 Establish Reno-Tahoe Clean Cities Coalition with Department of Energy designation. 
2.1.5 Increase the number of activities to prepare and respond to potential impacts due to 
drought, climate change, and natural disasters in Washoe County. 
3.1.1.1 Develop periodic newsletter or blog to promote Health District activities. 
4.2.4 Reduce the rate of K-12 Washoe County School District bullying incidents. 
4.3.1.1 Increase the number of active school gardens in Washoe County 
4.4.2 Reduce the median EMS regional response times (initial contact to first arriving unit in 
min:sec) in Washoe County. 
4.4.2.1 Improve pre-hospital EMS performance by reducing system response times through the 
use of technology and the development of regional response policies by December 31, 2021. 
4.4.3 Coordinate communications amongst EMS partners. 
4.5.1.2 Transition activities related to 2016-2018 Community Heath Improvement Plan (CHIP) 
to reflect 2018-2020 Truckee Meadows Healthy Communities CHIP. 
5.2.1.1 Establish an agreement with the County on adjusting general fund transfers to address 
COLAs. 
6.1.1 Increase the employee engagement score in Washoe County. 



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT

WCHD FY16-20 STRATEGIC PLAN

Executive Summary w/Progress for FY18
As of August 16, 2018



MISSION STATEMENT
To protect and enhance the well-being and quality of life for all in Washoe County.

VISION STATEMENT
A healthy community 

CORE VALUES
Trustworthiness: appropriate allocation of resources, spend prudently, stewardship
Professionalism: ethics, education, accountability
Partner-Collaborate: be flexible, adapt, be accessible, be proactive, innovate and create

STRATEGIC DIRECTION
Leaders in a unified community making measurable improvements in the health of its people and environment 

Page 1 of 12



WCHD FY16-20 STRATEGIC PLAN - PROGRESS AT-A-GLANCE

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES AND DISTRICT GOALS EOY TARGET, MEASURE ACTUAL STATUS

1 Healthy Lives: Improve the health of our community by empowering individuals to live healthier lives.
1.1 Reduce the negative health and economic impacts of obesity and chronic
disease.

100% 
% of community outcomes on

target

75% On Target

As of 08/15/18

1.2 Promote preventive health services that are proven to improve health
outcomes in the community.

40% 
% of community outcomes on

target

60% On Target

As of 07/24/18

1.3 Improve access to health care so people of all means receive the health
services they need.

100% 
% of community outcomes on

target

20% On Target

As of 07/11/18

2 Healthy Environment: Create a healthier environment that allows people to safely enjoy everything Washoe County
has to offer.
2.1 Protect people from negative environmental impacts. 100% 

% of community outcomes on
target

100% On Target

As of 07/03/18

2.2 Keep people safe where they live, work, and play. 100% 
% of community outcomes on

target

80% On Target

As of 08/08/18

3 Local Culture of Health: Lead a transformation in our community’s awareness, understanding, and appreciation of
health resulting in direct action.
3.1 Raise awareness of the Washoe County Health District and the services it
offers within our community. # of press and social media

releases

2,266 On Target

As of 08/08/18

3.2 Work with others to establish policies that positively impact public health. 100% 
% of annual goal accomplished

100% On Target

As of 07/23/18

3.3 Inform the community of important health trends by capturing and
communicating health data.

100 
Number of press releases and

social media postings

2,052 On Target

As of 04/12/18

3.4 Raise awareness of the benefits of a healthy community to build a local
culture of health.

100% 
% of community outcomes on

target

100% On Target

As of 07/24/18

4 Impactful Partnerships: Extend our impact by leveraging partnerships to make meaningful progress on health issues.
4.1 Lend support and accountability to improve K-12 educational outcomes. 100% 

% of community outcomes on
target

100% Achieved

As of 10/17/17

4.2 Support and promote behavioral health. 100% 
% of community outcomes on

target

90% Achieved

As of 08/14/18

4.3 Improve nutrition by supporting efforts to increase food security and
access.

100% 
% of community outcomes on

target

100% Achieved

As of 02/01/18

4.4 Enhance the Regional Emergency Medical Services System. 100% 
% of community outcomes on

target

75% On Target

As of 08/15/18

4.5 Engage the Community in Public Health Improvement. 100% 
% Complete

100% Achieved

As of 08/02/18

5 Financial Stability: Enable the WCHD to make long-term commitments in areas that will positively impact the
community’s health by growing reliable sources of income.

Page 2 of 12



5.1 Update the WCHD’s financial model to align with the needs of the
community.

100% 
Completed model

100% On Target

As of 07/23/18

5.2 Ensure resources are spent where they can have the most impact by
identifying opportunities for cost savings.

100% 
% of community outcomes on

target

100% On Target

As of 03/30/18

6 Organizational Capacity: Strengthen our workforce and increase operational capacity to support a growing population.
6.1 Create a positive and productive work environment. 100% 

% of annual goal achieved
100% On Target

As of 07/23/18

6.2 Focus on continuing to build staff expertise. 100% 
% of plan outcomes on target

50% On Target

As of 01/31/18

6.3 Achieve National Public Health Accreditation 100% 60.60% On Target

As of 01/30/18

Page 3 of 12



WCHD FY16-20 STRATEGIC PLAN - PROGRESS DETAIL
COMMUNITY STRATEGIC PRIORITIES & DISTRICT GOALS

1 Healthy Lives: Improve the health of our community by empowering individuals to live healthier lives.

1.1  Reduce the negative health and economic impacts of obesity and chronic disease.
(Steve Kutz) (12/31/21)

Measure: % of
community outcomes
on target
Target: 100%

75% On Target

COMMUNITY OUTCOMES START/END
DATE

TARGET,
MEASURE

ACTUAL STATUS

1.1.1 Reduce the percentage of overweight and obese adolescents (Steve Kutz) 07/01/16,
06/30/20

% of overweight
adolescents

100% On Target

As of 08/15/18

1.1.2 Reduce the percentage of overweight and obese adults in Washoe County. (Steve Kutz) 07/01/16,
06/30/20

21%
% of overweight and

obese adults

On Target

As of 06/28/18

1.1.3 Reduce the percentage of adults who are current smokers in Washoe County. (Erin
Dixon)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

14%
% of adults who are

current smokers

15.30% On Target

As of 08/15/18

1.1.4 Reduce the percentage of youth who currently smoke cigarettes in Washoe County.
(Erin Dixon)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

9%
% of youth who
currently smoke

cigarrettes

On Target

As of 04/24/18

1.1.5 Reduce the prevalence of diabetes in Washoe County. (Erin Dixon) 07/01/16,
06/30/20

7.10%
Prevalence of

diabetes

On Target

As of 06/28/18

1.1.6 Reduce the coronary heart disease mortality rate (per 100,000) in Washoe County. (Erin
Dixon)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

Coronary heart
disease mortality rate

(per 100,000)

On Target

As of 08/15/18

1.1.7 Reduce the cancer mortality rate (per 100,000) in Washoe County. (Erin Dixon) 07/01/16,
06/30/20

172.50
Cancer mortality rate

(per 100,00)

171 On Target

As of 08/15/18

1.2  Promote preventive health services that are proven to improve health outcomes in
the community. (Steve Kutz) (06/30/21)

Measure: % of
community outcomes
on target
Target: 40%

60% On Target

COMMUNITY OUTCOMES START/END
DATE

TARGET,
MEASURE

ACTUAL STATUS

1.2.1 Monitor the teen birth rates (per 1,000) in Washoe County. (Lisa Lottritz) 07/01/16,
06/30/20

25.60
Teen birth rates (per

100,000)

21.90 Achieved

As of 07/11/18

1.2.2 Increase the percentage of newly reported hepatitis C cases with confirmatory test
results in Washoe County. (Randall Todd)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

60%
% of newly reported

Hep C cases

67% Achieved

As of 01/30/18

1.2.3 Increase the number of people utilizing WIC in Washoe County. (Erin Dixon) 07/01/16,
06/30/20

9,855
# of people utilizing

WIC

On Target

As of 06/28/18

1.2.4 Increase the percentage of children 19-35 months old who receive the recommended
doses of vaccine, to Healthy People 2020 goal of 80%. (Linda Gabor)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

78%
% of children
immunized

77.70% On Target

As of 07/11/18

Page 4 of 12



1.3  Improve access to health care so people of all means receive the health services they
need. (Steve Kutz) (06/30/21)

Measure: % of
community outcomes
on target
Target: 100%

20% On Target

COMMUNITY OUTCOMES START/END
DATE

TARGET,
MEASURE

ACTUAL STATUS

1.3.1 Increase the percentage of the population with health insurance in Washoe County.
(Steve Kutz)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

83.30%
% of population with

health insurance

88.70% On Target

As of 07/11/18

1.3.2 Collaborate with community partners to increase the percentage of Washoe County
residents with a primary care provider. (Steve Kutz)

07/01/16,
06/30/21

71.50%
% of Washoe County
residents with a usual
primary care provider

88.60% On Target

As of 07/11/18

1.3.3 Increase offsite services through increased funding and partnerships. 07/01/16,
06/30/20

200
Increase in number of
CCHS offsite Services

247 On Target

As of 07/11/18

1.3.4 Increase the number of offsite services in Washoe County. (Catrina Peters) 07/01/16,
06/30/18

6
Increase the number

of offsite services

2 Achieved

As of 08/10/18

2 Healthy Environment: Create a healthier environment that allows people to safely enjoy everything Washoe County has to offer.

2.1  Protect people from negative environmental impacts. (Charlene Albee) (12/31/21) Measure: % of
community outcomes
on target
Target: 100%

100% On Target

COMMUNITY OUTCOMES START/END
DATE

TARGET,
MEASURE

ACTUAL STATUS

2.1.1 Reduce the ozone concentration (parts per billion) - design value, 3-year average
number in Washoe County. (Charlene Albee)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

70
Ozone concentration

(parts per billion) -
Design value, 3-year

average number

70 Achieved

As of 07/09/18

2.1.2 Increase the air quality index - percentage good and moderate days in Washoe County.
(Charlene Albee)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

98%
Air quality index - %
good and moderate

days

99% Achieved

As of 07/09/18

2.1.3 Reduce the waste generation - tons per year per capita in Washoe County. (Dave
McNinch)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

4.38
Waste generation -
Tons per year/per

capita

On Target

As of 11/22/17

2.1.4 Increase the recycling rates in Washoe County. (Dave McNinch) 07/01/16,
06/30/20

35%
Recycling rates

35% On Target

As of 07/11/18

2.1.5 Increase the number of activities to prepare and respond to potential impacts due to
drought, climate change, and natural disasters in Washoe County. (Christina Conti)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

10
# of exercises to

prepare and respond
to potential impacts

due to drought, clima

Waiting

As of 07/26/18

2.2  Keep people safe where they live, work, and play. (Dave McNinch) (12/31/21) Measure: % of
community outcomes
on target
Target: 100%

80% On Target

COMMUNITY OUTCOMES START/END
DATE

TARGET,
MEASURE

ACTUAL STATUS

Page 5 of 12



2.2.1 Increase the number of programs that have risk-based environmental program
standards. (Dave McNinch)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

2
Number of programs
that have risk-based

environmental
program standards

2 On Target

As of 07/11/18

2.2.2 Increase the percentage of risk-based food inspections in Washoe County. (Dave
McNinch)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

100%
% of food inspections

conducted that are
risk-based

100% Achieved

As of 11/28/17

2.2.3 Increase the food inspection "pass" rate (i.e. facility status equals "pass" not
"conditional pass" or "closed") in Washoe County. (Dave McNinch)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

92%
food inspection pass

rate

91% On Target

As of 07/11/18

2.2.4 Reduce the percentage of foodborne illness risk factors in food establishments in
Washoe County. (Dave McNinch)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

0%
% reduction in

foodborne illness

On Target

As of 07/11/18

2.2.5 Decrease the number of inappropriate 911 calls (Christina Conti) 07/01/16,
12/31/21

Number of
inappropriate 911

calls made annually
across Washoe

County

100% Achieved

As of 07/26/18

Page 6 of 12



 OPERATIONS STRATEGIC PRIORITIES & DISTRICT GOALS

3 Local Culture of Health: Lead a transformation in our community’s awareness, understanding, and appreciation of health resulting in direct action.

3.1  Raise awareness of the Washoe County Health District and the services it offers within
our community. (Phil Ulibarri) (06/30/21)

Measure: # of press and
social media releases
Target:

2,266 On Target

COMMUNITY OUTCOMES START/END
DATE

TARGET,
MEASURE

ACTUAL STATUS

3.1.1 Communicate important health trends and data using traditional and social media,
interviews, and press releases in Washoe County. (Phil Ulibarri)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

250
# of traditional media
interviews and press

releases

244 On Target

As of 04/12/18

3.1.2 Increase the number of social media posts in Washoe County. (Phil Ulibarri) 07/01/16,
06/30/20

500
# of social media

posts

2,120 On Target

As of 04/12/18

3.1.3 Track the number of impressions from advertising campaigns in Washoe County. (Phil
Ulibarri)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

13,800,000
# of impressions from
advertising campaigns

7,773,887 On Target

As of 08/15/18

3.1.4 Increase the percentage of permits applied for online in Washoe County. (Dave
McNinch)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

50%
% of permits applied

for online

2% On Target

As of 07/11/18

3.2  Work with others to establish policies that positively impact public health. (Kevin Dick)
(06/30/21)

Measure: % of annual
goal accomplished
Target: 100%

100% On Target

COMMUNITY OUTCOMES START/END
DATE

TARGET,
MEASURE

ACTUAL STATUS

3.2.1 Increase the number of policies established or improved that positively impact public
health in Washoe County. Examples might potentially include:taxation of e-nicotine products,
vaping in the Clean Indoor Air Act, access to behavioral health services, height and weight
measurements in schools, expansion of wrap-around models. (Kevin Dick)

05/01/16,
06/30/20

2
Number of policies

established or
improved that

positively impact
public health

2 On Target

As of 07/23/18

3.3  Inform the community of important health trends by capturing and communicating
health data. (Phil Ulibarri) (06/30/21)

Measure: Number of
press releases and social
media postings
Target: 100

2,052 On Target

COMMUNITY OUTCOMES START/END
DATE

TARGET,
MEASURE

ACTUAL STATUS

3.3.1 Increase the number of community public health advisories issued in Washoe County.
(Phil Ulibarri)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

66
# of community public

health advisories
issued

2,052 On Target

As of 04/12/18

3.3.2 Monitor the monthly visitors to the Health District website for Washoe County. (Phil
Ulibarri)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

5,911
Average number of

unique visitors
monthly to the

website

27,312.83 On Target

As of 08/14/18

3.3.3 Increase the number of community health data reports published/promoted in Washoe
County. For example: CHNA, County Health Rankings, Air Quality Trends, Communicable
Disease Annual Report, Foodborne Illness Risk Factors, Antibiogram Report. (Kevin Dick)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

5
# of community health

data reports
published/promoted

7 On Target

As of 07/23/18

3.4  Raise awareness of the benefits of a healthy community to build a local culture of
health. (Kevin Dick) (06/30/21)

Measure: % of
community outcomes
on target
Target: 100%

100% On Target

Page 7 of 12



COMMUNITY OUTCOMES START/END
DATE

TARGET,
MEASURE

ACTUAL STATUS

3.4.1 Increase the number of initiatives contributing to building a local culture of health.
(Kevin Dick)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

4
# of supporting

initiatives undertaken

7 On Target

As of 07/23/18

4 Impactful Partnerships: Extend our impact by leveraging partnerships to make meaningful progress on health issues.

4.1  Lend support and accountability to improve K-12 educational outcomes. (Catrina
Peters) (06/30/21)

Measure: % of
community outcomes
on target
Target: 100%

100% Achieved

COMMUNITY OUTCOMES START/END
DATE

TARGET,
MEASURE

ACTUAL STATUS

4.1.1 Reduce the duration of GI outbreaks in schools in Washoe County. Duration of outbreak
based on date difference between the last onset date and the first onset date. Using median
duration. (Randall Todd)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

40
Duration of GI

outbreaks in schools
(Days)

21 Achieved

As of 07/23/18

4.1.2 Increase the percentage of Washoe County students who graduate high school in
Washoe County. (Catrina Peters)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

76.90%
% of Washoe County

students who
graduate high school

84% Achieved

As of 01/31/18

4.2  Support and promote behavioral health. (Catrina Peters) (06/30/21) Measure: % of
community outcomes
on target
Target: 100%

90% Achieved

COMMUNITY OUTCOMES START/END
DATE

TARGET,
MEASURE

ACTUAL STATUS

4.2.1 Reduce the percentage of Washoe County high school student who attempt suicide.
(Catrina Peters)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

11.10%
% of Washoe County
high school student
who attempt suicide

8.90% Achieved

As of 07/24/18

4.2.2 Reduce the percentage of Washoe County high school students who ever took a
prescription drug without a doctor’s prescription. (Catrina Peters)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

17.40%
% of WCHS students

taking off script
medication

14.80% Achieved

As of 07/24/18

4.2.3 Reduce the percentage of Washoe County high school students who were offered, sold,
or given an illegal drug by someone on school property. (Catrina Peters)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

31.40%
% of high school

students who were
offered, sold, or given

an illegal drug

28.30% Achieved

As of 08/08/18

4.2.4 Reduce the rate of K-12 Washoe County School District bullying incidents. (Catrina
Peters)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

-10%
Rate of K-12 Washoe
County School District

bullying incidents.

2% Off Target

As of 01/31/18

4.2.5 Reduce the percentage of Washoe County high school students who currently drink
alcohol. (Catrina Peters)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

34.70%
% of Washoe County
high school students
who currently drink

alcohol

28.20% Achieved

As of 07/24/18

4.3  Improve nutrition by supporting efforts to increase food security and access. (Catrina
Peters) (12/31/17)

Measure: % of
community outcomes
on target
Target: 100%

100% Achieved

COMMUNITY OUTCOMES START/END
DATE

TARGET,
MEASURE

ACTUAL STATUS

Page 8 of 12



4.3.1 Reduce the percentage of food insecure children in Washoe County. (Catrina Peters) 07/01/16,
06/30/20

25.70%
% of food insecure

children

21.60% Achieved

As of 11/30/17

4.3.2 Reduce the percentage of food insecure people in Washoe County. (Catrina Peters) 07/01/16,
06/30/20

14.25%
% of food insecure

people

12.70% Achieved

As of 12/19/17

4.4  Enhance the Regional Emergency Medical Services System. (Christina Conti)
(12/31/21)

Measure: % of
community outcomes
on target
Target: 100%

75% On Target

COMMUNITY OUTCOMES START/END
DATE

TARGET,
MEASURE

ACTUAL STATUS

4.4.1 Implement a single patient record for pre-hospital care in Washoe County. (Christina
Conti)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

100%
% Complete

65% On Target

As of 07/26/18

4.4.2 Reduce the median EMS regional response times (initial contact to first arriving unit in
min:sec) in Washoe County. (Christina Conti)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

6
Median EMS regional

response times
(Minutes)

Deferred

As of 11/28/17

4.4.3 Coordinate communications amongst EMS partners. (Christina Conti) 07/01/16,
06/30/20

100%
% P25 Radio

Migration complete

Waiting

As of 08/15/18

4.5  Engage the Community in Public Health Improvement. (Catrina Peters) (06/30/21) Measure: % Complete
Target: 100% 100% Achieved

COMMUNITY OUTCOMES START/END
DATE

TARGET,
MEASURE

ACTUAL STATUS

4.5.1 Multiple Community Partners working collectively to implement the 2018-2020 Truckee
Meadows Healthy Communities Community Health Improvement. (Catrina Peters)

10/17/17,
06/30/20

15
Number of partners

working
collaboratively

15 Achieved

As of 01/31/18

Page 9 of 12



 FINANCIAL STRATEGIC PRIORITIES & DISTRICT GOALS

5 Financial Stability: Enable the WCHD to make long-term commitments in areas that will positively impact the community’s health by growing
reliable sources of income.

5.1  Update the WCHD’s financial model to align with the needs of the community. (Anna
Heenan) (12/31/21)

Measure: Completed
model
Target: 100%

100% On Target

COMMUNITY OUTCOMES START/END
DATE

TARGET,
MEASURE

ACTUAL STATUS

5.1.1 Increase State funding support in Washoe County. (Anna Heenan) 07/01/16,
06/30/20

1%
% state funding

support

1% On Target

As of 03/30/18

5.2  Ensure resources are spent where they can have the most impact by identifying
opportunities for cost savings. (Anna Heenan) (06/30/21)

Measure: % of
community outcomes
on target
Target: 100%

100% On Target

COMMUNITY OUTCOMES START/END
DATE

TARGET,
MEASURE

ACTUAL STATUS

5.2.1 Increase budget per capita (Base target is $49.88). (Anna Heenan) 07/01/16,
06/30/20

$49.88
budget per capita

$52.24 Achieved

As of 07/23/18

5.2.2 Generate cost savings (in dollars) through QI projects. (Catrina Peters) 07/01/16,
06/30/20

$ of cost savings On Target

As of 07/24/18

5.2.3 Increase utilization of interns and volunteers (hours/FTEs). (Anna Heenan) 07/01/16,
06/30/20

13,676
# hours of work from

interns and
volunteers

9,986 On Target

As of 11/28/17

Page 10 of 12



 PEOPLE AND LEARNING STRATEGIC PRIORITIES & DISTRICT GOALS

6 Organizational Capacity: Strengthen our workforce and increase operational capacity to support a growing population.

6.1  Create a positive and productive work environment. (Kevin Dick) (06/30/21) Measure: % of annual
goal achieved
Target: 100%

100% On Target

COMMUNITY OUTCOMES START/END
DATE

TARGET,
MEASURE

ACTUAL STATUS

6.1.1 Increase the employee engagement score in Washoe County. (Catrina Peters) 07/01/16,
06/30/20

25%
Employee

engagement score

Deferred

As of 08/14/18

6.1.2 Increase the number of facility enhancements implemented (cumulative) within the
Washoe County Health District. (Steve Kutz)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

5
# of facility

enhancements
implemented
(cumulative)

36 On Target

As of 07/11/18

6.1.3 Increase the number of security enhancements implemented within the Washoe County
Health District. (Anna Heenan)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

100%
Annual investments in

security initiatives.

100% On Target

As of 07/23/18

6.1.4 Increase the number of QI projects implemented in the last 12 months within the
Washoe County Health District. (Catrina Peters)

07/01/16,
06/30/20

2
# of large QI projects
completed per fiscal

year

2 On Target

As of 07/23/18

6.2  Focus on continuing to build staff expertise. (Catrina Peters) (06/30/21) Measure: % of plan
outcomes on target
Target: 100%

50% On Target

COMMUNITY OUTCOMES START/END
DATE

TARGET,
MEASURE

ACTUAL STATUS

6.2.1 Implement the Workforce Development Plan. (Catrina Peters) 07/01/16,
06/30/20

100%
% Implementation of

the Workforce
Development Plan

75% On Target

As of 01/31/18

6.3  Achieve National Public Health Accreditation (Catrina Peters) (10/01/18) Measure: 
Target: 100% 60.60% On Target

COMMUNITY OUTCOMES START/END
DATE

TARGET,
MEASURE

ACTUAL STATUS

6.3.1 Improve internal processes to ensure policies and procedures meet national Public
Health accreditation standards (Catrina Peters)

11/03/17,
10/01/18

100%
% Complete

70% On Target

As of 01/30/18

Page 11 of 12



APPENDIX A: STRATEGIC PLANNING TERMS

STRATEGIC PLANNING TERM DEFINITION

Core Values/Guiding Principles
How people want to behave with each other in the organization. Value statements describe actions that are the living
enactment of the fundamental values held by most individuals within the organization. What are our guiding principles,
as a group, to adhere to no matter what?

Core Purpose/Mission Statement The organization's core purpose. Why do we exist?
Vision Statement (5+ years) Where you are headed — your future state — your Big, Hairy, Audacious Goal. Where are we going?

Competitive Advantages A characteristic(s) of an organization that allows it to meet their customer's need(s) better than their competition can.
What are we best at in our market?

Organization-Wide Strategies

Your strategies are the general methods you intend to use to reach your vision. A strategy is like an umbrella. It is a
general statement(s) that guides and covers a set of activities. You can develop strategies for your whole organization, a
department, a specific set of activities, or a guiding statement for a year. No matter what the level, a strategy answers
the question "how."

Long-Term Strategic Priorities (3+ years) Long-term, broad, continuous statements that address all areas of your organization. If you have a five-year vision, these
would be three- to four-year intermediate guideposts on the way there. What must we focus on to achieve our vision?

Short-Term Items (1 year)
Short-term items that convert the Strategic Priorities into specific performance targets. Effective goals clearly state what,
when, who and are specifically measurable — they are Specific, Measurable, Attainable, Responsible person, time bound
(SMART). What must we do to achieve our long-term Strategic Priorities?

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)
Metric and non-metric measurements essential to the completion of an organization's goals. Each organization narrows
the possible list down to a manageable group of KPIs that make the most difference to performance. KPIs are linked to
goals. How will we know we have achieved our goals?

Page 12 of 12



Strategic Plan  
FY 18 Progress Update 

Catrina Peters MS, RD  
Director of Programs and Projects 

August 23rd, 2018 



Strategic Plan Progress  
Lots of accomplishments 
in FY 2018! 

– This update covers July 
1, 2017 to June 30, 2018 

– 158 out of 171 items 
“achieved” or “on 
target” 

 



Priority 1: Healthy Lives 

• 35 out of 35 on track or achieved 
• Key highlights 

– 11 more classrooms participated in 
coaches challenge this year for a total of 
67 classrooms participating 

– WIC on-site farmers market increased 
access to fruits and vegetables 

– Several CCHS media campaigns 
 



Priority 2: Healthy Environment 

• 25 out of 28 on track or achieved 
• Key highlights 

– Washoe County was designated as 
meeting attainment for the ozone 
standard 

– Waste Characterization study complete 
and posted on the WCHD website 

– Campaign to reduce inappropriate 911 
calls implemented  



Priority 3: Local Culture of Health 

• 29 out of 30 on track or achieved 
• Key highlights 

– Smoke free parks ordinance passed 
– 2018-2020 CHIP completed 
– 7 Community wide reports published 
– Healthy living mural in partnership with 

Reno Housing Authority 
– Media coverage, media campaigns and 

website utilization 



Priority 4: Impactful Partnerships 
• 25 out of 31 on track or achieved 
• Key highlights 

– Reduced average GI outbreak duration at 
WCSD 

– 2017 YRBS showed many improvements in 
risky behaviors 

– Continued implementation of the EMS 5 year 
strategic plan 

– TMHC engagement/leadership, County 
Health Rankings event 

 



Priority 5: Financial Stability 

• 8 out of 9 on track or achieved 
• Key highlights 

– Continued discussions with the county on 
COLA increases 

– Increased budget per capita, largely due 
to fee increases 
 

 



Priority 6: Organizational 
Capacity 

• 36 out of 38 on track or achieved 
• Key highlights 

– 90.2% of performance reviews completed on 
time 

– Continued implementation of the WFD plan 
– Two part training offered on managing 

change 
– Much progress toward Accreditation 

submission 



Revisions 
Recommended for removal: 1.3.1.2 “Explore with partnering agencies to provide 
onsite community health workers to assist and educate clients on how to access 
resources” 
Rational for removal: Item has been explored and funding for such a staff position 
would need to be identified for this position as no state funds are available to 
support community health workers contrary to our original assumptions. 
  
Recommended for revision: 2.1.5 “Increase the number of activities to prepare 
and respond to potential impacts due to drought, climate change, and natural 
disasters in Washoe County” 
Rational for revision: Suggested change to broaden activities to other types of 
disasters or emergencies.   
  
Recommended for revision: 2.2.5 “Decrease the number of inappropriate 911 
calls” 
Rational for revision: Suggested change to “Conduct outreach campaigns to 
increase awareness of the appropriate use of 911” to allow for better 
measurement of success. 
  



Revisions 
Recommended for removal: 4.1.2 “Increase the percentage of 
Washoe County students who graduate high school in Washoe 
County” 
Rational for removal: High school graduation rates have 
improved and this was not identified as a top area of need and 
not incorporated into the 2018-2020 Community Health 
Improvement Plan.   
  
Recommended for removal: 4.3.1 and 4.3.2 “Reduce the 
percentage of food insecure children/people in Washoe 
County” 
Rational for removal: Food insecurity rates continue to fall and 
this was not identified as a top area of need and not 
incorporated into the 2018-2020 Community Health Improvement 
Plan.   

 



Questions? 



AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
AQM Office: 775-784-7200   I   Fax: 775-784-7225   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT 
DIVISION DIRECTOR STAFF REPORT 

BOARD MEETING DATE: August 23, 2018 

DATE: August 10, 2018 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Charlene Albee, Director 
775-784-7211, calbee@washoecounty.us

SUBJECT: Program Update, Divisional Update, Program Reports 

1. Program Update

a. Public Outreach in Response to Wildfire Smoke

The month of July provided an opportunity to demonstrate the effectiveness of the Keep
it Clean - Be Smoke Smart campaign. Staff experienced a significant increase in demand
for outreach activities as a result of the smoke from California wildfires.  Routinely,
AQMD staff collects data at seven (7) monitoring sites located in Washoe County,
validates the data, and then uploads it to EPA for retrieval by AirNow to develop a daily
forecast.  AirNow is an EPA program designed to translate air quality data into numbers
and colors that help people understand when to take action to protect their health.

For the month of July, there were thirty-one (31) AirNow forecasts and twelve (12) alerts
warning the public of elevated pollution levels as a result of the transport of wildfire
smoke.  There was at least one alert sent each day from July 20 – 31. EnviroFlash is
another EPA product that provides a notification to alert subscribers of the current air
quality.  July saw an increase of nearly seventy (70) subscribers for a total of 465
confirmed subscribers, which includes all media and governmental partners.  As a result
of the alerts, AQMD staff conducted nine (9) television interviews and Mr. Phil Ulibarri
conducted an interview with the Associated Press Reno.

Social media activity also increased in July. Twitter saw 95 tweets, not including
retweets, for a total of 106,000 impressions.  There were 117 posts on Facebook,
including shares, for a total of 64,700 impressions. OurCleanAir.com also experienced an
increase in activity to 5,706 pageviews. AQMD staff will continue to provide the most
accurate and current information to help the community Be Smoke Smart throughout the
duration of the 2018 fire season.

Charlene Albee, Director 
Air Quality Management Division 

DHO_________ 
DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 10A DD____CA______ 



Date: August 10, 2018 
Subject: AQM Division Director’s Report 
Page 2 of 5 
 

2. Divisional Update 
 

a. Below are two charts detailing the most recent ambient air monitoring data.  The first 
chart indicates the highest AQI by pollutant and includes the highest AQI from the 
previous three years in the data table for comparison.  The second chart indicates the 
number of days by AQI category and includes the previous year to date for comparison. 
 

 
 

 
 

Please note the ambient air monitoring data are neither fully verified nor validated and 
should be considered PRELIMINARY.  As such, the data should not be used to formulate 
or support regulation, guidance, or any other governmental or public decision.  For a 
daily depiction of the most recent ambient air monitoring data, visit OurCleanAir.com. 

  

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
PM2.5 72 52 54 42 37 38 153

PM10 53 59 39 57 63 47 65

Ozone 42 45 51 71 93 101 143

Max (2015-17) 102 106 71 71 101 100 126 126 120 99 90 119

 -

 50

 100

 150

 200

Ai
r Q

ua
lit

y 
In

de
x 

Highest Monthly AQI by Pollutant (2018) 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD
2018

YTD
2017

Good 14 23 28 17 19 7 7 115 112

Moderate 17 5 3 13 12 22 17 89 95

USG - - - - - 1 6 7 5

Unhealthy or worse - - - - - - 1 1 -

 -

 5

 10

 15

 20

 25

 30

Da
ys

 p
er

 M
on

th
 

Number of Days by AQI Category (2018) 



Date: August 10, 2018 
Subject: AQM Division Director’s Report 
Page 3 of 5 
 

3. Program Reports 
 

a. Monitoring and Planning 
 
July Air Quality: There were 7 exceedances of the ozone National Ambient Air Quality 
Standard (NAAQS) and 3 exceedances of the PM2.5 NAAQS during the month of July.  
Air Quality Indexes occasionally reached Unhealthy levels (AQI greater than 151).  
These exceedances were primarily due to smoke from the Carr and Ferguson Fires in 
California. 
 
Reno Planning Commission Takes the Lead to Improve Commuting to Work: Motor 
vehicles are the largest category of emissions that create ozone.  As our area recovers 
from the Great Recession, we’re seeing increases in energy use and vehicle miles traveled 
(VMT).  In 2016, the City of Reno adopted a resolution supporting the Ozone Advance 
program.  The most powerful impact Reno can have is through its land use planning 
process. 
 
On July 19, the Reno Planning 
Commission (RPC) reviewed an 
application for a Special Use Permit 
(SUP) for a 200,000 square foot 
warehousing/distribution building on 
North Virginia Street in Stead.  The 
project will generate an estimated 857 
average daily trips, many of which will 
be employees.  RPC approved the SUP 
with an additional condition to include 
an Employee Trip Reduction (ETR) program.  An ETR program is the business version 
of Safe Routes to School.  This program will be another benefit for all their employees 
and can also save money for the business. 
 
Managing VMT will be critical to maintaining air quality standards.  This is the first 
project to require an ETR program.  All [future and current] business should have some 
degree of an ETR program.  Kudos to the RPC for reducing single occupant vehicles 
managing VMT, and moving us towards a Healthy Community!   
 
Downtown Reno Air Monitoring Station: The City of Reno will be disposing of the 
property bounded by Mill, State, and River Rock for an affordable housing project.  
AQMD has been monitoring at this location since being relocated by the ReTRAC 
project in 2001.  This is AQMD’s flagship station and is designated by EPA as an NCore 
site.  Staff is coordinating with Reno, NVEnergy, TMWA, and the Washoe County 
School District to locate a site that meets EPA requirements. 
 
Daniel K. Inouye 
Chief, Monitoring and Planning  

  

kolotv.com 



Date: August 10, 2018 
Subject: AQM Division Director’s Report 
Page 4 of 5 
 

b. Permitting and Enforcement 
 

Staff reviewed thirty (30) sets of plans submitted to the Reno, Sparks or Washoe County 
Building Departments to assure the activities complied with Air Quality requirements. 

 
Staff conducted twenty-two (22) stationary source inspections, twenty-four (24) gasoline 
stations and one (1) initial compliance inspections in July 2018.  Staff was also assigned 
thirteen (13) new asbestos abatement projects, overseeing the removal of 25,800 square 
feet of asbestos containing materials.  Staff received thirteen (13) new building 
demolition projects to monitor.  Further, there were twenty-five (25) new 
construction/dust projects to monitor, totaling 260 new acres of land being worked for 
various projects.  Staff performed sixteen (16) construction site inspections.  Each 
asbestos, demolition and construction notification project is monitored regularly until 
each project is complete and the permit is closed.  During the month enforcement staff 
also responded to fifteen (15) complaints. 

 

Type of Permit 
2018 2017 

July YTD July Annual 
Total 

Renewal of Existing 
Air Permits 87 689 97 1055 

New Authorities to 
Construct 1 33 6 60 

Dust Control Permits 25 
(259 acres) 

130 
(1904 acres) 

4 
(18acres) 

173 
(2653 acres) 

Wood Stove (WS) 
Certificates 42 256 35 474 

WS Dealers Affidavit 
of Sale 

2 
(0 replacements) 

46 
(29 replacements) 

0 
 (0 replacements) 

54 
(40 replacements) 

WS Notice of 
Exemptions 

745 
(7 stoves 
removed) 

4899 
(58 stoves 
removed) 

490 
(6 stoves 
removed) 

9722 
(88 stoves removed) 

Asbestos Assessments 100 693 88 1029 
Asbestos Demo and 
Removal (NESHAP) 39 186 15 241 

  



Date: August 10, 2018 
Subject: AQM Division Director’s Report 
Page 5 of 5 
 
 

COMPLAINTS 
2018 2017 

July YTD July Annual  
Total 

Asbestos 0 5 1 13 

Burning 0 1 0 10 

Construction Dust 10 35 2 42 

Dust Control Permit 1 1 0 2 

General Dust 2 20 13 54 

Diesel Idling 0 6 0 0 

Odor 1 17 1 15 

Spray Painting 1 5 0 11 

Permit to Operate 0 4 0 3 

Woodstove 0 3 0 7 

TOTAL 15 97 17 157 

NOV’s July YTD July Annual  
Total 

Warnings 3 16 2 10 

Citations 1 3 0 7 

TOTAL 4 19 2 17 
*Discrepancies in totals between monthly reports can occur due to data entry delays. 

 
 

Mike Wolf 
Chief, Permitting and Enforcement  



COMMUNITY AND CLINICAL HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
CCHS Phone: 775-328-2441   I   Fax: 775-328-3750   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

Community and Clinical Health Services 
Director Staff Report 

Board Meeting Date: August 23, 2018 

DATE: August 9, 2018 
TO: District Board of Health 
FROM: Steve Kutz, RN, MPH 

775-328-6159; skutz@washoecounty.us 
SUBJECT: Divisional Update – National Immunization Awareness Month; Data & Metrics; 

Program Reports 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

1. Divisional Update –
a. National Immunization Awareness Month

The National Immunization Awareness Month campaign goal is to communicate the importance of 
vaccination across the lifespan and celebrate the benefits of vaccination.   

An assessment of vaccination coverage for 2017 showed that 77.4% of children aged 19-35 months 
had received age-appropriate vaccinations at the time of their visits to clinics or healthcare providers 
located in Washoe County.  The Healthy People 2020 objective is 80% for children aged 19 to 35 
months to have received the recommended doses of the childhood vaccines DTaP, polio, MMR, Hib, 
hepatitis B, varicella and pneumococcal conjugate. 

Year 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 
Rate (%) 77.4 80.2 79.0 75.6 74.2 73.6 71.2 

Table 1: Washoe County 19-35 month old Immunization Rate (4 DTaP, 3 polio, 1 MMR, 3 Hib, 3 Hep B, 1 varicella, 4 PCV)  
Data source: WebIZ Replica Database 
State of Nevada, 3/2018 

DHO__________ 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 10B

DD____SK_______ 



Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report 
Date: August 9, 2018 
Page 2 of 7 
 

 
Human Papillomavirus (HPV) vaccination rates for 2017 are steadily rising but continue to be well 
below the Healthy People 2020 objective of 80%.  Nevada WebIZ statewide data shows only 23.3 
percent of adolescents age 13-17 years old received the complete series of HPV, with a 31.6 percent 
3 dose completion rate in Washoe County. 

 
NV State Immunization Program, percent appropriately vaccinated, 13-17 years old 
 
HPV Rates 

 2015 
Washoe 
County 

2015 
Nevada 

2016 
Washoe  
County 

2016  
Nevada 

2017 
Washoe County 

2017 
Nevada 

 
F M Both F M Both F M  Both F M  Both F M Both F M Both 

1 
Dose 

50.2 41.5 45.7 47.4 35.3 41.2 54 47.8 50.9 51.8 43 47.4 58.1 54.1 56.0 50.7 45.2 47.8 

2 
Doses 

38.5 29.6 33.9 34.7 23.9 29.1 42.5 35.6 39 39 30.2 34.6 45.7 40.6 43.1 37.4 31.5 34.4 

3 
Doses 

28.9 20.4 24.5 24.6 15.5 19.9 32.5 26.3 29.4 28.4 20.7 24.6 34.1 29.3 31.6 26.1 20.7 23.3 
 

Numerator: Number of children in NV WebIZ in the selected age range who are up to date with the selected vaccinations and doses during the selected time 
frame 
Denominator: Number of children in NV WebIZ in the selected age range during the selected time frame. 
Data run off the NV WebIZ replica database using SQL Studio on 7/9/18 

 
The Immunization Program continues to provide on-site clinic services five days per week.  
Additionally, off-site vaccinations have been provided through partnerships such as Immunize 
Nevada, Washoe County School District, and the Nevada State Immunization Program.  Flu and 
pneumonia vaccines, as well as other vaccines, were also provided for high risk clients at Project 
Homeless Connect and a residential drug rehabilitation center.  Additionally, immunizations and 
education were provided at a Remote Area Medical (RAM) event, Northern Nevada Children’s 
Cancer Foundation, Mexican Consulate Binational Health Event, Children’s Cabinet, Mariposa 
Academy, a Pediatric Community Flu Shot Clinic and a community Baby Shower event.  A total of 
1,539 doses of vaccine were administered to 921 clients at these events.  All of these off-site clinics 
contribute to maintaining and improving preparedness for an influenza pandemic or other vaccine 
preventable disease outbreak. 
 
A Point of Dispensing (POD) event was held on October 4th, in partnership with EPHP.  
Additionally, employee flu shot clinics were held and the program took over providing required 
vaccinations for new WCHD staff. 
 

 
 
 
 



Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report 
Date: August 9, 2018 
Page 3 of 7 
 

The School Located Vaccination Clinic (SLVC) program continued to focus on providing flu shots 
for children attending Title I schools.  This program was held in partnership with Immunize Nevada 
and the Washoe County School District.  
 
School Located Vaccination Clinics 2015-2016 through  2017-2018 Flu Seasons 

 
 
 

Flu Season 
2015-16 

# of School 
Located 

Vaccination 
Clinics 

IIV4 
(Injectable) 

LAIV 
Nasal 
Spray 

Total 
Doses Children Adults Total 

Served 

14 152 759 911 833 78 911 
2016-17 15 1,047 0 1,047 869 178 1,047 
2017-18 17 1,089 0 1,089 963 126 1,089 

 
 
Immunization Program staff are also responsible for carrying out a variety of grant related activities 
such as conducting provider visits to enhance stewardship and accountability for Vaccine for 
Children and 317 publicly purchased vaccines, provider education for improved immunization rates 
and program improvement. Perinatal hepatitis B surveillance and follow-up is another grant 
component that is carried out by the Epidemiology program. 

 
Additional Accomplishments in Fiscal Year 2018 include: 

• Immunization lectures for nursing students at University of Nevada, Reno  
• Immunization panel discussion for Community Health Sciences class 
• Phone queue for appointment scheduling 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report 
Date: August 9, 2018 
Page 4 of 7 
 

b. Data/Metrics 
 

 
 
 

 
 
Changes in data can be attributed to a number of factors – fluctuations in community demand, changes in staffing and changes in scope of work/grant 
deliverables, all which may affect the availability of services. 
 
 
 

319 

19 
162 224 253 

11 

988 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

IZ IZ Offsite TB STD FP MCAH Total

Number of Visits by Program 
July 2017 and July 2018 

July 2017 July 2018

295 302 353 919 

2,435 

4304 

0
1000
2000
3000
4000
5000

Number of WIC Participants Served  
July 2018 



Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report 
Date: August 9, 2018 
Page 5 of 7 
 

2. Program Reports – Outcomes and Activities 
 
a. Sexual Health – Staff welcomes Jacqueline Gonzalez, Advanced Practice Registered Nurse 

(APRN).  Jacqueline has been an APRN for seven years and was practicing in an Urgent Care 
setting. Staff also welcomes Allison Schleicher, Public Health Investigator II.  Allison comes to 
us from Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral Health where she was the Tobacco Data 
Analyst.     
 
Staff participated in the Northern Nevada Pride celebration in July, which boasted a record 
crowd. Education, safer sex supplies, and referrals to Sexual Health Program testing 
opportunities were provided.  
 
Pre-exposure prophylaxis (or PrEP) is an HIV medication provided to people at very high risk 
for HIV, which lowers their chances of becoming infected. Daily PrEP reduces the risk of getting 
HIV from sex by more than 90%. Among people who inject drugs, it reduces the risk by more 
than 70%. The risk of acquiring HIV from is lowered even more by combining PrEP with 
condom use, use of new syringes/equipment, and other prevention methods. This advancement is 
viewed as one of the strategies to end new HIV infections and end the epidemic.  
 
Staff are preparing to assess clients for PrEP and facilitate referrals to PrEP providers, with 
consideration on how WCHD may implement PrEP in our clinics. Training on PrEP, including 
how it has been implemented in similar clinic structures, and assessing and follow up on clients 
will be provided to all Sexual Health staff, including Family Planning, on August 24, 2018.  
 

b. Immunizations – Nursing staff, including the program supervisor, attended the annual Statewide 
Immunization meeting on July 18-19, 2018.  Federal and state program updates were reviewed 
on day one and breakout sessions were held the second day to address specific grant objectives 
and leadership activities.   
 
Program staff provided immunizations to children at the Family Health Festival on July 25th. 
Nursing staff gave 36 doses of vaccine to nine children at the festival.  
 
Give Kids a Boost, the annual Back to School immunization clinic held in partnership with 
Immunize Nevada and the Nevada State Immunization Program, was held on August 4, 2018, at 
the Neil Road Recreation Center.  WCHD staff administered a total of 293 doses of vaccine to 
103 children during that event.   
 

c. Tuberculosis Prevention and Control Program –TB clinic staff have been very busy with two 
new active cases of pulmonary Tuberculosis. Staff are working closely with the VA as one case 
is currently an inpatient there and in respiratory isolation. This patient’s roommate is also newly 



Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report 
Date: August 9, 2018 
Page 6 of 7 
 

diagnosed with pulmonary disease but does not require isolation. Dr. Krasner, our consulting 
physician, believes these two cases are independent of one another; confirmation of this theory is 
pending genotyping results. The VA has taken the lead for the inner circle contact investigation 
involving a VA clients. One additional case of active, noncontagious disease is in process of 
being ruled out or confirmed. Staff have also been working with six new immigrants requiring 
evaluation in the past week.  
     

d. Family Planning/Teen Health Mall – Teen Health Mall is now offering clinic hours on 
Wednesday afternoons to align with early release day.  As of August 2, 2018, staff has served 29 
female inmates at the Washoe County Sheriff’s Department twice a month.       
   

e. Chronic Disease Prevention Program (CDPP) – Staff prepared and submitted a grant 
application for continued SNAP-ed funds to support Wolf Pack Coaches Challenge activities and 
Healthy Parks efforts.  The funds will cover a part time health educator to complete the 
deliverables outlined in the application. 
 
Staff continued to support smoke free parks efforts.  The Sun Valley General Improvement 
District passed a policy in May and the City of Sparks passed an ordinance in June.  The first 
reading of the ordinance in Reno passed unanimously with a second reading scheduled August 
8th.  Washoe County is expected to have the item on a County Commission agenda within the 
next several months.  
 
Staff participated in key aspects of the Physical Activity and Nutrition Community Health 
Improvement Plan (CHIP), including key organization of the July 25th Family Health Festival 
which was held at Miguel Ribera Park and was a huge success with over 40 participating vendors 
and approximately 500 individuals served.  Additional CHIP activities CDPP staff work on 
include healthy vending activities and 5210 planning.   
 
On July 26th CDPP staff participated in the Northern Nevada Pride event with information about 
tobacco use and cessation.  LGBT communities have significantly higher rates of smoking than 
the general population and participating in Pride allowed staff to reach this key population with 
tobacco messages.  Staff surveyed 139 Pride participants and of those, 75% supported a smoke 
free Pride event. 
 

f. Maternal, Child and Adolescent Health (MCAH) – The FIMR program is working with the 
Nevada Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Public Health Informatics to create 
an multi-year report for the FIMR program that meets stringent confidentiality and suppression 
requirements.  
 



Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report 
Date: August 9, 2018 
Page 7 of 7 
 

Nurses from the Immunization Program are in the process of orienting for Cribs4Kids Safe Sleep 
training.  A pilot project is being finalized with WIC to provide monthly trainings at both 
locations. 
 

g. Women, Infants and Children (WIC) – The WIC program was randomly selected for both the 
State Financial and Programmatic site visits during July. Both visits went well and at the 
conclusion of the programmatic visit staff were complemented on how efficiently and effectively 
they were able to identify solutions to assist WIC clients. 



ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
EHS Office: 775-328-2434   I   Fax: 775-328-6176   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

Environmental Health Services  
Division Director Staff Report 

Board Meeting Date:  August 23, 2018 

DATE: August 10, 2018 
TO: District Board of Health 
FROM: Chad Warren Westom, Director 

775-328-2644; cwestom@washoecounty.us 
SUBJECT: Environmental Health Services (EHS) Division and Program Updates – Training, 

Epidemiology, Community Development, Food, Special Events, Hotel/Motel, Land 
Development, Safe Drinking Water, Vector-Borne Disease, Waste Management and 
Inspections 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

Division Updates 

• Environmental Health Services Training Program – Two EHS trainee staff members successfully
passed the Registered Environmental Health Specialist (REHS) exam in July.  Since 2016, six (6)
staff members have used the Training Manual and Study Materials established by the Training
Program and have successfully passed the REHS exam on their first try.  Additionally, the Training
Program developed schedules and training for a new EHS Intermittent Hourly and Public Service
Intern for the first half of fiscal 2018/2019.

• Environmental Health Services Epidemiology Program –

• Staff completed Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) updates for Foodborne Outbreak
Investigation (SOP FS-1) and Confidential Information Records Request (SOP FS-4) in July.
Both documents were added to submissions for Public Health Accreditation.

• The gastroenteritis section of the Annual Communicable Disease (CD) summary for the Health
District was completed by program staff.

• Program Updates
Community Development

• Current plan review turnaround is at 6 calendar days for commercial plans and water projects.

• Staff meets with our regional partners to routinely discuss commercial plans and future
development.

DHO__________ 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 10C

DD____CW_______ 

mailto:cwestom@washoecounty.us


Date: August 10, 2018 
Subject: EHS Division Director’s Report 
Page: 2 of 5 
 

 

• See the table below for specific number of plans per program, inspections and the number of lots 
or units that were approved for construction within Washoe County: 
 

Community Development JAN 
2018 

FEB 
2018 

MAR 
2018 

APR 
2018 

MAY 
2018 

JUN 
2018 

JUL 
2018 

YTD 
2018 

2017 
TOTAL 

Development Reviews 44 49 44 41 47 44 25 294 426 
Commercial Plans Received 76 78 87 91 141 127 87 688 780 
Commercial Plan Inspections 23 16 26 23 25 23 30 166 407 
Water Projects Received 27 26 24 20 23 14 10 144 287 
Lots/Units Approved for Construction 975 970 582 445 403 72 313 3,760 4,117 

 
Food 

• With a grant funded by the FDA Voluntary National Retail Food Regulatory Program Standards, 
staff collaborated with a local media firm to translate existing handwashing radio spots and 
Facebook advertisements into Spanish. The campaign focuses on proper handwashing 
procedures and will target Spanish speaking food service workers and the general public.  The 
advertisements will run through the month of August.  This activity pertains to FDA Standard 7 
– Industry and Community Relations. 

• One staff member attended an in-person meeting with all nationwide NACCHO Mentorships 
Program participants in Washington, DC.  The meeting included a presentation on the Food 
Safety Program’s experience participating in the Mentorship Program as well as an opportunity 
to meet Nevada representatives at the White House to discuss food safety initiative as they relate 
to the Program Standards.  This activity pertains to FDA Standard 7 – Industry and Community 
Relations. 

• In an effort to focus program resources on food operations with the greatest food safety risk, staff has 
begun inspecting Risk Level III establishments for the second time this calendar year.  Several of 
these inspections have resulted in the identification and correction of critical violations that would not 
have otherwise been identified without the second inspection.  Critical violations include improper 
hot/cold holding temperatures of potentially hazardous food, improper cooking temperatures, 
dirty and/or contaminated utensils and equipment, and poor employee health and hygiene.  This 
activity pertains to FDA Standard 3 - Inspection Program Based on HACCP Principles. 

• Special Events – Star Spangled Sparks, the Biggest Little City Wingfest, and a reduced scope 
Red, White and Tahoe Blue took place near the beginning of the month of July.  Inspection 
numbers for the year are tracking very similarly to the previous year.  August will kick off the 
busiest time of the year in the Special Events program with large events occurring nearly every 
other week through the remainder of the summer/fall season.  August events include the 
Barracuda Championship, Hot August Nights and the Nugget Rib Cook-off with several to 
follow into September and October. 

Hotel/Motel 

• On August 8, the Reno City Council heard a presentation from staff regarding improvements to 
ordinances for motels and long-term rentals in Reno.  The City Council may vote to adopt this 



Date: August 10, 2018 
Subject: EHS Division Director’s Report 
Page: 3 of 5 
 

ordinance on August 22.  If so, approximately 75 motels will no longer be inspected by Health 
District Staff.  Staff reached out to provide training in the inspection process, including bed bug 
identification, in the transition of these inspections concerning motel operators.  

Land Development 

• Plan review times have improved significantly.  Some of this is attributable to minor process 
changes internally, but the bulk of the reduction is due to the majority of plans being fielded by 
new team members. 

Land Development JAN 
2018 

FEB 
2018 

MAR 
2018 

APR 
2018 

MAY 
2018 

JUN 
2018 

JUL 
2018 

YTD 
2018 

2017 
TOTAL 

Plans Received (Residential/Septic) 75 52 68 74 67 61 113 510 816 
Residential Septic/Well Inspections 65 57 69 105 96 99 73 564 1,056 
Well Permits 7 7 4 9 

 
7 14 19 67 146 

 
Safe Drinking Water 

• To date, approximately 30% of required sanitary surveys for the calendar year have been 
completed.  The largest, TMWA, has been scheduled for the first week of August.  Surveys are 
being scheduled at a more rapid rate to meet the goal of completing all surveys before 
November. 

• The team is assisting Boomtown to become a community water system with the upcoming new 
housing development that will be served by them.  TMWA is also looking into consolidating 
with Boomtown in the near future and worked with the team during the latest sanitary 
survey.  The State joined the group survey to ensure all required monitoring and changes needed 
are completed. 

Vector-Borne Diseases 

• The Vector Borne Diseases Program conducted a fourth helicopter application on August 9, 
which larvicided Lemmon Valley, Kiley Ranch Wingfield Springs, Butler Ranch, Rosewood 
Lakes, South Meadows and Damonte Ranch, 800 acres in all.  Positive adult mosquitoes have 
been collected from Hidden Valley and Damonte Ranch.  Two species of mosquitoes, Culiseta 
inornanta and Aedes dorsalis, collected from Damonte Ranch, are positive for West Nile virus.  
Culex tarsalis, the primary vector of West Nile virus, have been detected the past two weeks in 
Hidden Valley. 

• Staff fogged Hidden Valley, Mira Loma, Rosewood Lakes Golf Course and Damonte Ranch the 
past two weeks.  With the large presence of virus in both the Damonte Ranch and Hidden Valley 
areas, the danger is virus being transmitted to people.  Citizens need protectionary measures to 
avoid adult mosquito activity outdoors during the evenings and mornings.    

• The stationery New Jersey light traps are collecting high numbers of Culex tarsalis in Lemmon 
Valley, Wingfield Springs, Damonte Ranch and Washoe Valley.  Average daily temperatures are 
supporting mosquito disease virus transmission.  To date over 4,700 mosquitoes have been 
collected, identified and sent to the Animal Diseases laboratory with five positive collections. 

• From April through the end of July, staff identified 27 specimens of ticks.  Most of these ticks 
were Dermacentor variabilis.  The number of tick service requests and those specimens received 
for identification is higher than in previous years. 



Date: August 10, 2018 
Subject: EHS Division Director’s Report 
Page: 4 of 5 
 

• Staff reviewed 12 building projects in the Truckee Meadows Community. 

• Vector Responses to Public Requests: 

Vector Responses 
JAN 
2018 

FEB 
2018 

MAR 
2018 

APR 
2018 

MAY 
2018 

JUN 
2018 

JUL 
2018 

YTD 
2018 

2017 
TOTAL 

Mosquito 0 0 3 20 20 16 37 96 289 
Mosquito Fish – Gambusia 0 0 0 5 23 33 7 68 124 
Gambusia Delivered 0 0 0 0 0 469 130 599 807 
Hantavirus 7 0 6 9 11 11 13 57 126 
Plague 0 0 0 0 4 3 5 12 17 
Rabies 3 4 1 4 2 13 7 34 104 
Planning Calls 8 14 9 15 16 4 4 70 163 
Lyme Disease/Ticks 1 0 1 4 13 3 8 30 26 
Media 0 0 2 2 2 2 9 17 47 
Outreach / Education / Misc. 9 11 13 28 23 21 27 132 442 
Cockroach / Bedbug 3 7 9 9 15 15 23 81 227 
West Nile Virus 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 7 55 
Zika 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 12 
  TOTAL 31 36 44 96 129 590 279 1,205 2,439 

Planning Projects 
Reviewed by Vector 6 15 13 16 12 16 12 91 149 

 

Waste Management 

• All Waste Management web pages have been updated with current information. 

• The Waste Composition/Characterization was posted on our webpage Friday.  A similar post will 
be put on our Facebook page on Tuesday, along with a brief description of why it was done and 
what waste diversion efforts should be focused on by officials. 
 

EHS 2018 Inspections 
* General Inspections Include:  Invasive Body Decorations; Mobile Homes/RVs; Public Accommodations; Pools; Spas; RV 

Dump Stations; and Sewage/Wastewater Pumping. 
 JAN 

2018 
FEB 
2018 

MAR 
2018 

APR 
2018 

MAY 
2018 

JUN 
2018 

JUL 
2018 

YTD 
2018 

2017 
TOTAL 

Child Care 11 11 4 6 15 6 15 68 115 
Complaints 70 57 53 68 52 66 92 458 883 
Food 650 724 709 625 471 602 354 4,135 4,997 
General* 120 100 71 116 476 212 495 1,590 2,032 
Temporary Foods/Special Events 17 19 25 59 105 210 153 588 1,686 
Temporary IBD Events 2 0 1 85 0 0 0 88 96 
Waste Management 6 29 14 16 5 13 7 90 286 

  TOTAL 876 940 877 975 1,124 1,109 1,116 7,017 10,095 
          

EHS Public Record Requests 138 124 164 149 234 115 131 1,055 437 
          

 
  



Date: August 10, 2018 
Subject: EHS Division Director’s Report 
Page: 5 of 5 
 

 

Mosquitoes grounded by smoke, 
public health threat continues 
By Ed Pearce |  
Posted: Tue 6:03 PM, Jul 31, 2018  |   
Updated: Tue 8:37 PM, Jul 31, 2018  

RENO, Nev. (KOLO)  It turns out like us, mosquitoes tend to quiet down on smoky days. We may stay inside more. 
They're flying less. So encounters may drop off.  

Sounds like a respite at least. But here's the bad news. While they may be flying less and biting less on smoky days, 
they haven't stopped breeding.  

A shift in the winds can clear the air and a new generation of mosquitoes IS flying and biting again. 

"Regardless of the smoke, they're going to continue to go through that process, going from egg to adult probably within 
about seven days," says Jim Shaffer, Director of Washoe County's Vector Borne Disease Program. 

That's why the people at the Health Department's Vector Control office haven't let up in their efforts. Each year the 
county attacks the mosquitoes from the air and on the ground, not only at the obvious sites--the wetlands on the east 
side of the valley or to the north for instance, but also on the ground.  

Mosquitoes only need a half inch of water in a puddle, a backyard bucket or children's toy to start breeding. Storm 
drains can breed them by the cloud. So they're checked and treated with a larvicide. 

This seasonal war isn't just about controlling a nuisance. There's a real public health hazard here. Last week West Nile 
virus was found in mosquitoes trapped in the Damonte Ranch and Hidden Valley areas. 

"Staff went out and did some further trapping and we put out some portable traps in Hidden Valley and also Damonte 
Ranch and we found even more West Nile virus." 

There may be as many as 30 species of mosquito in the valley and a dozen have been known to carry the virus and 
Shaffer says, West Nile is no joke. 

"Mortality is less than five percent, but even the mild version of it takes weeks maybe months to get over it, so it's a 
serious thing." 

And so, the battle continues pond by pond, puddle by puddle. Shaffer says you can help by checking your property for 
any standing water and protecting yourself by covering up and using repellent in mosquito-prone areas. 

http://www.kolotv.com/content/bios/244046.html
https://www.washoecounty.us/health/programs-and-services/vector-borne-diseases/index.php
http://www.kolotv.com/content/news/South-Reno-mosquitoes-test-positive-for-West-Nile-Virus-489129171.html
http://www.kolotv.com/content/news/South-Reno-mosquitoes-test-positive-for-West-Nile-Virus-489129171.html


EPIDEMIOLOGY AND PUBLIC HEALTH PREPAREDNESS 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
EPHP Office: 775-326-6055   I   Fax: 775-325-8130   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

EPIDEMIOLOGY AND PUBLIC HEALTH PREPAREDNESS 
DIVISON DIRECTOR STAFF REPORT 

BOARD MEETING DATE: AUGUST 23, 2018 

DATE: August 23, 2018 
TO: District Board of Health 
FROM: Randall Todd, DrPH, EPHP Director 

775-328-2443, rtodd@washoecounty.us 

Subject: Program Updates for Communicable Disease, Public Health Preparedness, and 
Emergency Medical Services 

Communicable Disease (CD) 

Outbreaks – Since the last District Board of Health meeting in July, the Communicable Disease 
Program has opened four outbreak investigations.  Of these, three were Hand Foot and Mouth Disease 
(HFMD) in childcare facilities.  One was a foodborne outbreak caused by clostridium perfriengens 
enterotoxin associated with a workplace potluck.  A retrospective cohort study was conducted. A total 
of 132 ill employees were identified through the cohort study, not 50 illness reported previously by the 
company. The team was able to epidemiologically confirm that the beans prepared one employee was 
the only food vehicle to cause this outbreak. Environmental investigation suggested that inappropriate 
food preparation, storage, cooling, and reheating practices were indicated. Recommendations were 
provided to prevent from future outbreaks. As of August 8, 2018, one outbreak is still open.  

Public Health Preparedness (PHP) and EMS Oversight Programs 

The EMS Statistician is leading the Community Assessment for Public Health Emergency 
Response (CASPER) efforts for Washoe County Health District by engaging and leading 
statewide and local meetings. Planning efforts began on July 12 with a meeting with the PHP 
team to ensure grant goals, deliverables, and timelines were clear and would be met. On July 20 
the EMS Statistician participated in a webinar meeting with other CASPER leads across the state 
to develop best practices, share materials and lessons learned, and to develop a set of standard 
statewide questions to be asked in each jurisdiction conducting a CASPER in Nevada.  

The EMS Coordinator presented to Sunrise Rotary Club members on July 13. The presentation 
included an overview of emergency planning and preparedness efforts in Washoe County, with a 
specific focus on the Health District plans.  

DD __ 
DHO ______ 
DA ________ 
Risk _______ 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 10D RT

mailto:rtodd@washoecounty.us


Subject: EPHP Staff Report 
Date: August 23, 2018 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
On July 24, the Public Health Emergency Response Coordinator conducted a presentation on 
regional planning efforts with a focus on emergency response plans to City of Reno Ward 4 
Neighborhood Advisory Board (NAB).   
 
The PHP staff have begun planning for the fall flu Point of Dispensing (POD) exercises expected 
to take place across Northern Nevada.  Currently seven (7) closed POD partners will be 
conducting POD training exercises in conjunction with the push out of seasonal influenza 
vaccine.  The exercises will begin mid-September and are expected to run through most of 
October 
 
PHP staff facilitated an Emergency Credentialing Exercise on July 25.  The purpose of the 
exercise was to identify how ambulatory surgical centers and hospitals can share staff during an 
emergency.   Four ASCs, three hospitals, WCHD and IHCC participated in the exercise.  
 
The EMS Coordinator attended the Great Reno Balloon Race tabletop exercise on July 26. The 
exercise scenario involved a drone flying into a hot air balloon, causing it to smash into another 
balloon and both crash land injuring numerous people. This annual exercise allows personnel 
from fire, EMS, FAA, health, law enforcement, park rangers and event staff to discuss possible 
response in a no-fault environment.  
 
The EMS Program has completed the grant deliverables for the Nevada Governor’s Council on 
Developmental Disabilities (NGCDD) on July 30. Both the short shift change and the 30-minute 
training videos were distributed to first responders throughout the state.  
 
PHP staff facilitated an IHCC Redundant Communications Exercise on August 1. The purpose of 
the exercise was to test the ability to respond to a request to complete the Operating Status and 
Capability Assessment Report (OSCAR) via WebEOC and fax.   Seven IHCC core members and 
eighteen additional members participated in the exercise. 
 
On August 2, the Public Health Emergency Response Coordinator conducted a presentation on 
the Isolation and Quarantine plan and the Community Reception Center plan to the Local 
Emergency Preparedness Committee.  This presentation was to familiarize local emergency 
planners and responders of the current planning initiatives coming from the Health District.   
 
The IHCC have developed Response Guidelines that will provide general guidance for preparation, 
response, and recovery to all hazards events. The IHCC Response Guide establishes and describes the 
emergency response framework which will guide the IHCC as it activates to protect the health, safety 
and well-being of Washoe County residents and visitors in areas impacted by a natural or manmade 
health emergency or disaster.   
 
On August 9, EMS staff began facilitating the review and update of the EMS Strategic Plan with 
a regional subcommittee. This meeting was held to review the status of the current strategies and 
objectives and to work with partner agencies to begin drafting future goals, strategies and 
objectives. 
 
 



Subject: EPHP Staff Report 
Date: August 23, 2018 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
 

 
 
 



OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
ODHO Office: 775-328-2416   I   Fax: 775-328-3752   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

Office of the District Health Officer 
District Health Officer Staff Report 

Board Meeting Date: August 23, 2018 

DATE: August 23, 2018 
TO: District Board of Health 
FROM: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 

775-328-2416; kdick@washoecounty.us 
SUBJECT: District Health Officer Report – Public Health Accreditation (PHAB), Quality 

Improvement, Strategic Plan, Workforce Development, Community Health 
Improvement Plan, Truckee Meadows Healthy Communities (TMHC), Washoe 
Behavioral Health Policy Board, Washoe County Substance Abuse Task Force, 
County Complex Master Plan, Advisory Council on the State Program for Wellness 
and the Prevention of Chronic Disease (CWCD), Other Events and Activities and 
Health District Media Contacts.  

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

Public Health Accreditation (PHAB) 

The Accreditation team is nearing the finishing line of gathering all required documents.  Out of the 
required 213 documents, we now have 208 of the required documents gathered, and 148 documents 
finalized and uploaded into the online submission system.  The balance of documents between what has 
been submitted and what has been uploaded is comprised of documents that are being reviewed for full 
conformity.  We are well on track for meeting our submission due date. 

Quality Improvement 

The QI team continues to meet every other month to support implementation of Quality Improvement 
Projects.  Of the six QI projects started in FY 17-18, three are complete and three have been rolled over 
into the current year for completion. 

Strategic Plan 

A Strategic Plan report is included in the board packet, and the employee engagement committee has 
had its first meeting and will be meeting for a second time to develop a set of recommendations to 
present to the Division Directors. 

Workforce Development 

Two follow-up training sessions mentioned in the last report are being conducted in mid-August to 
further expand on the June sessions previously offered by Dr. Mel Minarik. 

DHO__________ 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 10E

mailto:kdick@washoecounty.us
LRogers
Inserted Text



Date: August 23, 2018 
Subject: ODHO District Health Officer Report 
Page: 2 of 4 
 

Community Health Improvement Plan 

The August 2nd unveiling event was very successful with over 100 people in attendance.  
Implementation of plan objectives is fully underway with kick off meetings for each focus area complete 
or planned in the near future.  Small workgroups have been formed to tackle more issue specific 
objectives and larger group meetings, in conjunction with large existing groups when possible, are being 
utilized for updates and opportunities for engagement for other community members. 

Truckee Meadows Healthy Communities (TMHC) 

A Family Health Festival was conducted on July 25th and received good attendance from the 
community.  Over 500 people attended and there was broad representation from health oriented vendors. 

The TMHC Board of Directors met on July 26 and the Steering Committee met on August 1.  The Board 
will hold a Strategic Planning Retreat on September 12. 
Enterprise Community Partners representatives visited the week of August 6 and met with stakeholders 
and workgroups regarding the development of the Comprehensive Regional Strategy for Affordable 
Housing. 
Washoe Behavioral Health Policy Board 

Of the seven concepts considered, the Washoe Behavioral Health Policy Board has decided to focus 
discussions regarding the Board’s Bill Draft Requests (BDR) on Crisis Stabilization Units policy and 
funding during the August 20 meeting. Crisis Stabilization Units (CSU) are small inpatient facilities for 
people in a mental health crisis whose needs cannot be met safely in residential service settings. CSUs 
are designed to provide a safe, secure environment that is less restrictive than a hospital. CSUs are 
designed to stabilize the person and get him or her back into the community quickly. 

Committee Chair Senator Spearman has invited the Chairs of the Regional Policy Boards to the August 
27, 2018 Interim Legislative Committee on Health Care (LCHC) meeting to present any concepts 
considered by the regional boards but not selected to be addressed as priority for the Regional Board’s 
BDR.  The LCHC will consider these priorities/recommendations for the ten BDRs they are allocated.  
Attached please find the submission to the Committee from the Washoe County Regional Behavioral 
Health Board.  Chair Chuck Duarte will be making the presentation on behalf of the Board.  

Washoe County Substance Abuse Task Force 

At the request of Commissioner’s Berkbigler and Jung, Amber Howell, Director of the Human Services 
Agency, organized an initial meeting of stakeholders to discuss substance abuse in Washoe County and 
the formation of a Task Force to work together to address the matter.  It was decided to continue 
meeting and begin with community mapping to identify what roles, services, and activities were 
occurring in the community and where gaps needed to be addressed as an initial step in developing a 
regional strategy.  The decision was also made to continue as a substance abuse task force in recognition 
that Washoe County experiences more overdoses from methamphetamines than opioids, and that alcohol 
abuse has even greater health impacts in Washoe County. 



Date: August 23, 2018 
Subject: ODHO District Health Officer Report 
Page: 3 of 4 
 

County Complex Master Plan 

The County Community Services Department has initiated development of a Master Plan for the County 
Complex to anticipate and plan for space and facility needs over the next twenty years.  They have 
contracted with Collaborative Design Studios to provide professional support for the plan.  I was invited 
to serve on the Master Plan Steering Committee. A kick-off meeting with County Departments was held 
and Collaborative Design personnel toured the Health District.  Historic statistics on Health District 
staffing and workload measures were provided.  CSD and Collaborative Design representatives are 
meeting with the Health District on August 22 to discuss the nature of our work, opportunities for 
automation and efficiency, and services and staffing into the future. 

Advisory Council on the State Program for Wellness and the Prevention of Chronic Disease (CWCD) 

CWCD Chairman Tom McCoy requested that the State and local health authorities and Nevada Public 
Health Association provide the presentation made jointly to the Interim Legislative Committee on 
Health Care during their April 24, 2018 meeting.  The presentation describes current State funding for 
public health, the evolution to Public Health 3.0, Community Health Assessments and Community 
Health Improvement Planning, identifying, costing and funding foundational public health services, and 
an increased flexible State funding mechanism to support community health needs.  The presentation 
will be made to the CWCD during their August 16 meeting. 

Other Events and Activities  
7/31/18  Nevada Public Health Foundation Board of Director’s Meeting 
7/31/18  PHAB briefing for DBOH Member Novak  
7/31/18  TMHC Financials Meeting 
8/1/18  TMHC Steering Committee Meeting 
8/2/18  CHIP Reveal Event 
8/2/18  NV Health Authority Conference Call 
8/3/18  Monthly Meeting w/County Manager Slaughter 
8/3/18  Meeting with OnStrategy to plan for the Nov. 1 Strategic Plan refresh retreat  
8/6/18  Washoe Bills Training 
8/7/18  Presentation for UNR CHS 340 Health Policy Course 
8/8/18  Department Heads Meeting 
8/9/18  County Complex Master Plan Kick-Off Meeting 
8/10/18  Washoe County Substance Abuse Task Force Meeting 
8/14/18  Washoe311 Coordination Meeting 
8/16/18  Monthly meeting with DBOH Chair and Vice-Chair 
8/16/18  Advisory Council on the State Program for Wellness and the Prevention of Chronic Disease 



Date: August 23, 2018 
Subject: ODHO District Health Officer Report 
Page: 4 of 4 
 
8/17/18  NPHA Advocacy Call 
8/20/18  Behavioral Health Policy Board 
8/22/18  CCHS – DHO/DD/Board Member Meeting 
8/22/18  County Complex Master Plan Meeting 
8/23/18  EHS DHO/DD/Board Member Meeting 



Health District Media Contacts: July 2018
DATE MEDIA REPORTER STORY

7/31/2018 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Ed Pierce Mosquitos - Shaffer/Interns
7/30/2018 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Photographer Air Quality and Wildfire Smoke - Inouye
7/30/2018 KRNV CH4 - NBC Reno Katie Karalis Air Quality and Wildfire Smoke - Inouye
7/30/2018 KTVN CH2 - CBS Reno Paul Nelson Air Quality and Wildfire Smoke - Inouye
7/30/2018 Associated Press - Reno Scott Sonner Air Quality and Ozone - Ulibarri
7/27/2018 KRNV CH4 - NBC Reno Ben Margiott AQ Monitoring - Hunter/Schnieder
7/27/2018 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Ben Deach Air Quality and Wildfire Smoke - Inouye
7/27/2018 KRNV CH4 - NBC Reno Ben Margiott Air Quality and Wildfire Smoke - Inouye
7/25/2018 UNIVISION Anya Archeya Mosquitos - Shaffer
7/25/2018 KRNV CH4 - NBC Reno Photographer Mosquitos - Shaffer
7/25/2018 KTVN CH2 - CBS Reno Photographer Mosquitos - Shaffer
7/25/2018 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Photographer Mosquitos - Shaffer
7/25/2018 KTVN CH2 - CBS Reno Gaby Tafolla Air Quality and Wildfire Smoke - Inouye
7/25/2018 KRNV CH4 - NBC Reno Ben Margiott Smoke Free Parks - Seals
7/25/2018 KKOH 780AM - CNN Reno Daniella Soninno Mosquitos - Ulibarri/Lumpkin
7/24/2018 DOPE Magazine Joseph Schaffer Marijauna Studies - Ulibarri
7/24/2018 KTVN CH2 - CBS Reno John Potter Lemonaide Stands - Ulibarri
7/18/2018 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Photographer Mosquitos - Ulibarri/Lumpkin
7/17/2018 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Terri Russell Mosquitos - Lumpkin/Ulibarri
7/16/2018 Reno Gazette-Journal Jenny Kane Cholera - Ulibarri
7/11/2018 KRNV CH4 - NBC Reno Luis Chavez Mosquitos - Ulibarri/Lumpkin
7/10/2018 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Bridget Chavez Summer Air Quality - Inouye
7/5/2018 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Terri Russell Ticks - Shaffer/Ulibarri/Banspach
7/3/2018 KTVN CH2 - CBS Reno Brandon Fuhs Air Quality and Wildfire Smoke - Inouye

Press Releases/Media Advisories/Editorials/Talking Points

7/30/2018 Ozone air pollution at worst level in 10 years due to wildfires Ulibarri
7/27/2018 Minimize smoke and heat risks by following these prevention measures Ulibarri
7/25/2018 West Nile Virus confirmed in South Meadows area Ulibarri
7/20/2018 Free Family Health Festival slated for Wednesday, July 25 Ulibarri
7/10/2018 Health District to conduct third aerial larviciding Ulibarri

Social Media Postings
Facebook AQMD/CCHS/ODHO 165 (CCHS 22 EHS 16 ODHO 10 AQM 117)

EHS

Twitter AQMD/CCHS 106 (AQM 95 CCHS 11)



1 
 

             Brian Sandoval       Charles Duarte 
                           Governor                                                                                         Chair 
 
 

Washoe Regional Behavioral Health Policy Board 

 

 

August 10, 2018 

The Honorable Pat Spearman 
Nevada State Senate 
Chair, Nevada Legislative Committee on Health Care 
Nevada Legislature 
401 S. Carson St. 
Carson City, Nevada  89701 
 
Dear Senator Spearman: 
 
Pursuant to Assembly Bill 366 (NRS 433) passed in the 2017 Nevada Legislative Session, there are four 
Regional Behavior Health Boards: Southern, Northern, Rural and Washoe. The Washoe Regional 
Behavioral Health Policy Board is composed of 13 Board members, appointed in compliance with 
statutory guidelines and currently meets monthly to identify behavioral health needs of the region and to 
discuss and identify plans, policies and solutions to recognized issues.  The Washoe Regional Behavioral 
Health Policy Board coordinates with the other three Regional boards to ensure that efforts are 
collaborative, not duplicative and, when possible, that resources are shared. 
   
In preparation for the upcoming 2019 Nevada Legislative session, the Washoe Regional Behavioral 
Health Policy Board considered a variety of bill draft concepts.  A complete draft of Concept One is being 
developed for submission to the Legislative Counsel Bureau by September 1, 2018.  
 
Concept One: Crisis Stabilization Unit (CSU)  
 
Background 
Crisis Stabilization Units (CSUs) are considered an emergency healthcare alternative, providing persons 
with an acute behavioral health problem (including co-occurring disorders) with prompt action, gentle 
response and effective support in a respectful environment. A CSU can provide intensive, short-term 
voluntary interventions for someone experiencing a psychiatric and/or substance abuse crisis, including 
stabilization services and medical detoxification.   
 
Crisis Services are designed to stabilize and improve symptoms of distress and feature a continuum of 
core services including 23-hour crisis stabilization/observation beds, medical detox, short term crisis 
residential services and crisis stabilization, mobile crisis services, 24/7 crisis hotlines, warm lines, 
psychiatric advance directive statements, and peer crisis services. 
 
The research based on the effectiveness of crisis services is growing. There is evidence that crisis 
stabilization, community-based residential crisis care, and mobile crisis services can divert individuals 
from unnecessary hospitalizations and ensure the least restrictive treatment option is available to people 



2 
 

experiencing behavioral health crises. Additionally, a continuum of crisis services can assist in reducing 
costs for psychiatric hospitalization, without negatively impacting clinical outcomes (SAMSHA, 2014). 
 
Recommendation 
The Washoe Regional Behavioral Health Policy Board recommends legislation that supports both 
programmatically and fiscally, a Crisis Stabilization Unit in Washoe County.  
 
Concept Two: Affordable Housing 
 
Background   
The Washoe Policy Board carefully reviewed the National Governor’s Association Housing as Health 
Care report and agrees with the principles outlined therein regarding the need for affordable, accessible, 
quality housing.  The affordable housing crisis in Reno has disproportionately affected those living with a 
severe mental illness, many on a fixed income that is not increasing as rents soar.  The Policy Board also 
remains concerned about the quality of housing available to this population as outlined in the audit of the 
Community Based Living Arrangements (CBLA) funded by the state. 
 
Recommendation 
The Policy Board agrees with the recommendations from the legislature’s Affordable Housing Committee 
to exercise the 1915(i) Medicaid option for permanent supported housing for those who are experiencing 
chronic homelessness and have a diagnosed mental health issue.  The Policy Board also agrees with the 
Committee’s recommendation to create a Nevada Affordable Housing Tax Credit Program. 
 
Concept Three: Assisted Outpatient Treatment (AOT) 
 
Background 
The Assisted Outpatient Treatment (AOT) allows the most severely mentally ill individuals to be court-
ordered into treatment without ordering them into a hospital. It represents a less-restrictive, less-
expensive, more humane form of ‘commitment’ than inpatient commitment. The criteria to place 
someone in assisted outpatient treatment are easier to meet than the “imminent dangerousness” standard 
often required for inpatient commitment. AOT allows an individual to be ordered into treatment to 
prevent a relapse or deterioration which would likely result in serious harm to the patient or others. The 
court order not only commits the patient to accept treatment, but also commits the mental health system to 
providing it. AOT legislation has been shown to reduce hospitalization, arrest and incarceration, 
homelessness, victimization, and also to prevent violent acts associated with mental illness, including 
suicide and violence against others.  
 
Recommendation  
During the 2013 Nevada Legislative session, AB287 was introduced and passed (NRS 433A.310) 
resulting in one funded state program (Southern Nevada Adult Mental Health Services (SNAMHS)). 
Northern Nevada Adult Mental Health Services (NNAMHS) successfully applied for a SAMSHA grant to 
create an AOT program in Washoe County but that funding is scheduled to end in 2019.  The Washoe 
Regional Behavioral Health Policy Board identified a need to include funding for the NNAMHS program 
in the next biennial budget. 
 
Concept Four:  Super-Utilizer Pilot Program 
 
Background 
Super-utilizers are individuals whose complex medical problems make them disproportionately heavy 
users of expensive health care services, particularly Emergency Medical Services (ambulance/fire), 
Emergency Room treatment and in-patient hospitalizations.  These are people who typically overuse 



3 
 

emergency departments and hospital inpatient services, making more visits to those facilities in a month 
than some people make in a lifetime.   These patients often suffer from multiple chronic complex 
diseases, including mental health issues along with inadequate – or nonexistent – housing. They also lack 
a primary care physician or other medical home, so their health care may be haphazard and uncoordinated 
resulting in a huge burden being placed on our health care system.  
 
Recommendation 
While all emergency responders and health care providers agree they see these same individuals 
regularly, having the ability to identify each one and share approaches and services offered, is an 
important first step.  Data sharing emerges as a goal to enable this process to become more streamlined 
and to provide services that will mitigate multiple entries into the hospitals, jails, etc.  The Washoe 
Regional Behavioral Health Policy Board identified the need for a staff position to allow for a pilot 
Super-Utilizer Multi-Disciplinary Team to be convened, using data-sharing to identify the shared top 
utilizers of services and have the resources to develop highly-specialized case intervention plans to 
decrease inappropriate calls for services across systems. 
 
Concept Five: New 1% Excise Tax to Address Impacts of Marijuana  

Background 
The Washoe Regional Behavioral Health Policy Board heard presentations from community-based 
entities regarding the impact the legalization of marijuana has had in our region and ideas for more 
systemic data collection and surveillance and coordinated public education campaigns around second 
marijuana smoke, disparate populations such as pregnant and breastfeeding women, and youth 
prevention. 
 
Recommendation:   
A proposal to raise the excise tax on marijuana sales to fund these types of activities was discussed. 
  
Concept Six: Mandate Substance Abuse Prevention Program in Schools 

Background 
Preventing alcohol, tobacco, and other drug use among youth requires a comprehensive approach that 
addresses a range of risk and protective factors. The responsibility for preventing youth substance abuse 
does not lie with one discipline or group. Consistent prevention messages must be present from early 
childhood through young adulthood and be reinforced by multiple messengers at home, at school, and in 
the community. 
 
Schools have a significant role to play in addressing student substance abuse. Research shows that youth 
who receive universal, school-based substance abuse prevention programming are less likely to drink, 
smoke, and use other drugs. Schools—from kindergarten through high school—are an ideal venue to 
deliver age-specific, developmentally appropriate, and culturally responsive prevention programming. 
Teachers and administrators can foster positive school climates, create and enforce substance abuse 
prevention policies, and communicate consistent norms that youth substance abuse is unacceptable. The 
benefits are many: students who do not regularly use alcohol and other drugs are more likely to have 
higher grades, better attendance, and superior overall academic achievement than those who do use 
substances. Substance abuse can contribute to bullying and other violent behaviors in schools; thus, 
decreasing substance use contributes to safer schools. In addition, reducing substance abuse and related 
disciplinary and intervention responses can free up teacher, administrator, and staff time to focus on 
students’ academic success. 
 
 



4 
 

Recommendation 
The National Institute on Drug Abuse (NIDA) has identified early intervention as one of many evidence 
based prevention programs.  Intervening early—before high school—is critical. The data suggest that 
patterns of substance abuse become worse in the high school years. Individuals who begin using alcohol 
or tobacco when they are very young are more likely to abuse them later in life, when it becomes much 
more difficult to quit. 
 
Recognizing and appreciating the tremendous work our teachers in Nevada do, but also cognizant of the 
problem that faces our children, the Washoe Regional Behavioral Health Policy Board identified this 
issue as a possible BDR request, asking for a mandate to require age appropriate education within our 
schools that will assist students in learning learn how to understand and identify the causes, preventions, 
and treatments for diseases, disorders, injuries, and addictions.  It is the Board’s understanding that the 
Attorney General’s office is pursuing a bill draft for this purpose. 
 
Concept Seven: Clubhouse or Drop-In Center for Consumers  
 
Background 
Drop-In Centers offer a safe, supportive environment within the community for individuals who have 
experienced mental/emotional problems. It is a place to go, a place to be, a place to make friends, and be 
accepted and allows individuals the opportunity to learn to live in the community and to take control of 
their lives. 
 
The concept of a drop in center allows individuals to interact with others who have shared similar 
experiences, such as hospitalizations, medications, doctors, therapies, etc. Understanding of the pain and 
suffering of mental health problems is shared. A support system is built that helps individuals through 
painful times and helps individuals to have a sense of normalcy in their world which is often chaotic. A 
center of this sort would provide another resource to our community’s population experiencing mental 
and emotional health needs. 
 
Recommendation 
The Washoe Regional Behavioral Health Policy Board received input from consumers of mental health 
services regarding their desire for a Clubhouse or Drop-In Center to enable them to access these peer 
services and supports in our region. 
 

 

 

 

https://youth.gov/youth-topics/substance-abuse/federal-data-sources-youth-substance-abuse

	Agenda
	6. Consent Items
	A. Approval of Draft Minutes
	July 26, 2018

	B. Budget Amendments/Interlocal Agreements
	i. US FDA Award for EHS Food Regulatory Program Standards Program
	Staff Report

	ii. US EPA Grant for AQM EPA Air Pollution Control Program
	Staff Report

	iii. Donation to WCHD Vital Statistics Program
	Staff Report

	iv. NDHHS Award for CDC Public Health Preparedness Program
	Staff Report

	v. NDHHS Award for ASPR Public Health Preparedness Program
	Staff Report


	C. AQM Notice of Violation Citations
	i. Washoe County CSD Utility Services Citation
	Staff Report


	D. Health Fund Financial Review 
	Staff Report


	7. REMSA Consumer at Large Appointment
	Staff Report
	i. Scott Benton
	ii. Melanie Flores


	8. REMSA Report
	A. Operations Report July 2018
	B. Public Relations July 2018

	9. 2017-2020 Strategic Plan Progress Report
	Staff Report

	10. Staff Reports and Program Updates
	A. AQM
	Staff Report

	B. CCHS
	Staff Report

	C. EHS
	Staff Report

	D. EPHP
	Staff Report

	E. ODHO
	Staff Report






